
VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 1 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 2 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 3 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 4 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 5 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 6 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 7 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 8 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
Board of Directors 

 
Notice of Public Meeting and Permit Hearing  

 
Notice is hereby given in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Government Code and 
Section 36.404 of the Texas Water Code, that the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
will hold a public meeting on October 18, 2024, at 9:00 AM at 2805 N. Navarro St., Victoria, Texas.  
During the meeting, the Board of Directors is scheduled to conduct a permit hearing, consider, and 
possibly take action regarding the following permitting matter: 

Mr. Robert McCan for McFaddin Ranch - Garcitas Division - Owners seeks, under permitting request 
case PRC-20240423-02, a historic-use production permit protecting the historic production of 
groundwater from a grandfathered well system comprised of grandfathered wells GW-000615, GW-
001068, GW-001069, GW-001070, GW-001071 and GW-001073 located on two tracts of contiguous 
land owned or controlled by McFaddin Ranch - Garcitas Division, totaling 6,029 acres, near the 
intersection of FM 444 and Salem Road in Victoria County, Texas.  The associated applications specify 
that the well system produced groundwater at a combined capacity of 18,000 gallons per minute (3,000 
GPM per well) and was operated to produce 20,148 acre-feet of groundwater for irrigation of 3,358 
acres of rice in year 1996. 

Any person who intends to contest a permitting request must provide written notice of that intent to the 
District at 2805 N. Navarro St., Suite 210, Victoria, Texas 77901 at least three calendar days prior to 
the hearing date in this public notice.  If the District does not receive a timely notice of intent to contest 
a permitting request, the Board of Directors may cancel the related permit hearing and take action on 
the permit request(s) at the next regular board meeting in accordance with the Rules of the District. 

For more information regarding this matter, contact Tim Andruss, General Manager of the Victoria 
County Groundwater Conservation District at 361-579-6863 or at admin@vcgcd.org.  

 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 9 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 10 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 11 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 12 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 13 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 14 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 15 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 16 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 17 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 18 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 19 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 20 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 21 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 22 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 23 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 24 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 25 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 26 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 27 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 28 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 29 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 30 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 31 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 32 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 33 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 34 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 35 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 36 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 37 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 38 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 39 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 40 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 41 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 42 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 43 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 44 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 45 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 46 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 47 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 48 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 49 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 50 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 51 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 52 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 53 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 54 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 55 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 56 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 57 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 58 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 59 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 60 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 61 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 62 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 63 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 64 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 65 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 66 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 67 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 68 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 69 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 70 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 71 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 72 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 73 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 74 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 75 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 76 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 77 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 78 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 79 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 80 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 81 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 82 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 83 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 84 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 85 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 86 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 87 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 88 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 89 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 90 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 91 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 92 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 93 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 94 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 95 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 96 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 97 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 98 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 99 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 100 of 358



VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 101 of 358



 

 
 
 

October 15, 2024 
 
Tim Andruss, General Manager 
Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

Re: Enforcement Order ECV-20231105-03 and Enforcement Order ECV-20231105-06 
 
 
Mr. Andruss, 
 
In reference to the enforcement orders scheduled to be considered by the Board this Friday, 
October 18th, CSWR-Texas respectfully request that the Board consider granting leniency.  
 
Once it was made aware of the situation, after the departure of its former Texas Regional Manager, 
the Company acted promptly and with good faith to resolve all outstanding issues with the 
Conservation District.  As a result, CSWR-Texas now holds fully compliant permits for both the 
North Victoria and Coleto water systems addressed by these proposed enforcement orders.  
Additionally, CSWR-Texas has made process changes that should make the Company more 
responsive to the data needs of the Conservation District going forward. 
 
In lieu of the potential fines, CSWR-Texas propose a settlement of $2,500.00.  CSWR-Texas 
respectfully asks that the Board consider this request. 
 
Regards, 
 

 
Clarence Wittwer 
Regional Manager-Texas 
 
 
 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 102 of 358



Public Hearing Notice 

Pursuant to Chapter 36, Texas Water Code, the Victoria County Groundwater 
Conservation District will conduct a public hearing on October 18, 2024, at 9:00 AM at 
the Pattie Dodson Health Center, 2805 N. Navarro St., Victoria, Texas.  This hearing will 
be conducted to receive public input concerning the proposed rule revisions.  The 
proposed rules specify the regulations related to registration and permitting of water 
wells, protection of historic use, water well spacing, groundwater production and 
reporting, well completion standards, fees, violations and enforcement, permit renewal 
and amendment, and administrative procedures. 

A copy of the Proposed Rules of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
may be reviewed or copied at the District’s office located at the Pattie Dodson Health 
Center, 2805 N. Navarro St., Ste 210, Victoria, Texas.  In addition, the Proposed Rules 
of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District are available on the District’s 
website at www.vcgcd.org. 

 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 103 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 1 of 105 

 
 
 
 
 

RULES OF THE VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 

ADOPTED:    
 
EFFECTIVE:    

 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 104 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 2 of 105 

PROLOGUE	
 
 

INTRODUCTION	
 
The rules of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District were originally adopted 
on October 3, 2008. 
The rules of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District were modified and re-
adopted on August 28, 2009. 
The rules of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District were modified and re-
adopted on November 15, 2013. 
The rules of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District were modified and re-
adopted on April 15, 2016. 
The rules of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District were modified and re-
adopted on April 26, 2019. 
The rules of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District were modified and re-
adopted on January 20, 2023. 
The rules of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District were modified and re-
adopted on January 19, 2024. 
The rules of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District were modified and re-
adopted on __________________________. 
 
In accordance with Section 59 of Article XVI of the Texas Constitution, Chapter 8812, Special 
Districts and Local Laws Code, and Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code, the following rules 
are hereby ratified and adopted as the Rules of the Victoria County Groundwater 
Conservation District by its board of directors. Each rule as worded herein has been in effect 
since the date of passage and as may be hereafter amended. 
 
The rules, regulations, and modes of procedure herein contained are and have been adopted 
to simplify procedures, avoid delays, and facilitate the administration of the water laws of 
the state of Texas and the polices of the district. The rules of the district shall be construed 
in such a manner as to attain these objectives. 
 
The rules of the district may be used as guides in the exercise of discretion, where discretion 
is vested. However, under no circumstances and in no particular case may the rules of the 
district be construed as a limitation or restriction upon the exercise of powers, duties, and 
jurisdiction conferred by law. The rules of the district will not limit or restrict the amount 
and accuracy of data or information that may be required for the proper administration of 
the law. 
 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 105 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 3 of 105 

TABLE	OF	CONTENTS	

Table of Contents 

PROLOGUE	....................................................................................................................................................	2	
INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................................................................... 2 
TABLE OF CONTENTS ........................................................................................................................................................... 3 

SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND CONCEPTS	..............................................................................................	6	
RULE 1.1: DEFINITIONS OF TERMS .................................................................................................................................. 6 
RULE 1.2: GENERAL POLICIES REGARDING THE RULES OF THE DISTRICT .......................................................... 21 

SECTION 2: POLICIES RELATED TO DRILLING, REWORKING, REPLACING, AND PLUGGING WELLS23	
RULE 2.1: DRILLING WELLS .............................................................................................................................................. 23 
RULE 2.2: WELL SPACING REQUIREMENTS OF WELLS ............................................................................................. 24 
RULE 2.3: WELL SPACING REQUIREMENTS OF DEEP-SALINE WELLS .................................................................. 25 
RULE 2.4: STANDARDS FOR CONSTRUCTING WELLS ............................................................................................... 25 
RULE 2.5: COMMINGLING OF UNDESIRABLE WATER WITH DESIRABLE GROUNDWATER........................... 26 
RULE 2.6: REPLACING WELLS .......................................................................................................................................... 26 
RULE 2.7: PLUGGING WELLS............................................................................................................................................ 27 

SECTION 3: POLICIES RELATED TO REGISTRATION OF WATER WELLS, WELL FIELDS, AND WELL SYSTEMS
	.....................................................................................................................................................................	29	

RULE 3.1: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED TO REGISTRATION OF WELLS, WELL FIELDS, AND WELL SYSTEMS
 .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 29 
RULE 3.2: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO THE REGISTRATION OF A WELL ............................... 29 
RULE 3.3: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO THE REGISTRATION OF A WELL FIELD ................... 30 
RULE 3.4: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO THE REGISTRATION OF A WELL SYSTEM .............. 31 

SECTION 4: POLICIES RELATED TO PERMITTING	.................................................................................	33	
RULE 4.1: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED TO PERMITS ............................................................................................... 33 
RULE 4.2: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPT-USE WELLS ............................................. 35 
RULE 4.3: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO PERMITTING .............................................................................. 36 
RULE 4.4: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO RENEWAL AND AMENDMENT OF PERMITS ..................... 37 
RULE 4.4.1: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PERMIT RENEWAL REQUESTS ............................. 39 
RULE 4.4.2: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PERMIT AMENDMENT REQUESTS ..................... 39 

SECTION 5: POLICIES RELATED TO HISTORIC USE OF GROUNDWATER	..........................................	39	
RULE 5.1: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED TO PROTECTION OF HISTORIC USE PERMITTING ........................... 39 
RULE 5.1.1: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS OF GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE 

WELLS ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 40 
RULE 5.1.2: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS OF GRANDFATHERED WELL FIELDS ................ 41 
RULE 5.1.3: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS OF GRANDFATHERED WELL SYSTEMS ........... 41 
RULE 5.2: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO PROTECTION OF HISTORIC USE PERMITTING .................. 41 
RULE 5.2.1: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PROTECTION OF HISTORIC USE OF A 

GRANDFATHERED WELL ................................................................................................................................................... 43 
RULE 5.2.2: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PROTECTION OF HISTORIC USE OF A 

GRANDFATHERED WELL FIELD ....................................................................................................................................... 43 
RULE 5.2.3: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PROTECTION OF HISTORIC USE OF A 

GRANDFATHERED WELL SYSTEM .................................................................................................................................. 44 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 106 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 4 of 105 

SECTION 6: POLICIES RELATED TO NON-HISTORIC USE OF GROUNDWATER	................................	46	
RULE 6.1: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED TO NON-HISTORIC-USE PERMITTING ................................................ 46 
RULE 6.1.1: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS OF NON-GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE 

WELLS ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 47 
RULE 6.1.2: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS OF NON-GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE 

WELLS FIELDS ....................................................................................................................................................................... 48 
RULE 6.1.3: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS OF NON-GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE 

WELL SYSTEMS .................................................................................................................................................................... 49 
RULE 6.2: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO NON-HISTORIC USE PERMITTING ....................................... 49 
RULE 6.2.1: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PRODUCTION PERMIT REQUESTS FOR NON-
HISTORIC USE FOR A NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL ......................................................................................................... 51 
RULE 6.2.2: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO NON-HISTORIC USE PRODUCTION PERMITS FOR 

NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL FIELDS .................................................................................................................................... 52 
RULE 6.2.3: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO NON-HISTORIC USE PRODUCTION PERMITS FOR 

NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL SYSTEMS ............................................................................................................................... 53 
RULE 6.3: SPECIAL POLICIES RELATED TO HIGH-CAPACITY NON-HISTORIC USE PERMITTING ................... 54 
RULE 6.3.1: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO HIGH-CAPACITY NON-HISTORIC-USE 

PRODUCTION PERMIT REQUESTS ................................................................................................................................. 56 
RULE 6.3.2: SPECIAL MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PERMITTING HIGH-
CAPACITY NON-HISTORIC USE ........................................................................................................................................ 58 
RULE 6.3.3: SPECIAL OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PERMITTING HIGH-CAPACITY NON-
HISTORIC USE ....................................................................................................................................................................... 60 
RULE 6.4: SPECIAL POLICIES RELATED TO DEEP-SALINE NON-HISTORIC USE PERMITTING ......................... 60 
RULE 6.4.1: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS RELATED TO DEEP-SALINE SPECIAL 

GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ZONES .................................................................................................................... 63 
RULE 6.4.2: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO DEEP-SALINE PRODUCTION PERMIT REQUESTS
 .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 64 
RULE 6.4.3: SPECIAL MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PERMITTING DEEP-
SALINE NON-HISTORIC USE ............................................................................................................................................. 65 
RULE 6.4.4: SPECIAL OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PERMITTING DEEP-SALINE NON-
HISTORIC USE ....................................................................................................................................................................... 66 

SECTION 7: POLICIES RELATED GROUNDWATER TRANSFER	............................................................	69	
RULE 7.1: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED PERMITTING TRANSFER ......................................................................... 69 
RULE 7.2: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TRANSFER PERMITTING ............................................................... 69 
RULE 7.3: GENERAL MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO TRANSFER PERMITS 70 
RULE 7.4: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO TRANSFER PERMIT REQUESTS ................................ 71 

SECTION 8: POLICIES RELATED TO DISTRICT WAIVERS AND PETITIONS TO AMEND THE RULES OF THE 
DISTRICT	.....................................................................................................................................................	73	

RULE 8.1: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED TO WAIVERS .............................................................................................. 73 
RULE 8.2: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO DISTRICT WAIVERS .................................................................. 73 
RULE 8.3: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO DISTRICT WAIVERS ..................................................... 75 
RULE 8.4: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED TO PETITIONS TO AMEND THE RULES OF THE DISTRICT .............. 76 
RULE 8.5: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO PETITIONS TO AMEND THE RULES OF THE DISTRICT ..... 76 
RULE 8.6: APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO PETITIONS TO AMEND THE RULES OF THE DISTRICT
 .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 77 

SECTION 9: POLICIES RELATE TO CURTAILMENT OF GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION	.................	79	

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 107 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 5 of 105 

RULE 9.1: CURTAILMENT OF GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION .............................................................................. 79 
RULE 9.2: REDUCTION OF AUTHORIZED GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION AMOUNT OF PRODUCTION 

PERMITS ................................................................................................................................................................................ 79 

SECTION 10: POLICIES RELATED TO DISTRICT FEES	............................................................................	80	
RULE 10.1: ADMINISTRATIVE AND APPLICATION FEE ............................................................................................. 80 
RULE 10.2: REGISTRATION APPLICATION FEE ............................................................................................................ 80 
RULE 10.3: TRANSFER FEE ................................................................................................................................................ 80 
RULE 10.4: PRODUCTION FEE ......................................................................................................................................... 80 
RULE 10.5: PENALTIES AND LATE FEES ......................................................................................................................... 81 

SECTION 11: POLICIES RELATED TO WASTE, VIOLATIONS, INVESTIGATIONS, AND ENFORCEMENT
	.....................................................................................................................................................................	82	

RULE 11.1: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED TO WASTE PREVENTION ..................................................................... 82 
RULE 11.2: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED VIOLATIONS ............................................................................................ 82 
RULE 11.3: RIGHT TO INSPECT, TEST, AND LOCATE WELLS .................................................................................... 83 
RULE 11.4: CONDUCT ASSOCIATED WITH INVESTIGATIONS AND INSPECTIONS ............................................ 84 
RULE 11.5: RULE ENFORCEMENT ................................................................................................................................... 84 
RULE 11.6: SEALING OF WELLS ....................................................................................................................................... 84 
RULE 11.7: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO RULE ENFORCEMENT ........................................................... 85 
RULE 11.8: NOTICES OF VIOLATIONS ............................................................................................................................ 85 
RULE 11.9: NOTICE OF NEED TO FILE SUIT .................................................................................................................. 86 
RULE 11.10: PENALTIES ..................................................................................................................................................... 87 

SECTION 12: PROCEDURES RELATE TO HEARINGS AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS	...........................	88	
RULE 12.1: GENERAL POLICIES RELATED TO HEARINGS ......................................................................................... 88 
RULE 12.2: NOTICE AND SCHEDULING RELATED TO HEARINGS AND PROPOSED PERMIT ISSUANCE ...... 88 
RULE 12.3: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO HEARINGS ................................................................................ 90 
RULE 12.4: PROCEDURES RELATED TO UNCONTESTED PERMIT HEARINGS ..................................................... 93 
RULE 12.5: PROCEDURES RELATED TO CONTESTED PERMIT HEARINGS ........................................................... 94 
RULE 12.6: PROCEDURES RELATE TO DECISIONS, REHEARINGS, AND APPEALS ............................................. 99 

 
 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 108 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 6 of 105 

SECTION	1:	DEFINITIONS	AND	CONCEPTS	
 

RULE	1.1:	DEFINITIONS	OF	TERMS	
In the administration of its duties, the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
follows the definitions of terms set forth in the district act, Chapter 36 of the Texas Water 
Code, Chapter 76 of Title 16 of the Texas Administrative Code, and the definitions as follow: 
 
ACRE-FOOT means the amount of water necessary to cover one acre of land one foot deep 
and is equal to 325,851 U.S. gallons of water. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVELY COMPLETE means the condition of an application when all information 
required and requested has been provided to the district, including the information specified 
in the rules of the district or reasonably related to an issue that the district by law is 
authorized to consider. 
 
APPLICANT means the person, who possessing sufficient legal authority to obligate the 
associated owners of groundwater resources, the associated owners of land, and the 
associated well owners to the regulations, requirements, and conditions of permits and 
district waivers resulting from the approval of an application, submits an application to the 
district. 
 
APPLICATION means the completed forms and associated information supporting a request 
for authorization from the district related to the regulation of the groundwater resources 
within the district, including the information specified in the rules of the district or 
reasonably related to an issue that the district by law is authorized to consider. 
 
AQUIFER CONDITION PARAMETERS means quantitative physical characteristics of the Gulf 
Coast Aquifer System required, by the district, to be monitored as a condition of a production 
permit. 
 
AQUIFER CONDITION TIER 1 PARAMETERS means the following measurements:  
1. water level of a well as feet below the ground surface,  
2. specific conductivity of a well as μS/cm, and 
3. temperature as °C. 
 
AQUIFER CONDITION TIER 2 PARAMETERS means the following measurements:  
1. water level of a well as feet below the ground surface; 
2. temperature as °C; 
3. total dissolved solids, M2540C; 
4. elements / metals, ICPMS (0.45u filtered and acid preserved): SW6020A; 
5. specific conductivity, M2510 B; 
6. alkalinity, M2320 B; 
7. pH, M45000-H+ B; 
8. anions, IC method, Water E300; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 109 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 7 of 105 

9. Silica, USEPA method 370.1. 
 
AQUIFER CONDITION TIER 3 PARAMETERS means the following measurements:  
alkalinity, ammonia, arsenic, barium, bicarbonate, bromide, cadmium, chromium, carbonate, 
calcium, chloride, dissolved oxygen, fluoride, iron, iodide, lead, magnesium, mercury, 
molybdenum, nitrate, nitrate, oxidation reduction potential, potassium, selenium, silver, 
sodium, sulfate, sulfite, total dissolved solids, total hardness, total phosphorus, total organic 
carbon, total suspended solids, turbidity, and uranium. 
 
ARTESIAN WELL means a well drilled through impermeable strata to reach water capable of 
rising to the surface by internal hydrostatic pressure. 
 
AUTHORIZED AGENT means the person, who possessing sufficient legal authority to obligate 
certain owners of groundwater resources, certain owners of land, certain well owners, or 
certain authorized operators to the regulations, requirements, and conditions of permits and 
district waivers issued by the district, represents and acts for those other persons regarding 
matters within the jurisdiction of the district. 
 
AUTHORIZED ANNULAR SPACE SEALANT means a material that will: 
1. create a seal against the borehole wall preventing the leaking of fluids into the borehole, 
2. create a seal against the well casing preventing the development of liquid flow paths 

along the outside of the casing, and 
3. fills and sets up to fill the voids between the outside of the casing and the borehole wall 

having structural integrity and porosity that prevents the migration of fluids through the 
sealant. Authorized materials include neat cement grout, bentonite-cement grout, high-
solids bentonite grout, bentonite slurry, and properly hydrated bentonite 
chips/pellets/granules. 

 
AUTHORIZED GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION means the non-exempt use of a well, a well 
field, or well system resulting in the flowing of or extraction of groundwater from a well, a 
well field, or a well system as authorized by the district under a production permit. 
 
AUTHORIZED GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION AMOUNT means the quantity of groundwater, 
in units of acre-foot per year, authorized to be produced from a well, a well field, or a well 
system by the district under a production permit. 
 
AUTHORIZED GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION PURPOSE means the beneficial use for which 
groundwater produced from a well, a well field, or a well system may be put as authorized 
by the district under a production permit. 
 
AUTHORIZED GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION RATE means the quantity of groundwater, in 
units of gallons permit or gallons per day, authorized to be produced from a well, a well field, 
or a well system by the district under a production permit. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 110 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 8 of 105 

AUTHORIZED GROUNDWATER TRANSFER AMOUNT means the quantity of groundwater in 
units of acre-foot per year, that the district has authorized to be transferred out of the district 
under a transfer permit. 
 
AUTHORIZED GROUNDWATER TRANSFER LOCATION means location that the district has 
authorized to groundwater to be transferred by permit. 
 
AUTHORIZED GROUNDWATER TRANSFER PERIOD means the period of time that the 
district has authorized groundwater to be transferred by permit. 
 
AUTHORIZED GROUNDWATER TRANSFER PURPOSE means the beneficial use to which 
groundwater transferred outside of the district under a transfer permit issued by the district 
is authorized to be put. 
 
AUTHORIZED OPERATOR means any person authorized by the district by permit to operate 
a well, well field, well system, or groundwater transfer facility. 
 
AVERAGE AQUIFER CONDITION means the average of aquifer condition parameters 
calculated from measurements collected in association with an aquifer monitoring plan, 
approved by the district, collected during a particular period of time from a well or wells.    
 
BENEFICIAL USE means: 
1. the use of groundwater for agricultural, gardening, domestic, stock raising, municipal, 

mining, manufacturing, industrial, commercial, recreational, or pleasure purposes; 
2. the use of groundwater for exploring for, producing, handling, or treating oil, gas, sulfur, 

or other minerals; or 
3. the use of groundwater for any other purpose that is useful and does not constitute waste 

of groundwater. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS means the governing body of the district. 
 
CONTIGUOUS OWNERSHIP OF LAND means a unit of ownership of land held by a single 
person, entity, or undivided interests in the unit of land surrounding a single location 
without interrupting ownership. 
 
CONTIGUOUS OWNERSHIP OF GROUNDWATER RESOURCES means a unit of ownership of 
groundwater resources held by an individual person, entity, or undivided interests in a unit 
of groundwater resources surrounding a single location without interrupting ownership. 
 
DEAF PERSON means a person who has a hearing impairment that inhibits the person's 
comprehension of the proceedings or communication with others. 
 
DEDICATED AQUIFER MONITORING WELL means a well that is designed, constructed, and 
used solely for the purposes of monitoring aquifer conditions. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 111 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 9 of 105 

DEEP-SALINE NON-HISTORIC USE means the non-exempt use of a well, a well field, or well 
system, which is not validated by the district as historic use, resulting in the flowing of or 
extraction of groundwater from a deep-saline special groundwater management zone from 
a well, a well field, or a well system as authorized by the district under a production permit.  
 
DEEP-SALINE SPECIAL GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ZONE means a special 
groundwater management zone designated by the district comprised of a water-bearing 
stratum containing saline groundwater existing at least one thousand three hundred feet 
(1,300 feet) below ground surface. 
 
DEEP-SALINE SPECIAL GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ZONES designated by the district 
include: 
1. GOLIAD SALINE GROUNDWATER ZONE means the deep-saline special groundwater 

management zone within Victoria County in the Upper Goliad Formation or the Lower 
Goliad Formation.  Figure 1 and Figure 2 illustrate the spatial extent of the Goliad Saline 
Groundwater Zone. 

2. LAGARTO SALINE GROUNDWATER ZONE means the deep-saline special groundwater 
management zone within Victoria County in the Upper Lagarto Formation, Middle 
Lagarto Formation, or the Lower Lagarto Formation.  Figure 3 and Figure 4 illustrate the 
spatial extent of the Lagarto Saline Groundwater Zone. 

3. OAKVILLE SALINE GROUNDWATER ZONE means the deep-saline special groundwater 
management zone within Victoria County in the Oakville Formation.  Figure 5 illustrates 
the spatial extent of the Oakville Saline Groundwater Zone. 

 
DEEP-SALINE WELL means a well that is a non-grandfathered non-exempt-use well with 
well screening isolated in a deep-saline special groundwater management zone. 
 
DEEP-SALINE WELL FIELD means a set of wells that are or would be classified as a non-
grandfathered non-exempt-use wells with well screening isolated in a deep-saline special 
groundwater management zone located on a contiguous tract of land owned or controlled 
by the owners of the wells. 
 
DESIRABLE GROUNDWATER means groundwater that is not injurious to vegetation, 
animals, land, or would not cause or contribute to contamination of land or water. 
 
DETERIORATED WELL means a well that, because of its condition, will cause or is likely to 
cause pollution of any water in this state, including groundwater. 
 
DISTRICT means the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District. 
 
DISTRICT ACT means Chapter 8812, Special District Local Laws Code and the non-conflicting 
provisions of Chapter 36, Water Code. 
 
DISTRICT OFFICE means the office of the district as established by action of the board of 
directors. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 112 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 10 of 105 

DISTRICT WAIVER means the modification, reduction, of elimination of a rule, requirement, 
or condition of the rules of the district or of a permit issued by the district that is granted by 
the board of directors upon a finding of good cause. 
 
DOMESTIC means those activities related to the maintenance of a household. 
 
DORMANT WELL means a non-exempt-use well that is not a deteriorated well or abandoned 
well which the authorized operator has notified the district, by submitting an application 
requesting the well be classified as a dormant well, that the well will not be operated for the 
foreseeable future and the district will be notified, by submitting an application requesting 
the well be classified as an active well prior to any operation of the well. 
 
EVIDENCE OF HISTORIC USE means evidence that is material and relevant to a 
determination of the amount of groundwater produced for beneficial use from a 
grandfathered well, grandfathered well field, or grandfathered well system for a non-exempt 
use without waste of groundwater during the historic use validation period.  
 
EXEMPT USE means the use or operation of a well or set of wells for exempt-use purposes. 
 
EXEMPT-USE PURPOSES means: 
1. producing groundwater for domestic use purposes; 
2. producing groundwater for livestock or poultry watering purposes; 
3. producing groundwater for firefighting purposes;  
4. producing groundwater for groundwater monitoring purposes in a volume that does not 

exceed five thousand gallons (5,000 gallons) of water per year; or 
5. otherwise exempt under Section 36.117, Water Code. 
 
EXEMPT-USE WELL means a well used solely for exempt-use purposes. 
 
FEE means a charge imposed by the district pursuant to Texas Water Code Chapter 36. 
 
FEE TYPES include: 
1. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE means a fee assessed by the district on an applicant for the 

submittal of an application. 
2. PRODUCTION FEE means a fee assessed by the district on authorized operators based on 

the volume of groundwater produced from a non-exempt-use well. 
3. TRANSFER FEE means a fee assessed by the district on authorized operators based on 

the volume of groundwater transferred out of the boundary of the district. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER means the person employed by the district assigned the responsibility 
of managing the district office and completing duties, actions, and tasks as directed by the 
board of directors. 
 
GEOGRAPHIC COORDINATE means the latitude and longitude of a location described in 
measurements of World Geodetic System, WGS 1984 EPSG 4326. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 113 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 11 of 105 

GOOD CAUSE means a reasonable and rational justification for the board of directors to take 
an action to accomplish and achieve its management goals and objects related to preserving, 
conserving, recharging, and protecting groundwater resources, controlling subsidence and 
preventing waste of groundwater within the district. 
 
GRANDFATHERED EXEMPT-USE WELL means a well that existed at the date of the original 
adoption of the rules of the district used during and after the historic use period solely for 
exempt-use purposes. 
 
GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL means a well that existed at the date of the 
original adoption of the rules of the district used for non-exempt-use purposes during the 
historic use period.  
 
GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL FIELD means a well field that existed, in its 
entirety, at the date of the original adoption of the rules of the district used for non-exempt-
use purposes during the historic use period. 
 
GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL SYSTEM means a well system that existed, in 
its entirety, at the date of the original adoption of the rules of the district used for non-
exempt-use purposes during the historic use period. 
 
GRANDFATHERED STATUS means the classification, assigned by the district, of the purpose 
of use for a well, a well field, or a well system as a grandfathered well, a grandfathered well 
field, a grandfathered well system, a non-grandfathered well, a non-grandfathered well field, 
or a non-grandfathered well system. 
 
GRANDFATHERED WELL means a well that existed at the date of the original adoption of the 
rules of the district and the present pattern of operation of the well is the same as the historic 
use of the well. 
 
GRANDFATHERED WELL FIELD means a well field that existed, in its entirety, at the date of 
the original adoption of the rules of the district and the present pattern of operation of the 
well field is the same as the historic use of the well field. 
 
GRANDFATHERED WELL SYSTEM means a well system that existed, in its entirety, at the 
date of the original adoption of the rules of the district and the present pattern of operation 
of the well system is the same as the historic use of the well system. 
 
GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION means the operation of a well, a well field, or a well system 
that results in the extraction of groundwater from a well. 
 
GROUNDWATER RESOURCES means the water percolating below the surface of the earth. 
 
GROUNDWATER QUALITY CLASSIFICATIONS include: 
1. FRESH GROUNDWATER means groundwater with a total dissolved solids concentration 

less than one thousand milligrams per liter (1,000 mg/L). 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 114 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 12 of 105 

2. SALINE GROUNDWATER means groundwater with a total dissolved solids concentration 
1) equal to or greater than one thousand milligrams per liter (1,000 mg/L) and 2) equal 
to or less than ten thousand milligrams per liter (10,000 mg/L). 
2.1. SLIGHTLY SALINE GROUNDWATER means groundwater with a total dissolved solids 

concentration 1) equal to or greater than one thousand milligrams per liter (1,000 
mg/L) and 2) equal to or less than three thousand milligrams per liter (3,000 mg/L). 

2.2. MODERATELY SALINE GROUNDWATER means groundwater with a total dissolved 
solids concentration 1) greater than three thousand milligrams per liter (3,000 
mg/L) and 2) equal to or less than ten thousand milligrams per liter (10,000 mg/L). 

2.3. EXTEREMLY SALINE GROUNDWATER means groundwater with a total dissolved 
solids concentration greater than ten thousand milligrams per liter (10,000 mg/L). 

 
GULF COAST AQUIFER SYSTEM means the water-bearing strata and geologic formations of 
the Chicot Aquifer, Evangeline Aquifer, Jasper Aquifer, or any other water-bearing geologic 
formation within the boundary of the district. 
 
HEARING EXAMINER means a person appointed by the board of directors to conduct a 
hearing or other proceeding. 
 
HIGH-CAPACITY NON-HISTORIC USE means the production of groundwater for non-exempt 
use that is: 
1. produced from one or more wells located on one or more tracts of contiguous 

groundwater ownership associated with a permit request for a production permit for 
non-historic use with: 
1.1. the cumulative authorized groundwater production rate being greater than or equal 

to five hundred gallons per minute (500 GPM), excluding the authorized 
groundwater production rates associated with historic use or deep-saline non-
exempt use; or 

1.2. the cumulative authorized groundwater production amount being greater than or 
equal to two hundred and fifty acre-foot per year (250 acre-foot per year), excluding 
the authorized groundwater production amounts associated with historic use or 
deep-saline non-exempt use. 

 
HIGH-CAPACITY NON-HISTORIC-USE PRODUCTION PERMIT means a production permit 
issued by the district associated with an application requesting authorization to produce 
groundwater that qualifies as high-capacity non-exempt use. 
 
HISTORIC USE means the specific pattern of operation of a well that has not been plugged, a 
well field, or a well system that occurred during the historic use validation period including 
the annual quantity of groundwater produced from the well, the well field, or the well system 
and the specific purposes of use of the produced groundwater for which evidence of the 
specific pattern of operation of a well, a well field, or a well system during the historic use 
validation period exists. 
 
HISTORIC USE VALIDATION PERIOD means the time period before the date of the original 
adoption of the rules of the district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 115 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 13 of 105 

 
HISTORIC USE VALIDATION PERMIT means a production permit issued by the district 
associated with an application requesting validation and protection of historic use. 
 
HISTORIC USE VALIDATION YEAR means the calendar year during the historic use validation 
period for which validation of historic use is being sought for a grandfathered well, a 
grandfathered well field, or a grandfathered well system. 
 
INITIAL AVERAGE AQUIFER CONDITIONS means the average aquifer condition calculated 
from measurements collected in association with an aquifer monitoring plan, approved by 
the district, before groundwater is produced under a production permit. 
 
LANDOWNER means the person who has legal title to the land surface of a tract of land 
within the district. 
 
LICENSED WELL DRILLER means a person licensed or registered by the Texas Department 
of Licensing and Regulation under Title 16, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 76, Water 
Well Drillers and Pump Installers Rules to perform drilling work. 
 
MANAGEMENT PLAN OF THE DISTRICT means the foundational document developed, 
amended, approved, and adopted by the board of directors of the Victoria County 
Groundwater Conservation District in accordance with Section 36.1071 of the Texas Water 
Code. 
 
NON-EXEMPT USE means the use or operation of a well or set of wells for non-exempt-use 
purposes. 
 
NON-EXEMPT-USE PURPOSES means producing or using groundwater resources for any 
purpose other than those defined as exempt-use purposes. 
 
NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL means a well that used for non-exempt-use purposes. 
 
NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL FIELD means the collection of wells located on a contiguous tract 
of land owned or controlled by a person or set of persons used collectively for non-exempt-
use purposes. 
 
NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL SYSTEM means the collection of wells located on multiple tracts of 
contiguous land owned or controlled by a person or set of persons used collectively for non-
exempt-use purposes, which is connected by a transmission or distribution system. 
 
NON-GRANDFATHERED EXEMPT-USE WELL means an exempt-use well that is not a 
grandfathered well or a replacement well of a grandfathered well. 
 
NON-GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL means a non-exempt-use well that is not 
a grandfathered well or a replacement well of a grandfathered well. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 116 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 14 of 105 

NON-GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL FIELD means a non-exempt-use well field 
that is not a grandfathered well field. 
 
NON-GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL SYSTEM means a non-exempt-use well 
system that is not a grandfathered well system. 
 
NON-GRANDFATHERED WELL means a well that is not a grandfathered well or a 
replacement well of a grandfathered well. 
 
NON-GRANDFATHERED WELL FIELD means a well field that is not a grandfathered well 
field. 
 
NON-GRANDFATHERED WELL SYSTEM means a well system that is not a grandfathered well 
system. 
 
NON-HISTORIC USE means the specific pattern of operation of a well, a well field, or a well 
system that did not occur during the historic use validation period including the annual 
quantity of groundwater produced from the well, the well field, or the well system and the 
specific purposes of use of the produced groundwater. 
 
OPEN MEETINGS LAW means Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 
 
ORIGINAL EXEMPT-USE GRANDFATHERED WELL means a well that 1) existed on the 
original date the rules of the district were adopted, 2) satisfied the definition of an exempt 
use well as defined in the version of the rules of the district adopted on April 26, 2019, and 
3) an administratively complete application to register the well or well log had been 
submitted to or obtained by the district prior to the date the version of the rules of the district 
adopted on April 26, 2019, were superseded. 
 
ORIGINAL EXEMPT-USE NON-GRANDFATHERED WELL means a well that 1) was drilled 
after the original date the rules of the district were adopted, 2) satisfied the definition of an 
exempt use well as defined in the version of the rules of the district adopted on April 26, 
2019, and 3) an administratively complete application to register the well or well log had 
been submitted to or obtained by the district prior to the date the version of the rules of the 
district adopted on April 26, 2019, were superseded. 
 
OWNER OF GROUNDWATER RESOURCES means the person or set of persons who owns and 
controls a defined unit of groundwater resources within the boundaries of the district. 
 
OWNERSHIP OF GROUNDWATER RESOURCES means the possession and control of 
groundwater water located within a defined three-dimensional boundary within the district. 
 
OWNERSHIP OF LAND means the possession and control of land surface located within a 
defined boundary within the district. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 117 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 15 of 105 

PERMIT means a document issued by the district conditionally authorizing a person to 
perform certain actions within the jurisdiction of the district. 
 
PERMIT AMENDMENT means a modification of a valid permit previously issued by the 
district. 
 
PERSON means a natural person, partnerships of two or more persons having a joint or 
common interest, corporation, organization, government, or governmental subdivision or 
agency, business trust, estate, trust, partnership, association, any other legal entity, or the 
combination of multiple persons to form an entity to which the rules and regulations of the 
district may apply. 
 
PERSONAL RECREATION means those activities related to the recreation of an individual or 
a household. 
 
PETITION TO AMEND THE RULES OF THE DISTRICT means a request to add, revise, or 
eliminate specific requirements or limitations established by the board of directors within 
the rules of the district. 
 
PLUGGING means the activity of altering a well to prevent the production of groundwater 
from the production casing or the movement of water or other fluids, including injurious 
water, between water bearing strata intersected by the well borehole, resulting in an 
absolute sealing of the well bore. 
 
PLUGGED WELL means a well that has been altered to prevent the production of 
groundwater from the production casing or the movement of water or other fluids, including 
injurious water, between water bearing strata intersected by the well borehole, and to result 
in an absolute sealing of the well bore. 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER means the President, Vice-President, Secretary, or other director of the 
district presiding at any hearing or other proceeding or a hearing examiner conducting any 
hearing or other proceeding of the district. 
 
PRODUCED GROUNDWATER means water that has been pumped, flowed, or extracted from 
a well. 
 
PRODUCTION AREA means the spatial boundary and extent of the area within the boundary 
of ownership or control of groundwater resources associated with a production permit that: 
1. encompasses the location of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well system; 

and encompasses sufficient area to satisfy the associated groundwater production 
limitations under which the permit was issued by the district if the production permit 
authorizes non-historic use; or 

2. encompasses the location of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well system; 
and encompasses the portion of the ownership or control of groundwater resources 
associated with the validated historic use of the permit if the production permit 
authorizes historic use. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 118 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 16 of 105 

 
PRODUCTION CAPACITY means the rate at which a well, a well field, or a well system can 
produce groundwater. 
 
PRODUCTION PERMIT means the authorization issued by the district to use a well, a well 
field, or a well system for non-exempt use that specifies the authorized groundwater 
production purpose, the authorized groundwater production rate, the authorized 
groundwater production amount, and any special conditions for a designated period of time. 
 
PRODUCTION ZONE means the water-bearing stratum or strata that a well is completed in 
and from which groundwater is released into the water well. 
 
PROTECTION OF HISTORIC USE means authorizing the continued operation of a 
grandfathered well, a grandfathered well field, or a grandfathered well system in a manner 
consistent with the validated historic use of the grandfathered well, the grandfathered well 
field, or the grandfathered well system. 
 
PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY ENTITY means any natural person, partnerships of two or more 
persons having a joint or common interest, corporation, organization, government, or 
governmental subdivision or agency, business trust, estate, trust, partnership, association, 
any other legal entity, or the combination of multiple persons to form an entity that provides 
water service to another person. 
 
PURPOSE OF USE means the reason for utilizing a well, a well field, or a well system to 
produce groundwater resources or to access groundwater resources for specific beneficial 
uses. 
 
PURPOSE OF BENEFICIAL USE TYPES include: 
1. AGRICULTURAL USE means production or use of groundwater for activities involving 

agriculture as defined in Texas Water Code Section 36.001, including but not limited to:  
1.1. aquaculture;  
1.2. irrigation to cultivate the soil to produce crops;  
1.3. the practice of floriculture, viticulture, silviculture, and horticulture, including 

nursery grower operations;  
1.4. raising, feeding, or keeping animals for breeding or production of food or fiber or 

other products with a tangible value;  
1.5. planting cover crops,  
1.6. wildlife management; or  
1.7. raising or keeping equine animals. 

2. DOMESTIC USE means the production or use of groundwater for domestic purposes for 
an individual or a household including groundwater used: 
2.1. for drinking, washing, or culinary purposes; 
2.2. for irrigating lawns, a family garden, or a family orchard; 
2.3. for watering domestic animals; and 
2.4. for personal recreation including aquatic and wildlife enjoyment; but 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 119 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 17 of 105 

2.5. domestic use does not include water used to support activities for which 
consideration is given or received or for which the product of the activity is sold or 
used by or for a public water system. 

3. INDUSTRIAL USE means the production or use of groundwater integral to the production 
of primary goods or services provided by industrial or manufacturing facilities and used 
primarily in the building, production, manufacturing, or alteration of a product or goods, 
or the use of groundwater to wash, cleanse, cool, or heat such goods or products, and the 
use of water in the generation of electricity by means other than hydroelectric, including 
the use of water for cooling purposes, and the uses associated with plant personnel, fire 
protection at the facility, and in maintaining associated property and facilities including 
mitigation and habitat areas but does not include agricultural use. 

4. INJECTION USE means the use of a well for the following purposes: 
4.1. to return water used for heating or cooling; 
4.2. to inject water previously used for cooling; 
4.3. to drain surface fluid into a subsurface formation; 
4.4. to recharge the water in an aquifer; 
4.5. to inject water into a freshwater aquifer to prevent the intrusion of salt water into 

the freshwater; 
4.6. to inject a mixture of water and sand, mill tailings, or other solids into subsurface 

mines; 
4.7. to inject fluids into a non-oil or gas producing zone to reduce or eliminate subsidence 

associated with the overdraft of water; or 
4.8. used to circulate water, other fluids, or gases through the earth as a heat source or 

heat sink. 
5. MONITORING USE means to use a well for the purpose of measuring one or more 

properties of the groundwater resources or aquifer it penetrates, provided the well does 
not produce more than five thousand gallons (5,000 gallons) of groundwater per year. 

6. MUNICIPAL USE means the production and use of groundwater for a public water system 
for residential, commercial, or public and institutional uses, including the application of 
potable water for irrigation of golf courses, parks and recreational uses but does include 
water for industrial uses when the industrial user is receiving potable water from the 
municipality. 

7. REMEDIATION USE means the production or use of groundwater to either extract or 
inject materials for the purpose of remediating or removing a subsurface contaminant. 

8. OIL, GAS, AND MINERALS USE means the use of groundwater for exploring for, 
producing, handling, or treating oil, gas, sulphur, or other minerals; or 

9. OTHER USE means any other purpose that is useful and beneficial to the user.  
 
RECHARGE means the process of replenishment of groundwater by infiltration of water from 
sources such as precipitation, streams, rivers, and reservoirs. 
 
REGISTRATION means the process through which the district assigns an identification 
number, grandfathered status, and use exemption status to a well. 
 
REGISTERED WELL means a well registered by the district in accordance with the rules of 
the district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 120 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 18 of 105 

 
REPLACEMENT WELL means a well drilled for the purposes of replacing a registered well 
that is deteriorated provided the new well is drilled within one hundred yards (100 yards) 
of and constructed in a manner consistent with the construction of the well being replaced 
including the production zones and the production capacity. 
 
RULES OF THE DISTRICT mean the rules compiled in this document and as may be 
supplemented or amended from time to time by the district. 
 
SPECIAL GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ZONE means a geographic area, aquifer, 
subdivision of an aquifer, or geologic strata within the district in which conditions in or use 
of an aquifer differ substantially from other geographic areas or for which different rules 
may be adopted for better management of the groundwater resources in accordance with 
Section 36.116(d) of the Texas Water Code. 
 
SPECIAL WELL CONSTRUCTION AREA means a special groundwater management zone for 
which well construction requirements are established to prevent negative impacts such as 
groundwater contamination and commingling of undesirable water with desirable water 
through well boreholes and well casing. 
 
STANDARD-CAPACITY NON-HISTORIC USE means the production of groundwater for non-
exempt use that is: 
1. produced from with one or more wells located on one or more tracts of contiguous 

groundwater ownership associated with a permit request for a production permit for 
non-historic use with: 
1.1. the cumulative authorized groundwater production rate being less than five hundred 

gallons per minute (500 GPM), excluding the authorized groundwater production 
rates associated with historic use or deep-saline non-exempt use; or 

1.2. the cumulative authorized groundwater production amount being less than two 
hundred and fifty acre-foot per year (250 acre-foot), excluding the authorized 
groundwater production amounts associated with historic use or deep-saline non-
exempt use. 

 
STANDARD-CAPACITY NON-HISTORIC-USE PRODUCTION PERMIT means a production 
permit issued by the district associated with an application requesting authorization to 
produce groundwater that qualifies as standard-capacity non-historic use. 
 
SUBJECT TRACT OF CONTIGUOUS OWNERSHIP OF LAND means the tract or tracts of land 
ownership that 1) are spatially connected and 2) owned by any of the owners of land 
associated with a particular application, a particular permit issued by the district, or a 
particular district waiver issued by the district. 
 
SUBJECT TRACT OF CONTIGUOUS OWNERSHIP OF GROUNDWATER RESOURCES means the 
tract or tracts of groundwater ownership that 1) are spatially connected and 2) owned by 
any of the owners of groundwater resources associated with a particular application, a 
particular permit issued by the district, or a particular district waiver issued by the district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 121 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 19 of 105 

 
SUBJECT WELL means a specific well, proposed or existing, associated with an application 
related to a permit or district waiver or the subject of a permit or district waiver issued by 
the district. 
 
SUBJECT WELL FIELD means a specific well field and related wells, proposed or existing, 
associated with an application related to a permit or district waiver or the subject of a permit 
or district waiver issued by the district. 
 
SUBJECT WELL SYSTEM means the specific well system and related wells, proposed or 
existing, associated with an application related to a permit or district waiver or the subject 
of a permit or district waiver issued by the district. 
 
TEXAS RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE AND TEXAS RULES OF EVIDENCE means the civil 
procedure and evidence rules as amended and in effect at the time of the action or 
proceeding.  
 
TRANSFER OF GROUNDWATER means the transporting of groundwater out of the district. 
 
TRANSFER PERMIT means an authorization issued by the district allowing the transfer of 
groundwater produced under a production permit out of the district to a location for a 
designated period of time. 
 
UNDESIRABLE GROUNDWATER means groundwater that is injurious to vegetation, animals, 
land, or would cause or contribute to contamination of land or water. 
 
UNWANTED LOSS OF GROUNDWATER means the loss of groundwater from a water-bearing 
strata to another water-bearing strata determined to be unwanted or wasteful by the district. 
 
USE EXEMPTION STATUS means the classification assigned, by the district, of the purpose of 
use for which a well, well field, or well system as either exempt use or non-exempt use. 
 
VALID PRODUCTION PERMIT means a production permit that has not been terminated by 
the district, suspended by the district, surrendered by the one or all of the associated owners 
of groundwater resources, or voided by the actions of the authorized operator. 
 
WASTE OF GROUNDWATER means: 
1. The withdrawal of groundwater from a groundwater reservoir at a rate and in an amount 

that causes or threatens to cause intrusion into the reservoir of water unsuitable for 
agricultural, gardening, domestic, or stock raising purposes. 

2. The use of that amount of groundwater in excess of that which is economically reasonable 
for an authorized purpose when reasonable intelligence and reasonable diligence are 
used in applying the water to that purpose constitutes waste. 

3. The flowing or producing of wells from a groundwater reservoir if the water produced is 
not used for a beneficial purpose. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 122 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 20 of 105 

4. The escape of groundwater from one groundwater reservoir to any other reservoir or 
geologic strata that does not contain groundwater. 

5. The pollution or harmful alteration of groundwater in a groundwater reservoir by 
saltwater or by other deleterious matter admitted from another stratum or from the 
surface of the ground. 

6. Willfully or negligently causing, suffering, or allowing groundwater to escape into any 
river, creek, natural watercourse, depression, lake, reservoir, drain, sewer, street, 
highway, road, or road ditch, or onto any land other than that of the owner of the well 
unless such discharge is authorized by permit, rule, or order issued by the Commission 
under Chapter 26 “Water Quality Control”. 

7. Groundwater pumped for irrigation that escapes as irrigation tailwater onto land other 
than that of the owner of the well unless permission has been granted by the occupant of 
the land receiving the discharge. 

8. For water produced from an artesian well, "waste" also has the meaning assigned by 
Section 11.205 of the Texas Water Code. 

 
WATER-BEARING STRATA means a geologic formation from which groundwater is or could 
be produced from a water well. 
 
WELL means any facility, device, or method used to produce or access groundwater from 
any groundwater reservoir or water-bearing strata that has not been plugged. 
 
WELL FIELD means the collection of wells located on a contiguous tract of land owned or 
controlled by a person or set of persons operated collectively to produce groundwater. 
 
WELL LOCKOUT SEAL means an official seal, tag, or label placed on a well or its equipment, 
or the act of placing the tag or label, to indicate that further production of groundwater, or 
operation of the well, or continuing with other activities regulated by the district is not 
authorized by the district, shall be in violation of rules of the district, and may subject the 
owner of groundwater resources, authorized agent, or authorized operator to civil suit or 
penalties. 
 
WELL OWNER means the person or persons who owns the subject well of an application, 
certificate, or permit. 
 
WELL FIELD OWNER means the person or persons who owns the subject well field of an 
application, certificate, or permit. 
 
WELL SYSTEM OWNER means the person or persons who owns the subject well system of 
an application, certificate, or permit. 
 
WELL SYSTEM means the collection of wells located on multiple tracts of contiguous land 
owned or controlled by a person or set of persons operated collectively to produce 
groundwater which is connected by a transmission or distribution system. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 123 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 21 of 105 

WELL WITH HISTORICALLY LOW PRODUCTION means a non-exempt-use well operated 
under a valid production permit with an authorized annual production rate equal to or less 
than two acre-foot (2 acre-foot) per year for which the volume of groundwater produced 
annually has either remained stable or declined for the five-year period preceding the 
submittal of the application requesting the well be designated as a well with historically low 
production. 
 

RULE	1.2:	GENERAL	POLICIES	REGARDING	THE	RULES	OF	THE	DISTRICT	
 
1. The board of directors shall adopt rules pursuant to the authority of Section 36.101, 

Texas Water Code, for the purpose of conserving, preserving, protecting, and recharging 
groundwater in the district in order to control subsidence, prevent degradation of water 
quality, or prevent waste of groundwater, and protect the rights of owners of 
groundwater resources. 

2. The district shall endeavor to maintain the groundwater resources in the boundary of the 
district on a sustainable basis (i.e., the regulation of the development and use of 
groundwater in a manner that can be maintained in perpetuity) in fulfilling the stated 
purpose of the rules of the district. 

3. The district shall use the rules of the district as guides in the exercise of the powers 
conferred by law and in the accomplishment of the purposes of the district act. 

4. No person shall construe the rules of the district as a limitation or restriction on the 
exercise of any discretion or to deprive the district or board of directors of the exercise 
of any powers, duties or jurisdiction conferred by law, nor be construed to limit or 
restrict the amount and character of data or information that may be required to be 
collected for the proper administration of the district act. 

5. The board of directors may delegate authority, responsibility, or requirement of the rules 
of the district to other persons by separate policy. 

6. The board of directors may, following notice and hearing, amend the rules of the district 
or adopt new rules from time to time. 

7. All persons shall use section and other headings and captions contained in the rules of 
the district for reference purposes only. 

8. No person shall consider section and other headings and captions within the rules of the 
district as affecting the meaning or interpretation of the rules of the district in any way. 

9. All persons shall consider a reference to a title, chapter or section within the rules of the 
district without further identification as a reference to a title, chapter or section of the 
Texas Water Code or the rules of the district. 

10. All persons shall consider the construction of words and phrases within the rules of the 
district as governed by the Code Construction Act, Subchapter B, Chapter 311, 
Government Code. 

11. All persons may serve or deliver any notice or documents in connection with the rules of 
the district to the recipient, or the recipient's authorized representative, in person, by 
agent, by courier receipted delivery, by certified mail sent to the recipient's last known 
address, by telephonic document transfer to the recipient's current telecopier number, 
or by electronic mail to the recipient’s current electronic email address except as 
otherwise expressly provided in the rules of the district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 124 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 22 of 105 

12. All persons shall consider service in connection with the rules of the district by mail 
complete upon deposit in a post office or other official depository of the United States 
Postal Service. 

13. All persons shall consider service in connection with the rules of the district by telephonic 
document transfer complete upon transfer, except that any transfer occurring after 5:00 
p.m. will be deemed complete on the following business day. 

14. The recipient of a notice or document served or delivered by mail associated with a right 
or requirement to do some act in connection with the rules of the district shall have three 
days (3-days) added to the prescribed period of time.  

15. All persons shall consider service in connection with the rules of the district complete 
upon notice published in a newspaper with general circulation within the boundary of 
the District when one or more other methods has been attempted and failed. 

16. All persons shall construe the rules of the district as if any provisions contained in the 
rules of the district held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable are not contained within 
the rules of the district and do not affect any other provisions within the rules of the 
district.     

 
 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 125 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 23 of 105 

SECTION	 2:	 POLICIES	 RELATED	 TO	 DRILLING,	 REWORKING,	
REPLACING,	AND	PLUGGING	WELLS	
 

RULE	2.1:	DRILLING	WELLS	
1. A person may drill a well without authorization from the district.  
2. A person drilling a well shall provide written notice of intent to drill a well to the district 

at least two hours (2 hours) before and not more than seven days (7 days) before 
commencing well drilling activities. 

3. A person drilling a well shall provide written notice of intent to drill a well to the district 
using a form prescribed by the district that includes: 
3.1. the name and address of the person drilling the well; 

3.1.1. well driller license number if the person drilling the well is a licensed well 
driller; 

3.2. the name and address of the person that will own the subject well; 
3.3. the geographic coordinate of the subject well; 
3.4. the date the well drilling activities will commence; 
3.5. a statement certifying that the person drilling the well notified the person that will 

own the subject well was notified of the of the existence of regulations established 
by the district related to: 

3.5.1. well spacing;  
3.5.2. limitations for producing groundwater for non-exempt-use purposes; 
3.5.3. registration of non-grandfathered and replacement wells; and  
3.5.4. permitting of groundwater production for non-exempt-use purposes; 

3.6. the dated signature of the person drilling the well. 
4. A person drilling a well shall adhere to the well spacing requirements of the rules of the 

district when locating the well. 
5. A person drilling, deepening, or otherwise altering a well shall adhere with the well 

completion requirements of the rules of the district when locating the well to be drilled. 
6. A person drilling a well shall satisfy all applicable requirements of the Texas Commission 

on Environmental Quality and the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation related 
to the construction and completion of a well. 

7. A person drilling a well shall construct and complete the well in accordance with the well 
completion standards set forth under the requirements promulgated by the Texas 
Department of Licensing and Regulation under Title 16, Texas Administrative Code, 
Chapter 76, Water Well Drillers and Pump Installers Rules. 

8. No person drilling a well shall locate a well closer than fifty feet (50 feet) to any potential 
source of contamination. 

9. No person shall locate a potential source of contamination closer than fifty feet (50 feet) 
to any well. 

10. A person drilling a well shall submit a complete and accurate well drilling report to the 
district within ninety days (90 days) of concluding well drilling activities associated with 
the well.  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 126 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 24 of 105 

11. A person drilling a deep-saline well shall submit, within 2 months of well completion, a 
geophysical log for the well that includes temperature, spontaneous potential, and 
shallow and deep resistivity surveys from the land surface to the bottom of the well. 

 
 

RULE	2.2:	WELL	SPACING	REQUIREMENTS	OF	WELLS	
1. The district shall regulate the spacing of non-grandfathered wells and replacement wells 

in order to:  
1.1. prevent or limit the drawdown of the water table or the reduction in artesian 

pressure,  
1.2. prevent or limit interference between wells,  
1.3. prevent or limit the degradation of water quality, or  
1.4. prevent waste of groundwater. 

2. A person drilling or having drilled a non-grandfathered well or a replacement well for a 
non-grandfathered well that is not a deep-saline well shall locate the non-grandfathered 
well in a position that is offset from the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous 
ownership of land by at least one foot (1 foot) of separation per one gallon per minute of 
production capacity of the non-grandfathered well. 

3. A person shall not produce groundwater from a well for non-historic uses, except wells 
operated solely to produce groundwater under a production permit for deep-saline non-
historic use, at a rate exceeding a ratio of one gallon per minute per foot (1 GPM / 1 foot) 
of separation between the well and the nearest point along the boundary of ownership 
of land containing with the well. 

4. A person drilling or having drilled a non-grandfathered well or replacement well for a 
non-grandfathered well may locate the well in a position that encroaches upon spacing 
requirements from the property of any landowner or any owner of groundwater 
resources from whom a written waiver of the spacing requirements is obtained provided 
the waiver contains:  
4.1. the printed name and signature of the landowner and the owner of groundwater 

resources or the authorized agent of the landowner and the owner of groundwater 
resources, and  

4.2. states that the landowner and the owner of groundwater resources have no objection 
to the proposed position of the non-grandfathered well or the replacement well for 
a non-grandfathered well. 

5. A person drilling or having drilled a non-grandfathered well or a replacement well for a 
non-grandfathered well on a lot of a platted subdivision shall locate the non-
grandfathered well in a position that is offset from the perimeter of the subdivision by, 
at least, one foot (1 foot) of separation per one gallon per minute of production capacity 
of the non-grandfathered well. 

6. A person drilling or having drilled a non-grandfathered well or a replacement well for a 
non-grandfathered well on a lot of a platted subdivision with an area defined as the 
"Authorized Drilling Area" shall locate the well in the authorized drilling area. 

7. A person drilling or having drilled a replacement well for a grandfathered well may locate 
the replacement well in a position that does not encroach upon the spacing requirements 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 127 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 25 of 105 

from the property of any landowner or any owner of groundwater resources to a greater 
degree than the well being replaced. 

8. The board of directors may waive, vary, or establish special conditions related to spacing 
requirements for a well provided good cause is found by the board of directors for doing 
so. 

9. The board of directors may establish special conditions or limit the rate of groundwater 
production of a well if a district waiver related to spacing requirements of the well is 
granted to minimize any potential injury to other landowners, owner of groundwater 
resources, or groundwater. 

 
 

RULE	2.3:	WELL	SPACING	REQUIREMENTS	OF	DEEP‐SALINE	WELLS	
1. A person drilling or having drilled a deep-saline well shall locate the deep-saline well in 

a position that is offset from the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership 
of land by, at least, one-half foot (1/2 foot) of separation per one gallon per minute of 
production capacity of the deep-saline well. 

2. A person drilling or having drilled a deep-saline well shall locate the deep-saline well in 
a position that is offset from the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership 
of groundwater resources, by at least, one-half foot (1/2 foot) of separation per one 
gallon per minute of production capacity of the deep-saline well. 

 
 

RULE	2.4:	STANDARDS	FOR	CONSTRUCTING	WELLS	
1. A person drilling a well shall construct the well using methods and materials to minimize 

the potential for contamination, degradation, or commingling of waters of different 
chemical quality. 

2. A person drilling a well shall construct the well in accordance with the well construction 
specifications established by the State of Texas, County of Victoria, and relevant city 
ordinance. 

3. A person drilling a well shall construct the well so that undesirable groundwater is not 
allowed to commingle with desirable groundwater through the well casing or annular 
space of the well. 

4. A person drilling a well shall construct the well so that any groundwater resources 
allowed to commingle through the annulus space between the casing and borehole wall 
does not degrade or diminish the quality of any groundwater resources in any other 
water-bearing strata. 

5. A person drilling a well shall construct the well so that the casing is centered in annular 
space for the portion of the borehole that will be sealed prior to emplacing the authorized 
annular space sealant. 

6. A person drilling a well shall construct the well so that the authorized annular space 
sealant is emplaced to produce an annular seal that is absent of significant voids. 

7. A person drilling a well shall not use the bentonite slurry or any other material used in 
the actual drilling of the well to seal the annular space between the borehole wall and the 
casing. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 128 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 26 of 105 

8. A person drilling or repairing a well shall place a seal on the casing that will prevent 
pollutants from entering the well. 

9. A person drilling a deep-saline well shall not install the well screen of a the well above a 
depth of one thousand two hundred feet (1,200 feet) below the land surface. 

10. A person drilling or having drilled a well may apply for a district waiver of the well 
completion requirements of the rules of the district, in accordance with the waiver 
procedures of the rules of the district. 

11. The board of directors may designate special well construction areas, by order of the 
board of directors, for the purposes of establishing construction standards designed to 
prevent groundwater contamination or commingling of undesirable groundwater and 
desirable groundwater by non-grandfathered wells and replacement wells in locations 
and zones where undesirable groundwater overlays or is adjacent to desirable 
groundwater. 

 
 

RULE	 2.5:	 COMMINGLING	 OF	 UNDESIRABLE	WATER	WITH	 DESIRABLE	
GROUNDWATER	
1. The owner of a well shall have the continuing responsibility of ensuring a well does not 

allow commingling of undesirable groundwater and desirable groundwater or the 
unwanted loss of groundwater through the wellbore to other porous strata. 

2. The board of directors may require and direct an owner of a well to take steps to prevent 
the commingling of undesirable groundwater and desirable groundwater or the 
unwanted loss of groundwater. 

3. The owner of a well allowing the commingling of undesirable groundwater and desirable 
groundwater or the unwanted loss of groundwater shall, within sixty days (60 days) of 
receiving notice from the district that board of directors found the well is allowing the 
commingling of undesirable groundwater and desirable groundwater or the unwanted 
loss of groundwater, either:  
3.1. cement the casing of the well in a manner that will permanently seal the annular 

space and casing and prevent the commingling of undesirable groundwater and 
desirable groundwater or the unwanted loss of groundwater, or  

3.2. repair the well in a manner that will prevent the commingling of undesirable 
groundwater and desirable groundwater or the unwanted loss of groundwater 
through the annular space or casing of the well. 

 
 

RULE	2.6:	REPLACING	WELLS	
1. The owner of a deteriorated well shall repair or plug the deteriorated well in accordance 

with rules and regulations of the state of Texas. 
2. The owner of a non-exempt-use well may replace the non-exempt-use well with a 

replacement well, in accordance with the rules of the district and without authorization 
from the district, if such replacement will not violate or cause a violation of any 
conditions of the associated production permits under which the non-exempt-use well is 
operated. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 129 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 27 of 105 

 
 

RULE	2.7:	PLUGGING	WELLS	
1. The owner of a well may plug the well without authorization from district if such plugging 

will not violate or cause a violation of any conditions of any associated production 
permits.  

2. The district may plug the casing and seal the annular space of a non-grandfathered well 
or replacement well that was not constructed and completed in accordance with the well 
completion standards set forth under the requirements promulgated by the Texas 
Department of Licensing and Regulation under Title 16, Texas Administrative Code, 
Chapter 76, Water Well Drillers and Pump Installers Rules. 

3. The district may require the person that drilled a non-grandfathered well or replacement 
well that was not constructed and completed in accordance with the well completion 
standards set forth under the requirements promulgated by the Texas Department of 
Licensing and Regulation under Title 16, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 76, Water 
Well Drillers and Pump Installers Rules to reimburse the district for all costs incurred by 
the district to plug the well. 

4. The owner of a deteriorated well shall plug the deteriorated well within sixty days (60 
days) of receiving notice from the district that the well is deteriorated. 

5. The owner of a deteriorated well may repair the condition of a deteriorated well to 
eliminate the probability the well will cause or is likely to cause pollution of any water in 
the state, including groundwater in lieu of plugging the well. 

6. A person plugging a deteriorated well, a well allowing the commingling of undesirable 
groundwater and desirable groundwater, or a well allowing the unwanted loss of 
groundwater shall provide written notice of intent to plug a well to the district, at least 
two (2) hours before  and not more than seven days (7 days) before commencing the 
plugging activities associated with the well, using a form prescribed by the district that 
includes the name and address of the person plugging the well, the well driller license 
number if the person plugging the well is a licensed well driller, the name and address of 
the person that owns the subject well, the geographic coordinate of the subject well, the 
date the well plugging activities will commence, a statement certifying that the person 
plugging the subject well notified the person that owns the subject well of the of the 
existence of regulations established by the district, the dated signature of the person 
plugging the subject well, and the dated signature of the person that owns the subject 
well.  

7. A person plugging a well shall submit a complete and accurate well plugging report to 
the district within ninety days (90 days) of concluding the well plugging activities 
associated with the well or within one hundred and twenty days (120 days) of 
commencing plugging activities, whichever condition occurs first.  

8. The well owner of a properly located and constructed replacement well of a plugged well 
used for non-exempt use associated with valid production permits shall, within ninety 
days (90 days) of concluding the well construction activities, submit an application to 
amend the valid production permits to associate the authorized groundwater production 
of the plugged well to the replacement well. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 130 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 28 of 105 

9. The well owner of a plugged well associated with valid production permits or district 
waivers surrenders the valid production permits and district waivers if the well owner 
fails to complete the construction of the replacement well within ten years (10 years) of 
the initiation of the plugging process. 

10. The district shall not issue production permits associated with plugged wells. 
 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 131 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 29 of 105 

SECTION	3:	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	REGISTRATION	OF	WATER	
WELLS,	WELL	FIELDS,	AND	WELL	SYSTEMS	
 

RULE	 3.1:	GENERAL	 POLICIES	RELATED	 TO	REGISTRATION	OF	WELLS,	
WELL	FIELDS,	AND	WELL	SYSTEMS	
1. The district shall maintain a registry of wells within the boundary of the district. 
2. The owner of a grandfathered exempt-use well within the boundary of the district may 

apply for the registration of the grandfathered exempt-use well. 
3. The well owner or authorized agent of a grandfathered non-exempt-use well within the 

boundary of the district shall apply for the registration of the grandfathered non-exempt-
use well prior to operating the subject well for non-exempt use. 

4. The well owner or authorized agent of a grandfathered non-exempt-use well field within 
the boundary of the district shall submit an application for the registration of the 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well field prior to operating the subject well field for non-
exempt use. 

5. The well owner or authorized agent of a grandfathered non-exempt-use well system 
within the boundary of the district shall submit an application for the registration of the 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well system prior to operating the subject well system 
for non-exempt use. 

6. The well owner or authorized agent of a non-grandfathered well within the boundary of 
the district shall submit an application for the registration of the non-grandfathered well 
accompanied by the well drilling log within ninety days (90 days) of concluding the well 
construction activities. 

7. The well owner or authorized agent of a non-grandfathered well within the boundary of 
the district shall submit an administratively complete application for the registration of 
the non-grandfathered well within ninety days (90 days) of obtaining ownership of the 
well. 

8. The district shall assign a use exemption status classification and a grandfathered status 
classification to all wells registered with the district. 

9. The district may register, on its own initiative, any well, well field, or well system within 
the district that is subject to an investigation of potential violations of the rules of the 
district or an enforcement proceeding established under the rules of the district. 

 
 

RULE	 3.2:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 THE	
REGISTRATION	OF	A	WELL	
1. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well shall submit the registration 

request on the form prescribed by the district. 
2. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well shall specify that the subject 

well existed at the date of the original adoption of the rules of the district in order to be 
classified as a grandfathered well by the district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 132 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 30 of 105 

3. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well shall specify that the subject 
well qualifies as an exempt-use well as defined in the rules of the district in order to be 
classified as an exempt-use well by the district. 

4. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well shall include the following 
information and any other information the general manager may determine to be of need 
to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the district: 
4.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
4.2. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well; 
4.3. the geographic coordinate of the subject well; 
4.4. the date the subject well was constructed; 
4.5. the purpose of use of the produced groundwater from the subject well; 
4.6. the maximum production rate of the subject well expressed in gallons-per-minute; 
4.7. the name and address of the individual or entity, if any, authorized to serve as the 

legal agent of the well owner regarding all matters related to physical access of the 
subject water well; 

4.8. the name and address of the individual or entity, if any, authorized to serve as the 
legal agent of the well owner regarding all matters related to submittal of reports 
associated with the subject water well; 

4.9. the name and address of the individual or entity, if any, authorized to serve as the 
legal agent of the well owner regarding all matters related to permitting matters 
associated with the subject water well; 

4.10. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well owner possesses the 
legal authority to produce groundwater resources from the subject well. 

4.11. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on 
and attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of 
the applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete;  

4.12. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well shall be 
operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State of 
Texas; and 

4.13. the dated signature of the applicant. 
5. The applicant for an application for the registration of a non-grandfathered well 

associated with an application for a high-capacity non-historic-use production permit 
shall provide the location, construction details, screened intervals, and total depth of 
dedicated aquifer monitoring wells to be used to monitor the impacts of the non-
grandfathered well that is being registered. 

 
 

RULE	 3.3:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 THE	
REGISTRATION	OF	A	WELL	FIELD	
1. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well field shall submit the 

registration request on the form prescribed by the district. 
2. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well field shall submit 

registration requests for the associated non-exempt-use wells with the application for 
the registration of the subject well field. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 133 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 31 of 105 

3. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well field shall include the 
following information and any other information the general manager may determine to 
be of need to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the district: 
3.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
3.2. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well field; 
3.3. the geographic coordinate of each of the subject wells; 
3.4. the date the subject well field was established; 
3.5. the purpose of use of the produced groundwater from the subject well field; 
3.6. the maximum production rate of the subject well field expressed in gallons-per-

minute; 
3.7. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well field owner possesses the 

legal authority to produce groundwater resources from the subject well field. 
3.8. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on and 

attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of the 
applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete; 

3.9. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well field shall be 
operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State of 
Texas; and 

3.10. the dated signature of the applicant. 
4. The applicant for an application for the registration of a non-grandfathered well field 

associated with an application for a high-capacity non-historic-use production permit 
shall provide the location, construction details, screened intervals, and total depth of 
dedicated aquifer monitoring wells to be used to monitor the impacts of the non-
grandfathered well field that is being registered. 

 

RULE	 3.4:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 THE	
REGISTRATION	OF	A	WELL	SYSTEM	
1. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well system shall submit the 

registration request on the form prescribed by the district. 
2. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well system shall submit 

registration requests for the associated non-exempt-use wells with the application for 
the registration of the subject well system. 

3. The applicant for an application for the registration of a well system shall include the 
following information and any other information the general manager may determine to 
be of need to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the district: 
3.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
3.2. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well system; 
3.3. the geographic coordinate of each of the subject wells; 
3.4. the date the subject well system was established; 
3.5. the purpose of use of the produced groundwater from the subject well system; 
3.6. the maximum production rate of the subject well system expressed in gallons-per-

minute; 
3.7. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well system owner possesses 

the legal authority to produce groundwater resources from the subject well system; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 134 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 32 of 105 

3.8. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on and 
attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of the 
applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete; 

3.9. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well system shall be 
operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State of 
Texas; and 

3.10. the dated signature of the applicant. 
4. The applicant for an application for the registration of a non-grandfathered well system 

associated with an application for a high-capacity non-historic-use production permit 
shall provide the location, construction details, screened intervals, and total depth of 
dedicated aquifer monitoring wells to be used to monitor the impacts of the non-
grandfathered well system that is being registered. 

 
 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 135 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 33 of 105 

SECTION	4:	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	PERMITTING	
 

RULE	4.1:	GENERAL	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	PERMITS	
1. The district shall only grant permits that are consistent with the mission of the district to 

conserve, preserve and protect the groundwater resources within the boundary of the 
district. 

2. The district shall only grant permits that are consistent with the desired future 
conditions of the district as established under Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code and 
documented in the Management Plan of the district. 

3. The district shall only grant permits that are consistent with the Management Plan of the 
district, orders of the board of directors, and the laws of the State of Texas. 

4. The district shall grant permits with conditions, restrictions, limitations, and 
requirements determined to be necessary by the district to conserve, preserve and 
protect the groundwater resources within the boundary of the district. 

5. The district shall grant permits in accordance with and subject to the rules of the district, 
the Management Plan of the district, orders of the board of directors, and the laws of the 
State of Texas. 

6. The district shall grant permits with conditions, restrictions, limitations, and 
requirements determined to be necessary by the district to achieve the desired future 
conditions of the district as established under Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code and 
documented in the Management Plan of the district. 

7. The district may modify or amend the restrictions, conditions, and requirements of a 
permit pursuant to the provisions of the rules of the district. 

8. The board of directors may order the immediately suspension of activities authorized by 
a permit or district waiver issued by the district if the board of directors finds that false 
information has been supplied regarding the permit or related district waiver by the 
applicant, the authorized agent, the authorized operator, or owner of groundwater 
resources. 

9. The board of directors may revoke a permit or district waiver if it finds that false 
information has been supplied regarding the permit or district waiver by the applicant, 
the authorized agent, the authorized operator, or owner of groundwater resources. 

10. The district expressly prohibits the activities authorized by a permit or district waiver 
upon termination, expiration, violation, or revocation of the permit or district waiver by 
the board of directors. 

11. No person shall be required to obtain a permit to drill a well from the district. 
12. No person shall consider a permit issued by the district as granting authority to a person 

to drill wells within the incorporated limits of an incorporated municipality in violation 
of the ordinances of that municipality. 

13. The district shall grant production permits for the sole purpose of conferring the 
authority to operate a well, a well field, or a well system for beneficial use under the 
provisions of the rules of the district. 

14. The district shall require groundwater produced under a production permit to originate 
from non-exempt-use wells located within the production area of the production permit.  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 136 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 34 of 105 

15. The district shall grant production permits and limit the authorized groundwater 
production amounts of wells, well fields, and well systems operated for non-exempt use 
in order to conserve, preserve and protect the groundwater resources within the 
boundary of the district. 

16. The district may issue production permits that include conditions related to aggregating 
the authorized groundwater production amounts of the non-exempt-use wells of a well 
field or well system. 

17. No person shall operate a well, a well field, or a well system in a manner that constitutes 
waste of groundwater. 

18. No person shall operate a well to produce groundwater to be used for any purpose other 
than those uses defined as exempt use prior to obtaining a production permit from the 
district unless the subject well satisfies the definition of an original exempt-use 
grandfathered well or an original exempt-use non-grandfathered well. 

19. No person shall operate a non-exempt-use well unless the groundwater production is 
monitored in a manner to satisfy the reporting requirements of the rules of the district. 

20. The applicant for an application related to a production permit shall make the subject 
well, subject well field, or subject well system accessible to the representatives of the 
district for inspection and agrees to cooperate fully in any reasonable inspection of the 
subject well, subject well field, or subject well system by the representatives of the 
district. 

21. Any special terms and conditions of a production permit or related district waiver shall 
prevail whenever those special permit terms and conditions are found to be inconsistent 
with other permit provisions of the rules of the district. 

22. Violations of the terms, conditions, requirements, or special provisions of a permit or 
related district waiver, including producing amounts of groundwater in excess of 
authorized groundwater production amount, are punishable by civil penalties as 
provided by the rules of the district and state statutes and the revocation of the 
associated production permit. 

23. The board of directors may amend a permit or related district waiver to reflect any 
necessary changes to the restrictions, conditions, and requirements of the permit 
resulting from the failure of the well owner to construct a replacement well for any of the 
associated non-exempt-use wells that was plugged or abandoned. 

24.  All associated permits and related district waivers are void and terminated upon 
operation or use of the non-exempt-use well, the non-exempt-use well field, or the non-
exempt-use well system for any purpose of use other than the authorized groundwater 
production purpose.   

25. The district shall grant transfer permits for the sole purpose of conferring the authority 
to transfer produced groundwater under production permits issued by the district under 
the provisions of the rules of the district. 

26. The district shall grant transfer permits and limit the authorized groundwater transfer 
amount in order to conserve, preserve and protect the groundwater resources within the 
boundary of the district. 

27. No person shall transfer produced groundwater out of the district prior to obtaining a 
transfer permit from the district if a permit is required according to the rules of the 
district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 137 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 35 of 105 

28. The applicant for an application related to a transfer permit shall make the transfer 
facilities accessible to the representatives of the district for inspection and agrees to 
cooperate fully in any reasonable inspection of the transfer facilities by the 
representatives of the district. 

29. The district shall continue to require satisfaction of and enforce any special terms and 
conditions of a production permit, a transfer permit, or any related district waivers 
whenever those special permit terms and conditions are found to be inconsistent with 
other permit provisions of the rules of the district. 

30. The district may suspend, revoke, or terminate a permit for violations of the terms, 
conditions, requirements, or special provisions of a permit or related district waiver. 

31. The district may impose on a person that is found, by the board of directors, to have 
violated the terms, conditions, requirements, or special provisions of a permit or related 
district waiver civil penalties as provided by the rules of the district and state statutes 
and the revocation of the associated transfer permit. 

 
 

RULE	 4.2:	 REPORTING	 REQUIREMENT	 RELATED	 TO	 NON‐EXEMPT‐USE	
WELLS	
1. The authorized operator of a permit shall report to the district any monitoring data 

required under the permit within thirty days (30 days) of the close of the relevant 
reporting period unless specified otherwise within the rules of the district or the permit. 

2. The owner of groundwater resources produced from a non-exempt-use well shall report 
the volume of groundwater produced from the non-exempt-use well for the preceding 
calendar year to the district. 

3. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit 
shall measure the volume of produced groundwater from each of the subject wells using 
a device or method that is accurate within ten percent (10%) of the actual volume 
produced. 

4. The owner of groundwater resources produced from a non-exempt-use well shall report 
the volume of groundwater produced from the non-exempt-use well that is accurate 
within ten percent (10%) of the actual volume of groundwater produced by the non-
exempt use during the calendar year. 

5. The owner of groundwater resources produced from a non-exempt-use well shall report 
the volume of groundwater produced from the non-exempt-use well for the previous 
calendar year (January 1 to December 31) during January of the current calendar year. 

6. The owner of groundwater resources produced from a non-exempt-use well shall report 
the volume of groundwater produced from the non-exempt-use well using a form 
provided by the district. 

7. The owner of groundwater resources produced from a non-exempt-use well shall include 
the following information when reporting the volume of groundwater produced from a 
non-exempt-use well: 
7.1. the well registration number assigned by the district; 
7.2. the production permit identification number; 
7.3. the reporting period; 
7.4. the volume of groundwater produced during the reporting period in acre-foot; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 138 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 36 of 105 

7.5. the method used to determine the volumes of groundwater produced during the 
reporting period; 

7.6. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on and 
attached to the report was prepared under the direction or supervision of the well 
owner and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the well owner, true, accurate 
and complete;  

7.7. the printed name of the person submitting the report; and 
7.8. the dated signature of the person submitting the report. 

8. The well owner of a non-exempt-use well may request that the district designate the non-
exempt-use well as a dormant well. 

9. The owner of groundwater resources produced from a non-exempt-use well shall be 
exempt from reporting the volume of groundwater produced from a non-exempt-use 
well if the non-exempt-use well is designated as a dormant well by the district for more 
than twelve months (12 months) until such time as the well no longer satisfies the 
definition of a dormant well. 

10. The well owner of a non-exempt-use well may request that the district designate the non-
exempt-use well as a well with historically low production. 

11. The owner of groundwater resources produced from a non-exempt-use well shall be 
exempt from reporting the volume of groundwater produced from a non-exempt-use 
well if the non-exempt-use well has been designated as a well with historically low 
production by the district for more than twelve months (12 months) until such time as 
the well no longer satisfies the definition of a well with historically low production. 

12. The district shall remove the designation of a non-exempt-use well as a well with 
historically low production after five years (5 years). 

13. The well owner of the non-exempt-use well may request the renewal of the designation 
as a well with historically low production. 

14. A person producing groundwater resources from a well under a permit issued by the 
Railroad Commission of Texas under Chapter 134, Natural Resources Code, that 
authorized the production of groundwater resources from a well shall report monthly to 
the district the following: 
14.1. the total amount of water withdrawn during the month; 
14.2. the quantity of water necessary for mining activities; and 
14.3. the quantity of water withdrawn for other purposes. 

 
 

RULE	4.3:	GENERAL	PROCEDURES	RELATED	TO	PERMITTING	
1. An applicant for a permit shall submit the permitting request on the form prescribed by 

the district. 
2. The general manager shall designate an application related to a permit as 

administratively complete when all necessary information to fully consider the 
application has been submitted to the district by the applicant. 

3. The general manager shall contest an application related a permit that does not satisfy 
the regulations and requirements established by the rules of the district. 

4. The general manager may schedule a hearing and action on as many applications related 
to permits at one meeting as deemed practical and appropriate. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 139 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 37 of 105 

5. The board of directors may refer any application related to a permit requesting 
protection of historic use to a hearing examiner for a hearing. 

6. The application for a permit is incorporated into the permit approved by the district.  
7. The district issues, approves, and grants a permit on the basis of and contingent upon the 

accuracy of the information supplied in the associated application.  
8. Acceptance of a permit by the applicant, the authorized agent, the authorized operator, 

or the owner of groundwater resources constitutes acknowledgement and acceptance of 
the conditions, limitations, and restrictions of the permit and the rules of the district.  

9. A decision regarding the permit is final if the applicant, the authorized agent, the 
authorized operator, or the owner of groundwater resources fail to file a request for 
rehearing within twenty days (20 days) of the decision. 

10. An application shall be automatically withdrawn from the district if the applicant fails to 
provide any information requested by the general manager needed to fully consider the 
application relative to the rules of the district within 60 days of the request being sent to 
the applicant.  

 
 

RULE	 4.4:	 GENERAL	 PROCEDURES	 RELATED	 TO	 RENEWAL	 AND	
AMENDMENT	OF	PERMITS	
1. The district shall not renew a permit that has expired before an administratively 

complete application requesting the renewal of the permit has been submitted to the 
district. 

2. The district shall not renew a permit associated with a proposed well. 
3. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a permit shall submit an 

administratively complete application requesting the renewal of the permit prior to the 
permit expiration date. 

4. The general manager may authorize an authorized operator of a permit for which an 
administratively complete application requesting the renewal of the permit has been 
submitted to the district to continue authorized activities of the permit under the 
conditions of the permit, subject to any changes necessary under the rules of the district, 
or the Management Plan of the district, for the period of time during which the 
application requesting the renewal of the permit is the subject of a contested case 
hearing. 

5. The district shall, without a hearing, consider an application to renew a permit submitted 
to the district provided that: 
5.1. the application, if required by the district, is submitted in a timely manner and 

accompanied by any required fees in accordance with rules of the district; and 
5.2. the authorized operator is not requesting an amendment to the permit in 

conjunction with the request to renew the permit. 
6. The district shall not renew a permit if the owner of groundwater resources or 

authorized operator: 
6.1. is delinquent in paying a fee required by the district; 
6.2. is subject to a pending enforcement action for a substantive violation of a permit, 

order, or rule of the district that has not been settled by agreement with the district 
or a final adjudication; or 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 140 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 38 of 105 

6.3. has not paid a civil penalty or has otherwise failed to comply with an order resulting 
from a final adjudication of a violation of a permit, order, or rule of the district.   

7. The district shall consider a permit that the district did not renew because the applicant 
or authorized operator of the is subject to a pending enforcement action for a substantive 
violation of a permit, order, or rule of the district, which has not been settled by 
agreement with the district or a final adjudication, to be in in effect until the final 
settlement or adjudication on the matter of the substantive violation. 

8. The district shall consider a request to renew a permit, as it existed prior to the initiation 
of an amendment process, without penalty if the amendment process results in a denial 
of the amendment unless the applicant or authorized operator of the permit: 
8.1. is delinquent in paying a fee required by the district; 
8.2. is subject to a pending enforcement action for a substantive violation of a permit, 

order, or rule of the district that has not been settled by agreement with the district 
or a final adjudication; or 

8.3. has not paid a civil penalty or has otherwise failed to comply with an order resulting 
from a final adjudication of a violation of a permit, order, or rule of the district. 

9. The well owner, well field owner, or well system owner of a non-exempt-use well, a non-
exempt-use well field, or a non-exempt-use well system shall submit to the district an 
application to amend any registrations or permits within ninety days (90 days) of 
acquiring the non-exempt-use well, the non-exempt-use well field, or the non-exempt-
use well system. 

10. The board of directors shall consider administratively complete applications to amend a 
permit or waiver requested by the well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized 
operator of a permit or waiver that involve the substantive provisions of the related 
permit or waiver such as production rates, production amounts, purposes of use, or 
conditions of the permit. 

11. The general manager may process and issue amendments to permits and waivers 
associated with administratively complete applications to amend a permit requested by 
the well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a permit that are solely 
administrative in nature that do not involve the substantive provisions of the related 
permits or waivers such as production rates, production amounts, purposes of use, or 
conditions of the permit. 

12. The district shall consider the permit associated with an application requesting an 
amendment to the permit as being in effect as the permit existed before the submittal of 
the administratively complete application requesting an amendment to the permit until 
the later of: 
12.1. the conclusion of the permit amendment or renewal process, as applicable; or 
12.2. final settlement or adjudication on the matter of whether the change to the 

permit requires a permit amendment. 
13. The district may initiate the process for amending a permit in connection with the 

renewal of a permit. 
14. The district shall consider the permit associated with an amendment process initiated by 

the district as being in effect as the permit existed before the district initiated the 
amendment process until the conclusion of the permit amendment process. 

 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 141 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 39 of 105 

RULE	 4.4.1:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 PERMIT	
RENEWAL	REQUESTS	
1. The applicant for an application for the renewal of a production permit or transfer permit 

shall include the following information and any other information the general manager 
may determine to be of need to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the district: 
1.1. the name and mailing address of the applicant; 
1.2. the permit identification number of the subject permit; 
1.3. the well identification numbers of the associated water wells; 
1.4. a negative or affirmative response to questions regarding the present facts and 

circumstances relevant to the original application for and subsequent approval of the 
subject permit;  

1.5. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on and 
attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of the 
applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete; and 

1.6. the dated signature of the applicant. 
 
 

RULE	 4.4.2:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 PERMIT	
AMENDMENT	REQUESTS	
1. The applicant for an application for the amendment of a production permit or transfer 

permit shall include the following information and any other information the general 
manager may determine to be of need to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the 
district: 
1.1. the name and mailing address of the applicant; 
1.2. the permit identification number of the subject permit; 
1.3. the well identification numbers of the associated water wells; 
1.4. a description of the request amendment;  
1.5. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on and 

attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of the 
applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete; and 

1.6. the dated signature of the applicant. 

SECTION	 5:	 POLICIES	 RELATED	 TO	 HISTORIC	 USE	 OF	
GROUNDWATER	
 

RULE	5.1:	GENERAL	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	PROTECTION	OF	HISTORIC	
USE	PERMITTING	
1. No person shall produce groundwater from a grandfathered well, grandfathered well 

field, or grandfathered well system without obtaining and maintaining ownership or 
control of the groundwater resources from the subject well, well field, or well system. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 142 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 40 of 105 

2. The district shall allow well owners to apply for production permits protecting the 
continued operation of grandfathered wells, grandfathered well fields, and 
grandfathered well systems used for non-exempt-use prior to the adoption of the rules 
of the district. 

3. The district shall provide for the protection of historic use of grandfathered non-exempt-
use wells, grandfathered non-exempt-use well fields, and grandfathered non-exempt-use 
well systems through the validation the evidence of historic use and issuing production 
permits for the protection of historic use authorizing the continued operation of 
grandfathered non-exempt-use wells, grandfathered non-exempt-use well fields, and 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well systems based on validated evidence of historic use. 

4. The district shall limit the amount of groundwater validated as historic use to the volume 
of produced groundwater by a grandfathered non-exempt-use well, a grandfathered non-
exempt-use well field, or a grandfathered non-exempt-use well system produced for a 
particular purpose of use in a particular calendar year in the historic use validation 
period. 

5. The district shall grant production permits for the protection of historic use with 
conditions related to aggregating the authorized groundwater production amounts of the 
non-exempt-use wells of a grandfathered well field or a grandfathered well system that 
are consistent with the validated pattern of operation of the grandfathered well field or 
the grandfathered well system during the historic use validation period. 

6. The district shall not grant production permits for the protection of historic use with an 
aggregate authorized groundwater production amount of a grandfathered well field or a 
grandfathered well system exceeding the validated sum of all groundwater produced 
from the subject wells operated during the validation year. 

7. The well owner, well field owner, or well system owner of a grandfathered non-exempt-
use well, a grandfathered non-exempt-use well field, or a grandfathered non-exempt-use 
well system shall maintain the ownership or control of groundwater rights associated 
with the groundwater resources from which the subject grandfathered non-exempt-use 
well, subject grandfathered non-exempt-use well field, or subject grandfathered non-
exempt-use well system historically produced groundwater. 

 
 

RULE	 5.1.1:	 GROUNDWATER	 PRODUCTION	 LIMITATIONS	 OF	
GRANDFATHERED	NON‐EXEMPT‐USE	WELLS	
1. The board of directors shall not issue a historic use validation permit for a grandfathered 

non-exempt-use well that is inconsistent with the validated historic use of the 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well. 

2. The board of directors shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount and 
authorized groundwater production purpose of a historic use validation permit for a 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well to that amount and purpose of use validated, by the 
district, as historic use of the grandfathered non-exempt-use well. 

 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 143 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 41 of 105 

RULE	 5.1.2:	 GROUNDWATER	 PRODUCTION	 LIMITATIONS	 OF	
GRANDFATHERED	WELL	FIELDS	
1. The board of directors shall issue a historic use validation permit for a grandfathered 

non-exempt-use well field that is consistent with the validated historic use of the 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well field. 

2. The board of directors shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount and 
authorized groundwater production purpose of a historic use validation permit for a 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well field to that amount and purpose of use validated, 
by the district, as historic use of the grandfathered non-exempt-use well field. 

3. The board of directors shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount and 
authorized groundwater production purpose of a historic use validation permit for a 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well field to that amount and purpose of use validated, 
by the district, as historic use of the associated grandfathered non-exempt-use wells that 
exist on the date the associated application for the protection of historic use of a 
grandfathered well field was designated as administratively complete by the district. 

 
 

RULE	 5.1.3:	 GROUNDWATER	 PRODUCTION	 LIMITATIONS	 OF	
GRANDFATHERED	WELL	SYSTEMS	
1. The board of directors shall issue a historic use validation permit for a grandfathered 

non-exempt-use well system that is consistent with the validated historic use of the 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well system. 

2. The board of directors shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount and 
authorized groundwater production purpose of historic use validation permit for a 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well system to that amount and purpose of use validated, 
by the district, as historic use of the grandfathered non-exempt-use well system. 

3. The board of directors shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount and 
authorized groundwater production purpose of a historic use validation permit for a 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well system to that amount and purpose of use validated, 
by the district, as historic use of the associated grandfathered non-exempt-use wells that 
exist on the date the associated application for a production permit for the protection of 
historic use of a grandfathered well system was designated as administratively complete 
by the district. 

 
 
 

RULE	 5.2:	 GENERAL	 PROCEDURES	 RELATED	 TO	 PROTECTION	 OF	
HISTORIC	USE	PERMITTING	
1. The board of directors, representatives of the district, and other interested parties may 

scrutinize the evidence of historic use associated with an application for a production 
permit for the protection of historic use during the associated public hearing to assess 
the validity and reliability related to the permitting request. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 144 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 42 of 105 

2. The board of directors, on its own initiative, may issue production permits for the 
protection of historic use for grandfathered non-exempt-use well, grandfathered non-
exempt-use well fields, and grandfathered non-exempt-use well systems within the 
district for which the well owners or authorized agents have not submitted 
administratively complete applications for production permits for the protection of 
historic use provided that such wells were not drilled, equipped and operated in such a 
manner as to violate any other rules and regulations of the district.  

3. The well owners or authorized agents of grandfathered non-exempt-use wells, 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well fields, and grandfathered non-exempt-use well 
systems shall provide all available information requested by the district regarding the 
historic use of subject wells, subject well fields, or subject well systems associated with 
production permit for historic use. 

4. The general manager shall review and determine the administrative completeness of an 
application for a production permit for the protection of historic use within sixty days 
(60 days) of date of receipt of application for a production permit for the protection of 
historic use. 

5. The general manager shall review the supplemental information requested by the 
general manager and received by the district associated with an application for a 
production permit for the protection of historic use within sixty days (60 days) of the 
date of receipt of the supplemental information. 

6. The general manager shall issue and post written notice indicating a date and time for a 
hearing regarding an application for a production permit for protection of historic use 
within thirty days (30 days) of determining the application for a production permit for 
protection of historic use is administratively complete. 

7. The applicant of an application for a production permit for the protection of historic use 
shall attend the meetings at which the board of directors conducts hearings or considers 
action related to the application for a production permit for the protection of historic use. 

8. The board of directors shall consider applications for a production permit for the 
protection of historic use that are designated as administratively complete, after 
providing public notice of the permit hearing for not less than ten days (10 days). 

9. The district shall specify the operational requirements and special conditions of 
production permits for the protection of historic use including: 
9.1. the identification number assigned by the district for the production permit; 
9.2. the identification number assigned by the district for the associated application for 

a production permit for the protection of historic use; 
9.3. the subject non-grandfathered wells, non-grandfathered well fields and non-

grandfathered well systems; 
9.4. the authorized groundwater production amount; 
9.5. the authorized groundwater production purpose; 
9.6. the owners of groundwater resources; 
9.7. the authorized operator; and 
9.8. the reporting requirements. 

 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 145 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 43 of 105 

RULE	5.2.1:	APPLICATION	REQUIREMENTS	RELATED	TO	PROTECTION	OF	
HISTORIC	USE	OF	A	GRANDFATHERED	WELL	
1. The applicant for an application for the protection of historic use of a grandfathered well 

shall include the following information and any other information the general manager 
may determine to be of need to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the district: 
1.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
1.2. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well; 
1.3. the geographic coordinate of the subject well; 
1.4. a statement confirming the subject well was used in a manner that qualifies as non-

exempt use during the historic use validation period; 
1.5. the specification of the historic use validation year; 
1.6. the specification of the volume of groundwater resources produced in acre-foot by 

the subject well during the historic use validation year; 
1.7. the specification of the purpose of use of the groundwater resources produced by the 

subject well during the historic use validation year; 
1.8. a description of the evidence of historic use supplied with the application to be used 

by the district to validate the historic use of the subject well; 
1.9. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well owner possesses the legal 

authority to produce groundwater resources from the subject well. 
1.10. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on 

and attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of 
the applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete; 

1.11. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well shall be 
operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State of 
Texas; 

1.12. the dated signature of the applicant; and 
1.13. an affidavit confirming that the evidence of historic use submitted to support 

the validation of the historic use of the subject well is to the best of the knowledge 
and belief of the person providing the evidence of historic use true and correct and 
that all available information concerning groundwater production of the subject well 
during the historic use validation year has been provided to the district. 

 
 

RULE	5.2.2:	APPLICATION	REQUIREMENTS	RELATED	TO	PROTECTION	OF	
HISTORIC	USE	OF	A	GRANDFATHERED	WELL	FIELD	
1. The applicant for an application for the protection of historic use of a grandfathered well 

field shall include the following information and any other information the general 
manager may determine to be of need to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the 
district: 
1.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
1.2. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well field; 
1.3. the geographic coordinate of each of the subject wells; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 146 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 44 of 105 

1.4. a statement confirming the subject well field was used in a manner that qualifies as 
non-exempt use during the historic use validation period; 

1.5. the specification of the historic use validation year; 
1.6. the specification of the volume of groundwater resources produced in acre-foot by 

the subject well field during the historic use validation year; 
1.7. the specification of the purpose of use of the groundwater resources produced by the 

subject well field during the historic use validation year; 
1.8. a description of the evidence of historic use supplied with the application to be used 

by the district to validate the historic use of the subject well field; 
1.9. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well owner possesses the legal 

authority to produce groundwater resources from the subject well field. 
1.10. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on 

and attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of 
the applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete; 

1.11. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well field shall be 
operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State of 
Texas; 

1.12. the dated signature of the applicant; and 
1.13. an affidavit confirming that the evidence of historic use submitted to support 

the validation of the historic use of the subject well field is to the best of the 
knowledge and belief of the person providing the evidence of historic use true and 
correct and that all available information concerning groundwater production of the 
subject well field during the historic use validation year has been provided to the 
district. 

 
 

RULE	5.2.3:	APPLICATION	REQUIREMENTS	RELATED	TO	PROTECTION	OF	
HISTORIC	USE	OF	A	GRANDFATHERED	WELL	SYSTEM	
1. The applicant for an application for the protection of historic use of a grandfathered well 

system shall include the following information and any other information the general 
manager may determine to be of need to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the 
district: 
1.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
1.2. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well system; 
1.3. the geographic coordinate of each of the subject wells; 
1.4. a statement confirming the subject well system was used in a manner that qualifies 

as non-exempt use during the historic use validation period; 
1.5. the specification of the historic use validation year; 
1.6. the specification of the volume of groundwater resources produced in acre-foot by 

the subject well system during the historic use validation year; 
1.7. the specification of the purpose of use of the groundwater resources produced by the 

subject well system during the historic use validation year; 
1.8. a description of the evidence of historic use supplied with the application to be used 

by the district to validate the historic use of the subject well system; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 147 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 45 of 105 

1.9. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well owner possesses the legal 
authority to produce groundwater resources from the subject well system. 

1.10. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on 
and attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of 
the applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete;  

1.11. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well system shall 
be operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State 
of Texas; 

1.12. the dated signature of the applicant; and 
1.13. an affidavit confirming that the evidence of historic use submitted to support 

the validation of the historic use of the subject well system is to the best of the 
knowledge and belief of the person providing the evidence of historic use true and 
correct and that all available information concerning groundwater production of the 
subject well system during the historic use validation year has been provided to the 
district. 

 
 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 148 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 46 of 105 

SECTION	 6:	 POLICIES	 RELATED	 TO	 NON‐HISTORIC	 USE	 OF	
GROUNDWATER	

RULE	 6.1:	 GENERAL	 POLICIES	 RELATED	 TO	 NON‐HISTORIC‐USE	
PERMITTING	
1. No person shall produce groundwater from a non-grandfathered well, non-

grandfathered well field, or non-grandfathered well system without obtaining and 
maintaining ownership or control of the groundwater resources from the subject well, 
well field, or well system. 

2. The district shall consider a request to aggregate the authorized groundwater production 
amounts validated for any grandfathered non-exempt-use well with authorized 
groundwater production for any non-grandfathered non-exempt-use well as a 
permitting request for non-historic use associated with a non-grandfathered non-
exempt-use well field or a non-grandfathered non-exempt-use well system. 

3. An applicant permanently changes the grandfathered status of a grandfathered well, a 
grandfathered well field, or a grandfathered well system to non-grandfathered well, a 
non-grandfathered well field, or a non-grandfathered well system if the applicant 
requests, and the district grants, a production permit for non-historic use or a permit 
amendment to a production permit for non-historic use in which the authorized 
groundwater production purpose is changed from the purpose of use validated by the 
district for the grandfathered well, the grandfathered well field, or the grandfathered well 
system. 

4. The well owner, well field owner, or well system owner of a non-grandfathered non-
exempt-use well, a non-grandfathered non-exempt-use well field, or a non-
grandfathered non-exempt-use well system shall maintain the ownership or control of 
groundwater rights associated with the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 
groundwater resources sufficient to produce the authorized groundwater production 
amount specified in the production permit for non-historic use. 

5. An incorporated municipality, as an applicant for a production permit for non-historic 
use, may request that the district consider all contiguous land within its corporate limits 
that is located within the district and not associated with other production permits to be 
under its control for the purposes of evaluating the spacing requirements, production 
limitations, and performance conditions of the district. 

6. A public water supply entity, as an applicant for a production permit for non-historic use, 
may request that the district consider all contiguous land within the boundary of its 
certificate of convenience and necessity (CCN) that is located within the district and not 
associated with other production permits to be under its control for the purposes of 
evaluating the spacing requirements, production limitations, and performance 
conditions of the district. 

7. The district shall amend a production permits for non-historic use issued by the district 
if a well owner, well field owner, or well system owner of a non-grandfathered non-
exempt-use well, a non-grandfathered non-exempt-use well field, or a non-
grandfathered non-exempt-use well system fails to maintain the ownership or control of 
groundwater rights associated with the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 
groundwater resources sufficient to produce the authorized groundwater production 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 149 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 47 of 105 

amount specified in the production permit for non-historic use associated with the non-
grandfathered non-exempt-use well, the non-grandfathered non-exempt-use well field, 
or the non-grandfathered non-exempt-use well system. 

8. The district may amend a production permit for non-historic use issued by the district 
associated with production areas based on contiguous land within the corporate limit of 
an incorporated municipality or contiguous land within the boundary of a certificate of 
convenience and necessity (CCN) of a public water supply entity in conjunction with 
issuing production permits with production areas that intersect or overlap the corporate 
limit of an incorporated municipality or the certificate of convenience and necessity 
(CCN) of a public water supply entity. 

9. The applicant for an application related to a production permit for non-historic use shall 
submit applications to register any wells not registered with the district within the 
subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources. 

10. The applicant for an application related to a production permit for non-historic use may 
be required to provide groundwater management information including a water 
conservation plan and drought management plan. 

 
 

RULE	 6.1.1:	 GROUNDWATER	 PRODUCTION	 LIMITATIONS	 OF	 NON‐
GRANDFATHERED	NON‐EXEMPT‐USE	WELLS	
1. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 

permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well to an amount that does not exceed 
one hundred gallons per minute (100 GPM) per contiguous acre controlled by the owners 
of groundwater resources of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the application for a production permit for non-historic use of 
a non-exempt-use well. 

2. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 
permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well, excluding production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use, to an amount that does not exceed one-half acre-foot (1/2 
acre-foot) per year per contiguous acre owned or controlled by the owners of 
groundwater resources of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the application for a production permit for non-historic use of 
a non-exempt-use well. 

3. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production rate of a production 
permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well, except wells operated solely to 
produce groundwater under a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use, to a 
rate not exceeding a ratio of one gallon per minute per foot (1 GPM / 1 foot) of separation 
between the well and the nearest point along the boundary of ownership of land 
containing the well. 

4. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 
permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well to the degree the board of directors 
determines to be necessary to ensure the groundwater production from the subject well 
will not likely cause excessive water level declines within the district, excessive water 
quality changes of groundwater resources within the district, or significantly contribute 
to subsidence within the district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 150 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 48 of 105 

5. The district shall establish special conditions related to authorized groundwater 
production of a production permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well as 
determined to be necessary by the board of directors to ensure the groundwater 
production from the subject well will not likely cause excessive water level declines 
within the district, excessive water quality changes of groundwater resources within the 
district, or significantly contribute to subsidence within the district. 

 
 

RULE	 6.1.2:	 GROUNDWATER	 PRODUCTION	 LIMITATIONS	 OF	 NON‐
GRANDFATHERED	NON‐EXEMPT‐USE	WELLS	FIELDS	
1. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 

permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well field to an amount that does not 
exceed one hundred gallons per minute (100 GPM) per contiguous acre controlled by the 
owners of groundwater resources of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 
groundwater resources associated with the application for a production permit for non-
historic use of a non-exempt-use well field. 

2. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 
permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well field, excluding production permit 
for deep-saline non-historic use, to an amount that does not exceed one-half acre-foot 
(1/2 acre-foot) per year per contiguous acre owned or controlled by the owners of 
groundwater resources of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the application for a production permit for non-historic use of 
a non-exempt-use well field. 

3. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production rate of a production 
permit for non-historic use for each well of a non-exempt-use well field, except wells 
operated solely to produce groundwater under a production permit for deep-saline non-
historic use, to a rate not exceeding a ratio of one gallon per minute per foot (1 GPM / 1 
foot) of separation between the well and the nearest point along the boundary of 
ownership of land containing the well. 

4. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 
permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well field to the degree the board of 
directors determines to be necessary to ensure the groundwater production from the 
subject wells of the non-exempt-use well field will not likely cause excessive water level 
declines within the district, excessive water quality changes of groundwater resources 
within the district, or significantly contribute to subsidence within the district. 

5. The district shall establish special conditions related to authorized groundwater 
production of a production permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well field as 
determined to be necessary by the board of directors to ensure the groundwater 
production from the subject wells of the non-exempt-use well field will not likely cause 
excessive water level declines within the district, excessive water quality changes of 
groundwater resources within the district, or significantly contribute to subsidence 
within the district. 

 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 151 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 49 of 105 

RULE	 6.1.3:	 GROUNDWATER	 PRODUCTION	 LIMITATIONS	 OF	 NON‐
GRANDFATHERED	NON‐EXEMPT‐USE	WELL	SYSTEMS	
1. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 

permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well system to an amount that does not 
exceed one hundred gallons per minute (100 GPM) per contiguous acre controlled by the 
owners of groundwater resources of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 
groundwater resources associated with the application for a production permit for non-
historic use of a non-exempt-use well field. 

2. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 
permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well system to an amount that does not 
exceed one-half acre-foot (1/2 acre-foot) per year per contiguous acre owned or 
controlled by the owners of groundwater resources of the subject tracts of contiguous 
ownership of groundwater resources associated with the application for a production 
permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well system. 

3. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production rate of a production 
permit for non-historic use for each well of a non-exempt-use well system, except wells 
operated solely to produce groundwater under a production permit for deep-saline non-
historic use, to a rate not exceeding a ratio of one gallon per minute per foot (1 GPM / 1 
foot) of separation between the well of the well system and the nearest point along the 
boundary of ownership of land containing the well. 

4. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of each well 
within a non-exempt-use well system production permit for non-historic use to an 
amount that does not exceed three-quarters acre-foot (3/4 acre-foot) per year per 
contiguous acre owned or controlled by the owners of groundwater resources of the 
subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
application for a production permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well system 
surrounding the well. 

5. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 
permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well system to the degree the board of 
directors determines to be necessary to ensure the groundwater production from the 
subject wells of the non-exempt-use well system will not likely cause excessive water 
level declines within the district, excessive water quality changes of groundwater 
resources within the district, or significantly contribute to subsidence within the district. 

 
 

RULE	 6.2:	 GENERAL	 PROCEDURES	 RELATED	 TO	 NON‐HISTORIC	 USE	
PERMITTING	
1. The general manager shall review and determine the administrative completeness of an 

application for a production permit for standard-capacity non-historic use within thirty 
days (30 days) of date of receipt of the application for a production permit for non-
historic use. 

2. The general manager shall review the supplemental information requested by the 
general manager and received by the district associated with an application for a 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 152 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 50 of 105 

production permit for non-historic use within thirty days (30 days) of date of receipt of 
the supplemental information. 

3. The general manager shall issue and post written notice indicating a date and time for a 
hearing regarding an application for a production permit for non-historic use within 
thirty days (30 days) of determining that an application for a production permit for non-
historic use is administratively complete, if required by the rules of the district. 

4. The general manager may issue and post written notice indicating the proposed date of 
permit issuance for a production permit for standard-capacity non-historic use, if such 
issuance is authorized by the rules of the district, after the application is determined by 
the general manager to be administratively complete. 

5. The board of directors shall consider applications requesting a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use that are designated as administratively complete, after 
providing public notice of the permit hearing for not less than ten days (10 days). 

6. The board of directors shall consider applications requesting a deep-saline production 
permit that are designated as administratively complete, after providing public notice of 
the permit hearing for not less than ten days (10 days). 

7. The general manager may consider and may issue production permits and production 
permit amendments associated with applications requesting a production permit for 
standard-capacity non-historic use, after providing public notice of the proposed permit 
issuance for not less than ten days (10 days), that: 
7.1. are designated administratively complete; 
7.2. satisfy the regulations and requirements established by the rules of the district; and  
7.3. are not contested by any party. 

8. The general manager shall not issue production permits or production permit 
amendments associated with applications requesting a production permit for standard-
capacity non-historic use that are contested by any party. 

9. The general manager may authorize a well owner to perform an aquifer test, as described 
in the aquifer test plan with a pumping period not to exceed twenty days (20 days), for 
the purposes of investigating: 
9.1. the production zone including type of aquifer, position and extent of aquicludes, 

aquitards, and hydrogeologic boundaries; 
9.2. the radius of influence and the radius of separation of the subject well and 

observation wells, the cone of depression, the static water level, and the drawdown 
curve; 

9.3. the drawdown-time relationship of the subject well; 
9.4. drawdown-distance relationship of the subject well; and 
9.5. the hydraulic properties and derived parameters of the production zone of the 

subject well. 
10. The board of directors shall consider applications requesting a production permit for 

standard-capacity non-historic use, after providing public notice of the proposed permit 
issuance for not less than ten days (10 days), that:  
10.1. are designated administratively complete and are contested by any party; or 
10.2. have not been considered by the general manager resulting in the issuance of 

a production permit for standard-capacity non-historic use as requested by the 
applicant of an application for a production permit for standard-capacity non-
historic use. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 153 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 51 of 105 

11. The district shall specify the operational requirements and special conditions of 
production permits for non-historic use including: 
11.1. the identification number assigned by the district for the production permit 

for non-historic use; 
11.2. the identification number assigned by the district for the associated 

application for a production permit for non-historic use; 
11.3. the identification number assigned by the district for the subject non-

grandfathered wells, non-grandfathered well fields and non-grandfathered well 
systems; 

11.4. the authorized groundwater production amount; 
11.5. the authorized groundwater production purpose; 
11.6. the owners of groundwater resources; 
11.7. the authorized operator; 
11.8. the monitoring requirements; 
11.9. the reporting requirements; 
11.10. the special conditions established by the board of directors; 
11.11. the permit issuance date; and 
11.12. the permit expiration date. 

12. A permit shall be automatically terminated if the construction of the proposed well is not 
completed within 365 days of the date the production permit was issued by the district. 

 

RULE	 6.2.1:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 PRODUCTION	
PERMIT	 REQUESTS	 FOR	 NON‐HISTORIC	 USE	 FOR	 A	 NON‐EXEMPT‐USE	
WELL	
1. The applicant for an application for a production permit for non-historic use of a non-

exempt-use well shall include the following information and any other information the 
general manager may determine to be of need to evaluate the request relative to the rules 
of the district: 
1.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
1.2. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well; 
1.3. the geographic coordinate of the subject well; 
1.4. the name and address of the landowner of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership 

of land; 
1.5. documentation demonstrating ownership of the subject tracts of contiguous 

ownership of land; 
1.6. the name and address of the owner of groundwater resources of subject tracts of 

contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 
1.7. documentation demonstrating ownership of the subject tracts of contiguous 

ownership of groundwater resources; 
1.8. the specification of the requested authorized groundwater production amount for 

the subject well in gallons per minute and acre-foot per year; 
1.9. the specification of the requested authorized groundwater production purpose for 

the subject well; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 154 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 52 of 105 

1.10. the specification of the spatial extent including the total acreage of the 
boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 

1.11. the specification of the spatial extent including the total acreage of the 
boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources 
intersecting the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 

1.12. the documentation of any district waiver being requested in association with 
the application; 

1.13. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well owner possesses the 
legal authority to produce groundwater from the subject tracts of contiguous 
ownership of groundwater resources; 

1.14. a scaled map of: 
1.14.1. the subject well; 
1.14.2. the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 
1.14.3. the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 

resources; 
1.14.4. the boundaries of any production areas associated with other valid production 

permits overlapping the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership 
of groundwater resources; 

1.14.5. the nearest public roads; and 
1.14.6. the locations of any existing water wells within the boundary of the subject 

tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 
1.15. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on 

and attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of 
the applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete;  

1.16. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well shall be 
operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State of 
Texas; and 

1.17. the dated signature of the applicant. 
 
 

RULE	6.2.2:	APPLICATION	REQUIREMENTS	RELATED	TO	NON‐HISTORIC	
USE	PRODUCTION	PERMITS	FOR	NON‐EXEMPT‐USE	WELL	FIELDS	
1. The applicant for an application for a production permit for standard-capacity non-

historic use of a non-exempt-use well field shall include the following information and 
any other information the general manager may determine to be of need to evaluate the 
request relative to the rules of the district: 
1.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
1.2. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well field; 
1.3. the geographic coordinate of the subject wells; 
1.4. The name and address of the landowner of the subject tracts of contiguous 

ownership of land; 
1.5. The name and address of the owner of groundwater resources of subject tracts of 

contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 155 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 53 of 105 

1.6. the specification of the requested aggregate authorized groundwater production 
amount for the subject well field in gallons per minute and acre-foot per year; 

1.7. the specification of the requested authorized groundwater production purpose for 
the subject well field; 

1.8. the specification of the spatial extent including the total acreage of the boundary of 
the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 

1.9. the specification of the spatial extent including the total acreage of the boundary of 
the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources intersecting 
the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 

1.10. the documentation of any district waiver being requested in association with 
the application; 

1.11. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well field owner 
possesses the legal authority to produce groundwater from the subject tracts of 
contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 

1.12. a scaled map of: 
1.12.1. the subject wells of the subject well field; 
1.12.2. the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 
1.12.3. the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 

resources; 
1.12.4. the boundaries of any production areas overlapping the boundary of the 

subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 
1.12.5. the nearest public roads; and 
1.12.6. the locations of any existing water wells within the boundary of the subject 

tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 
1.13. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on 

and attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of 
the applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete;  

1.14. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well field shall be 
operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State of 
Texas; and  

1.15. the dated signature of the applicant. 
 
 

RULE	6.2.3:	APPLICATION	REQUIREMENTS	RELATED	TO	NON‐HISTORIC	
USE	PRODUCTION	PERMITS	FOR	NON‐EXEMPT‐USE	WELL	SYSTEMS	
1. The applicant for an application for a production permit for standard-capacity non-

historic use of a non-exempt-use well system shall include the following information and 
any other information the general manager may determine to be of need to evaluate the 
request relative to the rules of the district: 
1.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
1.2. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well system; 
1.3. the geographic coordinate of the subject wells; 
1.4. The name and address of the landowners of the subject tracts of contiguous 

ownership of land; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 156 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 54 of 105 

1.5. The name and address of the owner of groundwater resources of subject tracts of 
contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 

1.6. the specification of the requested aggregate authorized groundwater production 
amount for the subject well system in gallons per minute and acre-foot per year; 

1.7. the specification of the requested authorized groundwater production purpose for 
the subject well system; 

1.8. the specification of the spatial extent including the total acreage of the boundaries of 
the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 

1.9. the specification of the spatial extent including the total acreage of the boundaries of 
the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources intersecting 
the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 

1.10. the documentation of any district waiver being requested in association with 
the application; 

1.11. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well system owner 
possesses the legal authority to produce groundwater from the subject tracts of 
contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 

1.12. a scaled map of: 
1.12.1. the subject wells of the subject well system; 
1.12.2. the boundaries of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 
1.12.3. the boundaries of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 

resources; 
1.12.4. the boundaries of any production areas overlapping the boundary of the 

subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 
1.12.5. the nearest public roads; and 
1.12.6. the locations of any existing water wells within the boundaries of the subject 

tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 
1.13. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on 

and attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of 
the applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete;  

1.14. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well system shall 
be operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State 
of Texas; and  

1.15. the dated signature of the applicant. 
 
 

RULE	6.3:	SPECIAL	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	HIGH‐CAPACITY	NON‐HISTORIC	
USE	PERMITTING	
1. The district shall condition production permits for high-capacity non-historic use with 

the following performance conditions: 
1.1. the operation of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well system shall not 

cause drawdown of the water table or artesian pressure in the associated production 
zones of the Gulf Coast Aquifer System greater than five feet (5 feet) at the boundary 
of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources on which the 
subject wells will be located. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 157 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 55 of 105 

1.2. the operation of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well system shall not 
cause or contribute to the intrusion of saline groundwater or saltwater into zones or 
water-bearing strata of fresh groundwater or areas by causing the interface between 
saline groundwater or saltwater and freshwater to migrate inland or upward.  

1.3. the operation of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well system shall not 
cause the water flow gradients to be altered between the Gulf Coast Aquifer System 
and those portions of the Guadalupe River, San Antonio River, Coleto Creek Reservoir 
water bodies located within the district.  

1.4. the operation of the subject well, the subject well field, or the subject well system 
shall not adversely affect groundwater quality at the boundary of the subject tracts 
of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources on which the subject wells are or 
will be located as follows: 

1.4.1. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration beyond one 
thousand five hundred milligrams per liter (1,500 mg/L) if the initial total 
dissolved solids concentration calculated at the boundary is below one thousand 
three hundred milligrams per liter (1,300 mg/L); or 

1.4.2. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration above one 
thousand seven hundred milligrams per liter (1,700 mg/L) if the initial total 
dissolved solids concentration calculated at the boundary is below one thousand 
five hundred milligrams per liter (1,500 mg/L); or 

1.4.3. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration above two 
thousand milligrams per liter (2,000 mg/L) if the initial total dissolved solids 
concentration calculated at the boundary is below one thousand seven hundred 
milligrams per liter (1,700 mg/L); or 

1.4.4. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration above two 
thousand five hundred milligrams per liter (2,500 mg/L) if the initial total 
dissolved solids concentration calculated at the boundary is below two thousand 
milligrams per liter (2,000 mg/L); or 

1.4.5. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration above three 
thousand milligrams per liter (3,000 mg/L) if the initial total dissolved solids 
concentration calculated at the boundary is below two thousand five hundred 
milligrams per liter (2,500 mg/L). 

1.5. the proposed operation of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well system 
shall not cause land subsidence measured within the boundary of the subject tracts 
of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources in excess of one foot (1 foot). 

2. The district shall require the well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of 
a production permit for high-capacity non-historic use to monitor aquifer conditions for 
impacts associated with groundwater production authorized under a production permit 
for high-capacity non-historic use.  

3. The district shall specify monitoring requirements for a production permit for high-
capacity non-historic use including requirements related to installation and use of 
dedicated aquifer monitoring wells. 

4. The district shall specify performance criteria and performance standards for a 
production permit for high-capacity non-historic use including the requirements related 
to water level impacts and water quality impacts. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 158 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 56 of 105 

5. The district shall consider the failure to collect less than sixty percent (60%) of any 
required aquifer measurements by the well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized 
operator of a production permit for high-capacity non-historic use as a failure to achieve 
the performance conditions of the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use. 

6. The district may require the well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of 
a production permit for high-capacity non-historic use to curtail or reduce the volume of 
groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use wells located on the subject 
tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the production 
permit for high-capacity non-historic use in response to a failure to achieve the 
performance conditions of the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use. 

7. The general manager shall review and determine the administrative completeness of an 
application for a production permit for high-capacity non-historic use within sixty days 
(60 days) of date of receipt of the application for a production permit for non-historic 
use. 

8. The applicant of an application for a production permit for high-capacity non-historic use 
shall attend the meetings at which the board of directors conducts hearings or considers 
action related to the application for a production permit for high-capacity non-historic 
use. 

 
 

RULE	6.3.1:	APPLICATION	REQUIREMENTS	RELATED	TO	HIGH‐CAPACITY	
NON‐HISTORIC‐USE	PRODUCTION	PERMIT	REQUESTS	
1. The applicant for an application for a production permit for high-capacity non-historic 

use shall submit the following information with the application for a production permit 
for high-capacity non-historic use in addition to the required information associated with 
an application for a production permit for standard-capacity non-historic use: 
1.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
1.2. the description of the production zones of the subject wells including: 

1.2.1. the depths to the top and bottom of the production zones; 
1.2.2. the thickness of the production zones; 

1.3. an aquifer test analysis report for a pumping test documenting: 
1.3.1. a conceptual description and diagram of the subject wells and observation 

wells including the well screening; 
1.3.2. a conceptual description and diagram of the production zones including type 

of aquifer, position and extent of aquicludes, aquitards, and hydrogeologic 
boundaries; 

1.3.3. a description and diagram of the radius of influence, the radius of separation 
of the subject wells and observation wells, the cones of depression, the static 
water levels, and the drawdown curves; 

1.3.4. a description and diagram of the drawdown-time relationships; 
1.3.5. a description and diagram of the drawdown-distance relationships; 
1.3.6. the hydraulic properties and derived parameters of the production zones; 
1.3.7. a description of the methods, assumptions, equations, and data used to 

calculate the hydraulic properties and derived parameters of production zones; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 159 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 57 of 105 

1.4. diagrams of, and a description of the method used to develop, 5-foot contours of 
predicted water levels of the production zone of the subject wells and any water-
bearing strata that exist between the top of the production zone of the subject wells 
and the ground surface in relation to the subject wells, to the outer edge of the cone-
of-depression, and the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 
groundwater resources for the time intervals of five years, ten years, and thirty years 
of proposed operation; 

1.5. information demonstrating achievement of the following performance conditions to 
a reasonable scientific certainty: 

1.5.1. the proposed operation of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well 
system shall not cause drawdown of the water table or artesian pressure in the 
associated production zones of the Gulf Coast Aquifer System greater than five 
feet (5 feet) at the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 
groundwater resources on which the subject wells will be located. 

1.5.2. the proposed operation of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well 
system shall not cause or contribute to the intrusion of saline groundwater or 
saltwater into zones or water-bearing strata of fresh groundwater or areas by 
causing the interface between saline groundwater or saltwater and freshwater 
to migrate inland or upward.  

1.5.3. the proposed operation of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well 
system shall not cause the water flow gradients to be altered between the Gulf 
Coast Aquifer System and those portions of the Guadalupe River, San Antonio 
River, Coleto Creek Reservoir water bodies located within the district.  

1.5.4. the proposed operation of the subject well, subject well field, or subject well 
system shall not adversely affect groundwater quality at the boundary of the 
subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources on which the 
subject wells will be located as follows: 

1.5.4.1. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration beyond one 
thousand five hundred milligrams per liter (1,500 mg/L) if the initial total 
dissolved solids concentration calculated at the boundary is below one 
thousand three hundred milligrams per liter (1,300 mg/L); or 

1.5.4.2. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration above one 
thousand seven hundred milligrams per liter (1,700 mg/L) if the initial total 
dissolved solids concentration calculated at the boundary is below one 
thousand five hundred milligrams per liter (1,500 mg/L); or 

1.5.4.3. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration above two 
thousand milligrams per liter (2,000 mg/L) if the initial total dissolved 
solids concentration calculated at the boundary is below one thousand 
seven hundred milligrams per liter (1,700 mg/L); or 

1.5.4.4. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration above two 
thousand five hundred milligrams per liter (2,500 mg/L) if the initial total 
dissolved solids concentration calculated at the boundary is below two 
thousand milligrams per liter (2,000 mg/L); or 

1.5.4.5. result in an increase of total dissolved solids concentration above three 
thousand milligrams per liter (3,000 mg/L) if the initial total dissolved 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 160 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 58 of 105 

solids concentration calculated at the boundary is below two thousand five 
hundred milligrams per liter (2,500 mg/L). 

1.6. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on and 
attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of the 
applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete;  

1.7. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject well, well field, or well 
system shall be operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations 
of the State of Texas; and 

1.8. the dated signature of the applicant. 
 

RULE	 6.3.2:	 SPECIAL	 MONITORING	 AND	 REPORTING	 REQUIREMENTS	
RELATED	TO	PERMITTING	HIGH‐CAPACITY	NON‐HISTORIC	USE	
1. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 

high-capacity non-historic use shall construct and maintain a monitoring well network 
comprised of at least three dedicated aquifer monitoring wells designed to accurately 
monitor impacts associated with production of groundwater under subject production 
permit positioned within the perimeter of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 
groundwater resources and bounding the subject well, subject well field, or subject well 
system. 

2. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use shall construct and maintain a permanent survey 
monument for vertical control within two hundred feet (200 feet) of the center of 
groundwater production of the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use if 
the authorized groundwater production amount is equal to or greater than two thousand 
acre-foot (2,000 acre-foot) of groundwater per year. 

3. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use shall make provisions for and grant access to the district 
to for the purpose of installing and operating a mobile subsidence monitoring station on 
the well site at the survey monument if the authorized groundwater production amount 
is equal to or greater than two thousand acre-foot (2,000 acre-foot) of groundwater per 
year. 

4. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use shall design and implement an aquifer monitoring plan, 
approved by the district, which includes the following: 
4.1. a description of the production area with a map depicting all non-exempt-use wells 

and dedicated aquifer monitoring wells within the production area; 
4.2. provisions to monitor and report production volumes, as daily totals, from the 

subject wells associated with the production permit for high-capacity non-historic 
use;   

4.3. provisions to establish initial average aquifer conditions for aquifer condition tier 1 
parameters and aquifer condition tier 2 parameters for the subject wells and the 
dedicated aquifer monitoring wells associated with the production permit for high-
capacity non-historic use; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 161 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 59 of 105 

4.4. provisions to measure and report aquifer condition tier 1 parameters, the aquifer 
condition tier 2 parameters, and aquifer condition tier 3 parameters for the subject 
wells and the dedicated aquifer monitoring wells associated with the production 
permit for high-capacity non-historic use in accordance with the rules of the district 
and the special conditions of the production permit for high-capacity non-historic 
use; and 

4.5. provisions to evaluate and report the average aquifer condition and the rolling 
average of the measurements of aquifer condition parameters to the initial average 
aquifer conditions. 

5. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use shall measure and record from the dedicated aquifer 
monitoring wells associated with the production permit for high-capacity non-historic 
use the aquifer condition tier 1 parameters on an hourly basis, the aquifer condition tier 
2 parameters on a weekly basis, and aquifer condition tier 3 parameters once, during a 
period of not less than thirty days (30 days) prior to operating the subject wells, subject 
well field, or subject well system. 

6. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use shall calculate, record and report to the district, as the 
initial average aquifer conditions of the production permit for high-capacity non-historic 
use, the average aquifer condition based on the data collected from the dedicated aquifer 
monitoring wells associated with the production permit for high-capacity non-historic 
use during the period of not less than ten days (10 days) prior to operating the subject 
wells, subject well field, or subject well system that the aquifer condition parameters 
were monitored. 

7. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use shall measure, record and report to the district the volume 
of groundwater produced on a daily-basis from each of the subject wells of the 
production permit for high-capacity non-historic use on a monthly basis. 

8. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use shall measure and record from the dedicated aquifer 
monitoring wells associated with the production permit for high-capacity non-historic 
use the aquifer condition parameters continuously from the end of the period during with 
the data was collected to calculate the initial average aquifer conditions until the 
expiration of the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use. 

9. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use shall develop and submit quarterly reports to the district, 
within thirty days (30 days) of the end of the reporting period, which includes sections 
addressing: 
9.1. aquifer monitoring data and groundwater production data collected during the 

preceding 3-month reporting period; 
9.2. technical issues, if any, regarding aquifer monitoring or groundwater production 

monitoring experienced during the reporting period; 
9.3. statistical calculations of aquifer conditions calculated from aquifer monitoring data 

collected during the reporting period including the rolling average of the aquifer 
condition parameters; 

9.4. comparison of reporting period aquifer conditions to initial aquifer conditions; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 162 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 60 of 105 

9.5. evaluation of achievement of performance standards of the production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use; and 

9.6. corrective actions including production curtailment, if any, to be completed to 
achieve compliance with of performance standards of the production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use not achieved during the reporting period 
performance standards of the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use 
not anticipated to be achieved during subsequent reporting periods. 

 

RULE	 6.3.3:	 SPECIAL	 OPERATIONAL	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	
PERMITTING	HIGH‐CAPACITY	NON‐HISTORIC	USE	
1. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 

high-capacity non-historic use, in response to a failure to achieve the performance 
conditions of the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use, shall: 
1.1. reduce the volume of groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use 

wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use 
during the current and subsequent reporting periods to fifty percent (50%) of the 
volume of groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use wells located 
on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated 
with the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use during the previous 
reporting period until the performance conditions are achieved for two consecutive 
reporting periods. 

2. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
high-capacity non-historic use, in response to a achieving the performance conditions of 
the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use for two consecutive reporting 
periods following a failure to achieve the performance conditions of the production 
permit for high-capacity non-historic use, may: 
2.1. increase the volume of groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use 

wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the production permit for high-capacity non-historic use 
during the current reporting period, upon the renewed and continued achievement 
of the performance conditions, by fifty percent (50%) of the volume of groundwater 
resources produced from the non-exempt-use wells located on the subject tracts of 
contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the production 
permit for high-capacity non-historic use during the most recent reporting period 
with authorized groundwater production until the volume of groundwater resources 
eligible to be produced is equal to the authorized groundwater production amount. 

 
 

RULE	6.4:	SPECIAL	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	DEEP‐SALINE	NON‐HISTORIC	
USE	PERMITTING	
1. The district shall limit the combined authorized groundwater production amounts of 

production permits for authorizing production of slightly saline groundwater from all 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 163 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 61 of 105 

deep-saline special groundwater management zones designated by the district to twenty 
thousand acre-feet (20,000 acre-feet) per year. 

2. The district shall limit the combined authorized groundwater production amounts of 
production permits for authorizing production of moderately saline groundwater from 
all deep-saline special groundwater management zones designated by the district to 
fifteen thousand acre-feet (15,000 acre-feet) per year. 

3. The district shall require the well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of 
a production permits for deep-saline non-historic use to monitor aquifer conditions for 
impacts associated with groundwater production authorized under a production permit 
for deep-saline non-historic use.  

4. The district shall condition production permits for deep-saline non-historic use with the 
following performance conditions: 
4.1. the proposed operation of the subject well or subject well field shall not cause or 

contribute to the intrusion of saline groundwater or saltwater into zones or water-
bearing strata of fresh groundwater or areas by causing the interface between saline 
groundwater or saltwater and freshwater to migrate inland or upward; 

4.2. the average of the daily average specific conductivity calculated for the subject well 
or subject well field, calculated for any reporting period, shall not exceed fifteen 
thousand microsiemens per centimeter (15,000 μS/cm) during any reporting 
period; 

4.3. the average total dissolved solids for the subject well or subject well field, calculated 
for any reporting period, shall not exceed ten thousand milligrams per liter (10,000 
mg/L) during any reporting period; 

4.4. the modeled drawdown caused by the operation of the subject well or subject well 
field, calculated for any reporting period, shall not exceed ten feet (10 feet) at any 
registered well outside the production area relative to the initial average aquifer 
conditions established under the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use; 

4.5. the maximum of the daily average drawdown calculated for any dedicated aquifer 
monitoring wells screened in a water-bearing strata of fresh groundwater, calculated 
for any reporting period, shall not exceed thirty feet (30 feet) relative to the initial 
average aquifer conditions established under the production permit for deep-saline 
non-historic use; 

4.6. the average of the daily average drawdown calculated for any dedicated aquifer 
monitoring wells screened in a water-bearing strata of fresh groundwater, calculated 
for any reporting period, shall not exceed twenty feet (20 feet) relative to the initial 
average aquifer conditions established under the production permit for deep-saline 
non-historic use; 

4.7. the maximum of the daily average specific conductivity calculated for any dedicated 
aquifer monitoring wells screened in a water-bearing strata of fresh groundwater, 
calculated for any reporting period, shall not exceed two thousand three hundred 
microsiemens per centimeter (2,300 μS/cm); 

4.8. the average of the daily average specific conductivity calculated for any dedicated 
aquifer monitoring wells screened in a water-bearing strata of fresh groundwater, 
calculated for any reporting period, shall not exceed one thousand five hundred and 
fifty microsiemens per centimeter (1,550 μS/cm); 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 164 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 62 of 105 

4.9. the maximum of the daily average specific conductivity calculated for any dedicated 
aquifer monitoring wells screened in a water-bearing strata of saline groundwater, 
calculated for any reporting period, shall not exceed the initial average aquifer 
conditions established under the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use 
by more than fifty percent (50%); 

4.10. the average of the daily average specific conductivity calculated for any 
dedicated aquifer monitoring wells screened in a water-bearing strata of saline 
groundwater, calculated for any reporting period, shall not exceed the initial average 
aquifer conditions established under the production permit for deep-saline non-
historic use by more than twenty five percent (25%); and  

4.11. land subsidence measured within the boundary of the subject tracts of 
contiguous ownership of groundwater resources shall not exceed one foot (1 foot). 

5. The district shall require the well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of 
a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use to monitor aquifer conditions for 
impacts associated with groundwater production authorized under a production permit 
for deep-saline non-historic use.  

6. The district shall specify monitoring requirements for a production permit for deep-
saline non-historic use including requirements related to installation and use of 
dedicated aquifer monitoring wells. 

7. The district shall specify performance criteria and performance standards for a 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use including the requirements related to 
water level impacts and water quality impacts. 

8. The district shall consider the failure to collect less than sixty percent (60%) of any 
required aquifer measurements by the well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized 
operator of a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use as a failure to achieve 
the performance conditions of the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use. 

9. The district may require the well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of 
a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use to curtail or reduce the volume of 
groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use wells located on the subject 
tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the production 
permit for deep-saline non-historic use in response to a failure to achieve the 
performance conditions of the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use. 

10. The general manager shall review and determine the administrative completeness of an 
application for a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use within ninety days 
(90 days) of date of receipt of the application for a production permit for non-historic 
use. 

11. The applicant of an application for a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use 
shall attend the meetings at which the board of directors conducts hearings or considers 
action related to the application for a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use. 

 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 165 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 63 of 105 

RULE	 6.4.1:	 GROUNDWATER	 PRODUCTION	 LIMITATIONS	 RELATED	 TO	
DEEP‐SALINE	SPECIAL	GROUNDWATER	MANAGEMENT	ZONES	
1. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 

permit for deep-saline non-historic use completed in the Goliad Saline Groundwater Zone 
to: 
1.1. a volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well or subject well 

field that does not exceed ten acre-foot (10 acre-foot) per year per acre of the subject 
tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the top of the well screening is 
greater than one thousand three hundred feet (1,300 feet) below the ground surface 
and average total dissolved solids concentration is greater than one thousand five 
hundred milligrams per liter (1,500 mg/L). 

1.2. a volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well or subject well 
field that does not exceed thirteen acre-foot (13 acre-foot) per year per acre of the 
subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the top of the well screening is 
greater than one thousand eight hundred feet (1,800 feet) below the ground surface 
and average total dissolved solids concentration is greater than two thousand five 
hundred milligrams per liter (2,500 mg/L). 

1.3. a volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well or subject well 
field that does not exceed sixteen acre-foot (16 acre-foot) per year per acre of the 
subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the top of the well screening is 
greater than two thousand two hundred feet (2,200 feet) below the ground surface 
and average total dissolved solids concentration is greater than five thousand 
milligrams per liter (5,000 mg/L). 

2. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 
permit for deep-saline non-historic use completed in the Lagarto Saline Groundwater 
Zone to: 
2.1. a volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well or subject well 

field that does not exceed four acre-foot (4 acre-foot) per year per acre of the subject 
tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the top of the well screening is 
greater than one thousand three hundred feet (1,300 feet) below the ground surface 
and average total dissolved solids concentration is greater than one thousand five 
hundred milligrams per liter (1,500 mg/L). 

2.2. a volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well or subject well 
field that does not exceed five acre-foot (5 acre-foot) per year per acre of the subject 
tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the top of the well screening is 
greater than one thousand eight hundred feet (1,800 feet) below the ground surface 
and average total dissolved solids concentration is greater than two thousand five 
hundred milligrams per liter (2,500 mg/L). 

2.3. a volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well or subject well 
field that does not exceed six acre-foot (6 acre-foot) per year per acre of the subject 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 166 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 64 of 105 

tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the top of the well screening is 
greater than two thousand two hundred feet (2,200 feet) below the ground surface 
and average total dissolved solids concentration is greater than five thousand 
milligrams per liter (5,000 mg/L). 

3. The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production amount of a production 
permit for deep-saline non-historic use completed in the Oakville Saline Groundwater 
Zone to: 
3.1. a volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well or subject well 

field that does not exceed six acre-foot (6 acre-foot) per year per acre of the subject 
tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the top of the well screening is 
greater than one thousand three hundred feet (1,300 feet) below the ground surface 
and average total dissolved solids concentration is greater than one thousand five 
hundred milligrams per liter (1,500 mg/L). 

3.2. a volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well or subject well 
field that does not exceed eight acre-foot (8 acre-foot) per year per acre of the subject 
tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the top of the well screening is 
greater than one thousand eight hundred feet (1,800 feet) below the ground surface 
and average total dissolved solids concentration is greater than two thousand five 
hundred milligrams per liter (2,500 mg/L). 

3.3. a volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well or subject well 
field that does not exceed ten acre-foot (10 acre-foot) per year per acre of the subject 
tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the top of the well screening is 
greater than two thousand two hundred feet (2,200 feet) below the ground surface 
and average total dissolved solids concentration is greater than five thousand 
milligrams per liter (5,000 mg/L). 

4. The district shall limit volume of groundwater resources produced from the subject well 
or subject well field of a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use to no more 
than twenty five percent (25%) of authorized groundwater production amount during 
any two-month period. 

RULE	 6.4.2:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 DEEP‐SALINE	
PRODUCTION	PERMIT	REQUESTS	
1. The applicant for an application for a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use 

shall submit the following information with the application for a production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use in addition to the required information associated with an 
application for a production permit for standard-capacity non-historic use: 
1.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
1.2. the description of the production zones of the subject wells including: 

1.2.1. the depths to the top and bottom of the production zones; 
1.2.2. the thickness of the production zones; 

1.3. the identification of the specific deep-saline special groundwater management zone 
from which the subject wells would produce groundwater resources; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 167 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 65 of 105 

1.4. the cumulative production volume from the subject wells proposed for the first five-
year period of the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use; 

1.5. the maximum proposed production rate of the subject wells in gallons per minute 
and acre-foot per year; 

1.6. the distance between the nearest registered water well and each of the subject wells;  
1.7. identification of any wells with 1) a total depth of eight hundred feet (800 feet) or 2) 

a screen below eight hundred feet (800 feet) located within two thousand six 
hundred and forty feet (2,640 feet) of any of the subject wells; and 

1.8. the dated signature of the applicant. 
 
 

RULE	 6.4.3:	 SPECIAL	 MONITORING	 AND	 REPORTING	 REQUIREMENTS	
RELATED	TO	PERMITTING	DEEP‐SALINE	NON‐HISTORIC	USE	
1. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 

deep-saline non-historic use shall construct and maintain a dedicated aquifer monitoring 
well within three hundred feet (300 feet) of each deep-saline well with a continuous 50-
foot screen isolated in the deepest zone with fresh groundwater. 

2. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use shall construct and maintain a dedicated aquifer monitoring 
well within one hundred feet (100 feet) of the boundary of the subject tract of contiguous 
ownership of groundwater resources, closest to the greatest level of predicted 
drawdown, with continuous 100-foot screens intersecting the major sand units of the 
deep-saline special groundwater management zone associated with the production 
permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the authorized groundwater production 
amount is equal to or greater than two thousand acre-foot (2,000 acre-foot) of 
groundwater per year. 

3. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use shall construct and maintain a permanent survey 
monument for vertical control within two hundred feet (200 feet) of the center of 
groundwater production of the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use if the 
authorized groundwater production amount is equal to or greater than two thousand 
acre-foot (2,000 acre-foot) of groundwater per year; 

4. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use shall make provisions for and grant access to the district to 
for the purpose of installing and operating a mobile subsidence monitoring station on the 
well site at the survey monument if the authorized groundwater production amount is 
equal to or greater than two thousand acre-foot (2,000 acre-foot) of groundwater per 
year. 

5. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use shall design and implement an aquifer monitoring plan, 
approved by the district, which includes the following: 
5.1. a description of the production area with a map depicting all non-exempt-use wells 

and dedicated aquifer monitoring wells within the production area; 
5.2. provisions to monitor and report production volumes, as daily totals, from the 

subject wells associated with the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use;   

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 168 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 66 of 105 

5.3. provisions to establish initial average aquifer conditions for aquifer condition tier 1 
parameters and aquifer condition tier 2 parameters for the subject wells and the 
dedicated aquifer monitoring wells associated with the production permit for deep-
saline non-historic use; 

5.4. provisions to measure and report hourly measurements of aquifer condition tier 1 
parameters, semi-annual measurements of aquifer condition tier 2 parameters, and 
annual measurements of aquifer condition tier 3 parameters for the subject wells 
and the dedicated aquifer monitoring wells associated with the production permit 
for deep-saline non-historic use in accordance with the rules of the district and the 
special conditions of the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use. 

5.5. a list of equipment and specifications to be used to collect aquifer monitoring data 
including field protocols for sample collection and preservation; and 

5.6. methodologies and protocols for the following: 
5.6.1. calibrating and installing aquifer monitoring equipment; 
5.6.2. collecting and storing aquifer monitoring data; 
5.6.3. controlling and assuring data quality; 
5.6.4. post-process aquifer monitoring data; 
5.6.5. statistical processing of aquifer monitoring data; and 
5.6.6. modeling impacts of groundwater production from the deep-saline wells 

outside the boundary of the production area. 
6. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 

deep-saline non-historic use shall develop and submit quarterly reports to the district, 
within thirty days (30 days) of the end of the reporting period, which includes sections 
addressing: 
6.1. aquifer monitoring data and groundwater production data collected during the 

preceding 3-month reporting period; 
6.2. technical issues, if any, regarding aquifer monitoring or groundwater production 

monitoring experienced during the reporting period; 
6.3. statistical calculations of aquifer conditions calculated from aquifer monitoring data 

collected during the reporting period; 
6.4. comparison of reporting period aquifer conditions to initial aquifer conditions; 
6.5. evaluation of achievement of performance standards of the production permit for 

deep-saline non-historic use; and 
6.6. corrective actions including production curtailment, if any, to be completed to 

achieve compliance with of performance standards of the production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use not achieved during the reporting period performance 
standards of the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use not anticipated 
to be achieved during subsequent reporting periods. 

 
 

RULE	 6.4.4:	 SPECIAL	 OPERATIONAL	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	
PERMITTING	DEEP‐SALINE	NON‐HISTORIC	USE	
1. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 

deep-saline non-historic use shall develop and conduct an aquifer test in accordance with 
an aquifer test plan approved by the district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 169 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 67 of 105 

2. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use shall submit, within two months after completing the 
subject wells and before commencing operation of the subject wells under the production 
permit for deep-saline non-historic use, an aquifer test analysis report documenting: 
2.1. a conceptual description and diagram of the subject wells and observation wells 

including the well screening; 
2.2. a conceptual description and diagram of the production zones including type of 

aquifer, position and extent of aquicludes, aquitards, and hydrogeologic boundaries; 
2.3. a description and diagram of the radius of influence, the radius of separation of the 

subject wells and observation wells, the cones of depression, the static water levels, 
and the drawdown curves; 

2.4. a description and diagram of the drawdown-time relationships; 
2.5. a description and diagram of the drawdown-distance relationships; 
2.6. the hydraulic properties and derived parameters of the production zones; 
2.7. the methods, assumptions, equations, and data used to calculate the hydraulic 

properties and derived parameters of production zones; and 
2.8. diagrams of, and a description of the method used to develop, 5-foot contours of 

predicted water levels of the production zone of the subject wells and any water-
bearing strata that exist between the top of the production zone of the subject wells 
and the ground surface in relation to the subject wells, to the outer edge of the cone-
of-depression, and the boundary of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 
groundwater resources for the time intervals of five years, ten years, and thirty years 
of proposed operation. 

3. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use, in response to failures to achieve the performance 
conditions of the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use shall: 
3.1. adjust volumes of groundwater resources produced and the production schedules of 

the subject well or subject well field to prevent the daily average drawdown 
calculated for any dedicated aquifer monitoring wells screened in a water-bearing 
strata of fresh groundwater from exceeding twenty feet (20 feet) relative to initial 
average aquifer conditions established under the production permit for deep-saline 
non-historic use during the subsequent reporting period if the daily average 
drawdown calculated for any dedicated aquifer monitoring wells screened in a 
water-bearing strata of fresh groundwater exceeds fifteen feet (15 feet) relative to 
relative to initial average aquifer conditions established under the production permit 
for deep-saline non-historic use during the preceding reporting period; 

3.2. reduce the volume of groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use 
wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use to 
ninety percent (90%) of the production volume during the subsequent reporting 
period if performance conditions are not achieved during a reporting period; 

3.3. reduce the volume of groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use 
wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use to 
fifty percent (50%) of the volume of groundwater resources produced from the non-
exempt-use wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 170 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 68 of 105 

groundwater resources associated with the production permit for deep-saline non-
historic use during the subsequent reporting period if performance conditions are 
not achieved for two consecutive reporting periods; 

3.4. reduce the volume of groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use 
wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use to 
twenty five percent (25%) of the volume of groundwater resources produced from 
the non-exempt-use wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of 
groundwater resources associated with the production permit for deep-saline non-
historic use during the subsequent reporting period if performance conditions are 
not achieved for three consecutive reporting periods; and 

3.5. reduce the volume of groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use 
wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use to 
the lesser of two hundred gallons per minute (200 GPM), eighty acre-foot (80 acre-
foot), or ten percent (10%) of the of the volume of groundwater resources produced 
from the non-exempt-use wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership 
of groundwater resources associated with the production permit for deep-saline 
non-historic use during the subsequent reporting period if performance conditions 
are not achieved for four consecutive reporting periods. 

4. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a production permit for 
deep-saline non-historic use, in response to a achieving the performance conditions of 
the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use for two consecutive reporting 
periods following a failure to achieve the performance conditions of the production 
permit for deep-saline non-historic use, may: 
4.1. increase the volume of groundwater resources produced from the non-exempt-use 

wells located on the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources associated with the production permit for deep-saline non-historic use 
during the current reporting period, upon the renewed and continued achievement 
of the performance conditions, to fifty percent (50%) of the volume of groundwater 
resources produced from the non-exempt-use wells located on the subject tracts of 
contiguous ownership of groundwater resources associated with the production 
permit for deep-saline non-historic use during the most recent reporting period with 
authorized groundwater production until the volume of groundwater resources 
eligible to be produced is equal to the authorized groundwater production amount. 

 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 171 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 69 of 105 

SECTION	7:	POLICIES	RELATED	GROUNDWATER	TRANSFER	
 

RULE	7.1:	GENERAL	POLICIES	RELATED	PERMITTING	TRANSFER	
1. A person shall not be required to obtain a transfer permit for: 

1.1. the transfer of less than ten acre-foot (10 acre-foot) of produced groundwater per 
year, 

1.2. the transfer of produced groundwater that is part of a manufactured product 
manufactured within the district, 

1.3. the transfer of groundwater produced from and put to use solely on real property 
that presently and historically straddles the boundary of the district as of the date of 
the original adoption of the rules of the district, 

1.4. the transfer of groundwater produced from real property within the boundary of the 
district and put to use solely within a certificate of convenience and necessity (CCN) 
that presently and historically straddled the boundary of the district as of the date of 
the original adoption of the rules of the district, or 

1.5. the transfer of groundwater produced from and put to use to hydrotest pipeline 
provided at least fifty percent (50%) of the pipeline to be tested exists within the 
boundary of the district and the pipeline presently and historically straddled the 
boundary of the district as of the date of the original adoption of the rules of the 
district. 

2. The board of directors shall consider the following information when deciding to grant 
or deny a transfer permit: 
2.1. the availability of water in the district and in the proposed receiving area during the 

period for which the water supply is requested;  
2.2. the projected effect of the proposed transfer on aquifer conditions, depletion, 

subsidence, or effects on existing permit holders or other groundwater users within 
the district; and 

2.3.  the approved regional water plan and approved district management plan. 
 
 

RULE	7.2:	GENERAL	PROCEDURES	RELATED	TRANSFER	PERMITTING	
1. The general manager shall review and determine the administrative completeness of an 

application for a transfer permit within thirty days (30 days) of the date of receipt of the 
application for a transfer permit. 

2. The general manager shall review the supplemental information requested by the 
general manager and received by the district associated with an application for a transfer 
permit within thirty days (30 days) of date of receipt of the supplemental information. 

3. The general manager shall designate an application for a transfer permit as 
administratively complete when all necessary information to fully consider the 
application has been submitted to the district by the applicant. 

4. The general manager shall issue and post written notice, within thirty days (30 days) of 
determining an application for a transfer permit is administratively complete, indicating 
a date and time for a hearing regarding the application for a transfer permit. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 172 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 70 of 105 

5. The applicant of an application for a transfer permit shall attend the meetings at which 
the board of directors conducts hearings or considers action related to the application 
for a transfer permit. 

6. The board of directors shall consider applications requesting a transfer permit that are 
designated as administratively complete, after providing public notice of the permit 
hearing for not less than ten days (10 days). 

7. The district shall specify the operational requirements and special conditions of transfer 
permits including: 
7.1. the identification number assigned by the district for the transfer permit; 
7.2. the identification number assigned by the district for the subject production permit; 
7.3. the authorized groundwater transfer amount; 
7.4. the authorized groundwater transfer purpose; 
7.5. the authorized operator of the transfer permit; 
7.6. the authorized groundwater transfer location; 
7.7. the monitoring requirements; 
7.8. the reporting requirements; 
7.9. the special conditions established by the board of directors; 
7.10. the permit issuance date; and 
7.11. the permit expiration date. 

8. The district shall specify monitoring requirements for a transfer permit including the 
requirements related to installation and use of meters to record the volumes of 
groundwater transferred. 

 
 

RULE	 7.3:	 GENERAL	 MONITORING	 AND	 REPORTING	 REQUIREMENT	
RELATED	TO	TRANSFER	PERMITS	
1. The authorized operator of a transfer permit shall measure the volume of produced 

groundwater transferred out of the district under the transfer permit using a device or 
method that is accurate within ten percent (10%) of the actual volume produced. 

2. The authorized operator of a transfer permit shall report the volume of groundwater 
transferred out of the district under the transfer permit to the district on an annual basis. 

3. The authorized operator of a transfer permit shall report the volume of groundwater 
transferred out of the district that is accurate within ten percent (10%) of the actual 
volume of groundwater transferred during the calendar year. 

4. The authorized operator of a transfer permit shall report the volume of groundwater 
transferred out of the district for the previous calendar year during January of the 
subsequent calendar year. 

5. The authorized operator of a transfer permit shall report the volume of groundwater 
transferred out of the district using a form developed by the district. 

6. The authorized operator of a transfer permit shall include the following information 
when reporting the volume of groundwater transferred out of the district: 
6.1. the transfer permit identification number; 
6.2. the reporting period; 
6.3. the volume of groundwater transferred out of the district during the reporting period 

in acre-foot; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 173 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 71 of 105 

6.4. the method used to determine the volumes of groundwater transferred out of the 
district during the reporting period; and 

6.5. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on and 
attached to the report was prepared under the direction or supervision of the 
authorized operator and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the authorized 
operator, true, accurate and complete; 

6.6. the printed name of the person submitting the report; and 
6.7. the dated signature of the person submitting the report. 

 
 

RULE	 7.4:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 TRANSFER	
PERMIT	REQUESTS	
1. The applicant for an application for a transfer permit shall submit the permitting request 

on the form prescribed by the district. 
2. The applicant for an application for a transfer permit shall include the following 

information and any other information the general manager may determine to be of need 
to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the district: 
2.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
2.2. the identification number assigned by the district of the associated production 

permit; 
2.3. the name and address of the authorized operator of the associated production 

permit; 
2.4. the requested authorized groundwater transfer amount in acre-foot per year; 
2.5. the requested authorized groundwater transfer purpose; 
2.6. the requested authorized groundwater transfer period; 
2.7. the name and address of the requested authorized operator of the transfer permit; 
2.8. the requested authorized groundwater transfer location;  
2.9. a description of the existing and proposed transfer facilities and method to be used 

to transfer groundwater from the district to the authorized groundwater transfer 
location; 

2.10. a description of any anticipated loss of water resulting from the transfer of 
groundwater from the district to the authorized groundwater transfer location; 

2.11. a description of the availability of water in the district and in the proposed 
receiving area during the period for which the water supply is requested; 

2.12. a description of the projected effect of the proposed transfer on aquifer 
conditions, depletion, subsidence, or effects on existing permit holders or other 
groundwater users within the district; 

2.13. a plan specifying: 
2.13.1.  the quantified objectives to be achieved by reducing groundwater transfer 

from the district during periods of water shortages and drought in the district; 
2.13.2. actions to be completed by the authorized operator at the authorized 

groundwater transfer location and receiving area to reduce groundwater 
transfer from the district during periods of water shortages and drought to 
achieve the quantified objectives for reducing groundwater transfer from the 
district during periods of water shortages and drought in the district; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 174 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 72 of 105 

2.13.3. actions to be completed by the authorized operator to monitor and assess 
achievement of the quantified objectives for reducing groundwater transfer 
from the district during periods of water shortages and drought in the district; 

2.13.4. actions to be completed by the authorized operator to report to the district the 
assessment of the achievement of the quantified objectives for reducing 
groundwater transfer from the district during periods of water shortages and 
drought in the district; and 

2.14. Proof of notification of the proposed groundwater transfer that includes the 
name and address of the applicant, the identification number assigned by the district 
of the associated production permit, the name and address of the authorized 
operator of the associated production permit, the requested authorized 
groundwater transfer amount in acre-foot per year, the requested authorized 
groundwater transfer purpose, the requested authorized groundwater transfer 
period, the name and address of the requested authorized operator of the transfer 
permit, and the requested authorized groundwater transfer location, by certified 
mail, of all landowners and all owners of groundwater resources within two miles (2 
miles) of the production area of the associated production permit.  

2.15. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on 
and attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of 
the applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete;  

2.16. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the transfer of groundwater 
shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the 
State of Texas; and 

2.17. the dated signature of the applicant. 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 175 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 73 of 105 

SECTION	 8:	 POLICIES	 RELATED	 TO	 DISTRICT	 WAIVERS	 AND	
PETITIONS	TO	AMEND	THE	RULES	OF	THE	DISTRICT	
 

RULE	8.1:	GENERAL	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	WAIVERS	
1. The district shall only grant district waivers to rules or requirements of the district that 

are consistent with the mission of the district to conserve, preserve and protect the 
groundwater resources within the boundary of the district. 

2. The district shall only adopt waivers to rules or requirements of the district that are 
consistent with the desired future conditions of the district as established under Chapter 
36 of the Texas Water Code and documented in the Management Plan of the district. 

3. The district shall only adopt waivers to rules or requirements of the district that are 
consistent with the Management Plan of the district, orders of the board of directors, and 
the laws of the State of Texas. 

4. The district shall grant district waivers with conditions, restrictions, limitations, and 
requirements determined to be necessary by the district to achieve the desired future 
conditions of the district as established under Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code and 
documented in the Management Plan of the district. 

5. The district shall grant district waivers in accordance with and subject to the rules of the 
district, the Management Plan of the district, orders of the board of directors, and the 
laws of the State of Texas. 

6. The district shall not grant district waivers for which the board of directors has not found 
good cause. 

7. The board of directors may modify, reduce, or eliminate any rule or requirement of the 
district associated with a permitting request for which the board of directors has found 
good cause. 

8. The board of directors may establish and incorporate special conditions and 
requirements in district waivers and associated permits. 

 
 

RULE	8.2:	GENERAL	PROCEDURES	RELATED	TO	DISTRICT	WAIVERS	
1. The general manager shall contest all permitting requests associated with requests for a 

district waiver that have not been granted by the board of directors. 
2. A person drilling or having drilled a well may apply for a district waiver of the well 

completion requirements of the rules of the district. 
3. An applicant for an application for a permit may request a district waiver of the 

permitting requirements established by the rules of the district. 
4. The applicant requesting a district waiver of the permitting requirements established by 

the rules of the district shall provide evidence of good cause with the application. 
5. The general manager shall review and determine the administrative completeness of an 

application for a district waiver within sixty days (60 days) of date of receipt of the 
application for a district waiver. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 176 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 74 of 105 

6. The general manager shall review the supplemental information requested by the 
general manager and received by the district associated with an application for a district 
waiver within thirty days (30 days) of date of receipt of the supplemental information. 

7. The general manager shall designate an application for a district waiver as 
administratively complete when all necessary information to fully consider the 
application has been submitted to the district by the applicant. 

8. The general manager shall schedule applications for a district waiver determined to be 
administratively complete for consideration by the board of directors at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting of the board of directors. 

9. The general manager shall issue and post written notice, within thirty days (30 days) of 
determining an application for a district waiver is administratively complete, indicating 
a date and time for a hearing regarding the application for a district waiver. 

10. The applicant of an application for a district waiver shall attend the meetings at which 
the board of directors conducts hearings or considers action related to the application 
for a district waiver. 

11. The applicant for an application for a district waiver shall provide, to the district, any 
waivers related to spacing requirements obtained from other persons in relation to the 
district waiver being requested or associated permitting request.  

12. The applicant for an application for a district waiver shall identify any waivers related to 
spacing requirements sought but not obtained from other persons in relation to the 
district waiver being requested or associated permitting request.  

13. The applicant for an application for a district waiver shall provide the information and 
evidence the board of directors determines to be necessary to evaluate the district waiver 
request. 

14. The board of directors shall consider applications for a district waiver that are designated 
as administratively complete, after providing public notice of the permit hearing for not 
less than ten days (10 days). 

15. The board of directors shall consider an application for a district waiver designated 
administratively complete in advance of associated permit requests. 

16. The board of directors may consider a district waiver request at the same meeting that a 
permitting request is considered.  

17. The board of directors may refer any application for a district waiver to a hearing 
examiner for a hearing. 

18. The district incorporates the application for a district waiver into any associated district 
waiver approved by the district.  

19. The district issues, approves, and grants a district waiver on the basis of and is contingent 
upon the accuracy of the information supplied in the associated application for a district 
waiver.  

20. The district shall specify the operational requirements and special conditions of district 
waivers including: 
20.1. the identification number assigned by the district for the district waiver; 
20.2. the identification number assigned by the district for the associated 

application for a district waiver;  
20.3. the identification number assigned by the district for the associated 

production permit or transfer permit; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 177 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 75 of 105 

20.4. the identification of the rules and requirements associated with the district 
waiver; 

20.5. the authorized operator; 
20.6. the finding of the board of directors regarding good cause associated with the 

district waiver; 
20.7. the special conditions established by the board of directors; and 
20.8. the expiration date. 

 
 

RULE	 8.3:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 DISTRICT	
WAIVERS	
1. The applicant for an application for a district waiver shall include the following 

information and any other information the general manager may determine to be of need 
to evaluate the request relative to the rules of the district: 
1.1. the name and address of the applicant; 
1.2. a description of the associated applications for a permit; 
1.3. the identification of the specific rules and specific requirements of the rules of the 

district from which an applicant seeks relief; 
1.4. a detailed description of the basis for board of directors to find good cause exists for 

granting the district waiver request;  
1.5. a detailed description of the impact if the district waiver request is not granted by 

the board of directors; 
1.6. a detailed description of any conditions, restrictions, limitations, and requirements 

the applicant would find acceptable if the request were to be approved; 
1.7. the duration of time the district waiver would be necessary; 
1.8. a list of documentation, if any, included with the district waiver request supporting 

district waiver request; 
1.9. the name and address of the person that owns the subject well, the subject well field 

or the subject well system; 
1.10. the geographic coordinate of the subject wells; 
1.11. the name and address of the landowners of the subject tracts of contiguous 

ownership of land; 
1.12. the name and address of the owner of groundwater resources of subject tracts 

of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 
1.13. the specification of the spatial extent including the total acreage of the 

boundaries of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 
1.14. the specification of the spatial extent including the total acreage of the 

boundaries of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources 
intersecting the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 

1.15. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the well owners possess the 
legal authority to produce groundwater from the subject tracts of contiguous 
ownership of groundwater resources; 

1.16. a scaled map of: 
1.16.1. the subject wells;  
1.16.2. the boundaries of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 178 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 76 of 105 

1.16.3. the boundaries of the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater 
resources; 

1.16.4. the boundaries of any production areas overlapping the boundary of the 
subject tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; 

1.16.5. the nearest public roads; and 
1.16.6. the locations of any existing water wells within the boundary of the subject 

tracts of contiguous ownership of groundwater resources; and 
1.17. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on 

and attached to the application was prepared under the direction or supervision of 
the applicant and is, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the applicant, true, 
accurate and complete; 

1.18. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the subject wells shall be 
operated in accordance with the rules of the district and regulations of the State of 
Texas; and 

1.19. the dated signature of the applicant. 
 
 

RULE	8.4:	GENERAL	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	PETITIONS	TO	AMEND	THE	
RULES	OF	THE	DISTRICT	
1. The district shall only adopt amendments to rules of the district that are consistent with 

the mission of the district to conserve, preserve and protect the groundwater resources 
within the boundary of the district. 

2. The district shall only adopt amendments to rules of the district that are consistent with 
the desired future conditions of the district as established under Chapter 36 of the Texas 
Water Code and documented in the Management Plan of the district. 

3. The district shall only adopt amendments to rules of the district that are consistent with 
the Management Plan of the district, orders of the board of directors, and the laws of the 
State of Texas. 

 
 

RULE	8.5:	GENERAL	PROCEDURES	RELATED	TO	PETITIONS	TO	AMEND	
THE	RULES	OF	THE	DISTRICT	
1. A person with a real property interest in groundwater within the district may petition 

the board of directors to adopt, modify, or amend the rules of the district. 
2. The petitioner shall articulate the good cause to add, revise, or eliminate specific 

requirements or limitations within the rules of the district, utilizing a form provided by 
the district. 

3. The general manager shall review and determine the administrative completeness of a 
petition to amend the rules of the district within ninety days (90 days) of date of receipt 
of the petition to amend the rules of the district. 

4. The general manager shall review the supplemental information requested by the 
general manager and received by the district associated with a petition to amend the 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 179 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 77 of 105 

rules of the district within ninety days (90 days) of date of receipt of the supplemental 
information. 

5. The general manager shall designate a petition to amend the rules of the district as 
administratively complete when all necessary information to fully consider the petition 
to amend the rules of the district has been submitted to the district by the petitioner. 

6. The general manager shall schedule a petition to amend the rules of the district 
determined to be administratively complete for consideration by the board of directors 
at a regularly scheduled meeting of the board of directors. 

7. The general manager shall issue and post written notice, within thirty days (30 days) of 
determining a petition to amend the rules of the district is administratively complete, 
indicating a date and time for a hearing regarding the petition to amend the rules of the 
district. 

8. The petitioner of a petition to amend the rules of the district shall attend the meetings at 
which the board of directors conducts hearings or considers action related to the petition 
to amend the rules of the district. 

9. The petitioner of a petition to amend the rules of the district shall provide the information 
and evidence the board of directors determines to be necessary to evaluate the petition. 

10. The board of directors shall consider petitions to amend the rules of the district within 
ninety days (90 days) of receipt of an administratively complete petition form and shall:  
10.1. deny the petition and provide an explanation for the denial, or 
10.2. engage in rulemaking consistent with the petition. 

11. The board of directors shall consider petitions that are designated as administratively 
complete, after providing public notice of the rulemaking hearing for not less than twenty 
days (20 days) as required by Section 36.101(d), Water Code. 

12. The board of directors may refer any petition to amend the rules of the district to a 
hearing examiner for a hearing. 

 
 

RULE	 8.6:	 APPLICATION	 REQUIREMENTS	 RELATED	 TO	 PETITIONS	 TO	
AMEND	THE	RULES	OF	THE	DISTRICT	
1. The petitioner of a petition to amend the rules of the district shall include the following 

information: 
1.1. the name and address of the petitioner; 
1.2. the identification of the specific rules and specific requirements of the rules of the 

district the petitioner request to be eliminated from the rules of the district; 
1.3. the identification of the specific rules and specific requirements of the rules of the 

district the petitioner request to be added in the rules of the district; 
1.4. the identification of the specific rules and specific requirements of the rules of the 

district the petitioner request to be revised within the rules of the district; 
1.5. a detailed description of the basis for board of directors to find good cause to amend 

the rules of the district;  
1.6. a detailed description of the impact if the petition is not granted by the board of 

directors; 
1.7. a list of documentation, if any, included with the petition supporting the request; 
1.8. the names and addresses of the persons petitioning the district; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 180 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 78 of 105 

1.9. a statement certifying, under penalty of law, that the information reported on and 
attached to the petition to amend the rules of the district was prepared under the 
direction or supervision of the petitioner and is, to the best of the knowledge and 
belief of the petitioner, true, accurate and complete; and 

1.10. the dated signature of the petitioner. 
 
 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 181 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 79 of 105 

SECTION	 9:	 POLICIES	 RELATE	 TO	 CURTAILMENT	 OF	
GROUNDWATER	PRODUCTION	

RULE	9.1:	CURTAILMENT	OF	GROUNDWATER	PRODUCTION		
1. The district may curtail groundwater production of wells, well fields, and well systems in 

order to conserve, preserve and protect the groundwater resources within the boundary 
of the district. 

2. The district may curtail groundwater production of wells, well fields, and well systems in 
order to control or prevent subsidence within the boundary of the district. 

3. The district may curtail groundwater production of non-exempt-use wells, non-exempt-
use wells fields, or non-exempt-use well systems based upon credible, scientific 
information that demonstrates curtailment of groundwater production within the 
boundaries of the district will reduce the degree to which the district is failing to achieve 
the desired future conditions of the district. 

4. The district may impose new and additional monitoring requirements for non-exempt-
use wells, non-exempt-use well fields, or non-exempt-use well systems based upon 
credible, scientific information that demonstrates curtailment of groundwater 
production within the boundaries of the district may reduce the degree to which the 
district is failing to achieve the desired future conditions of the district. 

5. Any curtailment of groundwater production shall consider all groundwater uses and 
needs and be fair and impartial. 

 
 

RULE	9.2:	REDUCTION	OF	AUTHORIZED	GROUNDWATER	PRODUCTION	
AMOUNT	OF	PRODUCTION	PERMITS	
1. The district may reduce the authorized groundwater production amount of production 

permits based upon credible, scientific information that demonstrates curtailment of 
groundwater production within the boundaries of the district will reduce the degree to 
which the district is failing to achieve the desired future conditions of the district. 

2. The district may reduce the authorized groundwater production amount of production 
permits of non-exempt-use wells, well fields, or well systems based upon credible, 
scientific information that demonstrates curtailment of groundwater production within 
the boundaries of the district will control or prevent subsidence the district 

3. Any reduction of groundwater production shall consider all groundwater uses and needs 
and be fair and impartial. 
 

 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 182 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 80 of 105 

SECTION	10:	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	DISTRICT	FEES	
 

RULE	10.1:	ADMINISTRATIVE	AND	APPLICATION	FEE	
1. The board of directors, by resolution, shall establish a schedule of fees for administrative 

acts of the district, including the cost of reviewing and processing applications related to 
permitting and the cost of hearings for applications related to permitting. 

2. The board of directors shall not establish administrative fees that unreasonably exceed 
the cost to the district for performing administrative acts. 

3. The district may assess a fee to reimburse the district for the costs of publishing notices 
of hearings related to a permit matter for each notice published for an application. 

4. The applicant of an application related to permitting shall pay any required 
administrative fees when the application is submitted to the district. 

 
 

RULE	10.2:	REGISTRATION	APPLICATION	FEE	
1. The district shall not assess fees for filing and processing of an application to register a 

well, well field, or well system associated with grandfathered wells, grandfathered well 
fields, or grandfathered well systems. 

 
 

RULE	10.3:	TRANSFER	FEE	
1. The board of directors, by resolution, shall establish a schedule of fees for the transfer of 

groundwater. 
2. The authorized operator of a transfer permit shall pay the fees associated with the 

transfer of groundwater under the transfer permit during the previous calendar year by 
January 31 of each year. 

 
 

RULE	10.4:	PRODUCTION	FEE	
1. The district shall not establish a schedule of fees for the production of groundwater from 

grandfathered non-exempt-use wells, grandfathered non-exempt-use well fields, or 
grandfathered non-exempt-use well systems. 

2. The board of directors, by resolution, shall establish a schedule of fees for the production 
of groundwater from non-grandfathered non-exempt-use wells. 

3. The board of directors, by resolution, shall establish fees for the production of 
groundwater on the amount of groundwater produced from the non-exempt-use well, 
the non-exempt-use well field, or the non-exempt-use well system. 

4. The well owner of a well that produced groundwater resources for non-exempt-uses 
shall pay the production fees, if any, associated with the non-exempt-use during the 
previous calendar year by January 31 of each year. 

 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 183 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 81 of 105 

RULE	10.5:	PENALTIES	AND	LATE	FEES	
1. The board of directors, by resolution, may establish penalties for the production of 

groundwater in excess of the authorized groundwater production amount specified on a 
production permit.  

2. The board of directors, by resolution, shall establish a fee schedule related to payments 
that remain unpaid by the related due date equal to one percent of the amount due per 
month following the due date in addition to any penalty assessed by the board of 
directors. 

  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 184 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 82 of 105 

SECTION	 11:	 POLICIES	 RELATED	 TO	 WASTE,	 VIOLATIONS,	
INVESTIGATIONS,	AND	ENFORCEMENT	
 

RULE	11.1:	GENERAL	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	WASTE	PREVENTION	
1. No person shall produce groundwater resources within the district that is used in such a 

manner as to constitute waste of groundwater as defined in the rules of the district. 
2. No person shall pollute or harmfully alter the character of the groundwater resources of 

the district by causing or allowing undesirable water or other deleterious matter to enter 
strata beneath the surface of the ground. 

3. No person shall produce groundwater in excess of that amount which is economically 
reasonable for a beneficial purpose when reasonable intelligence and reasonable 
diligence are used in applying the groundwater to that purpose. 

4. No person shall commit waste of groundwater as that term is defined in the rules of the 
district. 

 
 

RULE	11.2:	GENERAL	POLICIES	RELATED	VIOLATIONS	
1. No person shall violate the provisions of Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code or any other 

state law related to wells or groundwater resources within the district. 
2. No person shall violate the rules and regulations adopted by the Texas Department of 

Licensing and Regulation related to wells or groundwater resources within the district. 
3. Any person that violates the permit conditions of a permit issued by the district is subject 

to the enforcement provisions of the rules of the district. 
4. Any person that fails to satisfy any requirements and provisions of a permit issued by the 

district violates the rules of the district. 
5. Any person that produces groundwater from a well for non-exempt uses in any amount 

without a valid production permit authorizing the groundwater production violates the 
rules of the district. 

6. Any person that produces groundwater from a well for non-exempt uses for any purpose 
of use not authorized by production permits associated with well violates the rules of the 
district. 

7. Any person that produces groundwater from a well for non-exempt uses in an amount 
that exceeds one-hundred and ten percent (110%) of the authorized groundwater 
production amount of the valid production permits associated with well violates the 
rules of the district. 

8. Any person that tampers, alters, damages, or removes the well lockout seal affixed on a 
well or the associated equipment by the district or that diminishes the integrity of the 
well lockout seal violates the rules of the district. 

9. Any person that produces groundwater from a well with well lockout seal affixed on a 
well or the associated equipment by the district violates the rules of the district. 

10. Any person that engages in an activity that requires a permit from the district under the 
rules of the district prior to receiving such permit violates the rules of the district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 185 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 83 of 105 

11. Any person that is responsible for and fails to report groundwater production as required 
by the rules of the district violates of the rules of the district. 

12. Any person that is responsible for and fails to register with the district, a well that the 
person drilled or had drilled after the original date on which this policy is adopted and 
within 60 days of completing the water well violates the rules of the district. 

13. Any person that is responsible for and fails to properly plug or cap an abandoned well in 
accordance with state standards within the required period of time violates the rules of 
the district. 

14. Any person that is responsible for and fails to properly plug or remediate a deteriorated 
well within the required period of time violates the rules of the district. 

15. Any person that fails to prevent waste of groundwater produced from a well within 
control of the person violates the rules of the district. 

16. A landowner, an owner of groundwater resources, or an authorized operator inhibiting 
or prohibiting access to any representatives of the district attempting to conduct an 
investigation under the rules of the district: 
16.1. violates the rules of the district; and 
16.2. subjects the person performing that action, as well as any owner of 

groundwater resources, well owner, or authorized operator who authorizes or 
allows that action to the enforcement provisions of the rules of the district including 
penalties set forth in Chapter 36.102 of the Texas Water Code. 

 
 

RULE	11.3:	RIGHT	TO	INSPECT,	TEST,	AND	LOCATE	WELLS	
1. The district shall give notice, in writing or in person or by telephone, to the owner of a 

property or the owner of a well of the intention of the district and the representatives of 
the district to access property to investigate or evaluate conditions and circumstances 
related to groundwater resources at the property or well. 

2. The district may forego giving notice, in writing or in person or by telephone, to the 
owner of a property or the owner of a well of the intention of the district and the 
representatives of the district to access to property to investigate or evaluate conditions 
and circumstances related to groundwater resources at the property or well if prior 
permission was granted by the owner of a property or the owner of a well to enter 
without notice. 

3. The district shall have the right at all reasonable times to enter upon the lands on which 
a well or wells may be located within the boundaries of the district upon notice as 
provided for in the rules of the district, and in accordance with provisions of the rules of 
the district, to: 
1.1. inspect any existing well, well fields, or well systems; 
1.2. read or interpret any meter or other instrument for the purpose of measuring the 

production of groundwater from any existing wells, well fields, or well systems; 
1.3. determine the production capacity of groundwater from any existing wells, well 

fields, or well systems; 
1.4. measure the water level or obtain water samples for determining the water quality 

of groundwater from any existing wells, well fields, or well systems; 
1.5. test the pump and the power unit of any existing wells, well fields, or well systems; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 186 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 84 of 105 

1.6. determine the accurate geographic coordinates of any existing or proposed wells, 
well fields, or well systems using global positions systems (GPS) or other available 
methods; or 

1.7. make any other reasonable and necessary inspection or test that may be required or 
necessary for the enforcement of the rules and regulations of the district. 

2. The board of directors may enjoin the operation of wells, well fields, or well systems 
located on a property upon which access for investigating or evaluating conditions and 
circumstances related to groundwater resources was refused to the district, after notice 
as required by the rules of the district, was provided to the associated landowner or well 
owner. 

 
 

RULE	 11.4:	 CONDUCT	 ASSOCIATED	 WITH	 INVESTIGATIONS	 AND	
INSPECTIONS	
1. The district shall conduct investigations and inspections that require entrance upon a 

property at reasonable times and in a manner consistent with the regulations and 
requirements concerning safety, internal security, and fire protection of the landowner, 
the owner of groundwater resources, or the authorized operator of the well, well field, or 
well system. 

2. The representatives of the district conducting investigations and inspections shall 
present identification and credentials upon request of the landowner, the owner of 
groundwater resources, or the authorized operator of the well, well field, or well system 
of a property on which the representatives of the district are located. 

 
 

RULE	11.5:	RULE	ENFORCEMENT	
1. The board of directors may institute and conduct a suit in the name of the district for 

enforcement of rules through the provisions of Chapter 36.102 of the Texas Water Code 
if board of directors conclude that a person has violated, is violating, or is threatening to 
violate any provision of the rules of the district. 

2. The board of directors may assess penalties in accordance with chapter 36 of the Texas 
Water Code against any person violating any provision of the rules of the district. 

 
 

RULE	11.6:	SEALING	OF	WELLS	
1. The district may, following due-process and upon orders from a court, affix a well lockout 

seal on wells and associated equipment that are prohibited from producing groundwater 
within the district to ensure that a well is not operated in violation of the rules of the 
district. 

2. The district may affix a well lockout seal on wells and associated equipment when: 
2.1. no application has been made for a production permit to produce groundwater from 

an existing well that is not excluded or exempted from the requirement that a 
production permit be obtained in order to lawfully produce groundwater; or 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 187 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 85 of 105 

2.2. the board of directors has denied, canceled or revoked a production permit. 
3. The district may affix a well lockout seal on wells and associated equipment of a well by 

physical means and other appropriate action as necessary to prevent the operation of the 
well authorized to be sealed under the provisions of the rules of the district. 

4. The district shall tag any well authorized to be sealed under the provisions of the rules of 
the district to indicate that the well has been sealed by the district and operation of the 
well is prohibited. 

 
 

RULE	11.7:	GENERAL	PROCEDURES	RELATED	TO	RULE	ENFORCEMENT		
1. The general manager shall investigate potential violations of the rules of the district. 
2. The general manager shall present any alleged violations of the rules of the district to the 

board of directors supported by findings of an associated investigation. 
3. The general manager may recommend an appropriate settlement offer for consideration 

by the board of directors to settle any alleged violation in lieu of litigation. 
4. The board of directors may instruct the general manager to tender an offer on behalf of 

the district to settle the violation or to institute a civil suit on behalf of the district in the 
appropriate court to seek civil penalties. 

5. The general manager may proceed with enforcement actions without authorization from 
the board of directors when necessary to prevent an immediate and imminent danger to 
public health or the environment. 

 
 

RULE	11.8:	NOTICES	OF	VIOLATIONS	
1. The general manager shall send an initial notice of violation by certified mail to the 

person who is alleged to have violated the rules of the district explaining or identifying 
the following: 
1.1. the rule, regulation, or requirement that has been violated, 
1.2. the necessary actions to be completed by the person who is alleged to have violated 

the rules of the district to achieve compliance. 
1.3. any applications, forms, or documents to be completed by the person who is alleged 

to have violated the rules of the district to achieve compliance. 
1.4. the statutory authority of the district to set reasonable civil penalties not to exceed 

ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) per day per violation, and that each day of a 
continuing violation constitutes a separate violation in accordance with Chapter 
36.102 of the Texas Water Code. 

1.5. the preference of the board of directors to settle the violation, initiating lawsuits as 
a last resort. 

1.6. the settlement agreement, if any, whose terms have been agreed upon by the board 
of directors. 

1.7. the requirement that the person who is alleged to have violated the rules of the 
district must submit a signed settlement agreement and submit any required 
payment by cashier check or money order in the amount stated in the settlement 
agreement no later than thirty days (30 days) from the date of the notice of violation. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 188 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 86 of 105 

2. The general manager shall send a second notice of violation by certified mail to the 
person who is alleged to have violated the rules of the district explaining the 
consequences of failing to respond, comply, or settle the matter in the notice of violation 
by certified mail to the person who is alleged to have violated the rules of the district if 
the district has not received a response within 30 days of the date of the initial notice of 
violation. 

 
 

RULE	11.9:	NOTICE	OF	NEED	TO	FILE	SUIT	
1. The general manager, in coordination with the general counsel of the district, shall send 

a notice of need to file suit by certified mail to the person who is alleged to have violated 
the rules of the district within thirty days (30 days) of the date of the second notice of 
violation if a satisfactory response to the notices of violation is not received within thirty 
days (30 days) of the date of the second notice of violation. 

2. The general manager shall inform the board of directors of any person who has been sent 
a notice of need to file suit and not responded within thirty days (30 days) of the date of 
the notice of need to file. 

3. The board of directors shall consider an authorization to pursue enforcement by filing a 
civil suit at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the board of directors if an immediate 
and imminent danger to public health or the environment does not exist. 

4. The board of directors may call an emergency meeting if an emergency exists, an urgent 
public necessity exists, or a reasonably unforeseeable situation develops such that the 
situation cannot afford seventy-two hours (72 hours) of notice required to call a special 
meeting of the board of directors under the open meetings law.  

5. The board of directors may consider an authorization to pursue enforcement by filing a 
civil suit at an emergency meeting of the board of directors if an immediate and imminent 
danger to public health or the environment exists. 

6. The board of directors may authorize the general manager with the assistance of the 
general counsel of the district, to pursue enforcement by filing a civil suit. 

7. The general manager, with the assistance of the general counsel of the district and 
authorization of the highest-ranking officer of the board of directors, may pursue 
enforcement by filing a civil suit if an immediate and imminent danger exists to public 
health or the environment and the board of directors has not considered the matter at a 
properly noticed meeting of the board of directors in accordance with the open meetings 
law. 

8. The general counsel of the district shall institute a civil suit on behalf of the district in the 
appropriate court to seek injunctive relief and civil penalties when authorized under the 
provisions of the rules of the district. 

9. The person who is alleged to have violated the rules of the district may appear before the 
board of directors to present evidence of any extenuating circumstances or to make a 
counteroffer to settle the alleged violation. 

10. The board of directors may accept a counteroffer or otherwise modify any settlement 
offer associated with an alleged violation. 

11. The general manager shall send notices related to enforcement matters by Certified Mail, 
Return Receipt Requested through the United States Postal Service. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 189 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 87 of 105 

 
 

RULE	11.10:	PENALTIES	
1. The general manager shall recommend to the board of directors the following penalties 

to settle alleged violations: 
1.1. one hundred dollars ($100.00) for a single alleged violation per incident; 
1.2. two hundred dollars ($200.00) for each violation per incident when multiple 

violations are alleged; 
1.3. two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00) for each re-occurrence of a violation with a 

5-year period; and 
1.4. one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for providing or performing the services of a water 

well driller without a current license issued by the Texas Department of Licensing 
and Regulation. 

2. The board of directors may assess penalties in excess of the penalties recommended by 
the general manager as established within the rules of the district in accordance with 
Chapter 36.102 of the Texas Water Code. 

 
 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 190 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 88 of 105 

SECTION	12:	PROCEDURES	RELATE	TO	HEARINGS	AND	OTHER	
PROCEEDINGS	
 

RULE	12.1:	GENERAL	POLICIES	RELATED	TO	HEARINGS	
1. The board of directors shall conduct hearings on permitting matters, in which the rights, 

duties, or privileges of a party are determined after an opportunity for an adjudicative 
hearing, and production permits, transfer permits, permit renewals, permit 
amendments, permit revocations, and permit suspensions except for those specific 
permit requests that may be otherwise approved without hearing under the provisions 
of the rules of the district.  

2. The board of directors shall conduct hearings for motions for rehearing pursuant to the 
rules of the district. 

3. The board of directors shall provide notice and conduct a hearing to consider rulemaking 
matters of general applicability that implement, interpret, or prescribe the law or policy 
of the district, or that describe the procedure or requirements of the district, or adoption 
of the rules of the district pursuant to Section 36.101 of the Texas Water Code. 

4. The board of directors shall provide notice and conduct a hearing to consider adoption 
of the Management Plan of the district pursuant to Section 36.1071 of the Texas Water 
Code. 

5. The board of directors shall provide notice and conduct a hearing to consider any matter 
within the jurisdiction of the district if the board of directors deems a hearing to be in the 
public interest, or necessary to effectively carry out the duties and responsibilities of the 
district. 

6. The board of directors may refer any matter designated for hearing before the district to 
a hearing examiner. 

 
 

RULE	 12.2:	 NOTICE	 AND	 SCHEDULING	 RELATED	 TO	 HEARINGS	 AND	
PROPOSED	PERMIT	ISSUANCE	
1. The applicant of a permit request related to protection of historic use shall, after the 

application is determined to be administratively complete by the district, publish written 
notice in a paper of general circulation in District describing the details of the permit 
request including the name of the applicant, the location of the subject well, the evidence 
supporting the historic use validation request, the date, time, and location of the 
scheduled hearing. The date of first publication shall not less than ten days (10 days) 
before the date of the next scheduled meeting of the board of directors. 

2. The board of directors may instruct the general manager to provide special notice of any 
matter under its jurisdiction to any persons. 

3. The general manager shall give notice of permit hearings or proposed permit issuances 
in the following manner: 
3.1. a notice of permit hearings shall specify the date, the time, and the location of the 

hearing, and a description of the permitting request;  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 191 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 89 of 105 

3.2. a notice of proposed permit issuances shall specify the date of the proposed issuance, 
and a description of the permitting request;  

3.3. a notice of permit hearings or proposed permit issuances shall be given to any person 
who requests copies of hearing notices or proposed permit issuance notices 
pursuant to the procedures set forth in the rules of the district not less than ten days 
(10 days) before the date of the hearing or permit issuance; 

3.4. a notice of permit hearings or proposed permit issuances shall be given to any other 
person the board of directors deem appropriate not less than ten days (10 days) 
before the date of the hearing or permit issuance; 

3.5. a notice of permit hearings or proposed permit issuances related to non-historic use 
shall be published at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the district 
not less than ten days (10 days) before the date of the hearing or permit issuance; 

3.6. a notice of permit hearings or proposed permit issuances shall be posted at the 
district office and county courthouse in the place where notices are usually posted 
not less than ten days (10 days) before the date of the hearing or permit issuance; 

3.7. a notice of permit hearings or proposed permit issuances shall be posted on the 
district’s website not less than ten days (10 days) before the date of the hearing or 
permit issuance; and 

3.8. a notice of permit hearings or proposed permit issuances shall be given to the 
applicant not less than ten days (10 days) before the date of the hearing or permit 
issuance. 

4. The general manager shall give notice of permit hearings or proposed permit issuances 
to any person having an interest in the subject matter of a hearing or proposed permit 
issuance for which the district has received written notice of the interest from the person 
identifying, with as much detail, the subject matter of a hearing or proposed permit 
issuance for which written notice is requested. The request remains valid for a period of 
one year from the date of the request is received by the district.  Failure to provide 
written notice under this section does not invalidate any action taken by the district. 

5. The district shall not schedule of permit hearings or proposed permit issuances on 
Saturdays, Sundays, or holidays.  

6. The general manager shall schedule permit hearings or proposed permit issuances at 
such dates, times, and places that satisfy the public notice requirements established 
within the rules of the district and facilitates the orderly consideration of the permitting 
requests in a timely fashion. 

7. The general manager shall give notice of hearings related to the designation of a special 
groundwater management zone that entails limiting groundwater production to less 
than that provided by Section 6 of the rules of the district, as provided for in Section 
36.116(d) of the Texas Water Code, to each landowner, each owner of groundwater 
resources, each owner of a registered well, and each authorized operator of a production 
permit within and adjacent to the proposed management area. 

8. The general manager shall give notice of hearings related to the designation of a special 
well construction area, as provided for in Section 36.116(d) of the Texas Water Code, to 
each landowner, each owner of groundwater resources, each owner of a registered well, 
and each authorized operator of a production permit within and adjacent to the proposed 
management area. 

 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 192 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 90 of 105 

RULE	12.3:	GENERAL	PROCEDURES	RELATED	TO	HEARINGS	
1. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding shall conduct the proceeding in the 

manner the presiding officer deems most appropriate to obtain all relevant information 
pertaining to the subject of the hearing as conveniently, inexpensively, and expeditiously 
as possible.  

2. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may follow the guidelines of 
"Parliamentary Procedure at a Glance," New Edition, O. Garfield Jones, 1971 revised 
edition, or as amended. 

3. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may: 
3.1. set hearing dates, other than the initial hearing date set by the district in accordance 

with the rules of the district; 
3.2. convene a hearing at the time and place specified in the notice for public hearing; 
3.3. establish the jurisdiction of the district concerning the subject matter under 

consideration; 
3.4. rule on motions and on the admissibility of evidence and amendments to pleadings; 
3.5. designate and align parties; 
3.6. establish the order for presentation of evidence; 
3.7. administer oaths to all persons presenting testimony; 
3.8. examine witnesses; 
3.9. issue subpoenas when required to compel the attendance of witnesses or the 

production of papers and documents; 
3.10. require the taking of depositions and compel other forms of discovery under 

the rules of the district; 
3.11. ensure that information and testimony are introduced as conveniently and 

expeditiously as possible, without prejudicing the rights of any party to the 
proceeding; 

3.12. conduct public hearings in an orderly manner in accordance with the rules of 
the district; 

3.13. recess any hearing from time to time and place to place; 
3.14. reopen the record of a hearing for additional evidence when necessary to 

make the record more complete; and 
3.15. exercise any other appropriate powers necessary or convenient to effectively 

carry out the responsibilities of the presiding officer. 
4. A person who desires to testify on the subject of a hearing during the hearing or other 

proceeding shall submit a form providing the following information: name, address, the 
intention to testify, and any other information relevant to the hearing or other 
proceeding. 

5. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding shall establish the order of 
testimony. 

6. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may limit the number of times a 
person may speak, the time period for oral presentations, and the time period for 
raising questions.  

7. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may limit or exclude cumulative, 
irrelevant, or unduly repetitious presentations. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 193 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 91 of 105 

8. A person may appear in-person or may be represented by counsel, an engineer, or 
another representative provided the representative is fully authorized to speak and act 
for the principal including:  
8.1. any partner may appear on behalf of the partnership; 
8.2. a duly authorized officer or agent of a public or private corporation, political 

subdivision, governmental agency, municipality, association, firm, or other entity 
may appear for the entity; and 

8.3. a fiduciary may appear for a ward, trust, or estate.  
9. A person representing a principal of a hearing or other proceeding may present evidence, 

exhibits, or testimony, or make an oral presentation in accordance with the procedures 
applicable to the proceeding.  

10. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may require a person appearing in 
a representative capacity to prove proper authority to represent a principal. 

11. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may align participants in a 
proceeding according to the nature of the proceeding and their relationship to the 
proceeding.  

12. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may require the participants of an 
aligned class to select one or more persons to represent them in the proceeding or on any 
matter or ruling and may limit the number of representatives heard but must allow at 
least one representative of an aligned class to be heard in the proceeding or on any matter 
or ruling. 

13. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may require a person requesting 
the hearing or other proceeding to be present or represented at the proceeding.  

14. The district may withhold consideration of a matter and dismiss the matter without 
prejudice if a principal of a hearing or other proceeding fails to appear or be represented 
at the hearing or other proceeding. 

15. The district may require the rescheduling or continuance of a hearing or other 
proceeding if the presiding officer deems it necessary in order to fully develop the record. 

16. The district may record hearings and other proceedings using audio recording devices. 
17. The district shall provide to the public access to the audio recordings of hearings or other 

proceedings recorded by the district. 
18. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may require the proceedings to be 

recorded by a certified shorthand reporter.  
19. A person who is a party to a hearing or other proceeding may, subject to availability of 

space, at their own expense, arrange for a reporter to record the hearing or other 
proceeding or for the recording of the hearing or other proceeding.  

20. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may assess the cost of recording 
or transcribing a recording of the proceeding to any person requesting the recording or 
transcription. 

21. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding shall file the transcription of a 
recording with the records of the proceeding. 

22. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may continue hearings or other 
proceedings from time to time and from place to place without the necessity of 
publishing, serving, mailing or otherwise issuing additional notice.  

23. The district shall provide a notice of any further setting of the hearing or other 
proceeding at a reasonable time to all parties, persons who have requested notice of the 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 194 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 92 of 105 

hearing pursuant to the rules of the district, except for publishing the notice in a 
newspaper or posting the notice at the courthouse, and any other person the presiding 
officer deems appropriate if a hearing or other proceeding is continued and the time and 
place for the hearing or other proceeding to reconvene are not publicly announced at the 
hearing or other proceeding by the presiding officer before it is recessed. 

24. Any person who intends to contest a permit request shall provide written notice of the 
intent to the district at least three days (3 days) before the date of the hearing or three 
days (3 days) before the proposed date of permit issuance as published in the public 
notice.  

25. The general manager shall provide written notice to the applicant of a permitting request 
of any intent to contest at least one calendar day (1 calendar day) before the date of the 
hearing or the proposed date of permit issuance as published in the public notice. 

26. A person filing applications, motions, exceptions, communications, requests, briefs or 
other papers and documents required to be filed under the rules of the district or by law 
shall be delivered to and received at the office of the district within the time limit, if any, 
set by the rules of the district or by the presiding officer for filing.  

27. A person, when computing any period of time specified by the rules of the district, by a 
presiding officer, by orders of the board of directors, or by law, shall not include the day 
of the act, event, or default after which the designated period of time begins to run. 

28. A person, when computing any period of time specified by the rules of the district, by a 
presiding officer, by orders of the board of directors, or by law, shall include the last day 
of the period, unless the last day is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday as determined by 
the board of directors, in which case the period runs until the end of the next day which 
is neither a Saturday, Sunday nor a legal holiday. 

29. The representative of a person or the counsel of a person may make an affidavit to a 
hearing or other proceeding unless statute expressly requires the person to make the 
affidavit.   

30. No person shall be allowed to appear in any hearing or other proceeding that, in the 
opinion of the presiding officer, is for the sole purpose of unduly broadening the issues 
to be considered in the hearing or other proceeding. 

31. Every person, party, representative, witness, and other participant in a proceeding shall 
conform to ethical standards of conduct and must exhibit courtesy and respect for all 
other participants.  

32. No person may engage in any activity during a proceeding that interferes with the orderly 
conduct of business of the district.  

33. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding shall warn any person, who in the 
judgement of the presiding officer, is engaging in misconduct during a hearing or other 
proceeding to refrain from such conduct.   

34. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may exclude any person from a 
hearing or proceeding for such time and under such conditions as the presiding officer 
deems necessary if the person has been warned to not engage in misconduct during the 
hearing or proceeding and has continued to do so following the warning.  

35. A person may submit written statements, protests, comments, briefs, affidavits, 
exhibits, technical reports, or other documents relating to the subject of the hearing or 
other proceeding no later than the time of the hearing, as stated in the notice of hearing 
given in accordance with the rules of the district. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 195 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 93 of 105 

36. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding may grant additional time for the 
submission of documents beyond the time of the hearing, as stated in the notice of 
hearing given in accordance with the rules of the district. 

37. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding associated with any matter 
referred by board of directors for hearing or other proceedings shall, at the conclusion of 
the testimony and after the receipt of all documents of proceedings, prepare a report to 
the board of directors that includes a summary of the subject of the hearing, the 
testimony received, and the public comments received, and recommendations for action. 

38. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding associated with any matter 
referred by board of directors for hearing or other proceedings shall, upon completion 
and issuance of the report to the board of directors, submit a copy of the report to the 
district. 

39. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding associated with any matter 
referred by board of directors for hearing or other proceedings shall, upon completion 
and issuance of the report to the board of directors, notify any person who requests, in 
writing, notice of the submittal of the report to the board of directors. 

40. The board of directors may, at any time and in any case, remand a matter to the presiding 
officer of a hearing or other proceeding for further proceedings. 

41. A party of a hearing or other proceeding associated with any matter referred by board of 
directors for hearing or other proceedings may file written exceptions to the report to 
the board of directors and may request an opportunity to make an oral presentation of 
exceptions to the board of directors prior to action by the board of directors. 

42. The presiding officer of a hearing or other proceeding associated with any matter 
referred by board of directors may, upon review of the report and exceptions filed, 
reopen the record for the purpose of developing additional evidence, or may deny the 
exceptions and submit a final report to the board of directors.  

43. The board of directors shall act on the matter hearing or other proceedings within sixty 
days (60 days) of the receipt of the report to the board of directors.  

 
 

RULE	12.4:	PROCEDURES	RELATED	TO	UNCONTESTED	PERMIT	HEARINGS		
1. The district may conduct permit hearings and other proceedings informally when, in the 

judgment of the presiding officer, the conduct of a proceeding under informal procedures 
will save time or cost to the parties, lead to a negotiated or agreed on settlement of facts 
or issues in controversy, and not prejudice the rights of any party. 

2. The district shall declare a permitting case an uncontested matter, cancel the associated 
permit hearing, and proceed with the consideration of the permitting request as an 
uncontested matter if notice of intent to contest the permitting case is not received at 
least three days (3 days) before the hearing or proposed date of permit issuance.  

3. The presiding officer may summarize the evidence, make findings of fact, make 
conclusions of law, and make appropriate recommendations to the board of directors in 
uncontested permitting cases.  

4. The presiding officer shall declare a permitting hearing or other proceeding a contested 
matter and convene a prehearing conference as set forth in the rules of the district when: 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 196 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 94 of 105 

4.1. the parties to a permitting hearing or other proceeding who have notified the district 
of the intent to contest a permitting case do not reach a negotiated or agreed 
settlement of the facts and issues in controversy; 

4.2. a party to a permitting hearing or other proceeding contests a staff recommendation; 
or 

4.3. the facts and issues in controversy will require extensive discovery proceedings. 
 

RULE	12.5:	PROCEDURES	RELATED	TO	CONTESTED	PERMIT	HEARINGS		
1. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 

contested matter shall have the same rights, duties, and responsibilities of a presiding 
officer acting under the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure or the Texas Rules of Evidence, 
except as modified by the rules of the district, as a court acting under those rules. 

2. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may recommend issuance of a temporary permit for a period not to 
exceed 4 months, with any special provisions the presiding officer deems necessary, for 
the purpose of completing the contested case process.  

3. The presiding officer shall declare a permitting hearing or other proceeding an 
uncontested matter, cancel the associated permit hearing, and proceed with the 
consideration of the permitting request as an uncontested matter if: 
3.1. the parties contesting a permitting case reach a negotiated or agreed settlement of 

the facts and issues in controversy; 
3.2. the parties contesting a permitting case reach a negotiated or agreed settlement 

regarding staff recommendations; and 
3.3. the facts and issues in controversy will not require extensive discovery proceedings. 

4. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall convene and conduct a prehearing conference to consider any 
matter which may expedite the hearing or otherwise facilitate the contested case process 
including but not limited to: 
4.1. the designation of parties;  
4.2. the formulation and simplification of issues;  
4.3. the necessity or desirability of amending applications or other pleadings; 
4.4. the possibility of making admissions or stipulations;  
4.5. the scheduling of discovery;  
4.6. the identification of and specification of the number of witnesses;  
4.7. the filing and exchange of prepared testimony and exhibits; and  
4.8. the procedure at the hearing. 

5. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall convene and conduct a prehearing conference at a date, time, and 
place stated in a notice given in accordance with the rules of the district, or at the date, 
time, and place for hearing stated in the notice of public hearing. 

6. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may continue the prehearing conference from time to time and place to 
place as determined to be necessary or practical by the presiding officer. 

7. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall incorporate any action taken at a prehearing conference in the 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 197 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 95 of 105 

records of the contested case either in writing or by audio recording at the close of the 
conference.   

8. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may assess reporting and transcription costs of the proceedings to one 
or more of the parties of the proceedings.  

9. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall consider the following factors in assessing reporting and 
transcription costs: 
9.1. the party, if any, that requested the transcript; 
9.2. the financial ability of the party to pay the costs; 
9.3. the extent to which the party participated in the hearing; 
9.4. the relative benefits to the various parties of having a transcript; 
9.5. the budgetary constraints of a governmental entity participating in the proceeding; 

and 
9.6. any other factor that is relevant to a just and reasonable assessment of costs. 

10. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall provide the parties of a proceeding an opportunity to present 
evidence and argument on the issue of assessment of reporting or transcription costs.  

11. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall provide a recommendation regarding the assessment of costs in 
the final report to the board of directors. 

12. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall designate the parties of the contested case on the first day of 
hearing or at such other time as determined by the presiding officer.   

13. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall designate the general manager a party to any contested case. 

14. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall designate any person specifically named in a contested case 
matter as a party to the contested case.  

15. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may admit a person as party to a contested case if the person appears 
at the proceeding in-person or by representative and seeks to be designated as a party.  

16. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may admit a person as party to a contested case after the parties are 
designated if, in the judgment of the presiding officer, there exists good cause and the 
hearing will not be unreasonably delayed. 

17. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall provide direction to the parties of a contested case regarding the 
rights to: 
17.1. conduct discovery,  
17.2. present a direct case,  
17.3. cross-examine witnesses,  
17.4. make oral and written arguments,  
17.5. obtain copies of all documents filed in the proceeding,  
17.6. receive copies of all notices issued by the district concerning the proceeding, 

and  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 198 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 96 of 105 

17.7. otherwise fully participate in the proceeding. 
18. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 

contested matter may accept comments and statements from a person not designated as 
a party to a contested case. 

19. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may include comments and statements accepted from a person not 
designated as a party to a contested case in the final report to the board of directors. 

20. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall not consider comments and statements from a person not 
designated as a party to a contested case as evidence in the contested case. 

21. A party to a contested case shall provide a copy of each pleading, request, motion, or reply 
filed in the proceeding to every other party or the party's representative.   

22. A party to a contested case shall certify that, prior to filing the instrument with the 
district, a copy of the instrument was provided to every other party.   

23. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may withhold consideration of a filed instrument if the party filing the 
instrument failed to provide copies every other party before filing the instrument with 
the district. 

24. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall provide an interpreter whose qualifications are approved by the 
State Commission for the Deaf and Hearing Impaired to interpret the proceedings for a 
deaf person who is a party or subpoenaed witness to a contested case.  

25. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall not consider an agreement between parties or their 
representatives affecting any pending matter unless the agreement is provided in 
writing, signed, and filed as part of the record or the agreement is announced at the 
hearing and entered as record. 

26. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall order and specify the conditions, terms, and at such times and 
places under which discovery may be conducted.       

27. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall require discovery to be governed by and subject to the limitations 
set forth in the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure unless modified by the rules of the district 
or order of the presiding officer. 

28. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may authorize, by agreement or order of the presiding officer, the 
parties of a contested case to exchange informal requests for information in addition to 
the forms of discovery authorized under the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

29. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter, in response to finding a party to a contested case is abusing the 
discovery process in seeking, responding to, or resisting discovery, may: 
29.1. suspend the processing of the application for a Permit if the applicant is the 

offending party; 
29.2. prohibit any further discovery of any kind or a particular kind by the offending 

party; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 199 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 97 of 105 

29.3. rule that particular facts be regarded as established against the offending 
party for the purposes of the proceeding in accordance with the claim of the party 
obtaining the discovery ruling; 

29.4. limit the offending party's participation in the proceeding; 
29.5. prohibit presentation of evidence of the offending party on issues that were 

the subject of the discovery request; or 
29.6. recommend to the board of directors that the hearing be dismissed with or 

without prejudice. 
30. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 

contested matter shall not communicate, directly or indirectly, in connection with any 
issue of fact or law with any agency, person, party, or their representatives, except on 
notice and opportunity for all parties to participate.  

31. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may communicate with the staff of an agency other than the district not 
directly involved in the hearing to utilize the special skills and knowledge of the agency 
in evaluating the evidence. 

32. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may compel the testimony of any person which is necessary, helpful, or 
appropriate to the hearing.  

33. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall administer the oath in a manner calculated to impress the witness 
with the importance and solemnity of the promise to adhere to the truth.  

34. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may issue subpoenas to compel the testimony of any person and the 
production of books, papers, documents, or tangible things, in the manner provided in 
the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

35. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall rely upon and utilized the Texas Rules of Evidence to govern the 
admissibility and introduction of evidence except as modified by the rules of the district. 

36.  The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may admit evidence not admissible under the Texas Rules of Evidence 
if the evidence is of the type commonly relied upon by reasonably prudent persons in the 
conduct of their affairs 

37. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may admit evidence stipulated by agreement of all parties. 

38. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may receive testimony and be admitted into evidence in written form 
when a proceeding will be expedited and the interest of the parties will not be prejudiced 
substantially, testimony may be received in written form.  

39. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may admit the written testimony of a witness into evidence, either in 
narrative or question and answer form, upon the witness being sworn and identifying 
the testimony as a true and accurate record of what the testimony would be if given 
orally.  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 200 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 98 of 105 

40. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall require the witness to be subject to clarifying questions and to 
cross-examination. 

41. A party to contested case may object to the prepared testimony of a witness. 
42. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 

contested matter shall require exhibits of a documentary character to be sized to not 
unduly encumber the files and records of the district.  

43. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall require all exhibits to be numbered and, except for maps and 
drawings, not exceed 8-1/2 by 11 inches in size. 

44. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall only receive in evidence documents that are representative of 
relevant data to the contested case. 

45. The presiding officer may require a party submitting documents as evidence to abstract 
relevant data and present the abstract an exhibit. 

46. A party of a contested case shall be entitled to examine any documents abstracted and 
presented as evidence. 

47. A party of a contested case shall tender for identification each exhibit offered to be placed 
in the record.  

48. A party of a contested case that tender exhibits shall furnish copies to the presiding 
officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a contested matter 
and to each of the parties, unless the presiding officer rules otherwise. 

49. A party of a contested case that offer exhibits which have been identified, objected to, and 
excluded, may withdraw the exhibit if the party waives all objections to the exclusion of 
the exhibit. 

50. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall return a withdrawn exhibit if the offering party waives all 
objections to the exclusion of the exhibit. 

51. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall not return a withdrawn exhibit but include the exhibit in the 
record of the proceeding for the purpose of preserving the objection to excluding the 
exhibit if the offering party does not waive all objections to the exclusion of the exhibit. 

52. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may take official notice of all facts judicially cognizable.  

53. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may take official notice of generally recognized facts within the area of 
specialized knowledge of the district. 

54. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall not require extrinsic evidence of authenticity as a condition 
precedent to admissibility of documents maintained in the files and records of the 
district. 

55. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may allow oral arguments to be heard at the conclusion of the 
presentation of evidence with reasonable time limits being prescribed by the presiding 
officer. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 201 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 99 of 105 

56. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may require or accept written briefs in lieu of, or in addition to, oral 
arguments.  

57. The board of directors may hear additional oral arguments when the permitting hearing 
or other proceeding associated with a contested matter is presented to the board of 
directors for final decision. 

58. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may either close the record or keep it open and allow the submission 
of additional evidence, exhibits, briefs, or proposed findings and conclusions from one or 
more of the parties at the conclusion of the presentation of evidence and any oral 
argument.  

59. A party of a contested case shall not file additional evidence, exhibits, briefs, or proposed 
findings and conclusions after the record is closed unless permitted or requested by the 
presiding officer.  

60. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall, after the record is closed, prepare a report to the board of 
directors that includes a summary of the evidence and the findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations for action of the presiding officer.  

61. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter shall, upon completion and issuance of the final report of the presiding 
officer, submit a copy of the final report to the district and each party to the proceeding 
by certified mail. 

62. A party of a contested case may file written exceptions to the final report of the presiding 
officer and may request an opportunity to make an oral presentation of exceptions to the 
board of directors prior to action by the board of directors.  

63. The presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a 
contested matter may, upon review of the report and exceptions filed, reopen the record 
for the purpose of developing additional evidence, or may deny the exceptions and 
submit the final report and exceptions to the board of directors.  

64. The board of directors may, at any time and in any case, remand a matter to the presiding 
officer of a permitting hearing or other proceeding associated with a contested matter 
for further proceedings. 

65. The board of directors shall act on the contested matter within sixty days (60 days) of 
the receipt of the final report of the presiding officer of a permitting hearing or other 
proceeding associated with the contested matter.  

 
 

RULE	12.6:	PROCEDURES	RELATE	TO	DECISIONS,	REHEARINGS,	AND	
APPEALS	
1. The board of directors may, after the record regarding a matter for which a hearing or 

other proceeding has closed and any resulting report is submitted to the board of 
directors, take the matter under advisement, continue the matter from day to day, 
reopen or rest the matter, refuse the action sought or grant the same in whole or part, 
or take any other appropriate action.  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 202 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 100 of 105 

2. The district, the representatives of District, and the parties to any matter considered as 
part of a hearing or other proceeding of the district shall consider any associated 
actions to be in effect at the conclusion of the meeting at which the action was taken 
and not affected by a motion for rehearing. 

3. A party to any matter considered as part of a hearing or other proceeding of the district 
may appeal a decision of the board of directors by requesting a rehearing before the 
board of directors within twenty days (20 days) of the decision by the board of 
directors. 

4. A party to any matter considered as part of a hearing or other proceeding of the district 
requesting a rehearing shall file the request for rehearing with the district in writing 
stating clearly and concisely grounds for the request.  

5. A party to any matter considered as part of a hearing or other proceeding of the district 
shall not seek an appeal of an associated decision if a request for rehearing was not 
submitted to the district in accordance with the rules of the district.   

6. The board of directors shall either grant or deny the request for rehearing within ninety 
days (90 days) of submission. 

7. The board of directors shall schedule a rehearing within forty-five days (45 days) if a 
rehearing request is granted by the board of directors unless otherwise agreed to by the 
parties to the proceeding. 

8. The district, the representatives of District, and the parties to any matter considered as 
part of a hearing or other proceeding of the district shall consider any associated 
decision of the board of directors as final if a request for rehearing is not made within 
the specified time, or upon the denial of the request for rehearing by the board of 
directors, or upon rendering a decision after rehearing.  

 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 203 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 101 of 105 

Figure 1: Goliad Saline Groundwater Zone and Slightly Saline Groundwater Extent 
 

 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 204 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 102 of 105 

Figure 2: Goliad Saline Groundwater Zone and Moderately Saline Groundwater Extent 
 

 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 205 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 103 of 105 

Figure 3: Lagarto Saline Groundwater Zone and Slightly Saline Groundwater Extent 
 

 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 206 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 104 of 105 

Figure 4: Lagarto Saline Groundwater Zone and Moderately Saline Groundwater Extent 
 

 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 207 of 358



VCGCD - Rules of the District - Proposed Revision - 20240910 | Page 105 of 105 

Figure 5: Oakville Saline Groundwater Zone and Moderately Saline Groundwater Extent 
 

 
 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 208 of 358



Resolution 

Resolution Number:  RES-202410178A 

Establishing the District Fee and Surcharge Schedule 

Whereas, on September 18, 2024, a notice of hearing was published in the Victoria Advocate regarding 

a public hearing on the adoption of the proposed rules of the district; and 

Whereas, on October 18, 2024, the board of directors of the district, with a quorum being present, 

conducted public hearings regarding the adoption of the proposed rules of the district; and 

Whereas, on October 18, 2024, the board of directors of the district adopted the proposed rules of the 

district that became effective immediately and said rules provide for the establishment of a schedule of 

fees and surcharges by resolution: 

Now therefore be it resolved that; 

The district establishes the fees and surcharges of the district as described in the attached fee and 

surcharge schedule and that the schedule becomes effective upon approval of this resolution. 

Adopted by a vote of _________ ayes and _________ nays on this the 18th day of October 2024. 

____________________________________________________ 

Presiding Officer of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the Board of Directors of the Victoria County Groundwater 
Conservation District adopted the above resolution on the 18th day of October 2024. 

____________________________________________________ 

Secretary of the Board of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 209 of 358



Fee and Surcharge Schedule 

Administrative and Application Fees  

 Fee for an application for a historic-use production permit:  $150.00. 

 Fee for an application for a high-capacity non-historic-use production permit:  $6,500.00. 

 Fee for an application for a deep-saline non-historic-use production permit: $6,500.00. 

 Fee for an application for a transfer permit: $6,500.00. 

 Fee for an application for a district waiver request: $6,500.00. 

The general manager shall determine the consultation costs incurred in the processing, evaluation, and 

consideration of a permit application after final disposition of the application and refund any remaining 

portion of any application fee to the applicant.  

Production Fees 

 Fee for the production of groundwater less than or equal to the authorized groundwater 

production amount of a non-exempt-use well in a calendar year:  $0.00. 

 Excess Production Bracket 1 – production of less than 1 acre-foot of excess production of 
groundwater in a calendar year from a well: $10.00 for groundwater produced in a calendar year 
in excess of the annual production amount authorized for the subject well. 

 Excess Production Bracket 2 – production of 1 acre-foot to 10 acre-feet of excess production 
groundwater in a calendar year from a well: $20.00 per acre-foot of groundwater produced in a 
calendar year in excess of the annual production amount authorized for the subject well, not to 
exceed $10,000.00 per day of continued production of groundwater in excess of the annual 
production amount authorized for the subject well. 

 Excess Production Bracket 3: production of 10 acre-feet to 100 acre-feet of excess production of 
groundwater in a calendar year from a well: $100.00 per acre-foot of groundwater produced in a 
calendar year in excess of the annual production amount authorized for the subject well, not to 
exceed $10,000.00 per day of continued production of groundwater in excess of the annual 
production amount authorized for the subject well. 

 Excess Production Bracket 4: production of 100 acre-feet or more of excess production 
groundwater in a calendar year from a well:  $500.00 per acre-foot of groundwater produced in 
a calendar year in excess of the annual production amount authorized for the subject well, not to 
exceed $10,000.00 per day of continued production of groundwater in excess of the annual 
production amount authorized for the subject well. 

 

Transfer Fees 

 Fee associated with the transfer of groundwater under the transfer permit:  $67.12 per acre-foot 

transferred out of the District. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 210 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 1 of 32 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
VICTORIA COUNTY 
 
The Board of Directors of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District convened 
a meeting at the Dr. Pattie Dodson Health Center, 2805 N. Navarro St., Room 108, 
Victoria, Victoria County, Texas, 77901 on July 19, 2024, at 9:00 AM. 
 
Meeting Attendance: 

Precinct 1: Mr. Jerry Hroch, Vice President Absent 
Precinct 2: Mr. Thurman Clements, Jr., Director Present 
Precinct 3: Mrs. Barbara Dietzel, Secretary Absent 
Precinct 4: Mr. Mark Meek, President Present 
At Large: Mr. Kenneth Eller, Director Present 
General Manager: Mr. Timothy Andruss Present 
Legal Counsel: Mr. James Allison Present 

 
Agenda Items - 
 
1.  Call the meeting to order and welcome guests.  
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Meek called the meeting to order at 9:03 AM. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
2.  Receive public comments. 

 
Meeting Discussion:  None. 
 
Board Action: None. 

  
3.  Consideration of and possible action on matters related to Groundwater                     
Management including efforts and activities of the District regarding permitting, 
complaints, investigations, violations, and enforcement cases associated with 
permitting.  
 
 3.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Management 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss provided the following report: 
 
Regarding Well Registration Processing for FY2024. 
 
As of July 8, 2024, staff had received 34 well registration applications (ARWs) since 
October 1, 2023. 
    
As of July 8, 2024, staff had received 50 Notices of Intent to Drill a Well (NIDWs) 
since October 1, 2023. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 211 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 2 of 32 

 

 
Regarding Production Permit Renewal Processing for FY2024. 
 
As of July 8, 2024, staff had received 8 production permit renewal requests (ARPs) 
since October 1, 2023. 
 
Regarding Permit Processing for FY2024. 
 
As of July 8, 2024, staff had initiated 44 permitting request case (PRCs) since 
October 1, 2023. 
    
As of July 8, 2024, staff had 26 permitting request cases pending. 
    
As of July 8, 2024, staff had 251 active or approved production permits recorded in 
the permitting database with a combined amount of authorized groundwater 
production per year of 99,163.10 acre-feet. 
 
Regarding Groundwater Production Report Processing for CY2023. 
 
As of July 8, 2024, staff had processed 243 groundwater production reports for the 
preceding calendar year since October 1, 2023.  
    
As of July 8, 2024, staff had recorded groundwater production reports for 238 water 
wells reporting 12,288.33 acre-feet of groundwater production during CY2023.  
(TWDB estimated the volume of groundwater produced for rural domestic, 
livestock, mining, and rig supply exempt uses in Victoria County in Year 2020 was 
1,920 acre-feet. 
 
Regarding Manage Investigations related to Permitting Violations for FY2024. 
 
As of July 8, 2024, staff had initiated 2 investigations related to groundwater 
management (i.e., permitting) since October 1, 2023. 

    
As of July 8, 2024, staff had 5 active investigations related to groundwater 
management (i.e., permitting). 
 
Regarding Manage Enforcement Cases related to Permitting Violations for 
FY2024. 
 
As of July 8, 2024, the Board had initiated 24 enforcement case violations related 
to groundwater management (i.e., permitting) since October 1, 2023. 
    
As of July 8, 2024, staff had 9 unresolved enforcement cases related to 
groundwater management (i.e., permitting). 

 
Board Action: None. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 212 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 3 of 32 

 

 
3.1 – Production Permit Renewals for FY2024 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained as of July 8, 2024, staff had received 
administratively complete application seeking the renewal of production permit 
scheduled to expire in July 2024: 

1. ARP-20240326-01 - Victoria County Pct. 2 - Administratively Complete 
2. ARP-20240326-02 - Victoria County Pct. 2 - Administratively Complete 
3. ARP-20240326-03 - Victoria R/E Venture - Administratively Complete 
4. ARP-20240326-04 - Vulcan Material - Administratively Complete 
5. ARP-20240326-05 - Faciliflow Services LLC - Administratively Complete 
6. ARP-20240401-01 - Chris M. and Jacob Boyd - Administratively Complete 
7. ARP-20240408-01 - USA Compression Partners LLC. - Administratively 
Complete 

  
RULE 4.4: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO RENEWAL AND 
AMENDMENT OF PERMITS 

 
1. The district shall not renew a permit that has expired before an 
administratively complete application requesting the renewal of the permit 
has been submitted to the district. 
2. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a permit 
shall submit an application requesting the renewal of the permit at least 
ninety days (90 days) prior to the permit expiration date. 
3. The general manager may authorize an authorized operator of a permit 
for which an administratively complete application requesting the renewal of 
the permit has been submitted to the district to continue authorized activities 
of the permit under the conditions of the permit, subject to any changes 
necessary under the rules of the district, or the Management Plan of the 
district, for the period of time during which the application requesting the 
renewal of the permit is the subject of a contested case hearing. 
4. The district shall, without a hearing, consider an application to renew a 
permit submitted to the district provided that: 

1. the application, if required by the district, is submitted in a timely 
manner and accompanied by any required fees in accordance with 
rules of the district; and 
2. the authorized operator is not requesting an amendment to the 
permit in conjunction with the request to renew the permit. 

5. The district shall not renew a permit if the owner of groundwater resources 
or authorized operator: 

   1. is delinquent in paying a fee required by the district; 
2. is subject to a pending enforcement action for a substantive 
violation of a permit, order, or rule of the district that has not been 
settled by agreement with the district or a final adjudication; or 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 213 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 4 of 32 

 

3. has not paid a civil penalty or has otherwise failed to comply with 
an order resulting from a final adjudication of a violation of a permit, 
order, or rule of the district.   

6. The district shall consider a permit that the district did not renew because 
the applicant or authorized operator of the is subject to a pending 
enforcement action for a substantive violation of a permit, order, or rule of 
the district, which has not been settled by agreement with the district or a 
final adjudication, to be in in effect until the final settlement or adjudication 
on the matter of the substantive violation. 
7. The district shall consider a request to renew a permit, as it existed prior 
to the initiation of an amendment process, without penalty if the amendment 
process results in a denial of the amendment unless the applicant or 
authorized operator of the permit: 

   1. is delinquent in paying a fee required by the district; 
2. is subject to a pending enforcement action for a substantive 
violation of a permit, order, or rule of the district that has not been 
settled by agreement with the district or a final adjudication; or 
3. has not paid a civil penalty or has otherwise failed to comply with 
an order resulting from a final adjudication of a violation of a permit, 
order, or rule of the district. 

8. The well owner, well field owner, or well system owner of a non-exempt-
use well, a non-exempt-use well field, or a non-exempt-use well system shall 
submit to the district an application to amend any registrations or permits 
within ninety days (90 days) of acquiring the non-exempt-use well, the non-
exempt-use well field, or the non-exempt-use well system. 
9. The district shall consider the permit associated with an application 
requesting an amendment to the permit as being in effect as the permit 
existed before the submittal of the administratively complete application 
requesting an amendment to the permit until the later of: 

1. the conclusion of the permit amendment or renewal process, as 
applicable; or 
2. final settlement or adjudication on the matter of whether the change 
to the permit requires a permit amendment. 

10. The district may initiate the process for amending a permit in connection 
with the renewal of a permit. 
11. The district shall consider the permit associated with an amendment 
process initiated by the district as being in effect as the permit existed before 
the district initiated the amendment process until the conclusion of the permit 
amendment process. 
 

Upon reflection on the requirements associated with permit renewals, staff will 
propose a revision to the rules as follows: 

 
The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a permit shall 
submit an administratively complete application requesting the renewal of the 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 214 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 5 of 32 

 

permit at least ninety days (90 days) prior to the permit expiration date.  See: MFC-
20240719-8.1 - Proposed Rule Revisions. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to approve the following production permit 
renewals and authorize the general manager to issue production permit renewals 
for the permits associated with the following renewal requests in accordance with 
the Rules of the District: ARP-20240326-01, ARP-20240326-02, ARP-20240326-
03, ARP-20240326-04, ARP-20240326-05, ARP-20240401-01, and ARP-
20240408-01. Mr. Eller seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
3.2 – Investigation – INV-20231115.1326 – Failure to Report Groundwater 
Production 

 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, the Board found 
the follow well owners, as of December 31, 2023, violated RULE 4.2: REPORTING 
REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the 
District  
 

1. Registered Well Owner: Dennis Leita; VCAD Landowner: Dennis E. & 
Terri H. Leita related to well(s) GW-000475, GW-000477 and GW-00478; 
2. Registered Well Owner: LS Tavern LLC.; VCAD Landowner: LS Tavern 
LLC. related to well GW-001009; 
3. Registered Well Owner: Buhler-Telferner Partnership; VCAD Landowner: 
Buhler-Telferner Partnership related to well(s) GW-001028, GW-001029 and 
GW-001030; 
4. Registered Well Owner: Smity's Food Mart; VCAD Landowner: Inez 
Convenience Services LLC. related to well GW-001065; 
5. Registered Well Owner: Millennium Estate MGMT. LLC.; VCAD 
Landowner: Kam Enterprises LTD. related to well NW-000609; 
6. Registered Well Owner: Mark R. Mize; VCAD Landowner: Mark R. Mize 
related to well NW-000869; 
7. Registered Well Owner: Murphy Testamentary Trust; VCAD Landowner: 
Murphy William Jr. Trust related to well(s) GW-000340 and GW-000341; 
8. Registered Well Owner: Marvin C. Franz et al; VCAD Landowner:Marvin 
Franz related to well(s) GW-000464, GW-000466 and R1GW-000465; 
9. Registered Well Owner: Central States Water Resources Texas; VCAD 
Landowner: CSWR-Texas Utility Operating Company LLC. related to well(s) 
GW-000984 and GW-001055; 
10. Registered Well Owner: The Dam Company LLC.; VCAD Landowner: 
The Dam Company LLC. related to well GW-000557; 
11. Registered Well Owner: Oakwood Outlook LLC.; VCAD Landowner: 
Keep Bloomington Beautiful related to well GW-000720; 
12. Registered Well Owner: Jose G. Celedon; VCAD Landowner: Jose G. 
Celedon related to well GW-000750; 
13. Registered Well Owner: RSBR Investments LLC.; VCAD Landowner: 
Freedom Ventures of Victoria LLC. related to well NW-000824; 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 215 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 6 of 32 

 

14. Registered Well Owner: Millennium Estate Management LLC.; VCAD 
Landowner: VICTTEC LLC. related to well NW-001296; and 
15. Registered Well Owner: James R. Cook; VCAD Landowner: James 
Randall Cook related to well NW-001343. 

    
The following enforcement case violations developed in response to the action of 
the Board of Directors were resolved in accordance with the associated settlement 
offer: 

1. ECV-20240429-01 - Dennis Leita - Failure to Report Groundwater 
Production CY2023 for Well(s) - GW-000475 - GW-000477 - GW-000478 - 
Resolved 
2. ECV-20240429-04 - Smittys Food Mart - Failure to Report Groundwater 
Production CY2023 for Well - GW-001065 - Resolved 
3. ECV-20240429-05 - Millennium Estate MGMT LLC.- Failure to Report 
Groundwater Production CY2023 for Well - NW-000609 - Resolved 
4. ECV-20240429-06 -  Mark R. Mize - Failure to Report Groundwater 
Production CY2023 for Well - NW-000869 - Resolved 
5. ECV-20240429-07 - Murphy Testamentary Trust - Failure to Report 
Groundwater Production CY2023 for Well(s) - GW-000340 and GW-000341 
- Resolved 
6. ECV-20240429-08 - Marvin C. Franz - Failure to Report Groundwater 
Production CY2023 for Well(s) - GW-000464, GW-000466 and R1GW-
000465 - Resolved 
7. ECV-20240429-10 - The Dam Company - Failure to Report Groundwater 
Production CY2023 for Well - GW-000557 - Resolved 
8. ECV-20240429-11 - Oakwood Outlook LLC.- Failure to Report 
Groundwater Production CY2023 for Well - GW-000720 - Resolved 
9. ECV-20240429-12 - Jose G. Celedon - Failure to Report Groundwater 
Production CY2023 for Well - NW-000750 - Resolved 
10. ECV-20240429-15 - James R. Cook - Failure to Report Groundwater 
Production CY2023 for Well - NW-001343 – Resolved 
 

Board Action: None. 
 

3.3 – Enforcement Hearing re ECV-20240429-02 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, the Board passed 
a motion to:  

1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well 
Owner: LS Tavern LLC.; VCAD Landowner: LS Tavern LLC.) violated RULE 
4.2: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE 
WELLS of the Rules of the District related to well GW-001009 unless 
evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances 
is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding 
the violation;  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 216 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 7 of 32 

 

3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 11.5: Rule Enforcement 
of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if (Registered Well Owner: LS Tavern LLC.; 
VCAD Landowner: LS Tavern LLC.) consents to the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

3. submits a administratively complete groundwater production report 
for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

   
In response to the action taken by the Board, staff recorded violation Enforcement 
Case Violation - ECV-20240429-02 - LS Tavern LLC. - Failure to Report 
Groundwater Production CY2023 for Well - GW-001009 - Active 
      
On May 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-02 to 
LS-Tavern by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 1485). 
 
On June 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-02 
to LS-Tavern by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 1942). 
 
On June 6, 2024, staff hand delivered notice of violation ECV-20240429-02 to 
employee with LS-Tavern. 
      
On June 27, 2024, Mr. Charles Hauboldt provided the following response to the 
district regarding the 2nd NOV Letter for violation ECV-20240429-02. 
 
On July 1, 2024, the staff attempted to provide notice of this enforcement hearing 
and staff's intent to seek authorization to pursue enforcement of the rules by filing 
a civil suit against LS-Tavern at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the board 
of directors to LS-Tavern by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 2093). 
 
On July 1, 2024, Mr. Eddie Deckard provided the following response to the district 
regarding the 2nd NOV Letter for violation ECV-20240429-02. 
 
On July 2, 2024, staff of the district processed groundwater production report for 
CY2023. 
 
As of July 8, 2024, the violator has satisfied each element of the settlement offers 
extended by the Board of Directors regarding this violation albeit not by the deadline 
of June 30, 2024. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to cancel the enforcement hearing regarding 
violation ECV-20240429-02 and designate the violation resolved. Mr. Clements 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
3.4 – Enforcement Hearing re ECV-20240429-03 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 217 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 8 of 32 

 

Management Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, the Board 
passed a motion to:  

1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well 
Owner: Buhler-Telferner Partnership; VCAD Landowner: Buhler-Telferner 
Partnership) violated RULE 4.2: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED 
TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the District related to well(s) 
GW-001028, GW-001029 and GW-001030 unless evidence to the contrary 
or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is submitted to the 
District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding 
the violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 11.5: Rule Enforcement 
of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if (Registered Well Owner: Buhler-Telferner 
Partnership; VCAD Landowner: Buhler-Telferner Partnership) consents to 
the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

3. submits a administratively complete groundwater production report 
for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

   
In response to the action taken by the Board, staff recorded violation Enforcement 
Case Violation - ECV-20240429-03 - Buhler-Telferner Partnership - Failure to 
Report Groundwater Production CY2023 for Well(s) - GW-001028, GW-001029 
and GW-001030 - Active 
      
On May 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-03 to 
Buhler-Telferner Partnership by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 
1492). 
 
On June 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-02 
to LS-Tavern by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 1959). 
 
On June 6, 2024, staff attempted to hand delivered notice of violation ECV-
20240429-03. 
 
On July 1, 2024, the staff attempted to provide notice of this enforcement hearing 
and staff's intent to seek authorization to pursue enforcement of the rules by filing 
a civil suit against Buhler-Telferner Partnership at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting of the board of directors to Buhler-Telferner Partnership by certified mail 
(CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 2109). 
 
As of July 8, 2024, the violator has satisfied each element of the settlement offers 
extended by the Board of Directors. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 218 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 9 of 32 

 

Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to cancel the hearing regarding violation ECV-
20240429-03. Mr. Clements seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
3.5 – Enforcement Hearing re ECV-20240429-04 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, the Board of 
Directors of the District approved the following settlement offer for the violation. 
The Board of Directors of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
offers to settle violation ECV-20240429-04 if (Registered Well Owner: Smity's Food 
Mart; VCAD Landowner: Inez Convenience Services LLC.) consents to the 
following: 

1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well 
Owner: Smity's Food Mart; VCAD Landowner: Inez Convenience Services 
LLC.) violated RULE 4.2: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO 
NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the District related to well GW-
001065 unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating 
circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding 
the violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 11.5: Rule Enforcement 
of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if (Registered Well Owner: Smity's Food Mart; 
VCAD Landowner: Inez Convenience Services LLC.)) consents to the 
following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

3. submits a administratively complete groundwater production report 
for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024.  

   
On June 28, 2024, the violator has satisfied each element of the settlement offers 
extended by the Board of Directors regarding this violation albeit after the staff had 
posted the enforcement case notice.  Staff designated violation ECV-20240429-04 
resolved. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to cancel the enforcement hearing regarding 
violation ECV-20240429-04. Mr. Clements seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
3.6 – Enforcement Hearing re ECV-20240429-09 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, the Board passed 
a motion to:  

1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well 
Owner: Central States Water Resources Texas; VCAD Landowner: CSWR-
Texas Utility Operating Company LLC.) violated RULE 4.2: REPORTING 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 219 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 10 of 32 

 

REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of 
the District related to well(s) GW-000984 and GW-001055 unless evidence 
to the contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is 
submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding 
the violation;  
3. set a $250.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 11.5: Rule Enforcement 
of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if (Registered Well Owner: Central States Water 
Resources Texas; VCAD Landowner: CSWR-Texas Utility Operating 
Company LLC.) consents to the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $20.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

3. submits a administratively complete groundwater production report 
for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

   
In response to the action taken by the Board, staff recorded violation Enforcement 
Case Violation - ECV-20240429-09 - CSWR-Texas Utility Operating Company LLC. 
- Failure to Report Groundwater Production CY2023 for Well - GW-000984 and 
GW-001055 - Active 
      
On May 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-09 to 
CSWR-Texas Utility Operating Company by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 
0003 4383 1553). 
 
On May 13, 2024, Mr. Ben Glyn provided the following response to the district 
regarding the 1st NOV Letter for violation  ECV-20240429-09. 
 
On June 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-09 
to CSWR-Texas Utility Operating Company by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 
0003 4383 2017). 
 
On June 6, 2024, staff attempted to hand delivered notice of violation ECV-
20240429-09. 
 
On July 1, 2024, the staff attempted to provide notice of this enforcement hearing 
and staff's intent to seek authorization to pursue enforcement of the rules by filing 
a civil suit against CSWR-Texas Utility Operating Company at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the board of directors to CSWR-Texas Utility Operating 
Company by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 2123). 
 
As of July 8, 2024, the violator has satisfied each element of the settlement offers 
extended by the Board of Directors. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 220 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 11 of 32 

 

Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to open and record the enforcement hearing 
regarding violation ECV-20240429-09. Mr. Clements seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 

1. Date and time the hearing was opened: July 19, 2024 at 9:28 AM 
2. Enforcement case ID: ECV-20240429-09 
3. Alleged violator: CSWR 
4. Alleged violation: Rule 4.2 
5. General Manager was sworn in 

Mr. Clements moved to recess the enforcement hearing after no public comments 
were given. Mr. Eller seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
3.7 – Enforcement Hearing re ECV-20240429-13 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, the Board passed 
a motion to:  

1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well 
Owner: RSBR Investments LLC.; VCAD Landowner: Freedom Ventures of 
Victoria LLC.) violated RULE 4.2: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED 
TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the District related to well 
NW-000824 unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant 
extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding 
the violation;  
3. set a $250.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 11.5: Rule Enforcement 
of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if (Registered Well Owner: RSBR Investments 
LLC.; VCAD Landowner: Freedom Ventures of Victoria LLC.) consents to 
the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $20.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

3. submits a administratively complete groundwater production report 
for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

   
In response to the action taken by the Board, staff recorded violation Enforcement 
Case Violation - ECV-20240429-13 - RSBR Investments LLC. - Failure to Report 
Groundwater Production CY2023 for Well - NW-000824 - Active 
      
On May 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-13 to 
RSBR Investments LLC. by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 1591). 
 
On June 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-13 
to RSBR Investments LLC. by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 2031). 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 221 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 12 of 32 

 

On June 6, 2024, staff hand delivered notice of violation ECV-20240429-13 to the 
Manager of Dollar General located at FM 236 in Victoria County, Victoria Texas. 
    
On July 1, 2024, the staff attempted to provide notice of this enforcement hearing 
and staff's intent to seek authorization to pursue enforcement of the rules by filing 
a civil suit against Freedom Ventures of Victoria at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting of the board of directors to Freedom Ventures of Victoria by certified mail 
(CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 2147). 
 
As of July 8, 2024, the violator has satisfied each element of the settlement offers 
extended by the Board of Directors. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
3.8 – Enforcement Hearing re ECV-20240429-14 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, the Board passed 
a motion to:  

1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well 
Owner: Millennium Estate Management LLC.; VCAD Landowner: VICTTEC 
LLC.) violated RULE 4.2: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO 
NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the District related to well NW-
001296 unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating 
circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding 
the violation;  
3. set a $250.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 11.5: Rule Enforcement 
of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if (Registered Well Owner: Millennium Estate 
Management LLC.; VCAD Landowner: VICTTEC LLC.) consents to the 
following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $20.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

3. submits a administratively complete groundwater production report 
for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

   
In response to the action taken by the Board, staff recorded violation VCGCD - GMa 
- CIE - Enforcement Case Violation - ECV-20240429-14 - Millennium Estate 
Management LLC. - Failure to Report Groundwater Production CY2023 for Well -  
NW-001296 - Active 
      
On May 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-14 to 
Millennium Estates MGMT by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 1607). 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 222 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 13 of 32 

 

On June 3, 2024, staff attempted to provide notice of violation ECV-20240429-14 
to Millennium Estates MGMT by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 
2048). 
 
On June 5, 2024, staff hand delivered notice of violation ECV-20240429-14 to 
employee with VICTTECH located at 182 Starship Rd. in Victoria County, Victoria 
Texas. 
     
On June 27, 2024, Mr. Li provided the following response to the district regarding 
the 2nd NOV Letter for violation ECV-20240429-14. 
 
On July 1, 2024, the staff attempted to provide notice of this enforcement hearing 
and staff's intent to seek authorization to pursue enforcement of the rules by filing 
a civil suit against VICTTECH at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the board 
of directors to VICTTECH by certified mail (CMRRR 7022 1670 0003 4383 2130). 
 
As of July 11, 2024, the violator has satisfied each element of the settlement offers 
extended by the Board of Directors regarding this violation albeit not by the deadline 
of June 30, 2024. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to cancel the enforcement hearing regarding 
violation ECV-20240429-14 and designate the violation resolved. Mr. Clements 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
3.9 – Violations ECV-20231105-03 and ECV-20231105-06 – CSWR 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, the Board of 
Directors issued Enforcement Order ECV-20231105-03 and Enforcement Order 
ECV-20231105-06. 
 
On April 30, 2024, the enforcement orders and associated testimony packets were 
forwarded to Mr. Allison. 
    
In May 2024, Mr. Ben Glynn, a representatives for CSWR, resumed 
communications with the District. 
    
On June 21, 2024, Mr. Allison provided draft petitions regarding the violations. 
    
On June 24, 2024, Ms. April Dobbins inquired regarding the outstanding information 
needed by the District regarding CSWR's applications for production permits. 
    
On June 25, 2024, Mr. Allison agreed to transmit the draft petitions to CSWR. 
    
On July 2, 2024, Ms. Dobbins inquired regarding the outstanding information 
needed by the District regarding CSWR's applications for production permits again. 
    

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 223 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 14 of 32 

 

On July 8, 2024, staff responded to Ms. Dobbins' inquiry. 
    
As of July 8, 2024, violations ECV-20231105-03 and ECV-20231105-06 remain 
unresolved. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
3.10 – Violations ECV-20231105-04 and ECV-20231105-05 – 7-Eleven 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, staff held a 
conference call with Mr. Tobias Smith, legal counsel for 7-Eleven, regarding 
violations ECV-20231105-04 and ECV-20231105-05.  Mr. Smith committed to 
immediately providing an affidavit testifying to the extenuating circumstances that 
caused the delay in responding in a timely fashion to the settlement offers extended 
by the Board of Directors related to the violations. 
    
In response to receiving the report regarding the conference call with Mr. Smith 
during the meeting held on April 19, 2024, the Board of Directors passed the 
following motion to 1) authorize the General Manager to approve permit SCPPW-
20240401-01 and permit SCPPW-20240401-02, 2) assess a total penalty of 
$2,500.00 for violation ECV-20231105-04 and violation ECV-20231105-05, and 3) 
designate the violations resolved contingent upon the violator submitting check for 
payment of the total penalty amount and the executed production permit (permit 
SCPPW-20240401-01 and permit SCPPW-20240401-02) to the district on or 
before May 19, 2024. 
    
On May 13, 2024, Mr. Smith submitted the affidavit testifying to the extenuating 
circumstances that caused the delay in responding in a timely fashion to the 
settlement offers extended by the Board of Directors related to the violations. 
    
On May 13, 2024, Mr. Andruss forwarded the message and affidavit submitted by 
Mr. Smith to Mr. Allison for review and comment. 
    
On June 18, 2024, Mr. Andruss notified Mr. Smith of the action taken by the Board 
on April 19, 2024, and suggest 7-Eleven submit a check for payment of the 
$2,500.00 penalty and the executed permits by July 12, 2024. 
    
On July 2, 2024, in response to Mr. Allison's inquiry, Mr. Andruss explained that "7-
Eleven has not 1) submitted a check for payment of the total penalty amount, nor 
2) submitted the executed production permits to the district on or before May 19, 
2024.  Other than satisfying the deadline, the settlement offer of the board could be 
met with the payment of the penalty and submittal of the executed production 
permits." 
    
On July 2, 2024, Mr. Allison notified Mr. Andruss that he would "submit a settlement 
agreement for their signature to be returned with the signed permits and $2500. " 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 224 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 15 of 32 

 

    
As of July 8, 2024, violations ECV-20231105-04 and ECV-20231105-05 remain 
unresolved. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to designate violations ECV-20231105-04 and 
ECV-20231105-05 resolved upon receipt of payment. Mr. Eller seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
4. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater 
protection including complaints, investigations, violations, and enforcement cases 
related to groundwater contamination and waste. 
 
 4.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Protection 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss provided the following report: 
 
Regarding Well Inspections for FY2024. 
 
As of July 9, 2024, staff had recorded 33 well inspection forms (WIFs) since October 
1, 2023. 
 
Regarding Manage Investigations related to Groundwater Protection for 
FY2024. 
 
On or about June 21, 2024, staff of the district attempted to assist a member of the 
public wanting to request the district investigate illegal dumping of waste in surface 
water bodies in Victoria.  The man, who had visited the office on several other 
occasions regarding other alleged violations, became irate and angry with staff, in 
particular Mr. Andruss due to his continued insistence that the man complete either 
a complaint form or an application to request an investigation to record the details 
of the alleged violation.  The man left the office frustrated that Mr. Andruss would 
not accept or act upon his verbal allegation and without providing any meaningful 
details or evidence of the alleged violation. 
    
The board of the district has not adopted a formal policy regarding investigations.  
However, management has developed, published (see: 
https://www.vcgcd.org/groundwater-protection), and used forms to receive 
requests for the public to request an investigation or submit a compliant.  Unless 
the board of directors instructs otherwise, management will continue to employee 
the use of the complaint form and application to request an investigation for the 
purpose of accepting requests from the public to investigate alleged violations. 
    
As of July 9, 2024, staff had initiated 0 investigations related to Groundwater 
Protection since October 1, 2023. 
   

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 225 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 16 of 32 

 

As of July 9, 2024, staff had 2 active investigation related to Groundwater 
Protection. 
 
Regarding Manage Enforcement Cases related to Groundwater Protection for 
FY2024. 
 
As of July 9, 2024, the Board had initiated 0 enforcement case violations related to 
Groundwater Protection since October 1, 2023. 
   
As of July 9, 2024, staff had 0 unresolved enforcement case violations related to 
Groundwater Protection. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
5. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater 
monitoring. 
 
 5.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Monitoring 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss provided the following report: 
 
Regarding Monitor Drought Conditions for FY2024. 
 
As of July 9, 2024, the U.S. Drought Monitor indicates that 0% of Victoria County 
was experiencing drought conditions. 
    
As of July 9, 2024, drought condition information related to the district and the 
surrounding region of Texas collected from the Water Data for Texas website 
(https://www.waterdatafortexas.org/drought/) indicates that no portion of Victoria 
County are experiencing abnormally dry conditions or drought conditions. 
 
Regarding Synoptic Aquifer Monitoring for FY2024. 
 
As of July 9, 2024, staff had collected 34 water level measurements since October 
1, 2023. 
 
Regarding Advanced Aquifer Monitoring for FY2024. 
 
On June 6, 2024, staff published real-time aquifer monitoring charts on the website 
of the district at https://www.vcgcd.org/real-time-aquifer-monitoring-charts.  The 
charts display groundwater levels and groundwater conductivity measurements 
from well NW-000426.    On April 15, 2024, staff ordered the equipment for an 
additional monitoring well for the pilot project for the Wellntel System.  On June 19, 
2024, staff inventoried the equipment ordered and received with Wellntell.  Staff 
anticipates the installation of the equipment at the monitoring well before August 1, 
2024. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 226 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 17 of 32 

 

 
Regarding Baseline Water Quality Aquifer Monitoring for FY2024. 
 
No report. 

 
Regarding Ad-Hoc Baseline Water Quality Sampling for FY2024. 
 
As of July 9, 2024, staff had collected 3 water quality field measurements since 
October 1, 2023. 
    
As of July 9, 2024, staff had collected 2 water quality samples since October 1, 
2023. 
    
As of July 9, 2024, staff had received 1 water quality lab reports since October 1, 
2023. 
 
Regarding Annual Water Level Assessment for FY2024. 
 
   On July 8, 2024, staff received a proposal from Dr. Young of Intera for a project 
to update the water level assessment report. 
 
Regarding Annual Water Quality Assessment for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Monitoring Network Assessment and Improvement Project for 
FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Synoptic Aquifer Monitoring for PVGCD for FY2024. 
 
As of July 9, 2024, staff had collected 29 water level measurements for Pecan 
Valley GCD since October 1, 2023. 

 
Board Action: None. 
 
5.1 – Intera Proposal for Update of Water Level Assessment Report 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on July 8, 2024, Dr. Young of Intera 
submitted a proposal to Victoria County GCD to apply geostatistical techniques to 
interpret measured 2023 water levels in Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, 
Texana GCD and Victoria County GCD. The proposed work will expand the 
analysis of measured water levels performed by Dr. Young and others in previous 
years to include measured water levels in 2023. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 227 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 18 of 32 

 

The cost for performing the completing the work is $18,000. The project will be fixed 
priced. The presentations and the memorandum will be completed in approximately 
5 months. Intera will deliver a memorandum and presentations for each 
participating GCD documenting contours of hydraulic head for CY2023, 
calculations of water level changes between CY2000 and CY2023, and the 
geostatistical techniques used to interpret water level measurements. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to accept the proposal and authorize Intera to 
proceed with the work with a cost not to exceed $18,000.00 contingent upon 
Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD agreeing to cost-share at 
$4,500.00 per district. Mr. Clements seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
6. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater 
conservation. 
 
 6.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Conservation 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss provided the following reports: 
 
Regarding Promote Conservation for FY2024. 
 
   On March 22, 2024, Mr. Andruss participated in the Chandler Elementary Career 
Day and presented information and demonstrations regarding groundwater 
conservation to students. 
    
On April 29, 2024, Director Eller and Mr. Andruss attended the meeting of Kiwanis 
Club of Victoria to speak about goals and objectives of the district (including 
groundwater conservation) and the status of groundwater resource management in 
Victoria County and Texas. 
 
Regarding Conservation Education and Teacher Professional Development 
for FY2024. 
 
The district did not participate in the professional development mini-conference 
organized by VISD as the teachers scheduled to participate were also registered to 
be participants in the teacher professional development workshops hosted by UHV, 
VISD/INVISTA Wetland, and VCGCD in June 2024.  The classroom aquifer kits 
purchase for the mini-conference were used as part of the  teacher professional 
development workshops.   
    
The district, in cooperation with the University of Houston-Victoria. Victoria ISD, and 
INVISTA, conducted teacher professional develop workshops on June 26 and June 
27, 2024. 
 
Board Action: None. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 228 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 19 of 32 

 

 
6.1 – Conservation Education and Teacher Professional Development 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on June 26 and 27, 2024, district staff 
conducted workshops to provide professional develop regarding water 
conservation to science teachers of Victoria County.  The workshops were attended 
by 9 teachers and facilitated by Dr. Teresa Le Sage-Clements and Dr. Dmitri 
Sobolev of UHV, Ms. Denise Andruss and Mr. Snyder (RGCD Director) of VISD, 
Mr. Willie Immenhauser, Mr. Mike Benavides, Ms. Caitlynn Davenport, and Mr. 
Andruss of VCGCD. 
    
The teachers participate in activities and exercises related to understanding the 
hydrologic cycle; the use of physical models to understand watershed and aquifers; 
site visits and sample collection at the Guadalupe River at Riverside Park, a water 
well at the Clements Ranch, and the wetlands at the INVISTA Plant in Victoria 
County; risks to water resource; water resource conservation approaches; and 
technological and scientific advancements in water conservation. 
 
The participating teachers provided evaluation of the workshops to assist in 
improving similar projects undertaken in the future. 
 
Based on the feedback received from the participants and facilitators, staff 
anticipates developing a similar project proposal for consideration by the Board in 
FY2025. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
7. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater resource 
planning including Groundwater Management Area 15 Joint Planning and regional 
water planning. 
 
 7.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Resource Planning 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss provided the following report: 
 
Regarding Regional Water Planning Participation for FY2024. 
 
The South Central Texas Regional Water Planning Group (Region L) met on May 
2, 2024.  During the meeting, the planning group continued it efforts to develop the 
2026 regional water plan for the region, considered a proposed amendment to the 
2021 SCTRWPG regional plan to add GBRA's planned pipeline from Calhoun 
County to Gonzales County.  During the meeting the planning group members 
elected new officers.   
    
The planning group has created several workgroups to work on certain aspects of 
the developing plan including a Policy and Legislative Recommendation Workgroup 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 229 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 20 of 32 

 

and a Rural Community Outreach Workgroup.  Staff of the district have been 
participating in those workgroups. 
    
The next meeting of the group is scheduled to meet on August 1, 2024. 
 
Regarding GMA 15 Joint Planning for 4th Planning Cycle in FY2024. 
 
The representatives of Groundwater Management Area 15 are scheduled to meet 
on July 11, 2024 in Fayette County.  The primary topics of discussion anticipated 
at the meeting are the project scope and cost of the technical work proposed by 
Intera (the preferred and only respondent to the associated RFP) and groundwater 
availability modeling.  Staff will encourage the representatives to contribute more 
funding to the GMA 15 Joint Planning Fund to avoid substantial limitation to the 
scope of the proposed technical work to be preformed by Intera.   
 
Board Action: None.  
 
7.1 – GMA 15 Joint Planning 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the representatives of Groundwater 
Management Area 15 are scheduled to meet on July 11, 2024 in Fayette County.  
The primary topics of discussion anticipated at the meeting are the project scope 
and cost of the technical work proposed by Intera (the preferred and only 
respondent to the associated RFP) and groundwater availability modeling.  Staff 
will encourage the representatives to contribute more funding to the GMA 15 Joint 
Planning Fund to avoid substantial limitation to the scope of the proposed technical 
work to be preformed by Intera.   
    
Staff resumed  efforts to negotiate terms of an agreement with Intera for providing 
the proposed technical services to the GMA-15 Committee because 1) the majority 
of the member districts of GMA 15 have adopted the by-laws and cost-sharing 
agreement, 2) the majority of he member district the GMA-15 Committee have 
submitted their contributions to the fund for the the technical services for the 4th 
cycle of joint planning, and 3) the TWDB agreed to allow the use of the “GAM for 
the central portion of the Gulf Coast Aquifer System” by GMA 15.   
    
As of May 31, 2024, the GMA 15 Joint Planning Fund has a balance of $70,832.21.  
The costs for the proposal submitted by Intera for the adoption of the DFC in the 
4th Joint Planning Cycle was $90,000. 
 
Due to the funding gap between GCD contributions and Intera's proposed cost, 
VCGCD and Intera are examining ways to alter the scope of the project to address 
the funding short fall. VCGCD suggested revisions for consideration by Intera. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 230 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 21 of 32 

 

Staff recommended to the representatives of the funding districts at the GMA 15 
meeting to seek additional funding in the amount of $2,000 to fully fund the project 
as initially proposed.  
    
Additional contributions could be available for additional GAM simulations, updates 
to historic pumping in the CGC-GAM, improvements to the explanatory report, or 
addendums to the GMA 15 explanatory report.  Additional predictive simulations 
with pumping simulated 1) at total permitted production (99,163.10 acre-feet in 
Victoria County) and 2) deep saline production scenarios (e.g., 20,000 AFY of 
slightly saline groundwater in deep-saline management zones, 15,000 AFY of 
moderately saline groundwater in deep-saline management zones). 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to authorize an increased contribution of 
$2,000 to GMA 15 Joint Planning Fund. Mr. Eller seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
8. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater policy 
including the Management Plan of the District and the Rules of the District. 
 
 8.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Policy 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss provided the following report:  
 
Regarding Management Plan Revisions for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Rule Amendments for FY2024. 
 
Staff have developed draft revisions to the rules of the district to address the 
following aspects of the rules of the district:   

1. appropriate requirements and procedures related to amendment requests of 
waivers associated with production permits, 

2. appropriate requirements and procedures related to amendment requests of 
production permits, and 

3. appropriate requirements and procedures regarding renewal and expiration 
of production permits associated with proposed wells. 

 
Regarding Legislative Support and Lobbying for FY2024. 
 

 No report.  
 

Board Action: None. 
 
8.1 – Proposed Rule Revisions 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 231 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 22 of 32 

 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on April 19, 2024, the Board of 
Directors was notified of several aspects of the rules of the district that would benefit 
from revision.  Staff developed draft revision to address the concerns with the 
requirements and procedures related to 1) well spacing requirements, 2) 
amendment requests of production permits, 3) renewal and expiration of production 
permits associated with proposed wells, and 4) enforcement notice requirements. 
 
Well Spacing Issue:  
 
Issue Description: applicants could request the renewal of a production permit for 
non-historic uses (and possibly applicants for production permits for non-historic 
uses related to an existing non-grandfathered well) for which: 

1. the boundary of ownership or control of groundwater resources associated 
with the request is closer than 1 foot per GPM of separation from the nearest 
point along the boundary of the subject boundary of ownership of land,  
2. the request is compliant with the rules of the district, but  
3. the request is inconsistent with the long-standing policy of the board 
requiring 1 foot of separation per 1 GPM of production rate of a well.  

    
The rules of the district only address production rates and spacing limitations, under 
item 2 of RULE 2.2: WELL SPACING REQUIREMENTS OF WELLS, with the 
following provision: “A person drilling or having drilled a non-grandfathered well or 
a replacement well for a non-grandfathered well that is not a deep-saline well shall 
locate the non-grandfathered well in a position that is offset from the boundary of 
the subject tracts of contiguous ownership of land by at least one foot (1 foot) of 
separation per one gallon per minute of production capacity of the non-
grandfathered well.” 
     
Staff suggests that the Board of VCGCD consider the amendment of the rules of 
the district to include the following provisions: 

- under RULE 2.2: WELL SPACING REQUIREMENTS OF WELLS: 
- A person shall not produce groundwater from a well for non-historic 
uses, except wells operated solely to produce groundwater under a 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use, at a rate 
exceeding a ratio of one gallon per minute per foot (1 GPM / 1 foot) 
of separation between the well and the nearest point along the 
boundary of ownership of land containing with the well. 

- under RULE 6.1.1: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS OF 
NON-GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE WELLS: 

- The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production rate of 
a production permit for non-historic use of a non-exempt-use well, 
except wells operated solely to produce groundwater under a 
production permit for deep-saline non-historic use, to a rate not 
exceeding a ratio of one gallon per minute per foot (1 GPM / 1 foot) 
of separation between the well and the nearest point along the 
boundary of ownership of land containing the well. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 232 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 23 of 32 

 

- under RULE 6.1.2: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS OF 
NON- GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE WELLS FIELDS: 

- The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production rate of 
a production permit for non-historic use for each well of a non-exempt-
use well field, except wells operated solely to produce groundwater 
under a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use, to a rate 
not exceeding a ratio of one gallon per minute per foot (1 GPM / 1 
foot) of separation between the well and the nearest point along the 
boundary of ownership of land containing the well. 

- under RULE 6.1.3: GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION LIMITATIONS OF 
NON- GRANDFATHERED NON-EXEMPT-USE WELL SYSTEMS: 

- The district shall limit the authorized groundwater production rate of 
a production permit for non-historic use for each well of a non-exempt-
use well system, except wells operated solely to produce groundwater 
under a production permit for deep-saline non-historic use, to a rate 
not exceeding a ratio of one gallon per minute per foot (1 GPM / 1 
foot) of separation between the well of the well system and the 
nearest point along the boundary of ownership of land containing the 
well. 

 
Permit and Waiver Amendment Issue:  
 
Issue Description: The rules of the district lack explicit specification of the policies 
and procedures of the board regarding amendment requests for permits and 
waivers that are solely administrative in nature such as changes to name and 
address information as compared to amendment requests for permits and waivers 
that are substantive such as changes to production areas, monitoring and reporting 
requirements, and production amounts and rates.   
    
Issue Description: The rules of the district fail to address how, if at all, a production 
permit approved for a proposed well is eligible for renewal potentially creating the 
unintended consequence of perpetual renewal of speculative production permits. 
    
Staff suggests that the Board of VCGCD consider the amendment of the rules of 
the district to include the following provisions: 

- under RULE 4.4: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO RENEWAL 
AND AMENDMENT OF PERMITS: 

- The board of directors shall consider administratively complete 
applications to amend a permit or waiver requested by the well owner, 
authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a permit or waiver that 
involve the substantive provisions of the related permit or waiver such 
as production rates, production amounts, purposes of use, or 
conditions of the permit. 
- The general manager may process and issue amendments to 
permits and waivers associated with administratively complete 
applications to amend a permit requested by the well owner, 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 233 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 24 of 32 

 

authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a permit that are solely 
administrative in nature that do not involve the substantive provisions 
of the related permits or waivers such as production rates, production 
amounts, purposes of use, or conditions of the permit. 

- under RULE 4.4: GENERAL PROCEDURES RELATED TO RENEWAL 
AND AMENDMENT OF PERMITS: 

-  The district shall not renew a permit associated with a proposed 
well. 

 
Enforcement Notice Issue: 
 
Issue Description: in the course of pursuing compliance with the rules of the district 
through enforcement proceedings, staff have identified a procedural inconsistency 
related to certain notices provided to violators - the requirement to "include a draft 
copy of the petition to be filed." 
    
Staff suggests removing item 2 of Rule 11.9 which reads "Any notice of need to file 
suit sent to the person who is alleged to have violated the rules of the district shall 
include a draft copy of the petition to be filed." 
 
On July 12, 2024, Tim Andruss identified another aspect of the rules that may 
warrant revision.  Rule 4.4 states the following: 

1. The district shall not renew a permit that has expired before an 
administratively complete application requesting the renewal of the permit 
has been submitted to the district. 

2. The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a permit shall 
submit an application requesting the renewal of the permit at least ninety 
days (90 days) prior to the permit expiration date. 

   
Upon reflection on the requirements associated with permit renewals and the past 
practices, staff proposes a revision to item 2 of Rule 4.4 as follows: 
 
The well owner, authorized agent, or the authorized operator of a permit shall 
submit an administratively complete application requesting the renewal of the 
permit at least ninety days (90 days) prior to the permit expiration date. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to 1) designate the draft revisions developed by 
staff, including the proposed revision to item 2 of Rule 4.4, as the proposed rules of 
the district, 2) authorize the General Manger to complete the public notice 
requirements to hold a rulemaking hearing at the October 2024 meeting of the 
Board of Directors. Mr. Clements seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
9. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to administration and 
management including the minutes of previous meetings, the annual budget of the 
district, financial reports of the district, bills and invoices of the district, 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 234 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 25 of 32 

 

management goals and objectives of the district, administrative policies, staffing, 
consultant agreements, interlocal cooperation agreements, and support services 
provided to and from other groundwater conservation districts. 
 
 9.0 – Report regarding Administration and Management 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss provided the following report: 
 
Regarding Employment Management for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Employee Health Benefits Enrollment. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Employee Retirement Plan Review. 
 
On June 25, 2024, staff reviewed the employee retirement plan with TCDRS.  The 
district has no unfunded liability and therefore the required funding rate did not 
increase.  The proposed budget for FY2025 will be developed using the current 
contribution rate. 

 
Regarding Election Coordination for CY2024. 
 
On June 28, 2024, staff posted the Notice of Candidate Filing Deadline on the 
website of the district at https://www.vcgcd.org/election-notices.  
 
Regarding Financial Audit for FY2023. 
 
No report. 
 
Regarding Investment Management for FY2024. 
 
No report. 
 
Regarding Financial Record Processing and Reporting for FY2024. 
 
No Report. 
 
Regarding Budget Development for FY2025. 
 
Staff will develop and present preliminary budget information to the Board on July 
19, 2024. 
 
Regarding Asset Tracking for FY2024. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 235 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 26 of 32 

 

 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Public Funds Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Website Improvements. 
 
On June 6, 2024, staff published real-time aquifer monitoring charts on the website 
of the district at https://www.vcgcd.org/real-time-aquifer-monitoring-charts. 
 
Regarding GIS Data Quality Control. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Public Notice and Meeting Coordination for FY2024. 
 
The next meetings of the Board are scheduled for August 16, 2024 (Budget and 
Tax Rate Matters), and October 18, 2024, with each meeting to convene at 9:00 
AM. Regular meetings will be rescheduled as necessary and special meeting may 
be scheduled to address unforeseen issues. 
 
Regarding Public Notice and GMA 15 Meeting Coordination for FY2024. 
 
the next meeting of GMA 15, scheduled for October 10, 2024, will be held at the 
office building of the Fayette County GCD. 
 
Regarding Performance Audit for FY2023. 
 
  No report. 
 
Regarding Project Management for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Administrative Policy Review for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Transparency Reporting for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Cybersecurity Training for FY2024. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 236 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 27 of 32 

 

   No report. 
 
Regarding Consultant Review for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Open Government Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding District Liability Insurance Review and Renewal. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Emergency Management Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding GCD Support for FY2024. 
 
   No report 
 
Regarding Digital Record Archiving for FY2024. 
 
   Staff continue to create digital archives for the records of the district. 
 
Regarding Physical Record Archiving for FY2024. 
 
   Staff continue to create physical archives for select records of the district. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
9.1 – Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the minutes for the previous meeting 
were sent to the board members prior to the meeting. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to accept and approve the meeting minutes 
for April 19, 2024. Mr. Eller seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.2 – Financial Reports of the District 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the internal control review reports and 
internal financial reports for March, April and May 2024, have been compiled, 
reviewed and forwarded to the directors prior to the meeting. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 237 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 28 of 32 

 

Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to accept and approve the financial reports for 
March, April and May 2024. Mr. Eller seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
9.2.1 – Financial Transaction Review 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained since April 20, 2024, as of July 5, 
2024, there have been 80 accounts payable transactions and 52 accounts 
receivable transactions recorded. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
9.3 – Investments of the District 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the investment reports for March, 
April and May 2024 have been compiled, reviewed and sent to the board members 
prior to the meeting. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to approve and accept the investment reports 
for March, April and May 2024. Mr. Eller seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
9.4 – Unpaid Accounts Payable 

 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the District has outstanding accounts 
payable invoices that are not considered regular and routine for which the District 
has received the goods and services billed for under the invoices. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to authorize the general manager to pay the 
following items: 

1. ACCTP-20240719-01 - $2,526.00 – Allison, Bass & Magee, LLP 
2. ACCTP-20240719-02 - $270.00 – Allison, Bass & Magee, LLP 
3. ACCTP-20240719-03 - $747.05 – Tim Andruss – Travel 

Mr. Eller seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.5 – Annual Performance Report of the District 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on May 9, 2024, management 
compiled the annual performance report for the fiscal year ending September 30, 
2023.  Based on the review of the activities and projects of the Victoria County 
Groundwater Conservation District between October 1, 2022, and September 30, 
2023, and an assessment of the performance standards, management has 
determined that all goals and associated objectives established within the 
Management Plan of the District have been fully achieved during the fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2023. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 238 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 29 of 32 

 

 
The general manager acknowledged that the report was presented later than it 
should be and future reports would be submitted in the appropriate timeframe. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to accept and approve the annual performance 
report for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. Mr. Eller seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.6 – Financial Audit for FY2023 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on October 20, 2023, the Board 
accepted the offer of Goldman, Hunt and Notz, LLP to perform the financial audit 
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023, and authorize the firm to begin the 
audit upon development of the internal financial reports for September 30, 2023. 
 
Mr. Goldman was present and gave his report. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to accept and approve the financial audit for 
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. Mr. Eller seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.7 – Services Provided to Other GCDs 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the interlocal cooperation agreement 
between the District and Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, Texana GCD will 
automatically extend for 1 year on September 30, 2024 unless either of the parties 
to an agreement provides at least a 60 day notice of their intent to not renew the 
agreement to the other party.  The district must provide notice by August 1, 2024 to 
cooperating districts to prevent the automatic renewal of the agreement. 
 
On April 19, 2024, the board instructed staff to develop administrative options for 
providing services to cooperating GCDs in the future in response to concerns raised 
by management regarding performance.   
    
While many variables can be considered and addressed to suit the preferences of 
Board and the cooperating districts, three main options regarding support provided 
to cooperating districts have been developed with a focus on the budgetary aspects 
of each option from the perspective of the VCGCD:   

- Termination of Support to Cooperating Districts 
- Goal: cooperating district self-sufficiency and independence from 
the VCGCD by staffing the cooperating districts for FY2025. 

 - Short-Term Transition to Independent GCDs 
- Goal: cooperating district self-sufficiency and independence from 
the VCGCD by staffing the cooperating districts and reducing VCGCD 
staffing during a 2-year period. 

  - Long-Term Cooperation of GCDs 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 239 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 30 of 32 

 

- Goal: improvement of performance of VCGCD staff in providing 
services to the boards of the VCGCD and cooperating district by 
increasing VCGCD staffing to 7 full-time employees at a consolidated 
office for at least a 5-year period. 

 
The budgetary summaries for option 2 and 3 were developed on the presumption 
that all cooperating district would agree to the arrangement if proposed by the 
VCGCD. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to instruct the general manager to inform the other 
Districts that VCGCD will withdraw the current interlocal agreement and prepare 
the new 5-year agreement to be presented. Mr. Clements seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.8 – Preliminary Budget Information for FY2025 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained that staff will develop and present a 
budget for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025, at the meeting scheduled for 
August 16, 2024, that attempts to fund the operations of the District in a manner 
that provides for 1) the accomplishment of the management plan goals and 
objectives and 2) the completion of certain projects and tasks associated with the 
administration of the district, groundwater conservation, groundwater management 
and permitting, groundwater monitoring, groundwater policy development, 
groundwater protection, groundwater research, and groundwater resource 
planning, and 3) the avoidance of a budget deficit in Fiscal Year 2024-2025.   
    
Staff will develop the proposed budget anticipating the continued cooperation with 
and support of the cooperating district in accordance with guidance provided by the 
board under Matter For Consideration - MFC-20240719-9.7 - Services Provided to 
Other GCDs. 
    
The anticipated balance of the Operating Fund at the end of the fiscal year is 
$341,562.  The anticipated balance of the Reserve Fund at the end of the fiscal 
year is $2,088,904.  The GMA 15 Joint Planning Fund anticipated at the end of the 
fiscal year is $70,832. 
    
Staff will develop the proposed budget anticipating the commitment of the monies 
of the Reserve Fund in Fiscal Year 2024-2025 in accordance with the  
following schedule: 

- Groundwater Conservation: 5% 
- Groundwater Management: 25% 
- Groundwater Monitoring: 25% 
- Groundwater Protection: 10% 
- Groundwater Research: 5% 
- Groundwater Resource Planning: 5% 
- Legal Contingencies: 25% 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 240 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 31 of 32 

 

    
Staff will develop the proposed budget anticipating the approval of a tax rate equal 
to the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate calculated by the Tax Assessor-Collector for Tax 
Year 2024. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to authorize the general manager to publish the 
required tax rate notices for the district based on the lesser of the No-New-Revenue 
Tax Rate calculated by the Tax Assessor - Collector for Tax Year 2024 or the Tax 
Rate for Tax Year 2023. Mr. Clements seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
9.9 – Cyber Liability and Data Breach Response Coverage 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained TML has created a new cybersecurity 
insurance fund in response to increased financial exposure from cybercriminal 
behavior. TML is requiring all entities to deliberately “opt-in” to continue 
cybersecurity coverage. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to accept and opt-in to the Core+ edition of 
the TML Cyber Liability and Data Breach Response Coverage and authorize the 
general manager to submit any necessary documentation necessary to obtain the 
coverage for the District at a cost of $1,250.00. Mr. Eller seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 

 
10. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to legal counsel report. 
 
 10.0 – Legal Counsel Report 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Allison provided a verbal report regarding legal matters. 
 

Board Action: None. 
 
11. Adjourn. 
 
 11.0 – Adjourn Meeting 
 

Meeting Discussion: None. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to adjourn the meeting at 11:20 AM after concluding 
all business of the District. Mr. Clements seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

 
 
 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 241 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – July 19, 2024 | Page 32 of 32 

 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING MINUTES WERE READ AND APPROVED ON THIS  
 
 
THE ____________ DAY OF ________________________________ A.D. _________. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Director of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Director of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 242 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 1 of 12 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
VICTORIA COUNTY 
 
The Board of Directors of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District convened 
a meeting at the Dr. Pattie Dodson Health Center, 2805 N. Navarro St., Room 108, 
Victoria, Victoria County, Texas, 77901 on August 9, 2024, at 9:00 AM. 
 
Meeting Attendance: 

Precinct 1: Mr. Jerry Hroch, Vice President Present 
Precinct 2: Mr. Thurman Clements, Jr., Director Present 
Precinct 3: Mrs. Barbara Dietzel, Secretary Absent 
Precinct 4: Mr. Mark Meek, President Present 
At Large: Mr. Kenneth Eller, Director Absent 
General Manager: Mr. Timothy Andruss Present 
Legal Counsel: Mr. James Allison Absent 

 
Agenda Items - 
 
1.  Call the meeting to order and welcome guests.  
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Meek called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
2.  Receive public comments. 

 
Meeting Discussion:  None. 
 
Board Action: None. 

  
3.  Consideration of and possible action on matters related to Groundwater                     
Management including efforts and activities of the District regarding permitting, 
complaints, investigations, violations, and enforcement cases associated with 
permitting.  
 
4. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater 
protection including complaints, investigations, violations, and enforcement cases 
related to groundwater contamination and waste. 
 
5. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater 
monitoring. 
 
6. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater 
conservation. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 243 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 2 of 12 

 

7. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater resource 
planning including Groundwater Management Area 15 Joint Planning and regional 
water planning.  
 
8. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater policy 
including the Management Plan of the District and the Rules of the District. 
 
9. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to administration and 
management including the minutes of previous meetings, the annual budget of the 
district, financial reports of the district, bills and invoices of the district, 
management goals and objectives of the district, administrative policies, staffing, 
consultant agreements, interlocal cooperation agreements, and support services 
provided to and from other groundwater conservation districts. 
 
 9.0 – Report regarding Administration and Management 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss provided the following report: 
 
Regarding Employment Management for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Employee Health Benefits Enrollment. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Employee Retirement Plan Review. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Election Coordination for CY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Financial Audit for FY2023. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Investment Management for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Financial Record Processing and Reporting for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 244 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 3 of 12 

 

Regarding Budget Development for FY2025. 
 
On August 5, 2024, staff received notice that the County of Victoria would conduct 
a hearing regarding a tax abatement request for Portside Energy for a proposed 
battery energy storage and solar energy generating facility at the Port of Victoria 
Industrial Park South near Tx Hwy 185 and McCoy Road, Victoria County, Texas. 
 
Regarding Asset Tracking for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Public Funds Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Website Improvements. 
 
   No report.  
 
Regarding GIS Data Quality Control. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Public Notice and Meeting Coordination for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Public Notice and GMA 15 Meeting Coordination for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Performance Audit for FY2023. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Project Management for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Administrative Policy Review for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Transparency Reporting for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 245 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 4 of 12 

 

 
Regarding Cybersecurity Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Consultant Review for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Open Government Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding District Liability Insurance Review and Renewal. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Emergency Management Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding GCD Support for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Digital Record Archiving for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Physical Record Archiving for FY2024. 
 
    No report. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
9.1 – FY2025 Budget 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained that staff developed a recommended 
budget for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025, that attempts to fund the 
operations of the District in a manner that provides for 1) the accomplishment of the 
management plan goals and objectives, 2) the completion of certain projects and 
tasks associated with the administration of the district, groundwater conservation, 
groundwater management and permitting, groundwater monitoring, groundwater 
policy development, groundwater protection, groundwater research, and 
groundwater resource planning, and 3) avoid a budget deficit in Fiscal Year 2024-
2025. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 246 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 5 of 12 

 

    
Staff developed the proposed budget anticipating continued support of district 
operations of Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD with funding 
contributed to the district through new long-term interlocal cooperation agreements 
with Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD.  This budget 
anticipates significant increases in expenses related to full-time employees, 
employee wages and benefits, and office-related expenses. 
    
Staff developed the proposed budget anticipating the commitment of the monies of 
the Reserve Fund in Fiscal Year 2024-2025 in accordance with the 
following schedule: 

Groundwater Conservation: 5% 
Groundwater Management: 10% 
Groundwater Monitoring: 25% 
Groundwater Protection: 25% 
Groundwater Research: 5% 
Groundwater Resource Planning: 5% 
Legal Contingencies: 25% 

    
Staff developed the proposed budget anticipating the approval of a tax rate equal 
to the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate calculated by the Tax Assessor - Collector for 
Tax Year 2024.  The proposed revenue exceeds the proposed expenses for the 
operating fund by $53,800. 
 
Staff developed an alternate budget for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025, 
that attempts to fund the operations of the District in a manner that provides for 1) 
the accomplishment of the management plan goals and objectives, 2) the 
completion of certain projects and tasks associated with the administration of the 
district, groundwater conservation, groundwater management and permitting, 
groundwater monitoring, groundwater policy development, groundwater protection, 
groundwater research, and groundwater resource planning, and 3) avoid a budget 
deficit in Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 
    
Staff developed the alternate budget anticipating discontinued support of district 
operations of Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD without 
funding contributed to the district through interlocal cooperation agreements with 
Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD.  This budget anticipates 
significant decreases in expenses related to full-time employees, employee wages 
and benefits. 
    
Staff developed the alternate budget anticipating the commitment of the monies of 
the Reserve Fund in Fiscal Year 2024-2025 in accordance with the 
following schedule: 

Groundwater Conservation: 5% 
Groundwater Management: 10% 
Groundwater Monitoring: 25% 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 247 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 6 of 12 

 

Groundwater Protection: 25% 
Groundwater Research: 5% 
Groundwater Resource Planning: 5% 
Legal Contingencies: 25% 

    
Staff developed the alternate budget anticipating the approval of a tax rate equal to 
the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate calculated by the Tax Assessor - Collector for Tax 
Year 2024.  The proposed revenue exceeds the proposed expenses for the 
operating fund by $20,200. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to adopt the recommended budget for Fiscal 
Year 2025 by order and authorize the presiding officer to execute the draft interlocal 
agreements with the Calhoun County Groundwater Conservation District, the 
Refugio Groundwater Conservation District, and the Texana Groundwater 
Conservation District upon acceptance of the agreements by each cooperating 
district before August 30, 2024. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
9.2 – Tax Rate for TY2024 
 
Meeting Discussion: None. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to open the public hearing regarding the 
proposed tax rate at 9:21 AM. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Mr. Clements moved to close the public hearing after receiving no public comments 
regarding the proposed tax rate. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Clements moved to approve and adopt the proposed tax rate as the adopted 
tax rate by order. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.3 – Appraisal Roll for Tax Year 2024 
 
Meeting Discussion: None. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to accept and approve the appraisal roll for 
Tax Year 2024 and adopt the Order Approving the 2024 Appraisal Roll. Mr. Hroch 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
9.4 – Employee compensation and Benefits 

 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the District established pay scales for 
each type of employee with the previous adoptions of the budgets of the district.  
The scales are comprised of 5 steps with each incremental step representing a 5% 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 248 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 7 of 12 

 

increase in wage.  The scales are used to 1) establish budget recommendations 
and 2) establish pay rates for new employees, and 3) develop recommendations 
regarding merit-based pay increases for individual employees.   
    
The recommended budget expenditures of the budget anticipating long term 
cooperation with Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD for 
employment totals -$641,300. The total reflects the following changes: an increase 
of 2 full-time employee positions and reclassification of the office assistant position 
to an administrative coordinator position, the 5% increase of the pay scale for the 
specialist position, the adjustment of the wage charts by 2.9 % based on the change 
of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the southern region for the 12 months ending 
in June 2024.  The recommended budget expenditures for employment represents 
an increase of $174,900 as compared to Fiscal Year 2024 and are based on Step 
5 wage rates. The budgetary increase related to employment is offset by anticipated 
increases to revenue related to the long-term interlocal cooperation agreements 
extended to Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD as requested 
by the Board. 
    
Based on their performance during the current fiscal year and the state of the labor 
market, consideration of approving the following pay scheduled their pay scale 
steps is recommended for existing employees if each cooperating district adopts 
and approves the long term interlocal cooperation agreement as offered.   
 
The recommended budget expenditures of the budget anticipating no cooperation 
with Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD for employment totals 
-$304,870. The total reflects the following changes: a decrease of 2 full-time 
employee positions through the elimination of the administrative coordinator 
position and office assistant position, the 5% increase of the pay scale for the 
specialist position, the adjustment of the wage charts by 2.9 % based on the change 
of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the southern region for the 12 months ending 
in June 2024.  The recommended budget expenditures for employment represents 
a decrease of $129,740 as compared to Fiscal Year 2024 and are based on Step 
5 wage rates.   
    
Based on their performance during the current fiscal year and the state of the labor 
market, consideration of approving the following pay scheduled their pay scale 
steps is recommended for existing employees if any cooperating district fails to 
adopt and approve the long term interlocal cooperation agreement as offered. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to approve the recommended budget 
anticipating the long term cooperative arrangements with Calhoun County GCD, 
Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD, and each cooperating district adopts and 
approves the long term interlocal cooperation agreement as offered, move to:  

1. eliminate the office assistant position and layoff the existing employee 
effective September 30, 2024,  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 249 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 8 of 12 

 

2. establish the new administrative coordinator position, the new compliance 
specialist position, and the new monitoring technician position effective 
October 1, 2024,  
3. authorize the general manager, in coordination with the board president, 
to fill vacant positions during Fiscal Year 2025 in accordance with the 
adopted budget, and  
4. approve the recommended pay scales and pay steps for existing 
employees for fiscal year 2025. 

 
 Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
9.5 – DoD SkillBridge Program 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained Previously, the District has employed 
college students in internship positions to obtain temporary assistance with internal, 
administrative projects. These project have addressed needs in records 
management and database management.  The internships have been successful 
but not without employment costs.  
    
Management has recently learned of a program offered by the U.S. Department of 
Defense, referred to as SkillBridge.  The district could obtain similar valuable 
services, previously provided by college interns employed by the district, from 
service members leaving the military attempting to re-enter the civilian workforce.  
Additionally, the program would offer the district the opportunity to evaluate 
potential employees for future vacancies in technical positions. 
    
Per the webpage of the U.S. Department of Defense regarding SkillBridge 
(https://skillbridge.osd.mil/program-overview.htm): 
  
The DOD SkillBridge program is an opportunity for service members to gain 
valuable civilian work experience through specific industry training, 
apprenticeships, or internships during the last 180 days of service. DOD SkillBridge 
connects transitioning service members with industry partners in real-world job 
experiences. 
  
For service members, DOD SkillBridge provides an invaluable chance to work and 
learn in civilian career areas. For industry partners, DOD SkillBridge is an 
opportunity to access and leverage the world's most highly trained and motivated 
workforce at no cost. Service members participating in DOD SkillBridge programs 
continue receiving their military compensation and benefits, while industry partners 
provide the civilian training and work experience. 
    
Per the webpage of the U.S. Department of Defense regarding SkillBridge 
(https://skillbridge.osd.mil/faq.htm) 
  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 250 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 9 of 12 

 

Is the SkillBridge program partner responsible for a participating service 
member's medical care, disability, and workman's compensation if they are 
injured or die while participating in the SkillBridge program? 

No. The service member remains employed by the Department of 
Defense. `The service member's parent service will continue to be 
responsible for all pay and benefits for the member during their period of 
participation in the SkillBridge program. 
Can an industry partner participate in the SkillBridge program if they are not 
located near a military installation? 

Yes. Service members may seek command approval to relocate to 
participate in a SkillBridge opportunity that is not located near their 
current installation. 

Are authorized SkillBridge industry partners required to accept every service 
member that applies? 

No. Industry partners are responsible for screening and selecting 
candidates for participation in their SkillBridge opportunity. Industry 
partners are encouraged to display the qualifications for their 
SkillBridge opportunity on the website. 

Does an industry partner have to maintain a minimum number of participants 
in their SkillBridge program? 

Yes. Industry partners must agree to accept at least the minimum 
number of SkillBridge candidates annually based on organizational 
size. Minimum requirements include: small business organization with 
200 or fewer employees – at least 1 candidate per year; ... 

 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to authorize the general manager to submit an 
inquiry form and apply to the SkillBridge Program. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.6 – Review of Consultants 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained that the district has obtain services 
from Jim Allison of Allison, Bass and Magee, Steve Young of Intera, Inc., and Dr. 
Venkatesh Uddameri in the past under approved agreements.  The deliverables 
submitted through the services provided by each consultant have been considered 
acceptable by the district.  The District entered into an agreement with Daniel B. 
Stephens and Associates in FY2024 but has not yet sought support from the firm 
nor received any deliverables to evaluate.    
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to 1) authorized the general manager to seek 
term extensions until September 30, 2025, to the existing agreements with Intera, 
Inc., Daniel B. Stephens and Associates, and Venkatesh Uddameri, and 2) the 
president to approve the extensions to the respective service agreements. Mr. 
Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.7 – FY2025 Budgetary Authorizations 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 251 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 10 of 12 

 

 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained in order to efficiently administer the 
operations of the district, the board has granted limited authority to the general 
manager to spend funds on certain expenses that are referred to regular and routine 
expenses within the constraints of the approved budget.  This authorization applies 
to expenses such as payroll, subscription services, lease payments and so on.  
Other expenses require board consideration and explicit authorization from the 
board to pay such as invoices from technical consultants and contractors as well 
as any non-payroll-related payment to the general manager (e.g., travel and 
expense reimbursements).  Regardless of the procedure under which authorization 
is obtained to spend funds, all expenditure transactions (as well as revenue 
transactions) are presented to the board for review and oversight within the meeting 
packets of regular meetings. 
    
When appropriate, the authorization to make payment on non-routine expense is 
obtained when the associated financial obligation is authorized by the board.  This 
frequently occurs when the Board accepts a proposal from a technical consultant. 
    
However, in some instances, this procedure proves to be inefficient and hinders 
ability management to administer the projects of the district designed to achieve the 
operational objectives of the district.  This circumstance frequently arises in 
instances where the district seeks to sponsor external activities such as proposals 
to promote water conservation or have a technical matter addressed by a 
consultant. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to 1) authorized general manager to engage 
and pay consultants under the agreements approved by the board and 2) authorize 
the general manager to award sponsorships and pay the corresponding expenses 
in accordance with the approved operational budget of the district. Mr. Hroch 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.8 – FY2024 Budget Amendments 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained based on a review of the financial 
transactions recorded by the district through May 31, 2024 and correction of 
assignment of expenses to budget programs and budget categories, the following 
amendments are recommended for consideration by the Board. 
 
If approved, the budget surplus anticipated at September 30, 2024 would increase 
from $127,800 to $263,800. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to approve the recommended amendments to 
the FY2024 Budget. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
9.9 – Annual Report of the District 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 252 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 11 of 12 

 

 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on July 19, 2024, the board accepted 
and approved the annual performance report for the fiscal ear ending September 
30, 2023. 
 
On July 22, 2024, management identified and corrected errors within the report. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to accept and approve the annual performance 
report for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023, as revised on July 22, 2024. 
Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
10. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to legal counsel report. 
 
11. Adjourn. 
 
 11.0 – Adjourn Meeting 
 

Meeting Discussion: None. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Clements moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:43 AM after 
concluding all business of the District. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING MINUTES WERE READ AND APPROVED ON THIS  
 
 
THE ____________ DAY OF ________________________________ A.D. _________. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Director of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 253 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – August 9, 2024 | Page 12 of 12 

 

 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Director of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 254 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – September 12, 2024 | Page 1 of 7 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
VICTORIA COUNTY 
 
The Board of Directors of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District convened 
a meeting at the Dr. Pattie Dodson Health Center, 2805 N. Navarro St., Room 108, 
Victoria, Victoria County, Texas, 77901 on September 12, 2024, at 9:00 AM. 
 
Meeting Attendance: 

Precinct 1: Mr. Jerry Hroch, Vice President Present 
Precinct 2: Mr. Thurman Clements, Jr., Director Absent 
Precinct 3: Mrs. Barbara Dietzel, Secretary Absent 
Precinct 4: Mr. Mark Meek, President Present 
At Large: Mr. Kenneth Eller, Director Present 
General Manager: Mr. Timothy Andruss Present 
Legal Counsel: Mr. James Allison Absent 

 
Agenda Items - 
 
1.  Call the meeting to order and welcome guests.  
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Meek called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
2.  Receive public comments. 

 
Meeting Discussion:  None. 
 
Board Action: None. 

  
3.  Consideration of and possible action on matters related to Groundwater                     
Management including efforts and activities of the District regarding permitting, 
complaints, investigations, violations, and enforcement cases associated with 
permitting.  
 
4. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater 
protection including complaints, investigations, violations, and enforcement cases 
related to groundwater contamination and waste. 
 
5. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater 
monitoring. 
 
6. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater 
conservation. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 255 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – September 12, 2024 | Page 2 of 7 
 

7. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater resource 
planning including Groundwater Management Area 15 Joint Planning and regional 
water planning.  
 
8. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to groundwater policy 
including the Management Plan of the District and the Rules of the District. 
 
9. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to administration and 
management including the minutes of previous meetings, the annual budget of the 
district, financial reports of the district, bills and invoices of the district, 
management goals and objectives of the district, administrative policies, staffing, 
consultant agreements, interlocal cooperation agreements, and support services 
provided to and from other groundwater conservation districts. 
 
 9.0 – Report regarding Administration and Management 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss provided the following report: 
 
Regarding Employment Management for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Employee Health Benefits Enrollment. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Employee Retirement Plan Review. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Election Coordination for CY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Financial Audit for FY2023. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Investment Management for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Financial Record Processing and Reporting for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 256 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – September 12, 2024 | Page 3 of 7 
 

Regarding Budget Development for FY2025. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Asset Tracking for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Public Funds Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Website Improvements. 
 
   No report.  
 
Regarding GIS Data Quality Control. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Public Notice and Meeting Coordination for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Public Notice and GMA 15 Meeting Coordination for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Performance Audit for FY2023. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Project Management for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Administrative Policy Review for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Transparency Reporting for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Cybersecurity Training for FY2024. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 257 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – September 12, 2024 | Page 4 of 7 
 

   No report. 
 
Regarding Consultant Review for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Open Government Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding District Liability Insurance Review and Renewal. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Emergency Management Training for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding GCD Support for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Digital Record Archiving for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Physical Record Archiving for FY2024. 
 
    No report. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
9.1 – Election Matters 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the Secretary of State Office has 
published Election Advisory 2024-17. Within the advisory, a number of key dates 
are identified regarding the upcoming elections: 

- Monday, August 19, 2024 (78th day before Election Day) 
- Political Subdivisions Other Than Counties: 5:00 p.m. — Last day 
for a candidate in a political subdivision (other than a county) to file 
an application for a place on the ballot for general election for officers 
for most political subdivisions, except as otherwise provided by the 
Texas Election Code. (Secs. 143.007(c), 144.005(d), Election Code; 
Sec. 11.055, Education Code; Chapter 286, Health & Safety Code). 
See Candidacy Filing outline for more details. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 258 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – September 12, 2024 | Page 5 of 7 
 

- Political Subdivisions Other Than Counties (General Election): 
Deadline for political subdivisions to order a general election to be 
held on Tuesday, November 5, 2024. (Sec. 3.005). 

- Friday, August 23, 2024 (74th day before Election Day) 
- Political Subdivisions Other Than Counties: 5:00 p.m. — Deadline 
for write-in candidates to file Declarations of Write-In Candidacy 
(PDF) for regular officers for city, school district, library district, junior 
college district, hospital district, common school districts, Chapter 36 
and 49 Water Code districts, and other political subdivision elections, 
unless otherwise provided by law. (Secs. 144.006(b), 146.054(b), 
146.055, Election Code; Secs. 11.056, 11.304, 130.0825, Education 
Code; Secs. 326.0431, 326.0432, Local Government Code; Sec. 
285.131, Health and Safety Code; Secs. 36.059, 49.101, 63.0945, 
Water Code). See Candidacy Filing outline and Local Candidates’ 
Guide for more information. 

- Monday, August 26, 2024 (71st day before Election Day) 
- Political Subdivisions Other Than Counties: Recommended first day 
that a general or special election must be cancelled if all filing 
deadlines have passed, each candidate for an office listed on the 
ballot is unopposed (except as discussed below), and write-in votes 
may be counted only for names appearing on a list of write-in 
candidates. The Certification of Unopposed Candidates for Other 
Political Subdivisions (PDF) may be used to certify candidates as 
unopposed. Also, see our Sample Order of Cancellation (PDF). 

      
The terms of the following offices are scheduled to expire in November 2024: 

- Director, Precinct 2; (currently held by Thurman Clements Jr.) 
- Director, Precinct 4; (currently held by Mark Meek) 
- Director, At-Large; (currently held by Kenneth Eller) 

 
As of September 10, 2024, the District had not received applications for a place on 
the ballot. 
      
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to cancel the election for all positions by order. Mr. 
Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.2 – FY2024 and FY2025 Budget Amendments 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained with the execution of the interlocal 
cooperation agreements with Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana 
GCD, staff have drafted appropriate revision to the FY2024 and FY2025 budgets 
to accurately reflect the funds to be contributed before September 30, 2024 and the 
funds to be contributed during FY2025 by the cooperating districts. 
 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 259 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – September 12, 2024 | Page 6 of 7 
 

Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to approve the recommended amendments to the 
FY2024 Budget and the FY2025 Budget. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.3 – Office Consolidation and Equipment 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained with the execution of the interlocal 
cooperation agreement for administrative services through September 30, 2029, 
with Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD, staff need to prepare 
for the consolidation of the cooperating GCD offices with the VCGCD office. 
    
Staff is investigating options to relocate the office of the district to the office building 
at 311 E. Constitution St in Victoria (Old Victoria Advocate Building) which is owned 
by the County of Victoria.  Staff estimate that the new office space would need to 
be approximately 2,300 sf in size to accommodate staff, storage, and a large 
meeting room for board meetings. 
    
On September 10, 2024, the RGCD Board passed a motion to authorize 1) the sale 
of any office furniture and equipment to VCGCD for a fair market value as 
determined by VCGCD Board and 2) the donation of the remaining office and 
equipment to the Refugio County Animal Control Office on the condition that the 
office properly dispose of all unwanted and remaining furniture and equipment in 
the office, within the limits of the law.   The RGCD possesses two desks, 2 work 
tables, six chairs, and an office printer that would be of use to the district during the 
transition period.   
    
On September 11, 2024, Mr. Allison informed me that transfer of assets from RGCD 
to VCGCD would require an interlocal cooperation agreement for that purpose.   
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to authorize the general manager to undertake the 
administrative consolidation of the offices of CCGCD, RGCD, and TGCD with the 
VCGCD office including the consolidation of phone lines and mailing addresses to 
a common post office box. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
10. Consideration of and possible action on matters related to legal counsel report. 
 
11. Adjourn. 
 
 11.0 – Adjourn Meeting 
 

Meeting Discussion: None. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Eller moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:54 AM after concluding 
all business of the District. Mr. Hroch seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 260 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 

2805 N. Navarro St. Suite 210, Victoria, TX   77901, Phone (361) 579-6863, FAX (361) 579-0041           
VCGCD Minutes – September 12, 2024 | Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 
 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING MINUTES WERE READ AND APPROVED ON THIS  
 
 
THE ____________ DAY OF ________________________________ A.D. _________. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Director of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Director of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District  

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 261 of 358



VCGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control
Review Reports - ICRR-20240630-01 -
June 2024
Victoria CountyGroundwater Conservation DistrictInternal Control Review Report

Reporting Period Start: 6/1/24
Reporting Period Stop: 6/30/24

Related Documentation

Bank Statement Links:  
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240604-01 - CD# 2625 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240604-02 - CD# 2629 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240608-01 - CD# 2801 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240608-02 - CD# 2802 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240622-01 - CD# 2680 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-01 - CD# 0518 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-02 - CD# 0519 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-03 - CD# 0520 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-04 - CD# 0521 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240630-01 - Prosperity 7120 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240630-02 - Prosperity 5242 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240630-03 - Prosperity 3566 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240630-04 - Prosperity 3881 - RECONCILED
List of UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs) Note Links:  

List of UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs) Note Links:

List of VOIDED Check Note Links:  

List of CANCELLED Transaction Note Links:

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 262 of 358

https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/66fff4e6-ced6-bcd1-f965-84170d626443
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/9307b71e-4f70-a986-008a-4dc6dc31680f
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/7e941d2a-65ca-f9f6-0fb0-42f2b9d0d57d
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/be9876d3-5fc1-5826-f00f-1ba4b76eac2d
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/7655e0bb-b163-657c-73cc-7f5632bd60d4
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/d78eb28f-567e-6b3c-437a-37bee1c2d2c8
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/687f0eae-e927-4f7a-24ea-09248f76984f
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/120fc323-4121-f45b-67c9-aeace12c2572
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/a2677d65-b56c-3e01-4083-a4b1c68a8a3c
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/aec2f061-2506-2d13-b7ec-4493f739c6fe
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/39822e5e-8a9a-5f54-a7d3-c7fcaf77fb97
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/71b3104c-7ec4-3632-0ceb-fea2184f03ec
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/9ea98194-b632-cdb2-a74a-e4bc6058525a


List of COLLATERAL RECORD Note Links:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs)Notes:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs)Notes:  

List of transaction notes related to EMPLOYEE PAYROLL PAYMENTS Notes:  

Internal Control Review

Question #1:  Are bank statements and reconciliation forms consistent and balanced?
 Yes
Comments:  

Question#2:  Are dual signatures present on all checks?  Yes
Comments:

Question#3:  Are all expenditures associated with employees, including credit card
expenditures, or contractors appropriate and properly authorized?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#3a:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for heath benefits (TML) comport with
withholdings and contribution made for health benefits with the associated payroll
payment transactions?  
Note:

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Collateral Records - CR-20240630-01 - Prosperity Bank - June 20241.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240603-01 - $6,172.08 - May Payroll -
Tim Andruss - TR-20240603-01-D - $6,172.08 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

1.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240603-02 - $3,798.38 - May Payroll -
Caitlynn Davenport - TR-20240603-02-D - $3,798.38 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

2.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240603-03 - $4,187.62 - May Payroll -
Mike Benavides - TR-20240603-03-D - $4,187.62 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

3.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240603-04 - $2,929.87 - May Payroll -
Candace Whittley - TR-20240603-04-D - $2,929.87 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

4.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240603-05 - $3,673.58 - May Payroll -
Brent Immenhauser - TR-20240603-05-D - $3,673.58 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

5.

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 263 of 358

https://share.evernote.com/note/cf5ca6a9-04d8-d0f3-f558-1ea8a9131e52
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/ceedacf6-e426-bcc9-8f0f-fa0f9dfd1276
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/ceedacf6-e426-bcc9-8f0f-fa0f9dfd1276
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/1920df96-5fa0-543b-3522-916e1b504a12
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/1920df96-5fa0-543b-3522-916e1b504a12
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/278f4671-4ad9-9608-53b5-f0ff2f3dd658
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/278f4671-4ad9-9608-53b5-f0ff2f3dd658
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/8940dfe8-68c6-1acd-8518-cdc2c8beb644
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/8940dfe8-68c6-1acd-8518-cdc2c8beb644
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/aba8be10-3544-8915-825e-f51aea6126f8
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/aba8be10-3544-8915-825e-f51aea6126f8


Question#3b:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for pension benefits (TCDRS) comport with
withholdings and contribution made for pension benefits with the associated payroll
payment transactions?  Yes
Difference: Group Term Life Premiums

Question#3c:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for taxes (IRS) comport with withholdings and
contribution made for taxes with the associated payroll payment transactions?  Yes

Anticipated Number of Covered Employees for Reporting Period: 5

Anticipated Total Monthly Premium for Reporting Period:  $ 2,578.95

Total of Employee Withholdings for Health Benefits: $78.95

Total of District Contributions for Health Benefits: $ 2,500.00

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $ 2,578.95

Number of Covered Employees on Invoice: 5

Health Benefit (TML) Payment Amount: $ 2,560.45

Total of Employee Withholdings for Pension Benefits: $1,955.13

Total of District Contributions for Pension Benefits: $3,910.24

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $5,865.37

Pension Benefit (TCDRS) Payment Amount: $5,907.26

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 264 of 358



Question#3d:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for unemployment (TWC) comport with
withholdings and contribution made for unemployment with the associated payroll
payment transactions?   Yes

Question#4:  Are all electronic transactions (drafts and transfers) appropriate and
properly documented?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#5:  Are all voided checks properly marked and recorded?  Yes
Comments:

Question#6:  Does the market valueof the pledged collateral and FDIC insurance exceed
the total of investments per banking institution?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#7:  Do the external financial recordscomport with internal financial records of
the District?  Yes

Total of Employee Withholdings for Taxes: $5,134.64

Total of District Contributions for Taxes: $2,130.61

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $7,265.22

Taxes (IRS) Payment Amount: $7,265.22

Total of Employee Withholdings for
Unemployment:

$0.00

Total of District Contributions for Unemployment: $0.00

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $0.00

Taxes (TWC) Payment Amount: $0.00

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 265 of 358



Comments:

Certification:

I certify that I have reviewed the documentation referenced above and the answers provided
to the questions are true and accurate.

____________________________________          ________________
Signature of District Official                                       Date

____________________________________
Name of District Official

PDF of Executed Report:

Note Template Link: VCGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control Review Reports - ICRR-
YYYYMMDD-SQ - REPORTINGPERIODSTOPDATE

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 266 of 358

evernote:///view/208335221/s280/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/fa379f58-76a5-4e33-afd9-77f67a016d6e
evernote:///view/208335221/s280/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/fa379f58-76a5-4e33-afd9-77f67a016d6e


File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/15/2024: 4:36 PM

Institution Type CUSIP Description
Safekeeping 
Location

Safekeeping 
Receipt

Credit 
Rating

Market Value

Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance - Demand DepositsN/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$       
Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance - Time Deposits N/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WBAD7 FNMA #AS1803 FHLB AAA -$                   
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MMT86 FHLMC #G18574 FHLB AAA 127,998.35$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WJAC2 FNMA #AS8102 FHLB AAA 342,341.47$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MMVQ3 FNMA #G18622 FHLB AAA 751,418.41$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WJN53 FNMA #AS8511 FHLB AAA 196,997.57$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418DXG2 FNMA #MA4278 FHLB AAA 682,541.92$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3132J4HD4 FHLMS #G30927 FHLB AAA 395,508.25$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418D5F5 FNMA #MA4445 FHLB AAA 266,762.72$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418ECD0 FNMA #MS4567 FHLB AAA 206,392.55$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418EDH0 FNMA #MA4603 FHLB AAA -$                   
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3140Q8Z81 FNMA CRA #CA1666 FHLB AAA 381,131.28$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WFAL0 FNMA #AS5410 FHLB AAA 49,656.08$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31307U2S6 FHLMC #J37985 FHLB AAA 227,260.69$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MFKH0 FHLMC #G16396 FHLB AAA 50,681.38$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MMX57 FHLMC #G18699 FHLB AAA 299,919.66$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31417CWC5 FNMA #AB6042 FHLB AAA 233,986.15$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31307BY79 FHLMC #J23434 FHLB AAA -$                   
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3132D6AC4 FR #SB8103 FHLB AAA 118,042.15$       

-$                   
Total 4,830,638.63$    
The funds of the District are adquately protected by FDIC Insurance and pledged collateral.

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Collateral Report Page 1 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 267 of 358



File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/15/2024: 4:36 PM

Bank Account Account Statement
Reconciled Bank 
Statement

Fund
 Reported Balance 

as of the Start of the 
Fiscal Year 

Total of 
Recorded Credit 

Transactions 
for Fiscal Year

Total of 
Recorded Debit 

Transactions 
for Fiscal Year

Calculated 
Balance

Current Reported 
Balance

Unreconciled 
Amount

Prosperity 3566 Prosperity 3566 : BS-20240630-03: DATE: 06/30/2024 BS-20240630-03 Operating 68,256.45$               656,546.56$      (526,798.43)$    198,004.58$      198,004.58$        -$                  

Prosperity 7120 Prosperity 7120 : BS-20240630-01: DATE: 06/30/2024 BS-20240630-01 Operating 275,713.40$             6,260.22$          -$                  281,973.62$      281,973.62$        -$                  

Prosperity 5242 Prosperity 5242 : BS-20240630-02: DATE: 06/30/2024 BS-20240630-02 Reserve 1,476,612.27$          765,900.37$      (500,000.00)$    1,742,512.64$   1,742,512.64$     -$                  

Prosperity 3881 Prosperity 3881 : BS-20240630-04: DATE: 06/30/2024 BS-20240630-04 Planning -$                          71,286.99$        (446.07)$           70,840.92$        70,840.92$          -$                  

Prosperity CD 2625 Prosperity CD 2625 : BS-20240604-01: DATE: 06/04/2024BS-20240604-01 Reserve 160,008.19$             3,736.44$          -$                  163,744.63$      163,744.63$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2629 Prosperity CD 2629 : BS-20240604-02: DATE: 06/04/2024BS-20240604-02 Reserve 161,646.99$             2,685.09$          -$                  164,332.08$      164,332.08$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2680 Prosperity CD 2680 : BS-20240622-01: DATE: 06/22/2024BS-20240622-01 Reserve 161,167.17$             4,091.46$          -$                  165,258.63$      165,258.63$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2801 Prosperity CD 2801 : BS-20240608-01: DATE: 06/08/2024BS-20240608-01 Reserve 259,719.36$             3,853.66$          -$                  263,573.02$      263,573.02$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2802 Prosperity CD 2802 : BS-20240608-02: DATE: 06/08/2024BS-20240608-02 Reserve 259,719.36$             3,853.66$          -$                  263,573.02$      263,573.02$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0518 Prosperity CD 0518 : BS-20240629-01: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-01 Reserve 254,239.74$             6,435.62$          -$                  260,675.36$      260,675.36$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0519 Prosperity CD 0519 : BS-20240629-02: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-02 Reserve 254,239.74$             6,435.62$          -$                  260,675.36$      260,675.36$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0520 Prosperity CD 0520 : BS-20240629-03: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-03 Reserve 254,112.67$             6,244.68$          -$                  260,357.35$      260,357.35$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0521 Prosperity CD 0521 : BS-20240629-04: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-04 Reserve 254,112.67$             6,244.68$          -$                  260,357.35$      260,357.35$        -$                  
Total 3,839,548.01$          1,543,575.05$   (1,027,244.50)$ 4,355,878.56$   4,355,878.56$     -$                  

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Account Reconciliation Report Page 2 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 268 of 358



File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/15/2024: 4:36 PM

Budget Program  Budget Amount 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
Mid Year 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
End of Year 

 Budget Amount 
(Amended)  Transaction Total Budget Balance

1001 - Administration - Revenue 1,035,100.00$        35,000.00$             -$                        1,070,100.00$        1,043,575.05$        (26,600.00)$            
1002 - Administration - Employment (466,400.00)$          -$                        -$                        (466,400.00)$          (303,190.20)$          163,300.00$           
1003 - Administration - Technology (24,700.00)$            (10,000.00)$            -$                        (34,700.00)$            (24,020.76)$            10,700.00$             
1004 - Administration - General (210,600.00)$          19,000.00$             -$                        (191,600.00)$          (144,642.99)$          47,000.00$             
2000 - Groundwater Conservation (43,000.00)$            15,000.00$             -$                        (28,000.00)$            (9,040.01)$              19,000.00$             
3000 - Groundwater Management (5,000.00)$              -$                        -$                        (5,000.00)$              (1,763.33)$              3,300.00$               
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (131,100.00)$          69,000.00$             -$                        (62,100.00)$            (36,642.21)$            25,500.00$             
5000 - Groundwater Policy (1,000.00)$              -$                        -$                        (1,000.00)$              (445.00)$                 600.00$                  
6000 - Groundwater Protection (17,500.00)$            -$                        -$                        (17,500.00)$            -$                        17,500.00$             
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning (8,000.00)$              (2,000.00)$              -$                        (10,000.00)$            (7,500.00)$              2,500.00$               
Total 127,800.00$           126,000.00$           -$                        253,800.00$           516,330.55$           262,800.00$           

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance by Program Page 3 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 269 of 358



File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/15/2024: 4:36 PM

Budget Category  Budget Amount 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
Mid Year 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
End of Year 

 Budget Amount 
(Amended)  Transaction Total Budget Balance

0120 - Tax Collections 748,700.00$          -$                       -$                       748,700.00$          732,269.12$          (16,500.00)$           
0130 - Interest Income 35,000.00$            35,000.00$            -$                       70,000.00$            83,809.10$            13,900.00$            
0140 - District Fees - GCD Management and Operations Cost-Sharing Fees 251,400.00$          -$                       -$                       251,400.00$          155,736.83$          (95,700.00)$           
0143 - District Fees - Permitting -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       450.00$                 500.00$                 
0145 - District Fees - Enforcement -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       60.00$                   100.00$                 
0150 - Grants -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
0160 - Refunds -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
0215 - District Fees - Legislative Services Cost-Sharing Fees -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
0300 - Reserve Funds -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
110 - Employee Wages - Managerial (112,500.00)$         -$                       -$                       (112,500.00)$         (74,982.32)$           37,600.00$            
120 - Employee Wages - Technicial (119,000.00)$         -$                       -$                       (119,000.00)$         (75,796.00)$           43,300.00$            
130 - Employee Wages - Administrative (100,600.00)$         -$                       -$                       (100,600.00)$         (67,300.65)$           33,300.00$            
140 - Employee Benefits - Health (30,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (30,000.00)$           (20,000.00)$           10,000.00$            
150 - Employee Benefits - Retirement (49,300.00)$           -$                       -$                       (49,300.00)$           (30,858.18)$           18,500.00$            
160 - Employment Fees - Social Security and Medicare (27,400.00)$           -$                       -$                       (27,400.00)$           (16,410.33)$           11,000.00$            
170 - Employment Fees - State Unemployment (1,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (1,500.00)$             (635.86)$                900.00$                 
180 - Employment Fees - Accrued Leave Conversion (26,100.00)$           -$                       -$                       (26,100.00)$           (11,635.97)$           14,500.00$            
190 - Employment Deductions and Withholdings -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       (21,849.22)$           (21,900.00)$           
210 - Legal Services (25,000.00)$           10,000.00$            -$                       (15,000.00)$           (6,833.75)$             8,200.00$              
215 - Legislative and Administrative Action Representation Services (5,000.00)$             5,000.00$              -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
220 - Professional and Technical Services (40,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (40,000.00)$           (140.19)$                39,900.00$            
221 - Professional and Technical Services - Auditor (20,000.00)$           5,000.00$              -$                       (15,000.00)$           (14,275.00)$           800.00$                 
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (50,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (50,000.00)$           (47,272.81)$           2,800.00$              
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (14,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (14,000.00)$           (8,980.66)$             5,100.00$              
224 - Professional and Technical Services - Accountant (2,400.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,400.00)$             (550.00)$                1,900.00$              
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist (37,500.00)$           2,000.00$              -$                       (35,500.00)$           (15,000.00)$           20,500.00$            
226 - Professional and Technical Services - Laboratory (10,000.00)$           5,000.00$              -$                       (5,000.00)$             (397.00)$                4,700.00$              
230 - Insurance and Bonds (4,300.00)$             (1,000.00)$             -$                       (5,300.00)$             (5,053.10)$             300.00$                 
310 - Supplies - Office (6,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (6,500.00)$             (3,602.49)$             2,900.00$              
311 - Supplies - Field (2,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,000.00)$             (896.66)$                1,200.00$              
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (2,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,500.00)$             (2,029.80)$             500.00$                 
325 - Fuel (3,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (3,000.00)$             (1,398.34)$             1,700.00$              
330 - Training and Travel Expenses (6,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (6,500.00)$             (7,295.08)$             (800.00)$                
340 - Membership/Dues/Subscriptions (1,400.00)$             -$                       -$                       (1,400.00)$             (1,615.00)$             (300.00)$                
350 - Lease (22,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (22,000.00)$           (19,964.88)$           2,100.00$              
360 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing (500.00)$                -$                       -$                       (500.00)$                63,303.93$            63,900.00$            
361 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Well Plugging (2,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,500.00)$             -$                       2,500.00$              
362 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Borehole Logging (5,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (5,000.00)$             -$                       5,000.00$              
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion (43,000.00)$           15,000.00$            -$                       (28,000.00)$           (3,831.10)$             24,200.00$            
380 - Aquifer Monitoring Network Development (85,000.00)$           50,000.00$            -$                       (35,000.00)$           (19,680.00)$           15,400.00$            
410 - Equipment - Office (1,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (1,000.00)$             -$                       1,000.00$              
415 - Equipment - Field (10,000.00)$           10,000.00$            -$                       -$                       (4,819.46)$             (4,900.00)$             
420 - Technology Services - Office Productivity (6,200.00)$             -$                       -$                       (6,200.00)$             (2,307.44)$             3,900.00$              
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (500.00)$                (10,000.00)$           -$                       (10,500.00)$           (13,009.48)$           (2,600.00)$             
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (7,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (7,000.00)$             (1,218.50)$             5,800.00$              
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (600.00)$                -$                       -$                       (600.00)$                -$                       600.00$                 
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (4,700.00)$             -$                       -$                       (4,700.00)$             (3,896.86)$             900.00$                 
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (2,800.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,800.00)$             (1,011.35)$             1,800.00$              
436 - Technology Services - Internet (2,400.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,400.00)$             (2,577.13)$             (200.00)$                
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (9,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (9,500.00)$             (5,803.17)$             3,700.00$              
500 - Public Notices and Publications (7,900.00)$             -$                       -$                       (7,900.00)$             (5,654.95)$             2,300.00$              
900 - Miscellaneous (200.00)$                -$                       -$                       (200.00)$                (715.70)$                (600.00)$                
Total 127,800.00$          126,000.00$          -$                       253,800.00$          516,330.55$          263,700.00$          

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance by Category Page 4 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 270 of 358



VCGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control
Review Reports - ICRR-20240731-01 -
July 2024
Victoria CountyGroundwater Conservation DistrictInternal Control Review Report

Reporting Period Start: 7/1/24
Reporting Period Stop: 7/31/24

Related Documentation

Bank Statement Links:  
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-01 - CD# 0518 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-02 - CD# 0519 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-03 - CD# 0520 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-04 - CD# 0521 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240704-01 - CD# 2625 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240704-02 - CD# 2629 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240708-01 - CD# 2801 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240708-02 - CD# 2802 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240722-01 - CD# 2680 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240731-01 - Prosperity 7120 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240731-02 - Prosperity 5242 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240731-03 - Prosperity 3566 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240731-04 - Prosperity 3881 - RECONCILED
List of UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs) Note Links:  

List of UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs) Note Links:

List of VOIDED Check Note Links:  

List of CANCELLED Transaction Note Links:

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 271 of 358

https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/d78eb28f-567e-6b3c-437a-37bee1c2d2c8
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/687f0eae-e927-4f7a-24ea-09248f76984f
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/120fc323-4121-f45b-67c9-aeace12c2572
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/a2677d65-b56c-3e01-4083-a4b1c68a8a3c
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/07aa1e24-9e5f-eff7-06d8-7d7fcb89a0d8
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/134a7718-929a-8cc0-1ebd-13d63aad77bf
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/2c0d54a8-9152-3519-7a86-3b4a7a852e72
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/3f72f5a1-f3ca-387e-e3f1-8e31f3a58810
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/0e646d1e-e52f-0067-7313-57cfb0447b2f
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/9f3a7a9e-2de3-7f22-298f-37873f66949d
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/0e5680bd-9cdc-bc33-dea7-9ccf313c6788
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/93156144-e38e-495f-7014-ca5f871492e5
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/24430833-f8f9-7e39-b059-265c111a90d7


List of COLLATERAL RECORD Note Links:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs)Notes:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs)Notes:  

List of transaction notes related to EMPLOYEE PAYROLL PAYMENTS Notes:  

Internal Control Review

Question #1:  Are bank statements and reconciliation forms consistent and balanced?
 Yes
Comments:  

Question#2:  Are dual signatures present on all checks?  Yes
Comments:

Question#3:  Are all expenditures associated with employees, including credit card
expenditures, or contractors appropriate and properly authorized?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#3a:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for heath benefits (TML) comport with
withholdings and contribution made for health benefits with the associated payroll
payment transactions?  
Note:

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Collateral Records - CR-20240731-01 - Prosperity Bank - July 20241.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240701-05 - $3,214.29 - June Payroll -
Brent Immenhuaser - TR-20240701-05-D - $3,214.29 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

1.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240701-04 - $2,564.98 - June Payroll -
Candace Whittley - TR-20240701-04-D - $2,564.98 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

2.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240701-03 - $3,679.89 - June Payroll -
Mike Benavides - TR-20240701-03-D - $3,679.89 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

3.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240701-02 - $3,798.37 - June Payroll -
Caitlynn Davenport - TR-20240701-02-D - $3,798.37 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

4.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240701-01 - $6,172.10 - June Payroll -
Tim Andruss - TR-20240701-01-D - $6,172.10 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

5.

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 272 of 358

https://share.evernote.com/note/483dc51d-efb1-51e1-4a2a-45f3593f4eb7
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/d659dbdf-979a-ea18-196a-dad2f9f179a3
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/d659dbdf-979a-ea18-196a-dad2f9f179a3
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/f031a099-74b6-8d25-e62a-2d11f87b8825
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/f031a099-74b6-8d25-e62a-2d11f87b8825
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/6e6216a7-628d-2560-4c5e-112e2c116cb3
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/6e6216a7-628d-2560-4c5e-112e2c116cb3
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/afc6bd51-ee6c-7e03-e523-f71fc8918ae7
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/afc6bd51-ee6c-7e03-e523-f71fc8918ae7
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/61191232-5867-83ac-50fe-3f1effb34d87
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/61191232-5867-83ac-50fe-3f1effb34d87


Question#3b:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for pension benefits (TCDRS) comport with
withholdings and contribution made for pension benefits with the associated payroll
payment transactions?  Yes
Difference: Group Term Life Premiums

Question#3c:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for taxes (IRS) comport with withholdings and
contribution made for taxes with the associated payroll payment transactions?  Yes

Anticipated Number of Covered Employees for Reporting Period: 5

Anticipated Total Monthly Premium for Reporting Period:  $ 2,578.95

Total of Employee Withholdings for Health Benefits: $78.95

Total of District Contributions for Health Benefits: $ 2,500.00

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $ 2,578.95

Number of Covered Employees on Invoice: 5

Health Benefit (TML) Payment Amount: $ 2,560.45

Total of Employee Withholdings for Pension Benefits: $1,830.55

Total of District Contributions for Pension Benefits: $3,661.09

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $5,491.64

Pension Benefit (TCDRS) Payment Amount: $5,530.86

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 273 of 358



Question#3d:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for unemployment (TWC) comport with
withholdings and contribution made for unemployment with the associated payroll
payment transactions?   Yes

Question#4:  Are all electronic transactions (drafts and transfers) appropriate and
properly documented?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#5:  Are all voided checks properly marked and recorded?  Yes
Comments:

Question#6:  Does the market valueof the pledged collateral and FDIC insurance exceed
the total of investments per banking institution?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#7:  Do the external financial recordscomport with internal financial records of
the District?  Yes

Total of Employee Withholdings for Taxes: $4,811.49

Total of District Contributions for Taxes: $1,994.49

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $6,805.98

Taxes (IRS) Payment Amount: $6,805.98

Total of Employee Withholdings for
Unemployment:

$0.00

Total of District Contributions for Unemployment: $0.00

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $0.00

Taxes (TWC) Payment Amount: $0.00

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 274 of 358



Comments:

Certification:

I certify that I have reviewed the documentation referenced above and the answers provided
to the questions are true and accurate.

____________________________________          ________________
Signature of District Official                                       Date

____________________________________
Name of District Official

PDF of Executed Report:

Note Template Link: VCGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control Review Reports - ICRR-
YYYYMMDD-SQ - REPORTINGPERIODSTOPDATE

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 275 of 358

evernote:///view/208335221/s280/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/fa379f58-76a5-4e33-afd9-77f67a016d6e
evernote:///view/208335221/s280/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/fa379f58-76a5-4e33-afd9-77f67a016d6e


File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/16/2024: 8:33 AM

Institution Type CUSIP Description
Safekeeping 
Location

Safekeeping 
Receipt

Credit 
Rating

Market Value

Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance - Demand DepositsN/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$       
Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance - Time Deposits N/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WBAD7 FNMA #AS1803 FHLB AAA -$                   
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MMT86 FHLMC #G18574 FHLB AAA 125,460.33$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WJAC2 FNMA #AS8102 FHLB AAA 327,266.55$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MMVQ3 FNMA #G18622 FHLB AAA 725,826.62$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WJN53 FNMA #AS8511 FHLB AAA 191,178.97$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418DXG2 FNMA #MA4278 FHLB AAA 679,042.59$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3132J4HD4 FHLMS #G30927 FHLB AAA 392,412.07$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418D5F5 FNMA #MA4445 FHLB AAA 265,447.44$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418ECD0 FNMA #MS4567 FHLB AAA 204,929.85$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418EDH0 FNMA #MA4603 FHLB AAA -$                   
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3140Q8Z81 FNMA CRA #CA1666 FHLB AAA 378,608.15$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WFAL0 FNMA #AS5410 FHLB AAA 48,556.72$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31307U2S6 FHLMC #J37985 FHLB AAA 222,149.92$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MFKH0 FHLMC #G16396 FHLB AAA 49,819.97$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MMX57 FHLMC #G18699 FHLB AAA 297,087.17$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31417CWC5 FNMA #AB6042 FHLB AAA 227,346.31$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31307BY79 FHLMC #J23434 FHLB AAA -$                   
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3132D6AC4 FR #SB8103 FHLB AAA 117,094.11$       

-$                   
Total 4,752,226.77$    
The funds of the District are adquately protected by FDIC Insurance and pledged collateral.

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Collateral Report Page 1 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 276 of 358



File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/16/2024: 8:33 AM

Bank Account Account Statement
Reconciled Bank 
Statement

Fund
 Reported Balance 

as of the Start of the 
Fiscal Year 

Total of 
Recorded Credit 

Transactions 
for Fiscal Year

Total of 
Recorded Debit 

Transactions 
for Fiscal Year

Calculated 
Balance

Current Reported 
Balance

Unreconciled 
Amount

Prosperity 3566 Prosperity 3566 : BS-20240731-03: DATE: 07/31/2024 BS-20240731-03 Operating 68,256.45$               656,771.23$      (570,036.07)$    154,991.61$      154,991.61$        -$                  

Prosperity 7120 Prosperity 7120 : BS-20240731-01: DATE: 07/31/2024 BS-20240731-01 Operating 275,713.40$             6,976.71$          -$                  282,690.11$      282,690.11$        -$                  

Prosperity 5242 Prosperity 5242 : BS-20240731-02: DATE: 07/31/2024 BS-20240731-02 Reserve 1,476,612.27$          775,247.55$      (500,000.00)$    1,751,859.82$   1,751,859.82$     -$                  

Prosperity 3881 Prosperity 3881 : BS-20240731-04: DATE: 07/31/2024 BS-20240731-04 Planning -$                          71,295.99$        (446.07)$           70,849.92$        70,849.92$          -$                  

Prosperity CD 2625 Prosperity CD 2625 : BS-20240701-01: DATE: 07/01/2024BS-20240701-01 Reserve 160,008.19$             4,172.64$          -$                  164,180.83$      164,180.83$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2629 Prosperity CD 2629 : BS-20240701-02: DATE: 07/01/2024BS-20240701-02 Reserve 161,646.99$             2,981.43$          -$                  164,628.42$      164,628.42$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2680 Prosperity CD 2680 : BS-20240722-01: DATE: 07/22/2024BS-20240722-01 Reserve 161,167.17$             4,545.24$          -$                  165,712.41$      165,712.41$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2801 Prosperity CD 2801 : BS-20240708-01: DATE: 07/08/2024BS-20240708-01 Reserve 259,719.36$             4,577.41$          -$                  264,296.77$      264,296.77$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2802 Prosperity CD 2802 : BS-20240708-02: DATE: 07/08/2024BS-20240708-02 Reserve 259,719.36$             4,577.41$          -$                  264,296.77$      264,296.77$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0518 Prosperity CD 0518 : BS-20240629-01: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-01 Reserve 254,239.74$             6,435.62$          -$                  260,675.36$      260,675.36$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0519 Prosperity CD 0519 : BS-20240629-02: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-02 Reserve 254,239.74$             6,435.62$          -$                  260,675.36$      260,675.36$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0520 Prosperity CD 0520 : BS-20240629-03: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-03 Reserve 254,112.67$             6,244.68$          -$                  260,357.35$      260,357.35$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0521 Prosperity CD 0521 : BS-20240629-04: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-04 Reserve 254,112.67$             6,244.68$          -$                  260,357.35$      260,357.35$        -$                  
Total 3,839,548.01$          1,556,506.21$   (1,070,482.14)$ 4,325,572.08$   4,325,572.08$     -$                  

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Account Reconciliation Report Page 2 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 277 of 358



File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/16/2024: 8:33 AM

Budget Program  Budget Amount 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
Mid Year 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
End of Year 

 Budget Amount 
(Amended)  Transaction Total Budget Balance

1001 - Administration - Revenue 1,035,100.00$        35,000.00$             -$                        1,070,100.00$        1,056,362.31$        (13,800.00)$            
1002 - Administration - Employment (466,400.00)$          -$                        -$                        (466,400.00)$          (322,619.83)$          143,800.00$           
1003 - Administration - Technology (24,700.00)$            (10,000.00)$            -$                        (34,700.00)$            (26,355.51)$            8,400.00$               
1004 - Administration - General (210,600.00)$          19,000.00$             -$                        (191,600.00)$          (163,157.25)$          28,500.00$             
2000 - Groundwater Conservation (43,000.00)$            15,000.00$             -$                        (28,000.00)$            (11,540.01)$            16,500.00$             
3000 - Groundwater Management (5,000.00)$              -$                        -$                        (5,000.00)$              (1,938.53)$              3,100.00$               
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (131,100.00)$          69,000.00$             -$                        (62,100.00)$            (36,782.11)$            25,400.00$             
5000 - Groundwater Policy (1,000.00)$              -$                        -$                        (1,000.00)$              (445.00)$                 600.00$                  
6000 - Groundwater Protection (17,500.00)$            -$                        -$                        (17,500.00)$            -$                        17,500.00$             
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning (8,000.00)$              (2,000.00)$              -$                        (10,000.00)$            (7,500.00)$              2,500.00$               
Total 127,800.00$           126,000.00$           -$                        253,800.00$           486,024.07$           232,500.00$           

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance by Program Page 3 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 278 of 358



File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/16/2024: 8:33 AM

Budget Category  Budget Amount 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
Mid Year 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
End of Year 

 Budget Amount 
(Amended)  Transaction Total Budget Balance

0120 - Tax Collections 748,700.00$          -$                       -$                       748,700.00$          737,185.44$          (11,600.00)$           
0130 - Interest Income 35,000.00$            35,000.00$            -$                       70,000.00$            91,620.04$            21,700.00$            
0140 - District Fees - GCD Management and Operations Cost-Sharing Fees 251,400.00$          -$                       -$                       251,400.00$          155,736.83$          (95,700.00)$           
0143 - District Fees - Permitting -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       450.00$                 500.00$                 
0145 - District Fees - Enforcement -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       120.00$                 200.00$                 
0150 - Grants -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
0160 - Refunds -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       143.90$                 200.00$                 
0215 - District Fees - Legislative Services Cost-Sharing Fees -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
0300 - Reserve Funds -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
110 - Employee Wages - Managerial (112,500.00)$         -$                       -$                       (112,500.00)$         (84,355.11)$           28,200.00$            
120 - Employee Wages - Technicial (119,000.00)$         -$                       -$                       (119,000.00)$         (84,458.40)$           34,600.00$            
130 - Employee Wages - Administrative (100,600.00)$         -$                       -$                       (100,600.00)$         (75,416.08)$           25,200.00$            
140 - Employee Benefits - Health (30,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (30,000.00)$           (22,500.00)$           7,500.00$              
150 - Employee Benefits - Retirement (49,300.00)$           -$                       -$                       (49,300.00)$           (34,558.49)$           14,800.00$            
160 - Employment Fees - Social Security and Medicare (27,400.00)$           -$                       -$                       (27,400.00)$           (18,404.82)$           9,000.00$              
170 - Employment Fees - State Unemployment (1,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (1,500.00)$             (635.86)$                900.00$                 
180 - Employment Fees - Accrued Leave Conversion (26,100.00)$           -$                       -$                       (26,100.00)$           (11,635.97)$           14,500.00$            
190 - Employment Deductions and Withholdings -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       (22,376.12)$           (22,400.00)$           
210 - Legal Services (25,000.00)$           10,000.00$            -$                       (15,000.00)$           (6,833.75)$             8,200.00$              
215 - Legislative and Administrative Action Representation Services (5,000.00)$             5,000.00$              -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
220 - Professional and Technical Services (40,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (40,000.00)$           (161.51)$                39,900.00$            
221 - Professional and Technical Services - Auditor (20,000.00)$           5,000.00$              -$                       (15,000.00)$           (14,275.00)$           800.00$                 
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (50,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (50,000.00)$           (47,272.81)$           2,800.00$              
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (14,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (14,000.00)$           (8,980.66)$             5,100.00$              
224 - Professional and Technical Services - Accountant (2,400.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,400.00)$             (550.00)$                1,900.00$              
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist (37,500.00)$           2,000.00$              -$                       (35,500.00)$           (15,000.00)$           20,500.00$            
226 - Professional and Technical Services - Laboratory (10,000.00)$           5,000.00$              -$                       (5,000.00)$             (397.00)$                4,700.00$              
230 - Insurance and Bonds (4,300.00)$             (1,000.00)$             -$                       (5,300.00)$             (5,053.10)$             300.00$                 
310 - Supplies - Office (6,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (6,500.00)$             (4,402.39)$             2,100.00$              
311 - Supplies - Field (2,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,000.00)$             (936.56)$                1,100.00$              
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (2,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,500.00)$             (2,205.00)$             300.00$                 
325 - Fuel (3,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (3,000.00)$             (1,689.25)$             1,400.00$              
330 - Training and Travel Expenses (6,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (6,500.00)$             (7,835.64)$             (1,400.00)$             
340 - Membership/Dues/Subscriptions (1,400.00)$             -$                       -$                       (1,400.00)$             (1,615.00)$             (300.00)$                
350 - Lease (22,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (22,000.00)$           (20,128.88)$           1,900.00$              
360 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing (500.00)$                -$                       -$                       (500.00)$                63,303.93$            63,900.00$            
361 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Well Plugging (2,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,500.00)$             -$                       2,500.00$              
362 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Borehole Logging (5,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (5,000.00)$             -$                       5,000.00$              
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion (43,000.00)$           15,000.00$            -$                       (28,000.00)$           (6,837.98)$             21,200.00$            
380 - Aquifer Monitoring Network Development (85,000.00)$           50,000.00$            -$                       (35,000.00)$           (19,780.00)$           15,300.00$            
410 - Equipment - Office (1,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (1,000.00)$             -$                       1,000.00$              
415 - Equipment - Field (10,000.00)$           10,000.00$            -$                       -$                       (4,819.46)$             (4,900.00)$             
420 - Technology Services - Office Productivity (6,200.00)$             -$                       -$                       (6,200.00)$             (3,483.98)$             2,800.00$              
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (500.00)$                (10,000.00)$           -$                       (10,500.00)$           (13,009.48)$           (2,600.00)$             
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (7,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (7,000.00)$             (1,288.50)$             5,800.00$              
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (600.00)$                -$                       -$                       (600.00)$                -$                       600.00$                 
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (4,700.00)$             -$                       -$                       (4,700.00)$             (4,728.57)$             (100.00)$                
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (2,800.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,800.00)$             (1,123.68)$             1,700.00$              
436 - Technology Services - Internet (2,400.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,400.00)$             (2,865.20)$             (500.00)$                
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (9,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (9,500.00)$             (5,803.17)$             3,700.00$              
500 - Public Notices and Publications (7,900.00)$             -$                       -$                       (7,900.00)$             (6,402.95)$             1,500.00$              
900 - Miscellaneous (200.00)$                -$                       -$                       (200.00)$                (715.70)$                (600.00)$                
Total 127,800.00$          126,000.00$          -$                       253,800.00$          486,024.07$          233,200.00$          

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance by Category Page 4 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 279 of 358



VCGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control
Review Reports - ICRR-20240831-01 -
August 2024
Victoria CountyGroundwater Conservation DistrictInternal Control Review Report

Reporting Period Start: 8/1/24
Reporting Period Stop: 8/31/24

Related Documentation

Bank Statement Links:  
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-01 - CD# 0518 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-02 - CD# 0519 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-03 - CD# 0520 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240629-04 - CD# 0521 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240804-01 - CD# 2625 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240804-02 - CD# 2629 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240808-01 - CD# 2801 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240808-02 - CD# 2802 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240822-01 - CD# 2680 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240831-01 - Prosperity 7120 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240831-02 - Prosperity 5242 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240831-03 - Prosperity 3566 - RECONCILED
VCGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240831-04 - Prosperity 3881 - RECONCILED
List of UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs) Note Links:  

List of UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs) Note Links:

List of VOIDED Check Note Links:  

List of CANCELLED Transaction Note Links:

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 280 of 358

https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/d78eb28f-567e-6b3c-437a-37bee1c2d2c8
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/687f0eae-e927-4f7a-24ea-09248f76984f
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/120fc323-4121-f45b-67c9-aeace12c2572
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/a2677d65-b56c-3e01-4083-a4b1c68a8a3c
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/a9cdc8b5-bb12-f942-2f7b-8cdb833fd765
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/00705406-3ec1-c5fb-7b53-08b9903f077b
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/2bcc845f-fc47-b2ac-1065-8a2ea5853a50
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/bf55227f-2bd0-5ed9-4363-a9afcb5ca996
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/f7943b4b-7698-e576-d99b-bf28db50025e
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/ae0d6bff-c748-2dc0-f40a-4c28896e1916
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/b3b36d86-3814-79ac-1345-d55a64ede04c
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/279e48e4-92fb-5247-a15e-94b37b38d076
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/1f21264b-d186-9843-e10d-b5e66e20cdb9


List of COLLATERAL RECORD Note Links:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs)Notes:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs)Notes:  

List of transaction notes related to EMPLOYEE PAYROLL PAYMENTS Notes:  

Internal Control Review

Question #1:  Are bank statements and reconciliation forms consistent and balanced?
 Yes
Comments:  

Question#2:  Are dual signatures present on all checks?  Yes
Comments:

Question#3:  Are all expenditures associated with employees, including credit card
expenditures, or contractors appropriate and properly authorized?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#3a:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for heath benefits (TML) comport with
withholdings and contribution made for health benefits with the associated payroll
payment transactions?  
Note:

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Collateral Records - CR-20240831-01 - Prosperity Bank - August
2024

1.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240801-01 - $6,172.09 - July Payroll -
Tim Andruss - TR-20240801-01-D - $6,172.09 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

1.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240801-02 - $3,798.36 - July Payroll -
Caitlynn Davenport - TR-20240801-02-D - $3,798.36 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

2.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240801-03 - $4,187.61 - July Payroll -
Mike Benavides - TR-20240801-03-D - $4,187.61 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

3.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240801-04 - $2,929.87 - July Payroll -
Candace Whittley - TR-20240801-04-D - $2,929.87 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

4.

VCGCD - Adm - FM - Accounts Payable - ACCTP-20240801-05 - $3,673.58 - July Payroll -
Brent Immenhauser - TR-20240801-05-D - $3,673.58 - Prosperity 3566 - UNRECONCILED

5.

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 281 of 358

https://share.evernote.com/note/b2ca23a5-0b16-d6db-9fec-cd32c3e7e776
https://share.evernote.com/note/b2ca23a5-0b16-d6db-9fec-cd32c3e7e776
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/b89af070-8cc6-3c23-1845-c730a2850cc0
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/b89af070-8cc6-3c23-1845-c730a2850cc0
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/a97841d6-7d63-65f4-d096-4a27c7db9159
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/a97841d6-7d63-65f4-d096-4a27c7db9159
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/a7feebb3-ae5e-573b-6505-6a3bd520fef1
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/a7feebb3-ae5e-573b-6505-6a3bd520fef1
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/76700bc3-4e0b-bd67-4cc6-537d962c80f6
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/76700bc3-4e0b-bd67-4cc6-537d962c80f6
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/f799633f-42ab-da17-22d7-a510b9275ea8
https://www.evernote.com/shard/s280/nl/44946587/f799633f-42ab-da17-22d7-a510b9275ea8


Question#3b:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for pension benefits (TCDRS) comport with
withholdings and contribution made for pension benefits with the associated payroll
payment transactions?  Yes
Difference: Group Term Life Premiums

Question#3c:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for taxes (IRS) comport with withholdings and
contribution made for taxes with the associated payroll payment transactions?  Yes

Anticipated Number of Covered Employees for Reporting Period: 5

Anticipated Total Monthly Premium for Reporting Period:  $ 2,578.95

Total of Employee Withholdings for Health Benefits: $78.95

Total of District Contributions for Health Benefits: $ 2,500.00

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $ 2,578.95

Number of Covered Employees on Invoice: 5

Health Benefit (TML) Payment Amount: $ 2,560.45

Total of Employee Withholdings for Pension Benefits: $1,955.13

Total of District Contributions for Pension Benefits: $3,910.24

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $5,865.37

Pension Benefit (TCDRS) Payment Amount: $5,907.26

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 282 of 358



Question#3d:  Do all expenditures associated with the payment of employee
withholding and district contributions for unemployment (TWC) comport with
withholdings and contribution made for unemployment with the associated payroll
payment transactions?   Yes

Question#4:  Are all electronic transactions (drafts and transfers) appropriate and
properly documented?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#5:  Are all voided checks properly marked and recorded?  Yes
Comments:

Question#6:  Does the market valueof the pledged collateral and FDIC insurance exceed
the total of investments per banking institution?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#7:  Do the external financial recordscomport with internal financial records of
the District?  Yes

Total of Employee Withholdings for Taxes: $5,134.64

Total of District Contributions for Taxes: $2,130.63

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $7,265.27

Taxes (IRS) Payment Amount: $7,265.27

Total of Employee Withholdings for
Unemployment:

$0.00

Total of District Contributions for Unemployment: $0.00

Total of Withholdings and Contributions: $0.00

Taxes (TWC) Payment Amount: $0.00

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 283 of 358



Comments:

Certification:

I certify that I have reviewed the documentation referenced above and the answers provided
to the questions are true and accurate.

____________________________________          ________________
Signature of District Official                                       Date

____________________________________
Name of District Official

PDF of Executed Report:

Note Template Link: VCGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control Review Reports - ICRR-
YYYYMMDD-SQ - REPORTINGPERIODSTOPDATE

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 284 of 358

evernote:///view/208335221/s280/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/fa379f58-76a5-4e33-afd9-77f67a016d6e
evernote:///view/208335221/s280/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/4b2541d3-3422-4cfa-b4ca-9cf373a3fb45/fa379f58-76a5-4e33-afd9-77f67a016d6e


File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/16/2024: 1:16 PM

Institution Type CUSIP Description
Safekeeping 
Location

Safekeeping 
Receipt

Credit 
Rating

Market Value

Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance - Demand DepositsN/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$       
Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance - Time Deposits N/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WBAD7 FNMA #AS1803 FHLB AAA -$                   
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MMT86 FHLMC #G18574 FHLB AAA 125,549.38$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WJAC2 FNMA #AS8102 FHLB AAA 322,492.65$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MMVQ3 FNMA #G18622 FHLB AAA 732,047.41$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WJN53 FNMA #AS8511 FHLB AAA 189,256.41$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418DXG2 FNMA #MA4278 FHLB AAA 685,629.94$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3132J4HD4 FHLMS #G30927 FHLB AAA 399,638.54$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418D5F5 FNMA #MA4445 FHLB AAA 273,785.69$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418ECD0 FNMA #MS4567 FHLB AAA 206,801.59$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418EDH0 FNMA #MA4603 FHLB AAA -$                   
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3140Q8Z81 FNMA CRA #CA1666 FHLB AAA 382,627.21$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WFAL0 FNMA #AS5410 FHLB AAA 49,025.37$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31307U2S6 FHLMC #J37985 FHLB AAA 220,617.77$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MFKH0 FHLMC #G16396 FHLB AAA 49,767.78$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3128MMX57 FHLMC #G18699 FHLB AAA 297,151.18$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31417CWC5 FNMA #AB6042 FHLB AAA 217,983.30$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31307BY79 FHLMC #J23434 FHLB AAA -$                   
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3132D6AC4 FR #SB8103 FHLB AAA 649,052.65$       

-$                   
Total 5,301,426.87$    
The funds of the District are adquately protected by FDIC Insurance and pledged collateral.

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Collateral Report Page 1 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 285 of 358



File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/16/2024: 1:16 PM

Bank Account Account Statement
Reconciled Bank 
Statement

Fund
 Reported Balance 

as of the Start of the 
Fiscal Year 

Total of 
Recorded Credit 

Transactions 
for Fiscal Year

Total of 
Recorded Debit 

Transactions 
for Fiscal Year

Calculated 
Balance

Current Reported 
Balance

Unreconciled 
Amount

Prosperity 3566 Prosperity 3566 : BS-20240831-03: DATE: 08/31/2024 BS-20240831-03 Operating 68,256.45$               756,180.94$      (630,437.34)$    194,000.05$      194,000.05$        -$                  

Prosperity 7120 Prosperity 7120 : BS-20240831-01: DATE: 08/31/2024 BS-20240831-01 Operating 275,713.40$             7,695.02$          -$                  283,408.42$      283,408.42$        -$                  

Prosperity 5242 Prosperity 5242 : BS-20240831-02: DATE: 08/31/2024 BS-20240831-02 Reserve 1,476,612.27$          782,619.25$      (500,000.00)$    1,759,231.52$   1,759,231.52$     -$                  

Prosperity 3881 Prosperity 3881 : BS-20240831-04: DATE: 08/31/2024 BS-20240831-04 Planning -$                          80,305.23$        (446.07)$           79,859.16$        79,859.16$          -$                  

Prosperity CD 2625 Prosperity CD 2625 : BS-20240801-01: DATE: 08/01/2024BS-20240801-01 Reserve 160,008.19$             4,624.59$          -$                  164,632.78$      164,632.78$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2629 Prosperity CD 2629 : BS-20240801-02: DATE: 08/01/2024BS-20240801-02 Reserve 161,646.99$             3,288.20$          -$                  164,935.19$      164,935.19$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2680 Prosperity CD 2680 : BS-20240822-01: DATE: 08/22/2024BS-20240822-01 Reserve 161,167.17$             5,015.44$          -$                  166,182.61$      166,182.61$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2801 Prosperity CD 2801 : BS-20240808-01: DATE: 08/08/2024BS-20240808-01 Reserve 259,719.36$             5,327.33$          -$                  265,046.69$      265,046.69$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 2802 Prosperity CD 2802 : BS-20240808-02: DATE: 08/08/2024BS-20240808-02 Reserve 259,719.36$             5,327.33$          -$                  265,046.69$      265,046.69$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0518 Prosperity CD 0518 : BS-20240629-01: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-01 Reserve 254,239.74$             6,435.62$          -$                  260,675.36$      260,675.36$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0519 Prosperity CD 0519 : BS-20240629-02: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-02 Reserve 254,239.74$             6,435.62$          -$                  260,675.36$      260,675.36$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0520 Prosperity CD 0520 : BS-20240629-03: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-03 Reserve 254,112.67$             6,244.68$          -$                  260,357.35$      260,357.35$        -$                  
Prosperity CD 0521 Prosperity CD 0521 : BS-20240629-04: DATE: 06/29/2024BS-20240629-04 Reserve 254,112.67$             6,244.68$          -$                  260,357.35$      260,357.35$        -$                  
Total 3,839,548.01$          1,675,743.93$   (1,130,883.41)$ 4,384,408.53$   4,384,408.53$     -$                  

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Account Reconciliation Report Page 2 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 286 of 358



File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/16/2024: 1:16 PM

Budget Program  Budget Amount 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
Mid Year 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
End of Year 

 Budget Amount 
(Amended)  Transaction Total Budget Balance

1001 - Administration - Revenue 1,035,100.00$        35,000.00$             -$                        1,070,100.00$        1,170,433.78$        100,400.00$           
1002 - Administration - Employment (466,400.00)$          -$                        -$                        (466,400.00)$          (343,381.34)$          123,100.00$           
1003 - Administration - Technology (24,700.00)$            (10,000.00)$            -$                        (34,700.00)$            (26,355.51)$            8,400.00$               
1004 - Administration - General (210,600.00)$          19,000.00$             -$                        (191,600.00)$          (197,630.76)$          (6,100.00)$              
2000 - Groundwater Conservation (43,000.00)$            15,000.00$             -$                        (28,000.00)$            (11,540.01)$            16,500.00$             
3000 - Groundwater Management (5,000.00)$              -$                        -$                        (5,000.00)$              (1,938.53)$              3,100.00$               
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (131,100.00)$          69,000.00$             -$                        (62,100.00)$            (36,782.11)$            25,400.00$             
5000 - Groundwater Policy (1,000.00)$              -$                        -$                        (1,000.00)$              (445.00)$                 600.00$                  
6000 - Groundwater Protection (17,500.00)$            -$                        -$                        (17,500.00)$            -$                        17,500.00$             
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning (8,000.00)$              (2,000.00)$              -$                        (10,000.00)$            (7,500.00)$              2,500.00$               
Total 127,800.00$           126,000.00$           -$                        253,800.00$           544,860.52$           291,400.00$           

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance by Program Page 3 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 287 of 358



File: VCGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 10/16/2024: 1:16 PM

Budget Category  Budget Amount 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
Mid Year 

 Budget 
Amendment 
Recommendation - 
End of Year 

 Budget Amount 
(Amended)  Transaction Total Budget Balance

0120 - Tax Collections 748,700.00$          -$                       -$                       748,700.00$          745,268.12$          (3,500.00)$             
0130 - Interest Income 35,000.00$            35,000.00$            -$                       70,000.00$            99,553.84$            29,600.00$            
0140 - District Fees - GCD Management and Operations Cost-Sharing Fees 251,400.00$          -$                       -$                       251,400.00$          247,418.07$          (4,000.00)$             
0143 - District Fees - Permitting -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       450.00$                 500.00$                 
0145 - District Fees - Enforcement -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       2,660.00$              2,700.00$              
0150 - Grants -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
0160 - Refunds -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       143.90$                 200.00$                 
0215 - District Fees - Legislative Services Cost-Sharing Fees -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
0300 - Reserve Funds -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
110 - Employee Wages - Managerial (112,500.00)$         -$                       -$                       (112,500.00)$         (93,727.90)$           18,800.00$            
120 - Employee Wages - Technicial (119,000.00)$         -$                       -$                       (119,000.00)$         (94,420.16)$           24,600.00$            
130 - Employee Wages - Administrative (100,600.00)$         -$                       -$                       (100,600.00)$         (84,011.75)$           16,600.00$            
140 - Employee Benefits - Health (30,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (30,000.00)$           (25,000.00)$           5,000.00$              
150 - Employee Benefits - Retirement (49,300.00)$           -$                       -$                       (49,300.00)$           (38,510.62)$           10,800.00$            
160 - Employment Fees - Social Security and Medicare (27,400.00)$           -$                       -$                       (27,400.00)$           (20,535.45)$           6,900.00$              
170 - Employment Fees - State Unemployment (1,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (1,500.00)$             (635.86)$                900.00$                 
180 - Employment Fees - Accrued Leave Conversion (26,100.00)$           -$                       -$                       (26,100.00)$           (11,635.97)$           14,500.00$            
190 - Employment Deductions and Withholdings -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       (22,903.02)$           (23,000.00)$           
210 - Legal Services (25,000.00)$           10,000.00$            -$                       (15,000.00)$           (9,629.75)$             5,400.00$              
215 - Legislative and Administrative Action Representation Services (5,000.00)$             5,000.00$              -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
220 - Professional and Technical Services (40,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (40,000.00)$           (182.83)$                39,900.00$            
221 - Professional and Technical Services - Auditor (20,000.00)$           5,000.00$              -$                       (15,000.00)$           (29,075.00)$           (14,100.00)$           
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (50,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (50,000.00)$           (47,272.81)$           2,800.00$              
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (14,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (14,000.00)$           (8,980.66)$             5,100.00$              
224 - Professional and Technical Services - Accountant (2,400.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,400.00)$             (550.00)$                1,900.00$              
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist (37,500.00)$           2,000.00$              -$                       (35,500.00)$           (15,000.00)$           20,500.00$            
226 - Professional and Technical Services - Laboratory (10,000.00)$           5,000.00$              -$                       (5,000.00)$             (397.00)$                4,700.00$              
230 - Insurance and Bonds (4,300.00)$             (1,000.00)$             -$                       (5,300.00)$             (5,053.10)$             300.00$                 
310 - Supplies - Office (6,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (6,500.00)$             (4,402.39)$             2,100.00$              
311 - Supplies - Field (2,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,000.00)$             (936.56)$                1,100.00$              
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (2,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,500.00)$             (2,205.00)$             300.00$                 
325 - Fuel (3,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (3,000.00)$             (1,689.25)$             1,400.00$              
330 - Training and Travel Expenses (6,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (6,500.00)$             (8,854.71)$             (2,400.00)$             
340 - Membership/Dues/Subscriptions (1,400.00)$             -$                       -$                       (1,400.00)$             (1,615.00)$             (300.00)$                
350 - Lease (22,000.00)$           -$                       -$                       (22,000.00)$           (20,128.88)$           1,900.00$              
360 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing (500.00)$                -$                       -$                       (500.00)$                70,303.93$            70,900.00$            
361 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Well Plugging (2,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,500.00)$             -$                       2,500.00$              
362 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Borehole Logging (5,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (5,000.00)$             -$                       5,000.00$              
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion (43,000.00)$           15,000.00$            -$                       (28,000.00)$           (7,050.98)$             21,000.00$            
380 - Aquifer Monitoring Network Development (85,000.00)$           50,000.00$            -$                       (35,000.00)$           (19,780.00)$           15,300.00$            
410 - Equipment - Office (1,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (1,000.00)$             -$                       1,000.00$              
415 - Equipment - Field (10,000.00)$           10,000.00$            -$                       -$                       (4,819.46)$             (4,900.00)$             
420 - Technology Services - Office Productivity (6,200.00)$             -$                       -$                       (6,200.00)$             (3,483.98)$             2,800.00$              
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (500.00)$                (10,000.00)$           -$                       (10,500.00)$           (13,009.48)$           (2,600.00)$             
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (7,000.00)$             -$                       -$                       (7,000.00)$             (1,288.50)$             5,800.00$              
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (600.00)$                -$                       -$                       (600.00)$                -$                       600.00$                 
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (4,700.00)$             -$                       -$                       (4,700.00)$             (4,728.57)$             (100.00)$                
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (2,800.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,800.00)$             (1,123.68)$             1,700.00$              
436 - Technology Services - Internet (2,400.00)$             -$                       -$                       (2,400.00)$             (2,865.20)$             (500.00)$                
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (9,500.00)$             -$                       -$                       (9,500.00)$             (5,803.17)$             3,700.00$              
500 - Public Notices and Publications (7,900.00)$             -$                       -$                       (7,900.00)$             (6,402.95)$             1,500.00$              
900 - Miscellaneous (200.00)$                -$                       -$                       (200.00)$                (3,227.70)$             (3,100.00)$             
Total 127,800.00$          126,000.00$          -$                       253,800.00$          544,860.52$          291,800.00$          

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget Performance by Category Page 4 of 4VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 288 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater
Conservation District

INVESTMENT REPORT

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

As of June 30, 2024

Detailed Description of Investment Position - PFIA 2256.023(b)(1)
The investment position of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District (District) during
the reporting period was restricted to; 1) cash deposited into an interest-bearing, demand deposit
account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating Fund, 2) cash deposited into an
interest-bearing, money-market account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating
Fund, 3) cash deposited into an interest-bearing, money-market account for the purposes of
holding monies of the Reserve Fund, and 4) cash deposited into certificates of deposit for the
purposes of holding monies of the Reserve Fund. The accounts are secured by FDIC insurance
and pledged collateral in accordance with state law and the Investment Policy of the District.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, demand deposit
account at Prosperity Bank (Account Number: 7060023566) for the purpose of holding monies of
the Operating Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, receiving deposits of district fees,
and paying of bills and invoices of the District.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market
account at Prosperity Bank (Number; 218927120) for the purpose of holding monies of the
Operating Fund, and receiving interest deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market

account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 807725242) for the purpose of holding monies of the
Reserve Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, and receiving ad valorem tax revenue
deposits.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002625) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number;
280002626) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:

280002629) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002680) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002801) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002802) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

VCGCD - Investment Report Date; 7/23/2024Page 1 of 4

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 289 of 358



During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of

9570010518) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and
deposits of the account.

deposit {Number;

receiving interest

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of
9570010519) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and
deposits of the account.

deposit (Number:

receiving interest

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of

9570010520) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and
deposits of the account.

deposit (Number:
receiving interest

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of
9570010521) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and
deposits of the account.

deposit (Number:
receiving interest

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market
account at Prosperity Bank (Number; 217843881) for the purpose of holding monies of the GMA
15 Committee Joint Planning Funds.

Summary of Pooled Fund Groups - PFIA 2256.023(b)(4)(A-D)
The District did not invest any portion of its funds in any pooled fund groups during the reporting

period.		
Beginning Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups

Additions and Changes to the Market Value of Investments In Pooled Fund Groups

Ending Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups

Fully Accrued Interest of Investments In Pooled Fund Groups

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

Book and Market Values by Asset Type and Fund Type Statement - PFIA 2256.023(b)(5)

Asset Type Institution Fund Yield / Book Market

Types Rate Value Value

Demand

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

(7060023566)

Prosperity
Bank

(218927120)

Prosperity
Bank

0.15%^Operating $198,004.58 $198,004.58

Money
Market

Account*

y/ $281,973.62 y3.03% $281,973.62Operating

Money
Market Bank

Account*
$1,742,512.64-/Reserve 3.03% $1,742,512.64

(807725242)

7Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank y3.25% $163,744.63 $163,744.63Reserve

(280002625)

Prosperity
Bank

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

0.20% $0.00 $0.00Reserve

(280002626)

/Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

/
2.20% $164,332.08 $164,332.08Reserve

(280002629)

Prosperity
Bank

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

/J
Reserve 3.35% $165,258.63 $165,258.63

(280002680)

7 yCertificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

(280002801)

Reserve 3.35% $263,573.02 $263,573.02

VCGCD - Investment Report Page 2 of 4 Date; 7/23/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 290 of 358



Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

J
$263,573.02 $263,573.02Reserve 3.35%

(280002802)

/Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank 3.35% $260,675.36 $260,675.36Reserve

(9570010518)

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank 3.35% $260,675.36 $260,675.36Reserve

(9570010519)

/Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank 3.25% $260,357.35 $260,357.35Reserve

(9570010520)

Prosperity
Bank

(9570010521)

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

/
3.25% $260,357.35 $260,357.35Reserve

GMA15

Committee

Joint

Planning
Funds

/yDemand

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

(217843881)

0.15% $70,840.92$70,840.92

Total; $4,355,878.56 $4,355,878.56

* Based on monthly statements provided by banking institutions.

Summary of Insurance and Collateral by Institution
Institution FDIC Insurance Market Value of Pledged

Securities as Collateral

Total Insurance and

ed Securities

yP'edgProsperity
Bank

$250,000.00 $4,330,638.73 $4,580,638.73

Asset Maturity Date Statement - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(6)

Asset Yield / Maturity Date
Rate

Demand Deposit Account #7060023566 0.15%

3,03%'^.

N/A

Money Market Account #218927120 N/A

Market Account #807725242 3.03% N/A

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002625

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002626

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002629

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002680

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002801

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002802

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010518

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010519

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010520

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010521

3.25% 12/4/2024

0.20% Closed

2.20% 9/4/2024

3.35% 3/22/2025

1/8/20263.35%

3.35%- 1/8/2026

3.35% 3/30/2025

3.35% 3/30/2025

3/30/20253.25%

1
3.25% 3/30/2025

Demand Deposit Account #217843881 0.15% N/A

Investments for Funds Statement - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(7)

Investment Fund

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account #7060023566

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account #218927120

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account #807725242

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002625

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002626

Operating

Operating

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

VCGCD - Investment Report Page 3 of 4 Date; 7/23/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 291 of 358



Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002629

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002680

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002801

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002802

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010518

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010519

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010520

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010521

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

GMA15

Committee

Joint

Planning
Funds

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account #217843881

Statement of Compliance - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(8)
The portfolio of the District is believed to be in compliance with the District’s Investment Strategy
expressed in the District’s Investment Policy and the Public Funds Investment Act.

Statement regarding Report Preparation - PFIA 2256.0023(b){2-3)
By my signature, Irepresent that 1} this report was written under my direct supervision; 2) I have
thoroughly reviewed all the information contained within and used to develop this report; and 3) I
believe this report to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Timothy A. Andruss, VCGCD Investment Officer

VCGCD - Investment Report Page 4 of 4 Date; 7/23/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 292 of 358



»

'PROSPERITY BANK
4' 4

6/30/2024Statement Date

Account No
Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com ****

35662503 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE210

Page 1 of 9

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

1

1

Public Fund Conto-actual Ckg w Int Account No ****3566STATEMENT SUMMARY

$196,355.96

$61,582.88

$59,934.26

$198,004.58

06/01 /2024 Beginning Balance

18 Deposits/Other Credits

24 Checks/Other Debits

06/30/2024 Ending Balance

Total Enclosures

J
30 Days in Statement Period

37

DEPOSrrS/OTHER CREDITS

AmountDate Description

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$3,750.00

$1,067.70

$1,868.33

$1,721.48

$3,750.00

$5,166.25
$150.00

$1,025.76

$20.00

$20.00

$20.00

$25.86

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/04/2024

06/21/2024

06/21/2024

06/21/2024

06/21/2024

06/21/2024

06/30/2024

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit
Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account

sO
o
o

o

SJ

o
o

IJ1

o

CHECKSW

o

Check Number Date Check Number Date Check Number Date AmountAmount Amount

$488.00

$4,745.17
$150.00

$3,568.53

$22.34

$104.52

$4,720.91

$50.00

$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

$474.36

5206 06-03

06-05

06-05

06-04

06-13

06-14

06-27

$3,600.00

$2,160.00
$450.00

$189.25

$50.00

$50.00

$50.00

06-25

06-28

06-28

06-28

06-28

06-28

5215 06-27

06-25

06-27

06-28

06-25

06-26

06-28

5224

5209* 5216 5225

5210 5217 5230*

5211 5218 5231

5212 5233*

5235*

5220*

5213 5221

5214 5223*

NYSE Symbol ”PB"MEMBER FDIC

LEMDCR

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 293 of 358



VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER Statement Date

Account No

6/30/2024

3566
****

Page 2 of 9

OTHER DEBfTS

Date Description Amount

06/04/2024

06/05/2024

06/05/2024

06/17/2024

ACH Payment INTUIT PAYROLL S QUICKBOOKS

ACH Payment !RS USATAXPYMT 225455772341534 6103601012865

ACH Payment TML0111 CONS COLL PVICTOR2 21000024512878

ACH Payment TEXAS COUNTY DRS RECEIVABLE 0767 21000021396

$20,782.85

S7,265.22

S3,105.85

55,907.26

*****

2725 210000

DAILY ENDING BALANCE

Date Balance Date Balance BalanceDate

5196,355.96

5195,867.96

$231,837.84

5216,571.60

$216,549.26

06-01 5216,444.74

5210,537.48

5211,773.24

5209,513.24

$209,463.24

$200,692.33

5197,978.72

$198,004.58

06-14

06-17

06-21

06-25

06-26

06-27

06-28

06-30

06-03

06-04

06-05

06-13

EARNINGS SUMMARY

Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period.

$25.86

5201.83

JIV
Interest Paid This Period Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period

0.15 /O

30Interest Paid YTD

o
o

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 294 of 358



3566
****

Account NoVICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

Page 3 of 9

43D

i. -r■OMniPA

I s

F

I SST'

: 6S
t ■ fc 1

fcAwar

^TOWCTTmjwr Oi ss \ Dun.' o

1

■:mii!:655t: ToeQaassB^f isi■:im nB55r; TOBDQSBSBBi’ 15>

$1,721.48S/4/2024 6/4/2024$1,067.70

(S 1
●J J

^ I

e
a□ .T

Et ^
Tf ttfzs:

y
:r>
IA

iC HIs ii

■ ^ 1*1 fwwmrriMm'

^18U8.** ilStJ.
o 0S $

CUaiiiBBSe TOGODilSBBi* ISl >:U91i2BS5>: IDBOOiiSGBi* kSl

elAl2Q2A 6/4/2024$1,068.33 $3,750.00

E4 V

J
l £

§1 □<r V

:l I
I

mI 9S.SS J} ESSSCiS
I

6 ITI wi I 'i

Q WtaMBUTTBAWP
TBW

Oi s 5\s 5T5t3, » e

i:U3>i2BS5>: 7DB0QilSGB>* 1S3 ●:u312;bss>: 7Qeao;3SBB<' 153

6/4/2024 6/4/2024 $5,166.25$3,750.00

I u>
5I J

li

ii ili
-

a =cn>o

o

io
s-

1 e;

i
8 ^

1 8

Qwrewngrriuioc-
HWWMTt 6AWC*

s rS2T! s 111«

w
i:il3l7ZB55>: 70BQQnSEBf* 151 >;im!!BS5i: VDBOOejSBBii' ISl

6/4/2024 $7,166.25 6/4/2024 $7,166.25

a
& JS

J
o

g
Ln

e

ahj
a!

a aI
s> -●

!;● 2 I

{CT 5 S535s=rr; nrjis.':;●J

I ^ i i-ci
‘ 1 liur.

s I 1
g iq

ILn

Io
La7

Qiiw»gtrrB*wifa
s t 'll

■:il31ZZB55i: 7DBaOIJSBB'' 151 ClDliiBSSC 3DBOaiaSBB>> 151

6/4/2024 6/4/2024$7,166.25 $7,166.25

'3' S ■ IlMiiMii

I*
I 52
I P

□
■5 re

rtn=-jnw
S5

$ “nuli.i'*>« nM

i;il31!2B55i: 7aBOai5SBBC 151

6/4/2024 $7,166.25 6/4/2024 $7,166.25

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 295 of 358



VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER «***

3566Account No

Page 4 of 9

I, e
I JC

C(

I 3:a ar

si-i-
tS3

i ●●●SE

I I
s ■

8 -

Q WOWCnTWWH-I
S IQ*'s

7q&qq2is&s>‘ 151, i:im225S5<: 7DGoazas65>‘ ISl

6/21/2024 6/21/2024 $20.00$20.00

J I

lli' s=Q5sQ I

SBMR:
J £

1a ))
Ui J !I JOS:

H ;28
1i5s’

QPPMtwnnriMW ^ w^nKtnrMfor10-^s s » 5 0.' -

I!mi2255$i: 705QQ25555i> iSl ■:il9122&S5<: 70SDa?3S&&f ISl

6/21/2024 6/21/2024 $1S0.00$20.00

[Z:i
1.

ir

S! aI

8§ 5:^ \ str

W:I =
i

8 - IpTT>

OPBoaTCTtrrtuwpsHt:— I D't-S.lVs

C115122&SS': 706Q02aSB5>' ISl

$480.006/21/2024 $1,025.76 6/3/2024 5206

S2105209V)CTORtACOUNTTCWO(JKDW5TEn
COKSERVATKM Dismcr

VICTORIA COUXTT GROUNOWATER
CONSEmATION DISTRICT
=3 ■ WMMD VriTT m

Vtat*W.IXMK)lttUo*n vn
fWftgllPI —3

\0

gitf..vA\'rV\fcf\ 6 ryA
rW \Miv\AyvcN P\¥Vi rtr-A

OB»oM»;nuwiK.-

J s \5Do }
o

'●osx.a ^ J>0I

’-^e.r^Pc^	f□□s2a‘?>■ i:u};i2sssi: 705002)s&5>> faDSTlOf* i:im2255Si: 705D025565i'

$150.006/5/2024 6/5/2024 5210$4,745.175209

52125211VICTORIA COUNTY CAOUKDWATER
COHBEBVftTTOH OgnaCT

VICTOmA COUNTY GROUNOWATER
CONSERVATION DISTRICT

MiKWwsrsnm

Mao*k,Tvm90H7smiia..IXTIVI*
CMTC. a*Tf- f^ffr

aiii- VvnYv CQYp/?i\m J

WflCP .DOLIARB

PMIA'

●>OQS2U» i:AI1122C55i: 7aRDD2ASSCv /C—Or
■v

■‘QDS212I* i:illl22ES5i: 70EDD235SSr

$22.346/13/20246/4/2024 $3,568.53 52125211

52145213VICTORtA COUNTY GROUNOWATCR
COHSCRVATtON OiSmCT

VICTORU COUNTY GROUNDWATER
C0NSERYAT1OH DISTRICT

iptnm

CoO (BI>S/I<IT3 lp|\7 I^U uiaim.wcfo^^nriwi on HCTOiW^m
Q*t«

'Hs^C/iy^nn
fiAN4^.^dfltaAA^^ia

●A1

^>v -fc\n.),-w-VY^ ^\tmWAs^rty-4ii TvNmVj

^gVOTRUTBAWr '● ‘

S IH®J-
cag.DOLLAR*

YQos?iA>> cmiiisssc 70Boa;3s&s>‘'OOS213>* illllWIBSSC 7O&D0I3S6BT

$4,720.916/27/20246/14/2024 $104.52 52145213

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 296 of 358



****

3566Account NoVICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

Page 5 of 9

S215 S2taVtCTORtA CStWfY CftOVKaffATER
COHSCRVATIOM DISTRICT

VXrrOtlA COtMTV OROUHOWATEn
COKSCRVAnON OtSTRICT

1 g| \1ITMnqxfiPMaa
OATS ^T|

KI-a^O^VTj»VAmW ^€v\^c■r

'\V>w ■f;ix V\v,>rriV74 Q\M»y-^>lci>
j»'5.,uccf“

Q El.

alt.. fiVytay\\\1ne.	
TmO ■ftTPw»feO'V\A.OYtf Hav^AtA arA

y^aOWPHTAW

^£.Lifft^10L-croB
70&ao2ssc&«

^ZH/0'
JPOLLAII flOLlAMI

wioifitfrr tuw

■

L'DQSSist.' m;3i22essi: Tosnaijsssi*

$2,160.006/27/2024 6/25/2024 5216$3,600.005215

S21BS217vtcTORU couMrrQROuwr«
eONSERVATIW DISTRICT i&n^ica

VICTDRIA COUMTY GROUI0WATST
coKSBivATTOH oomcr

MaMPOPfmn*

i/ivLim vcrcihs TXOATK. OATliCEHJ

M\incoiVe	

^^>«WTPmeiac 'J ^

P^\c\Ti< i-y fTvrn)v\Avn\<v S LVS7"
?CUir nvrA ●^'*liCD

Qm»peKfrTBAwr

S

i^E=..^CLtAIIO iOiUAns

'DOS217I- irllSiiiSSSi: ?DSDai3SBE« roosiiai* i:US122S55i; TOSaOilSSSi’

&I21I202A 6/28/2024 $189.255217 $450.00 5218

5220WCTOmA COUKTY OROUNDWATER
CONSCRVATTOM DtSTStCT

■ lOnMC

5221VICTORIA COUKTY QROUNSWATER
CONSERVATION DIBTRICT
:=3 H RUlttO sr RTaM

iCJOM^BnmAcT

PHOiaDMKJ
Ciinim&ATC

F..cAvp(^

AVW-VWW Aff^>^i7^.Tciwinfrpi
VQO52i0f ■:U3l2iSSSiI TDSOQ^JSSSV

ikurixam

P^yVi Qvvrt ●*'^1 im _.
^^A^SHUABS

jSSD-' .*50“
(

AVaV - \wtv ■ CTH-wms-CT

rODS2ilx CUaiiiSSSi: TOCQOiSSCBX

FCA.

6/25/2024 5220 $50.00 6/26/2024 $50.005221

5223VICTORU COUKTY QROUHDWATCR
COKSERVATIOH DISTRICT
r-^HitfWMgRtrw

n m9i«K,

5224VICTORIA eOUHTV CnOUNOWATER
CONSenVATION DISTRICT
Ro H laMiM n fn r X

VCIOM^TITTIOlSa-Uimii .ulnTM 6WI.—^
I

Hvfti _qvM^ 	

Q»»TWTTS«<S

ISI»»'£cxuX.
] ?\'PN| ●*^llCD

● s I5Dj »QD

BOtLAK B

CO

AaLlABI Q g.
t -

i'i
■QM -wW -gATawBoo

XD0522AX i;U}l{i6S5i: TDSODiasSSX

rvL. jr●fcp*

xcasiiix euaiHBSSi: iDsaDiassBr.

6/28/2024 5223 $50.00 6/25/2024 $50.005224

To
-£22S 5230VICTDISA COUKTY Q80UKDWATBI

CON&BIVATTON DlSmCT r
VRTORA COIHTV QROUKDWATB)
CONSERVATTOM DISTRICT

O
tn

■Mamie KTtiwpj
N>

U11U17.M^inwwmipii W4J 1».IIJW.tlT7WI woWt. 4CBJ un. Aavuaj
w

g\^>l■V^uv^ri^V^^ o.v^r\"^la:>
^ PBOWQgltPAgXr

I ^ ■■
I f V\t>yrVCgX Qvv^ ’“/IIP.
j f^lTO»«RCTWWR-

initenrS?^ ^ /fA'yv\

s 33>- s 033*I
J

o

■Sz.o J)01LAM

uy
o

nn.O n».

xQDsiisx mTiiiiASSU TcsaotsssEx xQOSIiOx IIUSI^TSSSC 7QBOD23SE&X

6/28/2024 5225 $500.00 6/28/2024 $500.005230

5231 5233VICTORU COUNTY CRDUNDWATCR
CONSERVATWN DtSTTUCT

VICTORU CaUHTYOROUNDVTATER
CONSERVATION DISTHICT

*9iy«vi»VIMMeCtBltl* ■ ■BOMOfTtniM

IgiTL/miiaDB^nmM4»0
(Mft*>vw=t

^~Ml]k75e.

£^£_ilUi3di!X^_c!aci.
^TOlWHTTYBAaS

- cm-wNnR^ f^ufainiS-- —-

_k2i3Aov3. ^«Jac?Vr
xaoii." uio

sSD'*'*33J

Zim a ^XOitDAB eft

XC0S!33X i:U3l22ES5C 7QE0ai35&EX

6/28/2024 5231 $500.00 6/26/2024 $500.005233

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 297 of 358



● VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER Account No 3566
****

Page 6 of 9

yicToiaa couRfv crouhdwatcr
COKS&RVATION DISTOICT

S23S

MKUMKTnim

.iAiio\n>1CTPfcSXCTTW> WD
QiRf

Ybimpcv-V	
fruv ^/ico

QfMimgiBmr

J

J»OLL«AI ag-

£>VT.--~^

T^L.imoq<?f>o\

■'OOSijsi- ciolii&sst: 70ADonsbCi'

6/28/2024 5235 $474.36

'O
o
o

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 298 of 358



4' @

PROSPERITY BANK4¥
44

6/30/2024Statement Date

Account No
Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com

71202501 1 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Page 1 of 4

	 		 		

Public Fund Contractual Money Mkt Account No 20STATEMENT SUMMARY

$281,281.94

$691.68

$0.00

$281,973.62

06/01/2024 Beginning Balance

1 Deposits/Other Credits

0 Checks/Other Debits

06/30/2024 Ending Balance

+

/30 Days in Statement Period

DEPOSrrS/OTHER CREDITS

AmountDate Description

Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account $691.6806/30/2024

;.,.TOXAljCl.V£RDRAFT.FEES

Total For This Period Total Year-tO'Date

$0.00Total Overdraft Fees SO.OO

50.00 SO.OOTotal Return Item Feeso
o
o
o

DAILY ENDING BAUNCE

Date Balance BalanceDate

$281,973.62$281,281.9406-01 06-30

EARNINGS SUMMARY

Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period.

$691.68

$4,170.12

y
o

3.03%Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period

Interest Paid This Period

Interest Paid YTD

sO

30o
o

LT

O

o

NYSE Symbol "PB”MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 299 of 358



4‘ ‘4

PROSPERITY BANK¥ 4
4 4

6/30/2024Statement Date

Account No
Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com

5242
Air**

2502 1 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO STSTE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Page 1 of 5

I

1

STATEMENT SUMMARY Public Fund Contractual Money Mkt Account No ****5242 ^

06/01/2024 $1,734,902.42Beginning Balance

7 Deposits/Other Credits

0 Checks/Other Debits

Ending Balance

Total Enclosures

$7,610.22

$0.00

$1,742,512.64 /

+

06/30/2024 Days in Statement Period30

6

'I
DEPOSrrS/OTHER CREDITS

Date Description Amount

06/07/2024

06/14/2024

06/20/2024

06/25/2024

06/28/2024

06/28/2024

06/30/2024

Deposit

Deposit
Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account

$951.92

$1,076.40

$485.57

$344.59

$104.11

$377.38

$4,270.25
●o
o
o

DAILY ENDING BALANCE

Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance

06-01

06-07

06-14

$1,734,902.42

$1,735,854.34

$1,736,930.74

$1,737,416.31

$1,737,760.90
$1,738,242.39

$1,742,512.6406-20

06-25

06-28

06-30

o

EARNINGS SUMMARYO
L.

Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period.

$4,270.25

$24,355.38

o

Jo

Interest Paid This Period

Interest Paid YTD

Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period

3.03%
o

30o

MEMBER FDiC NYSE Symbol TB”

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 300 of 358



VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER Account No **●*
5242

Page 2 of 5

i - 1’J3 . JJ .

!

I aIf!

J&

C

t.:
]

llA:^
«g

s

1 e
IccwTf

coBSflcrAnoH mBcv

KcnrD

lOlb^Ds s■ AWMORPtr*
¥Op*^TlllBI«l|

li'i

●:u3i;2&55t: aa7?2Sii.!P ISi >:U3122&S5>: ao7?2Si<<;p 1st

6/7/2024 6/14/2024$951.92 $1,076.40

I 5 1 ¥u
3 □a●3-i

r

J
4

*2
sr

s

£ ●? -s 8C
3»

J
WM v<nt tnwfn oncMSfuhnM

Q W>P»JnTT»«H.P
wrvM etunwouiEenm

OWWMTWTTMWK*iTiiggantti D*iwici

34+5^485.sn sstBoaMcr vm

m '■ltiai«28SSi: BaT72S2t,2i> kSl■:miiS85S>: B□77;5^^h■ ISlI
1

6/20/2024 6/25/2024 $344.59$485.57

1 5 i.I f

fi
r

II2 d-
a wo

II -TS
\ i3 ■=.o

s 0S-^ i 33
vtcrom CBiam oaouma9*jm

Q»aanTJftar coctDmnoH ttfTta

MS ■ wnMorrcrm

0*TWCI

311.3B1D4.1 I !wfSR~- SsaamwMwermn

KJOMWA ●:UltZ2BS5<: B077iS2<.2P >SllaiiiBSS'l SQ772S2i.iP 151

$377.386/28/2024 6/28/2024$104.11

sO

8

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 301 of 358



i PROSPERITY BANKs
¥

543 1 AB 0.537

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/04/2024

XXXX2625

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2625
Certificate #

$163,744.63

06/04/2024

$449.51

$2,636.89

3.2500%-

12 Months

12/04/2024

07/04/2024

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

/

$0.00

NOTICE INFORMATIONo

.tk

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o

.Ck

o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service
Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

ProsperityBank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB'MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 302 of 358



PROSPERITY BANK¥ 90

543 1 AB 0.537

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/04/2024

XXXX2629

lll.l..|||l,IH|,|||.l.|.|.l.||.|||ln.i!lU|inl.lhl|.!|||l||I

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY ●ft

Certificate ft XXXX2629

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

$164,332.08

06/04/2024

5305.64

$1,796.85

2.1000%

23 Months

09/04/2024

07/04/2024

$0.00

$0.00

y

/

o

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
ro
.(>■

M

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

O
o

o

o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531 -1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank

101 5 Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB'MEMBER FDIC

L U N O .U K

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 303 of 358



(r i PROSPERITY BANK

24 1 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/21/2024

XXXX2680

.|.I|liI.I|ll||].l,Mi,,.!l|||!,||i.I.|l|li|lll,|.||||].!i||.Ml|

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2680Certificate #

$165,258.63

06/22/2024

$467.58

$2,741.63

3.3500%

24 Months

03/22/2025

07/22/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

/

y

NOTICE INFORMATIONo

|o

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o

o

o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service
Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 304 of 358



i PROSPERITY BANK¥

14 1 AV 0.498

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate;

06/07/2024

XXXX2801

||..|.|;,..l|I|.|.l|||||||>..{...|l|]]|l|||,i,].l,,|i|||||l.||.; |

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2801Certificate tt

$263,573.02

06/08/2024

$745.75

$3,691.74

3.3500% ^
24 Months

01/08/2026'^

07/08/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

NOTICE INFORMATIONO

NJ It:.
N)
A

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o

o
Ni

O

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service
Center at 800-531-1401 or your local bankingcenter.

Prosperity Bank
101 SMain St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

C t N 6 'c R

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 305 of 358



4*^*4
H i PROSPERITY BANK4

24 1 AV 0.498

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/07/2024

XXXX2802

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2802Certificate #

$263,573.02

06/08/2024

$745.75

$3,691.74

“ 3.3500%

24 Months

01/08/2026

07/08/2024

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

J

/

$0.00

$0.00

o
NOTICE INFORMATIONo

NJ

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

e
o
o
o
fO

s>

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531 -1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB‘MEMBER FDIC

rouAt

LENOBR

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 306 of 358



A
n i PROSPERITY BANK

40 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0518

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX0518Certificate #

$260,675.36

06/30/2024

$2,176.76

$4,312.20

3.3500^

24 Months

03/30/2025'^
09/30/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
Ul

O

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o
o

o
o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 SMain St

Victoria, TX 77901

MEMBER FDIC NYSE Symbol TB’

UCNDER

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 307 of 358



a i PROSPERITY BANK®

41 1 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0519

I|.|||!l.,lI|ui,„|Ill|lj.,nj.|l.hil||.lj|,.ll,i|,l..|nll.Il.

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX0519Certificate ft

$260,675.36

06/30/2024

$2,176.76

$4,312.20

3.3500%’^
24 Months

03/30/2025

09/30/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

NOTICE INFORMATION .o

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o

o

O

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service
Center at 800-531-1401or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB”MEMBER FDiC

LtNOCn

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 308 of 358



i PROSPERITY BANK"

40 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0520

iiii

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

Certificate # XXXX0520

$260,357.35/
06/30/2024

$2,115.52

$4,185.67

3.2500%

12 /Months

03/30/2025 ^

09/30/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

interest Rate

/Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

O

. NOTICE INFORMATIONo

o
SJ

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o

o
o
o

o

o
ro

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our CustomerService
Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

ProsperityBank
101 SMain St

Victoria, TX 77901

MEMBER FDiC NYSE Symbol "PB"

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 309 of 358



S t PROSPERITY BANK

40 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0521

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

Certificate # XXXX0521

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

$260,357.35

06/30/2024

$2,115.52

$4,185.67

3.25m

12 Months

03/30/2025'^
09/30/2024

$0.00

$0.00

o

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
U)

o

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o

£
s
Ui

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

MEMBER FDIC NYSE Symbol "PB”
rouu KftAM

LCNOeR

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 310 of 358



’4

PROSPERITY BANK^44
4 ¥

6/30/2024Statement Date

Account No
Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com ****

38812500 1 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST 5TE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Page 1 of A

	 		

●- Public Fund Contractual Ckg w Int Account No ****3881 ^STAT^ENT SUMMARY

$70,832.2106/01/2024 Beginning Balance

1 Deposits/Other Credits

0 Checks/Other Debits

06/30/2024 Ending Balance

$8.71+

$0.00

$70,840.9230 Days in Statement Period

DEPOSITS/OTHER CREDITS ;

AmountDate Description

Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account $8.7106/30/2024

_TpTAl, OVERDRAFT FEES.

Total For This Period Total Year-to-Date

$0.00SO.OOTotal Overdraft Fees

$0.00$0.00Total Return Item Feeso
o
o
o

DAILY ENDING BALANCE .

BalanceBalance DateDate

$70,840.92$70,832.21 06-3006-01

EARNINGS SUMMARY
k.

Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period. *'

Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period

o
NJ

0.15%$8.71Interest Paid This Period

Interest Paid YTD

CO

30$35.53o
o
rJ

o
o
o

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDiC

(.ENDCn VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 311 of 358



Pledge Security Listing
June 30, 2024

t PROSPERITY BANK%

EL CAMPO, TK

iiafekeeping

Receipt

Maturity

Coupon Date

CallSafekeeping
Location

Current

Book ValueDescription Moody S&P Fitch ASC 320ID CUSIP Date Face Amount Current Par Market Value Gain(Loss)

243,512-05

52,543.62

136,352,66

444,081,26

31417CWC5 FHLB3337 FNMA «AB6042 2.50 08/01/2027

07/01/2030

11/01/2030

09/01/2035

AAA AA+ AAA HTM 4,788,704

400,000

1,000,000

2,200,000

2,000,000

3,800,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

300,000

242,563-18

52,411.35

135,584.29

430,578.90

362,408.00

233,986.15

49,656,08

127,998.35

395,508.25

342,341.47

751,418.41

196,997.67

227,260,69

50,681.38

381,131.28

299,919.66

682,541.92

(9,525.90)

(2,887,54)

(8,354.31)

(48,573.01)

(25,908.50)

(48,054.55)

(12,541.51)

(16,278.90)

(2,451.93)

(21,437,84)

(11,662.92)

(122,632.79)

(18,144.16)

(59,033.74)

(28,675,00)

FHLB4259 3138WFAL0 FNMA #AS5410 2.50 HTMAAA AA+ AAA

FHLB4304 3128MMT66 FHLMC #G18574 2,50 AAA HTMAAA AA+

FHLBFHLMC #G30927 3.004869 3132J4HD4 AAA AA+ AAA HTM

FHLB 368,249.97

799,472.96

209,539,18

243,539,59

53,133-31

402,569.12

311,582.58

805,174,72

136,186.31

325,796,47

235,067.56

4882 3138W)AC2 FNMA #AS8102 2,50 10/01/2031

12/01/2031

AAA AA+ AAA HTM

312BMMVQ3 FHLMC #G18622 FHLB 2,504885 AAA AA+ AAA HTM 793,405,42

208,544.79

240,383,21

52,467.91

403,685.17

305,846.97

788,956.36

132,803.23

326,203.53

233,914.99

FHLB4886 3138W)N53 FNMA #AS8511 2.50 12/01/2031 AAA HTMAAA AA+

FHLB4956 31307U2S6 FHLMC #337985 3.00 11/01/2032

02/01/2033

AAA AA+ AAA HTM

FHLB3128MFKH0 FHLMC @616396 3.50 AAA HTM4968 MA AA+

FNMA CRA #CA1666 FHLB4983 3140Q8Z81 3.00 04/01/2033

06/01/2033

03/01/2036

05/01/2036

10/01/2041

03/01/2037

AAA AA+ AAA HTM 948,992

3,000,000

1,200,000

FHLB3128MMX57 FHLMC #G18699 4.00 HTM4992 AAA AA+ AAA

FHLB31418DXG2 FNMA @MA4278 1.505538 AAA AA+ AAA HTM

3132D6AC4 FHLB5558 FR @568103 2.00 AAA AA+ AAA HTM 200,000

400,000

300,000

118,042,15

266,762.72

206,392,55

FHLB5620 31418DSF5 FNMA #MA4445 1.50 AAA AA+ AAA HTM

FHLB5658 31418ECD0 FNMA @MA4567 2.00 HTMAAA AA+ AAA

Total for VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER 4,766,801.36 4,330,638.7 (436,162.60)22,537,696 4,709,757.30

Although the Infomiatfon In this report has been obtaiied from sources believed to be reliable, lls accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

Page 1 of 1 7/2/2024 8:56:55Inventory | Pledge Security Listing |vl.2

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 312 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater
Conservation District

INVESTMENT REPORT

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

As of July 31,2024

Detailed Description of Investment Position - PFIA 2256.023(b)(1)

The investment position of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District (District) during
the reporting period was restricted to: 1) cash deposited into an interest-bearing, demand deposit
account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating Fund, 2) cash deposited into an

interest-bearing, money-market account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating
Fund, 3) cash deposited into an interest-bearing, money-market account for the purposes of
holding monies of the Reserve Fund, and 4) cash deposited into certificates of deposit for the
purposes of holding monies of the Reserve Fund. The accounts are secured by FDIC insurance
and pledged collateral in accordance with state law and the Investment Policy of the District.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, demand deposit
account at Prosperity Bank (Account Number; 7060023566) for the purpose of holding monies of
the Operating Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, receiving deposits of district fees,
and paying of bills and invoices of the District.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market
account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 218927120) for the purpose of holding monies of the
Operating Fund, and receiving interest deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market
account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 807725242) for the purpose of holding monies of the
Reserve Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, and receiving ad valorem tax revenue
deposits.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002625) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number;
280002626) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002629) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002680) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002801) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002802) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

VCGCD - Investment Report Page 1 of 4 Date; 9/5/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 313 of 358



During the reporting period, the
9570010518) for the purpose of
deposits of the account.

District deposited funds in a certificate of

holding monies of the Reserve Fund and
deposit (Number;
receiving interest

During the reporting period, the
9570010519) for the purpose of
depositsof the account.

District deposited funds in a certificate of

holding monies of the Reserve Fund and
deposit (Number;
receiving interest

During the reporting period, the
9570010520) for the purpose of
deposits of the account.

District deposited funds in a certificate of
holding monies of the Reserve Fund and

deposit (Number;

receiving interest

During the reporting period, the
9570010521) for the purpose of
deposits of the account.

District deposited funds in a certificate of

holding monies of the Reserve Fund and
deposit (Number:
receiving interest

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market
account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 217843881) for the purpose of holding monies of the GMA
15 Committee Joint Planning Funds.

Summary of Pooled Fund Groups - PFIA 2256.023(b)(4)(A-D)
The District did not invest any portion of its funds in any pooled fund groups during the reporting
period.

Beginning Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups:

Additions and Changes to the Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups;

Ending Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups:

Fully Accrued Interest of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups:

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Book and Market Values by Asset Type and Fund Type Statement - PFIA 2256.023(b)(5)
Yield /Asset Type Institution Fund Book Market

Types Rate Value Value

Demand

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank $154,991.61'^Operating 0.15% $154,991.61
(7060023566)

Money
Market

Account*

Prosperity
Bank $282,690.11%^Operating 3.03% $282,690.11
(218927120)

7Money
Market Bank

Account*

Prosperity
Bank

(807725242)

/Reserve 3.03% $1,751,859.82 $1,751,859.82

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank $164,180.83 ^3.25% yReserve $164,180.83
(280002625)

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank Reserve 0.20% $0.00 $0.00

(280002626)
Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank $164,628.42*^Reserve 2.20% $164,628.42
(280002629)

Prosperity
Bank

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

/»/Reserve 3.35% $165,712.41 $165,712.41
(280002680)

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

(280002801)

J /Reserve 3.35% $264,296.77 $264,296.77

VCGCD - Investment Report Page 2 of 4 Date; 9/5/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 314 of 358



Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank 3.35%*^ $264,296.77'^Reserve $264,296.77

(280002802)

7Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank 3.35% ^ $260,675.36 $260,675.36Reserve

(9570010518)
Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

j
Reserve 3.35% $260,675.36 $260,675.36

(9570010519)
Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

■j
Reserve 3.25% $260,357.35 $260,357.35

(9570010520)

Prosperity
Bank

(9570010521)

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

7 /Reserve 3.25% $260,357.35 $260,357.35

GMA 15

Committee

Joint

Planning
Funds

/
Demand

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

(217843881)

J
0.15% $70,849.92 $70,849.92

Totai: $4,325,572.08 $4,325,572.08

* Based on monthiy statements provided by banking institutions.

Summary of Insurance and Collateral by Institution
Institution FDIC Insurance Market Value of Pledged

Securities as Collateral

Total Insurance and

Pledged Securities

$4,502,226.77

7
Prosperity
Bank

$250,000.00 $4,252,226.77

Asset Maturity Date Statement - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(6)

Asset Yield / Maturity Date
Rate

Demand Deposit Account #7060023566 0.15% N/A

Money Market Account #218927120 3.03% N/A

Market Account #807725242 3.03% N/A ,
12/4/2024"3.25%-'Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002625

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002626

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002629

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002680

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002801

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002802

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010518

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010519

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010520

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010521

Closed#'
9/4/2024 V

3/22/2025 i/
1/8/2026

1/8/2026/
3/30/2025 7

0.20%

2.20V

3.35%

3.35%

3.35%

3.35%'

3/30/2025jf
3/30/2025 Y

3/30/2025 V

3.35%'

3.25%

3.25%

Demand Deposit Account #217843881 0.15% N/A

Investments for Funds Statement - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(7)

Investment Fund

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account #7060023566

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account #218927120

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account #807725242

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002625

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002626

Operating

Operating

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

VCGCD - Investment Report Page 3 of 4 Date: 9/5/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 315 of 358



Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002629

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002680

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002801

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002802

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010518

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010519

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010520

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010521

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

GMA 15

Committee

Joint

Planning
Funds

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account #217843881

Statement of Compliance - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(8)
The portfolio of the District is believed to be in compliance with the District’s Investment Strategy
expressed in the District’s Investment Policy and the Public Funds Investment Act.

Statement regarding Report Preparation - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(2-3)
By my signature, I represent that 1) this report was written under my direct supervision; 2) I have
thoroughly reviewed all the information contained within and used to develop this report; and 3) I
believe this report to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

imoth/A. Andruss, VCGCD Investment Officer

VCGCD - Investment Report Page 4 of 4 Date: 9/5/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 316 of 358



-4

PROSPERITY BANK4.4
44C

Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com 7/31/2024Statement Date

Account No 35667055 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Page 1 of 7

l||{III]||..|M|l..]>j|.|[|ll.l[|]||.|l.[]|li|.||.|I>l|||»l]>i II

1

Public Fund Contractual Gkg w Int Account No *‘**3566STATEMENT SUMMARY

5198,004.58

5224.67

07/01/2024 Beginning Balance

5 Deposits/Other Credits

18 Checks/Other Debits

07/31/2024 Ending Balance

Total Enclosures

4

543,237.64

5154,991.61 \/31 Days in Statement Period

18

DEPOSrrS/OTHER CREDITS

AmountDate Description

520.00

520.00

$20.00

5143.90

520.77

07/23/2024

07/23/2024

07/23/2024

07/23/2024 Deposit
07/31 /2024 Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

o

o

CHECKSo
k.

AmountCheck Number DateCheck Number Date Amount Check Number D^ate Amount

$3,585.39

545.56

5495.00

511.59

07-24

07-23

07-22

07-25

5241550.00

550.00

$500.00

5500.00

$500.00

07-17

07-01

07-22

07-19

07-23

5500.00

$500.00

$18.34

5840.12

5748.00

5219 07-02

07-05

07-22

07-02

07-01

5232*

5234*

5236*

52425222*

52435226*

5245*5227 5237

5229* 5240*

o

OTHER DEBITS

AmountDate DescriptionO
O

$19,450.95

$6,805.98

53,105,85

55,530.86

ACH Payment INTUIT PAYROLL 5 QUICKBOOKS ***“2725 210000
ACH Payment IRS USATAXPYMT 225458574731859 6103601014742

ACH Payment TML0111 CONS COLL PV1CTOR2 21000024547019

ACH Payment TEXAS COUNTY DR5 RECEIVABLE 0767 21000025671

07/02/2024

07/03/2024

07/05/2024

07/15/2024

O

o

r.

DAILY ENDING BALANCE
k.'

BalanceDateBalance BalanceDate Date

$158,567.82

5154,982.43

$154,970.84

$154,991.61

5161,510.94
5161,010.94

5160,170.82

5159,157.48

07-23

07-24

07-25

07-31

5197,004.58

5177.003.63

5170,197.65

5167,041.80

07-01

07-02

07-03

07-05

07-15

07-17

07-19

07-22

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

J-CNC3CR VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 317 of 358



VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER Statement Date

Account No

7/31/2024

3566

Page 2 of 7

EARNINGS SUMMARY

Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period.

S20.77

S222.60

Interest Paid This Period

Interest Paid YTD

Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period

0.15 /o

31

o
o

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 318 of 358



****
3566Account NoVICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

Page 3 of 7

I, i(

I
I

t s ■c"2

Si ^ □I

ilS I- nSassg

IJ»i T-

i
&

i e
!?:

ggtogwiTrT mwip
» 05S ao;

■:U3U2&S5i: TDKD02356&I- ISl 151i:ii5i;e6ssi: 7o&oa!3s&5g‘

7/23/2024 $20.007/23/2024$20.00

I I sfl

I- A

I - "Fc ■
I II £=a 3 — I

\IQ PSi
i as

N j
B

1'It »|:

Q wbttMctfrrttAWT l H2>.‘'0Id'* ss

'a m22LSS>: ?OtDQi35&5>‘ 151 ●ni3i:!&5s>: ?D&aD:3S55» 151

1/22/2024 $20.00 7/23/2024 $143.90

S222S219VKTCKU COUKTT GMOVIOWATni
ecuactvATwwpgmicr

yiCTOtOA COUKTV OROUNtWAIER
COKSDWAT10N DtSmCT
^miwfctrmnfl

NSQia>.nTm.'

mmottm

JK«« wroae n cn rit

■MUTt Mn«m

■'^'* I itP

QWBeyopTtMnr

(nm^-

f*. HWSwcnBAwr

eo

jsg3'jJ'SC)

.90VLAAS O &■-ILIASD

	AVLt>->j;i5^tf^V/^.'OPg,iaiAf><TioL
CimtlKSBi: T0BQQ;aS6B'

rxv\xp-wu\ fa.twftf-Trfc.'mmKIfta
roos2!i» cuaiiaessi: 7aBoa;as&s>‘

POK

7/2/2024 5219 $50.00 7/5/2024 $50.005222

5227VtCTOSlA couxrr ORtStnCDWATER
COMSCKVAT10N Rsmcr

Lg\7lo\lHyyofcsygiipi m\ uri «C7vn

sO

B.. ■^r>vcv\ iiV7\cxyvJD^

rnoftaAifS^ grtvArrfva^		
i*00S2e?«* i:U3W9&5Si: 70&002is&&i*

PAY

*6X1o
J

o

j>eiLni>a A gU

7

7/22/2024 5226 $500.00 7/2/2024 $500.005227

IT VKTORIA COUKTr QROUXDWATEB
COttSEBVATXW Btsmn^

WfcOM&C PI lu

S239 : 6232VICTDR3A CO UWTY C ROUN OWATCR
CONSeRVATlOM DJCTRICT
>iM H kuariMO rr nt ne

VCTDBHAnm*t&7

ISJfl- Cb,\e»4
' nvvT^

cpf¥:ty\Ti^m' fA xii^har\
●■OOS21?<’ Cliaiii&SSt: 7DAD0!356B>*

4
UI7I -im4 vn.W o*n. fr:-.*?'

K>

Sa^^y-cs^ - -
SxlL \\\kmvAPi rvNrt

" pgaWfavrE —:		

rA\xfo!nnr\ ..''

●:jhi7?6S5«: 7Q6Donstti*

J » 9D' .* 635“'
§ 'LLARt .aoiLtaa C3

oo i
UT
U1

e/^o
ro

TT

7/1/2024 5229 $500.00 7/17/2024 $500.005232

5234●AA.
COKSCiTVATttM 01

OATI.

V^LAV^QV'.gA oy\A”=/ico
£!SSS!SQlfi£SSr

■COV-N-?^Y^l^ f(^cS\ar\
●■DQS2J^* ClialSiBSSi: ?aSDD23S&&»

■eo

* ^

ag.ibLAHt

7

7/1/2024 5234 $500.00 7/22/2024 $ie.345236

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 319 of 358



VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER Account No 3566

Page 4 of 7

WCTORIA COUHTY GROUNDWATER
COWSOWATTOW PSTWCT

S40VtCTOKA COUNTY GROUNDVrATER
CONSCRVATTON [RSTRaCT

■ UMCiritm
m?

Uh^A\(^'f\a MNSnca\t ,s
OOL ARS O &»

C9

Mivr

j^OWCg^w-:!,RC«\.
jr

i:ii2i22bssi: 70&oo2»s&Cf ^aDS2t.D<* *:U)i3?&5Si: 70&00235e&«*

7/19/2024 5237 $840.12 7/23/2024 $748.005240

VterOflMCOUNTy GROUNDWATER
COUSERVATnUI DISntlST

S241 SZ42VKrraRlA COUNTY GROUNDWATER
CONSERVATION DtSmCT

—T*isnr*

oiBrn 3MiiiMn. om439W0 pwoin0MM>

rf\V6,VAg.V^Vy.V* 4)PV\l\Lg

TirtdKy6Cvy>Jb^0cji!c6afi^^
y^goagmAffiE * ! ■fpf^¥\ML O.Yt^ ^l|P

y^gWatTTtuwn-

S<J,P|85-®' isj: J

icn.

YQasii.tr cttjliisss': TosooiistiSY YDDSiklY Ctntti&SSC TDADDiiSRSY

7/24/2024 7/23/2024 $45.565241 $3,585.39 5242

5245S243 VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER
CONSERVATION OtSTRICT

WTO R2A COUNTY GROUNDWATER
CORSERVATTON OI5TIOCT

RMB««ctTnsr*

llA<nA «V1CiM.TXnB*4»C
g..ij^n mptoe ACSUTflan«

f-^gCHCTmDAWS

s \v«'Oa\Viv\viyn ^Mi'nyorY
?aft^V\uriAv-€(^ Vi\r\^^ nr\r\'^*inf>

yosiTO^ iwa* '

j %

It a g..^01

27
.c< ●y

raOsliUSY iltiSliiSSSt: TOSOGilSKBrYQOSiviY iiuaiiisssi: td&C023sssf

$11.597/22/2024 7/25/20245243 $495.00 5245

o
o

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 320 of 358



4t’ 4

PROSPERITY BANK*4
4 4

Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com 7/31/2024

"■*7120

Page 1 of 4

Statement Date

Account No7053 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901 -3947

	 		I III

Public Fund Contractual Money Mkt Account No ****7120STATEMENT SUMMARY

07/01/2024 Beginning Balance

1 Deposits/Other Credits

0 Checks/Other Debits

07/31/2024 Ending Balance

S281,973.62

$716.49

$0.00

$282,690.11

+

31 Days in Statement Period

deposits/oTher credits

Date Description Amount

$716.4907/31/2024 Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account

“TOTArOVERDWr FEES

Total For This Period Total Year-to-Date

Total Overdraft Fees $0.00 $0.00

Total Return Item Fees $0.00 $0.00o
o
o
o

DAILY ending BALANCE

Date Balance Date Balance

07-01 $281,973.62 $282,690.1107-31

EARNINGS SUMMARY

Below Is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period. ’*

$716.49

$4,886.61

o

1.^Interest Paid This Period 3.03%Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Periodinterest Paid YTD 31o
o

o

w

o

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 321 of 358



/

PROSPERITY BANKV 4
% 4

Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com 7/31/2024Statement Date

Account No
vr***

52427054 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Page 1 of 5

1

*●*« 5242Public Fund Contractual Money Mkt Account NoSTATEMEKT SUMMARY

S1,742,512.64

S9,347.18

50.00

51,751,859.82

07/01/2024 Beginning Balance

7 Deposits/Other Credits

0 Checks/Other Debits

07/31 /2024 Ending Balance

Total Enclosures

+

31 Days in Statement Period

6

DEPOSITS/OTHER CREDITS

AmountDate Description

5345.71

$1,438.39
5368.92

5983.63

$1,408.04

5371.63

54,430.86

07/01/2024

07/17/2024

07/29/2024

07/30/2024

07/30/2024

07/31/2024

07/31/2024

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Acer Earning Pymt Added to Accounto
o

DAILY ENDING BALANCE

Date Balance BalanceDate Balance Date

07-01

07-17

51,742,858.35

51,744,296.74
51.744,665.66

$1,747,057.33

$1,751,859.8207-29

07-30

07-31

EARNINGS SUMMARYo

Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period. “

54,430.86

528,786.24

Interest Paid This Period

Interest Paid YTD

3.03%Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period

o
o

31o

o

MEMBER FD!C NYSE Symbol ''PB“

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 322 of 358



#

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER Account No ****5242

Page 2 of 5

I ^
1J ■J

&I
to

a an ■3-

s

i’s
.s ■.ii 9c _e

i
d <121-2. I

I>
I t t ●

cevrTTQMtflOWnill

COVttmrATlQKQimJCT
tiUKiMriwcfTrur*

N.i(MkTtn«ha>r Q PROBWggTVaAHK*conwAneH

s sBBM Mii*<wpp gnni

●:il3l?;&55>! B077i52l.;f> ISl 77!S2I.i>' 151

7/1/2024 $345.71 7/17/2024 $1,438.39

I J
●I0MMa

I? l: ffi
a aO'

I

iHS
«

I Tl
I

S7ZS.*:
9 Et (

a
I Ii!B £s r r

I

o
'■Wf

QpgjTOTwnrCBanxt««ma*i

<5|«3Ja3SljP.<^2.s s

B077i5!l.7«> ISl t:ii5i;2B5s>: BaT7^s^^^●■ ISl

7/29/2024 $368.92 7/30/2024 $983.63

1

3i

a sCj
iS;5

J.3 ^ I

i; 1 =iB=::

S e'^i n

3r r

Q^MPlITTHHar
iicrwucQisrr« 9nni

I 4-01.0 4- a-11 lo?s s
I nn mi

RU]t;2BS5i: al]77^S^^ 2I* isi i:il31iiBSS>: S077iS2l.il> 151

7/30/2024 7/31/2024 $371.63$1,408.04

>0

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 323 of 358



i PROSPERITY BANK®

1398 1 AB 0.547

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

07/03/2024

XXXX2625

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE 5UMMARY
awi:

XXXX2625Certificate #

$164,180.83

07/04/2024

$436.20

$3,073.09

3.2500%

12 Months

12/04/2024

08/04/2024

SO.OO

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
r«j

CO

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

O

o

UJ

CD

o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 324 of 358



i PROSPERITY BANK"

1398 1 AB 0.547

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

07/03/2024

XXXX2629

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2629Certificate #

✓
$164,628.42

07/04/2024

$296.34

$2,093.19

2.2000% ^

23 Months

09/04/2024

08/04/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

o
NOTICE INFORMATIONo

NJ

CO
tv)

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o

so

CO
o
tv)

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

LtNl

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 325 of 358



4- *4
¥ i PROSPERITY BANK

403 1 AB 0.593

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

07/22/2024

XXXX2680

ill

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2680Certificate #

$165,712.41

07/22/2024

$453.78

$3,195.41

3.3500

24 Months

03/22/2025

08/22/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

tv
/O

NOTICE INFORMATIONo

o

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o

o

o

o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank

101 SMain St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol '●PB"MEMBER FDIC

Lt.

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 326 of 358



t PROSPERITY BANK

646 1 AB 0.547

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

07/08/2024

XXXX2801

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2801Certificate #

$264,296.77/
07/08/2024

$723.75

$4,415.49

3.3500% /
24 Months

01/08/2026

08/08/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
hJ

o^

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

Q
O
O
O'

O'
o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531 -1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol ”PB”MEMBER FDIC

LLNO'nK

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 327 of 358



i PROSPERITY BANK¥

646 1 AB 0.547

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

07/08/2024

XXXX2802

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOnCESUMMARY:

XXXX2802Certificate #

$264,296.77

07/08/2024

$723.75

$4,415.49

3.3500%

24 Months

01/08/2026

08/08/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

o
NOTICE INFORMATIONo

O'

N>

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o

o
o

o
r>j

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service
Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDiC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 328 of 358



i PROSPERITY BANK

40 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDV/ATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0518

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

.1-- NOTICE SUMMARY ●

XXXX0518Certificate #

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

$260,675.36

06/30/2024

$2,176.76

$4,312.20

3.3500%

24 Months

03/30/2025'^
09/30/2024

$0.00

$0.00

f?‘.NOTICE INFORMATION-o

.b.
o

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o

o
o

2
o
O

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our CustomerService
Center at 800-531 -1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 5 Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

MEMBER FDIC NYSE Symbol "PB"

ICW

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 329 of 358



PROSPERITY BANr8?

41 1 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0519

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

H0T1CE SUMMARY

XXXX0519Certificate "

✓S260,675.36

06/30/2024

$2,176.76

$4,312.20

3.35007o

24 Months

03/30/2025

09/30/2024

SO.OD

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

NOTICriNFORAWnOMo

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o
o
Jl.

o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 SMain St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 330 of 358



^3
PROSPERITY BANK

^ ● ● ●

-10 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 2l0

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0520

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

rttonGfSUMMARY: aI*-5.

XXXX0520Certificate II

5260.357.35*^
06/30/2024

$2,115.52

54,185.67

3.2500%

12 Months

03/30/2025

09/30/2024

SO.OO

SO.OO

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal V.'ithheld

State Withheld

O

NOTICE INFORMATION

o

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o

— ■!

OBCOBK
O mob
hJ

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 5 Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 331 of 358



ti i PROSPERITY BANK
<s

40 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0521

M*llP'll!lll^'l'l'HhMlinil'MUl'llll>I"I'’l'"''l'nMll'

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY■ ti--
.-s

XXXX0521Certificate #

/
$260,357.35

06/30/2024

$2,115.52

$4,185.67

3.2500%

12 Months

03/30/2025

09/30/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

o

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
UJ

O
w

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o

s
W

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531 -1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank

101 SMain St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

TOiuu aanu.

LCNO^I^

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 332 of 358



4- -4

PROSPERITY BANK4
¥ ¥

Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com 7/31/2024Statement Date

Account No 38817052 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Page 1 of 4

ll||.l.illl.!i,||l|ill.lllnl|l!l|l|l||.llil.il|.l|lliip,l|,l|i,

Public Fund Contractual Ckg w Int Account.No ****3881 ^
STATEMENT SUAMAARY

$70,840.9207/01/2024 Beginning Balance

1 Deposits/Other Credits

0 Checks/Other Debits

07/31 /2024 Ending Balance

$9.00

$0.00

$70,849.9231 Days in Statement Period

DEPOSrrS/OTHER CREDITS
k. '

AmountDate Description

$9.0007/31/2024 Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account

■ ■IWACOVrobRjsrTF^’

Total For This Period Total Year-to-Date

Total Overdraft Fees $0.00$0.00

Total Return Item Fees $0.00 $0.00o
o
o
o

DAILY ENDING BALANCE -

Date Balance Date Balance

$70,840.9207-01 $70,849.9207-31

EARNINGS SUMAAARY

“ Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period.

$9.00

$44.53

o

/
0.15%Interest Paid This Period Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period

a

31Interest Paid YTDo
O

o

o

NYSE Symbol ’‘PB”MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 333 of 358



Pledge Security Listing
July 31, 2024

i PROSPERITY BANK€

%V'
EL CAMPO, T.X

Safekeeping
Location

sarekeeping

Receipt

Maturity

Coupon Date

can Current

Book ValueDescriptionCUSIP Date Moody S&P Fitch ASC 320ID Face Amount Current Par Market Value Gain(Loss)

FHLB3337 31417CWC5 FNMA «AB6042 2.50 08/01/2027

07/01/2030

AAA AA+ 235,837.66AAA Km 4,788,704

400,000

1,000,000

2,200,000

2,000,000

234,946-84 227,346,31

48,556.72

125,460.33

392,412,07

327,266.55

725,826,62

191,178,97

222,149,92

49,619,97

(8,491,34)

(3,068,21)

(7,999,77)

(48,006,29)

(28,378,60)

(60,558,93)

FHLB3138WFAL0 FNMA #AS54104259 2,50 AAA AA+ AAA 51,624,93

133,460.10

440,418.37

Hm 51,496.66

132,717.31

427,138.43

350,055.14

FHLB4304 3128MMT86 FHLMC #G18574 2.50 11/01/2030

09/01/2035

10/01/2031

AAA AA+ AAA HIM

FHLB4869 313224HD4 FHLMC #G30927 3.00 AAA AA+ AAA HTM

FHLB4882 3138W3AC2 FNMA #AS8102 2.50 AAA AA+ AAA Hm 355,645,15

786,385,55FHLB4885 3128MMVQ3 FHLMC #G18622 2.50 12/01/2031

12/01/2031

11/01/2032

02/01/2033

AAA AA+ AAA Hm 3,800,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

300,000

948,992

3,000,000

1,200,000

200,000

400,000

300,000

780,492.30

204,491.36

235,876.02

51.486,06

400,194,65

FHLB4886 3138W3N53 FNMA #AS8511 2.50 AA+ 205,454.86

238,950.03

AAA AAA HTM (14,275.86)

FHLB4956 31307U2S6 FHLMC #337985 3.00 AAA AA+ AAA Hm (16,800.11)

(2,312.80)

(20,458.69)

(10,987.42)

(117,970.56)

(17,541.71)

(58,174.41)

(27,592.21)

FHLB3128MFKH0 FHLMC #G16396 3.504968 AAA AA+ AAA Hm 52,132.78

399,096.84FHLB4983 3140Q8Z81

3128MMX57

FNMA CRA #CA1666 3.00 04/01/2033

06/01/2033

03/01/2036

AAA AA+ AAA Hm 378,608,15

297,087.17

679,042.59

117,094.11

265,447.44

204,929.85

FHLBFHLMC #6186994992 4.00 AAA AA+ AAA 308,074,59

797,013.15

134,635.82

323,621.85

Hm 302,452.68

781,065.35

131,311.17

324,024.60

231,389.21

FHLB5538 31418DX62 FNMA #MA4278 1.50 AA+AAA AAA Hm

FHLB3132D6AC45558 FR #568103 2.00 05/01/2036 AAA AA+ AAA Hm

FHLB5620 31418DSF5 FNMA #MA4445 1.50 10/01/2041

03/01/2037

AAA AA+ AAA Hm

FHLB31418ECD0 FNMA #MA4S67 2.005658 AAA AA+ AAA Hm 232,522,06

Total for VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER 4,694,873.7422,537,696 4,639,139.78 4,252,226.77 (442,646.93)

AIttiojgh the InFormallon In this report has beer obtained from sources believed tb be reliable, its accuracy carrhot be guararrteed.

Page 1 of 1 7/31/2024 2:10:2Inventory |Pledge Security Listing |vl.2
VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 334 of 358



Victoria County Groundwater
Conservation District

INVESTMENT REPORT

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

As of August 31, 2024

Detailed Description of Investment Position - PFIA 2256.023(b)(1)
The investment position of the Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District (District) during
the reporting period was restricted to: 1) cash deposited into an interest-bearing, demand deposit
account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating Fund, 2) cash deposited into an
interest-bearing, money-market account for the purposes of holding monies of the Operating
Fund, 3) cash deposited into an interest-bearing, money-market account for the purposes of
holding monies of the Reserve Fund, and 4) cash deposited into certificates of deposit for the
purposes of holding monies of the Reserve Fund. The accounts are secured by FDIC insurance
and pledged collateral in accordance with state law and the Investment Policy of the District.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, demand deposit
account at Prosperity Bank (Account Number: 7060023566) for the purpose of holding monies of
the Operating Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, receiving deposits of district fees,
and paying of bills and invoices of the District.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market
account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 218927120) for the purpose of holding monies of the
Operating Fund, and receiving interest deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market
account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 807725242) for the purpose of holding monies of the
Reserve Fund, receiving interest deposits of the account, and receiving ad valorem tax revenue
deposits.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002625) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002626) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002629) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002680) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002801) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number:
280002802) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

Date: 10/3/2024Page 1 of 4VCGCD - Investment Report

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 335 of 358



During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit {Number:

9570010518) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
depositsof the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number;
9570010519) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number;
9570010520) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited funds in a certificate of deposit (Number;
9570010521) for the purpose of holding monies of the Reserve Fund and receiving interest
deposits of the account.

During the reporting period, the District deposited cash in an interest-bearing, money market
account at Prosperity Bank (Number: 217843881) for the purpose of holding monies of the GMA
15 Committee Joint Planning Funds.

Summary of Pooled Fund Groups - PFIA 2256.023(b)(4)(A-D)
The District did not invest any portion of its funds in any pooled fund groups during the reporting
period.

Beginning Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups

Additions and Changes to the Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups

Ending Market Value of Investments in Pooled Fund Groups

Fully Accrued Interest of Investments In Pooled Fund Groups

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Book and Market Values by Asset Type and Fund Type Statement - PFIA 2256.023(b)(5)
Fund

Types

Asset Type Institution Yield / Book Market

Rate Value Value

7Demand

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank $194,000.05/Operating 0.15% $194,000.05
(7060023566)

Money
Market

Account*

Prosperity
Bank

/yOperating 3.03% $283,408.42 $283,408.42
(218927120)

Money
Market Bank

Account*

Prosperity
Bank /3.03% $1,759,231.52Reserve $1,759,231.52
(807725242)

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

y
Reserve 3.25% $164,632,78 $164,632.78

(280002625)
Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank Reserve 0.20% $0.00 $0.00

(280002626)

yCertificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank yReserve 2.20% $164,935.19 $164,935.19
(280002629)

Prosperity
Bank

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

/3.35% ^Reserve $166,182.61 $166,182.61
(280002680)

7Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

(280002801)

y
3.35%Reserve $265,046.69 $265,046.69

VCGCD - Investment Report Page 2 of 4 Date: 10/3/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 336 of 358



Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank $265,046.693.35%Reserve $265,046.69
(280002802)

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank Reserve 3.35% $260,675.36 $260,675.36
(9570010518)

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank $260,675.363.35%Reserve $260,675.36

(9570010519)

✓Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank $260,357.35''^Reserve 3.25% $260,357.35
(9570010520)

Certificate of

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

(9570010521)

/
Reserve 3.25% $260,357.35 $260,357.35

GMA 15

Committee

Joint

Planning
Funds

,/Demand

Deposit
Account*

Prosperity
Bank

(217843881)

y/0.15% $79,859.16 $79,859.16

Total: $4,384,408.53 $4,384,408.53

* Based on monthly statements provided by banking institutions.

Summary of Insurance and Collateral by Institution
Institution FDIC Insurance Market Value of Pledged

Securities as Collateral

Total Insurance and

Pledged Securities

Prosperity
Bank $250,000.00 $4,801,426.88 $5,051,426.88

Asset Maturity Date Statement - PFIA 2256.Q023(b)(6)
Asset Yield / Maturity Date

Rate

Demand Deposit Account #7060023566 0.15%

3.03%>;r
3.03yy.
3^2^

N/A

Money Market Account #218927120 N/A

Market Account #807725242 N/A

12/4/2024Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002625

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002626

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002629

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002680

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002801

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002802

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010518

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010519

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010520

Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010521

0.20% .

2.20%^^
3.35%^'
3.35%'^!

Closed

9/4/2024

3/22/2025'^

1/8/2026 y

1/8/2026 /3.35%

3.35%’^ 3/30/2025 <

3/30/20253.35%

3.25%*^
3.25%*^
0.15%'

3/30/2025 y

3/30/2025 /
Demand Deposit Account #217843881 N/A

Investments for Funds Statement - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(7)
Investment Fund

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account #7060023566

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account #218927120

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Money Market Account #807725242

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002625

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002626

Operating

Operating
Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

VCGCD - investment Report Page 3 of 4 Date: 10/3/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 337 of 358



Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002629

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002680

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002801

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #280002802

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010518

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010519

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010520

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Certificate of Deposit Account #9570010521

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

GMA 15

Committee

Joint

Planning
Funds

Cash Deposits in Interest-Bearing Demand Deposit Account #217843881

Statement of Compliance - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(8)
The portfolio of the District is believed to be in compliance with the District’s Investment Strategy
expressed in the District’s Investment Policy and the Public Funds Investment Act.

Statement regarding Report Preparation - PFIA 2256.0023(b)(2-3)
By my signature, I represent that 1) this report was written under my direct supervision; 2) I have
thoroughly reviewed all the information contained within and used to develop this report; and 3) I
believe this report to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Timothy A. Andruss, VCGCD Investment Officer

VCGCD - Investment Report Page 4 of 4 Date: 10/3/2024

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 338 of 358



@

PROSPERITY BANK¥
¥¥

Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com 8/31/2024Statement Date

Account No 3566
****

6998 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Page 1 of 8

1

Fraudulent phone calls, text messages, and emails are on the rise.

Visit www.prosperitybankusa.com/fraud-prevention for tips and information on how to protect yourself.

STATEMENT SUAAMARY
k ^		

Public Fund Cohta-actual Ckg w Int Account No ****3566;^
$154,991.61

599,409.71

560,401.27

$194,000.05

08/01/2024 Beginning Balance

22 Deposits/Other Credits

15 Checks/Other Debits

08/31/2024 Ending Balance

Total Enclosures

4

31 Days in Statement Period

30

DEPOSrrS/OTHER CREDITS: - .

AmountDate Description

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account

$20.00

51,047.92

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

57,166.25

$5,166.25

$5,166.25

$5,166.25

$5,166.25

$2,366.41

S216.37

$20.00

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$7,166.25

$889.29

$2,500.00
$22.22

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/08/2024

08/21/2024

08/21/2024

08/21/2024

08/21/2024

08/21/2024

08/21/2024

08/21/2024

08/21/2024

08/27/2024

08/31/2024

o
o

o

o
o

^o
09

o

CHECKS

AmountCheck Number DateCheck Number Date Check Number Date AmountAmount

$176.88

$2,000.00

52,526.00

$270.00

$127.00

$86.00

5248 08-015238 08-08

08-08

5246* 08-16

08-165239 08-275247 5251*

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 339 of 358



VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER Statement Date

Account No

8/31/2024

3566

Page 2 of 8

CHECKS

Check Number Date Amount Check Number Date Amount Check Number Date Amount

5254* $665.3108-23 5255 08-26 $176.88 $14,800.005256 08-29

OTHER DEBITS

Date Description Amount

08/02/2024

08/05/2024

08/05/2024

08/19/2024

08/30/2024

08/30/2024

ACH Payment INTUIT PAYROLL S QUICKBOOKS

ACH Payment IRS USATAXPYMT 225461845652766 6103601003564

ACH Payment TML0111 CONS COLL PVICTOR2 21000026706603

ACH Payment TEXAS COUNTY DRS RECEIVABLE 0767 21000020992

Deposit Item Ret CK 21148595

Dep Item Ret Chrg

$20,782.83

$7,265.26

$3,105.85

$5,907.26

$2,500.00

$12.00

’2725 210000

1
DAILY ENDING BALANCE

Date Balance Date BalanceBalance Date

08-01

08-02

08-05

08-08

08-16

$154,814.73

$134,031.90

$123,660.79

$173,845.49

$173,632.49

$167,725.23

$211,632.02

$210,966.71

$210,789.83

$211,289.83

$196,489.83

$193,977.83

$194,000.05

08-19

08-21

08-23

08-26

08-27

08-29

08-30

08-31

*1
EARNINGS SUMMARY

Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period.

$22.22

$244.82

Interest Paid This Period

Interest Paid YTD

0.15
ft'

Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period

/O

>15

31o
o

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 340 of 358



****

3566Account NoVICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

Page 3 of 8

[, % iKimwa

FII a

3
s

ty 213/ °s

CUSISS&SSC TOEDDZSSe&f

$216.378/8/2024 $20.00 8/8/2024

Ii
%|gI a

I' 5
re

1

Icl
g

Ii\

Q WWt”TT.«*fg s 1

cmi2!&ss<: ?aBaa2i5&b>' ISt

8/8/2024 8/8/2024 $2,366.41$1,047.92

1
I

I
aI'

i. c.a

3
S

5 I uu.'vss

(51i:mi225SSC Ta50D 23555>‘

8/8/2024 $5,166.25 8/8/2024 $5,166.25

II
V$

A
i

i
s

a

1 =oa!
PsO JQ'. ...

■g Io
3 m osisaiO I

i
I

s
s I(C

! &
1

'5\s S

i:i(312i55Si: TQ500235&5I‘ 151 1S(■:U}(225SSC 7Q6G025555I'

8/8/2024 $5,166.25 8/8/2024 $5,166.25

I ,o I 1 { <6I :

J
o

●J
a

4I naO'
r>j

S' ^ E!

rJO

j() i
Io

I (£O' I e

0TOg«»n^g \{^

*o

Ogsssgjg^'^
:l'£>

09
O

s $K»

r:i(3l225SSi: ?06D025S&5>' >S1 (51i:ill(2255St 7a5a025555>*

8/8/2024 $7,166.25$7,166.25 8/8/2024

I
£

J 5
*●

»□a r

!
-<vr\Ia

ZJK
.{I

i

MMI"
I

«s 3

m:
WQtfegrTYflAHir

s s»PW#v

■:uai22&55': 7050023555' (SI ●:((3( 225SSi: 7050023556' (5(

8/8/2024 $7,166.25 8/8/2024 $7,166.25
VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 341 of 358



VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER Account No 3566

Page 4 of 8

f BT

41 i.

It □ =a
B

ws
I

B

8

i e

.ws I
liJ5

PAWP

oo
10.s v_;'S^ $

u mtij&ssi: 70boa23SBSf* is> 1S(■:U3l22tSS<: 70BDDi35&&i>

8/21/2024 $20.00 8/21/2024 $889.29

Ir
I !5

I
1/r*
r*

■'Ji iiif i ill a
js

I r

B
3S-SSS\r ●K

p
»rv.~;?y 39

3■c I
I ^ I-?: I »u

^7*CTWIHTTa«toP ^
WtOltffJWW BAWM^ «vmMCOM«ni

$ "1 I WU.1-5

uiiiiii&sst: ?atoQ;3s&ti* 151 i:il3ie25S5i: 70&0D;3S65p 151

8/21/2024 $7,166.25 8/21/2024 $7,166.25

I I . 5- 5IT «>Mm«h0

I T*
!

i X

St , 2SQa X
mavjsj

5

4;j
3&=nr=

’j:;:
Hcj;8 8

gi

QfT77*WTIMB: Qwicwtrowr1 \ bUi.l ® "U vju'-®5

illtSlil&SSi: 7D&a023551r 151 151i:il312?5S5<: 705Dai3555»
i

8/21/2024 8/21/2024$7,166.25 $7,166.25

i 5 s

■; -»

it □St

\0
o 5 CV'-o

5 llj ^

iilk 4^
sc

^WOWTTTTBW 1\ \iU.'V«s

':il31i75S5i: 7D5DOZ5556C 151

i

8/21/2024 $7,166.25$7,166.25 8/21/2024

!f 523Bt VTCTORUCOUKTY GROURDWATEn
COUSCRVATtOM oamocT
:=3M HBMHO if VT1 n«
Mcrew^

4i
»4we<«

ja.

1 AOVMB

iShi^ /\Wssny\ 'h-xas 8.VAqq^.UJP_
'Ti'O -Vrm-sQyTfS V\>irrtv-<<ji T\iitT^6\X

C9

*'2,5Tb-
aaa.'siss

j

P E-IILAB9

8
i Ic*.

■7^ fg!-WW^CWTTWK* ,
15DD.* ■*S

I »00523ai> i:lt3(?i5SSe 705D0255&5>-

>:illl225S5i: 705D0235&5I' 151

8/27/2024 0/8/2024 $2,526.00$2,500.00 5238

S239MCTOm COtBOT OROUNOWATBI
eoatsnvA'noH osimcr

5246VKTDRtA COUNTY CtKOUNDWATER
CONSERVATION WSTOICT

eg otvfeVyy-^XcWm i

● .Qy-tf-VviV>g»Ly<A-rv.m4
^^HEsnifiAnK: ^

T7W14M7
MciMMirmi

'MOBlirMaii
»mR«MorTHTMM EMTB. tanfsn

S~ 'faxi3b_^ V\Qflgt

Tven W4Yy\YV<>\ SwaMs dM

SI- * \tn-'
..... ogi .DOitAMt tS

J Jt

YD05735Y eillUI555<: 7a60023555i' YOOS2I.5Y <llll!!5S5i: 7D50023S55Y

$127.00B/Z/2Q2^ 8/16/2024$270.00 52465239

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 342 of 358



3566Account NoVICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

Page 5 of 8

OU ICiC-p-Tur Ob-x
VtCTOttUCOUMryatlWKSWATE!) M
CCWSEnVATTOH DtSTHICT
:=3BHnMOK7>7f2N

Mcicw,TicT?m<" ■

624a5247VICrOraA COVMTV aROUXaWATER
CONSERVATION DtSTRiCT

i «na«nniiiiwqgTmti«

W39U.71

iiaMOl*

Ba.u.Y\w!Q^iV'^ oT \^m±jia^-\V\tVy\ni s q\j-
■<\<

m

MU *BstmtMiQ. i^aum

0p,wV3>u \>Sy\\VrW .,
Qy\<. VwArrtreQ -bc^VH-4iX rM\r^

S j

O SLim
a g-

J)OLLAf»9
—

pttaAftMTTrMrK-

Tp-fc. in^^-7A-o\
WTTmwn-

c/?0—oQDSiuei* i:;m22sssi: 7osDOi]scBi*t‘QOS?ATH iltmiiEiSSi: 70BDD23SBSI*

8/16/2024 8/1/2024 $176.885247 $86.00 5248

6ZS1VICTCRU COUNTY OROUKSWATCR
COMSERVAT10N OCffTIOCT

S2&4VICTORIA cownv OftOimSWATER
CONSERVATtm DISTRICT
SIMtt w«*0 S> I7X rt&

WTWU. n l7ID1«9tf
h«eBTtf»4flS

a MaoiW f9 ciT m ■eH*04l

fmm
^fcicwfc.ar7»i Mp

OATtnoranjBB ABUel

(^C'Ti

T\on -Wiau^oAV^ ny%A ■Swv _V> ^v^!Vr■g\ 5'N.\m-T\\K gy\A'^^lica
^Big??PHTyiMKif '

Nv\. Vv^<'\ " ~
●*0052S>.>‘ ?dsdd;3SSB'

.21
J »l.cccr' S \J^

iLLAxa a g-. la a &
mowYWTTftw

● MA. FiAwStwi.^
roosasi' >:si3;iiBsst: TQ&ao?)SeS<>

8/27/2024 5251 8/23/2024$2,000.00 $665.315254

T?P=5sS-TSB^TO377?^ss' 02H 6266VICTORIA COU
CONSERVATKM DtSTTOCT

VZCTOmA COU^^Y groukowater
CONSERVATION DISTRICT
=3 H HMJM CmtU

yrew*,TTT7t»p

KWtUhBMUUWWDITCrim

●/epsm.nr7m%^a
OATt. SATe mur|

SIt.. rowVvr.e. \>jV\\Vi\<>s^	
_Dy\c WviA-re^ owA °*/icc

:4
AcL-Tompsii-g

aa» V^w^‘V 2 ILV

-Wi
.«.tfOMPPrTiwiic

-9t S H.®o"J* J

og=. botirAAl 0&.J)OtL«A4

Acn.

●'□QS2S5*- CliaiilCBSC TOSOOTiBBSo ●‘□DSiSSH OUliSSSSC TOSOOnSESi*

8/26/2024 5255 $176.88 8/29/2024 $14,800.005256

vO

o
o
.to.

O'
Ul

o
o
O'
<o

>o
09
O

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 343 of 358



’4

i PROSPERITY BANK^%
%

Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com 8/31/2024

7120

Page 1 of 4

Statement Date

Account No
*rilt*4t

6996 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

.,|ll,I.|(,|l.l|i.lll|Inil|l.||l.,.,.l,||I,ll|l,.ll.l|.,|,ll.|l.

Fraudulent phone calls, text messages, and emails are on the rise.

Visit www.prosperitybankusa.com/fraud-prevention for tips and information on how to protect yourself.

STATEMENT SUAAMARY Public Fund Contractual Money Mkt Account No ***^120

08/01/2024 Beginning Balance

1 Deposits/Other Credits

0 Checks/Other Debits

Ending Balance

S282,690.11

$718.31

50.00

$283,408.4208/31/2024 31 Days in Statement Period

DEPOSITS/OTHER CREDITS

Date Description Amount

08/31/2024 Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account 5718.31

TOTAL OVERDRAFT FEES
c
o

Total For This Periodo Total Year-to-Date
o

Total Overdraft Fees $0.00 50.00

Total Return Item Fees 50.00 50.00

DAILY ENDING BAUNCE

Date Balance Date Balance

08-01 5282,690.11 5283,408.4208-31o
po

EARNINGS SUMMARYO
o

** Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period. *’

$718.31

55,604.92

o

O'

Interest Paid This Period

Interest Paid YTD

o

Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period

3.03%

31

MEMBER FDIC NYSE Symbol ”PB'

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 344 of 358



●

PROSPERITY BANKa 4.
44

4^

Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com 8/31/2024Statement Date

Account No 52426997 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Page 1 of 5

ti

1

Fraudulent phone calls, text messages, and emails are on the rise.

Visit www.prosperitybankusa.com/fraud-prevention for tips and information on how to protect yourself.

Public Fund Contractual Money Mkt Account No ****5242-STATEMENT SUMMARY

08/01/2024 Beginning Balance

10 Deposits/Other Credits

0 Checks/Other Debits

08/31/2024 Ending Balance

Total Enclosures

51,751,859.82

S7.371.70

SO.OO

51,759,231.5231 Days in Statement Period

9

[.■,DEPOSITS/OTHER-CREP1TS
Date Description Amount

5391.59

$758.59

$247.34

$312.05

$107.60

$302.07

5321.35

5240.54

5235.30

54,455.27

08/02/2024

08/07/2024

08/12/2024

08/16/2024

08/19/2024

08/26/2024

08/27/2024

08/29/2024

08/30/2024

08/31/2024

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account

sO

o
o

o

DAILY ENDING BALANCE.

Date Balance BalanceDateDate Balance
o

$1,751,859.82

$1,752,251.41

$1,753,010.00

$1,753,257.34

$1,754,540.95

$1,754,776.25

$1,759,231.52

O 08-01

08-02

08-07

08-12

$1,753,569.39

$1,753,676.99

$1,753,979.06
$1,754,300.41

08-29

08-30

08-31

08-16

08-19

08-26

08-27

o

o

o

EARNINGS SUMMARY

'* Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period. **

$4,455.27

$33,241.51

Interest Paid This Period

Interest Paid YTD

3.03%Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period 31

NYSE Symbol "PB'MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 345 of 358



VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER **●*
5242Account No

Page 2 of 5

I
M- ●0n"OL«

?
□r

'.A3
-§ ●

§ _

I
I C .w

s. ^ w
I

mAeOOTTTWOSXnU
oauom'BCB omeo

sRMBWiDfm n

ao77!Si<.ei* .SI

8/2/2024 8/7/2024 $756.59$391.59

I -
3.

B r

5 =Qs

93SSSS
Esfsi

3
]

B I
8

I!
wreweeiwrroaMvmt

24134-$

WWW
cmiiisssc BD77;S2l.7i‘ 151

8/12/2024 $247.34 8/16/2024 $312.05

i O t .

1■J £sl

I ^ r-
isa, =oo

s J.3.
i

B a
.5 SW3

! I
3 c 2» I I:(s o

S t ■?
I« I > e 1 > 3

■KTou c«cjfTr CACp^ionTn

Qj«77rmiiaig wwltf .in,^riniirT

305.0 >s 1 OliijO s

<mi2iB55<: SaT72S7l.7i> '
yV\Ct4cxlLr
●:il312 76SSi: a077iS2t.;i>1st 151

8/19/2024 8/26/2024$107.60 $302.07

I ^ m
tt t 1'i tf

f, £Q

C

ill: is ‘
N

fSi
5»n

i
3

Ni
7

.3.J 3

I I

±4.s
I

rro»CTtrf ICfOM CMKTV QMtMWTBI

Q^WPTTTftAWTco«ow*na< wnnc

54054-321.36s sBMNVCfi ntm

ioraw.Ti «oa»4isr(v<

eii)i7i5ss<: ao?7 757i<7>' ■:i 13177555>: B07 7ZS7<.2|‘151 151

8/27/2024 8/29/2024 $240.54$321.35

Mt B
««maa

If
in

a
O'
c?

S§' 7Si i

A:>.

2 mm
amsiwi.’

9
&

P.
I

f^^PWOTffTwror
53S30s

>:mi27555i: a0777SZl>7r 151

8/30/2024 $235.30

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 346 of 358



i PROSPERITY BANK®¥

21 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

08/02/2024

XXXX2625

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2625Certificate #

$164,632.78*^
08/04/2024

$451.95

$3,525.04

3.250DS^

12 Months

12/04/2024

09/04/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

J

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
to

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o

SJ

o

if you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

MEMBER FDIC NYSE Symbol "PB"

LCNOfcfr

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 347 of 358



‘S

PROSPERITY BANK¥

21 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

08/02/2024

XXXX2629

.||ll,|n|.|l,l,..lllll,|i|l,n||n,,U||n||.|l|U|ili,|i,|nM

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMAAARY

XXXX2629Certificate if

J
$164,935.19

08/04/2024

$306.77

$2,399.96

2.2000%

23 Months

09/04/2024

09/04/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

o

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
ro

ro

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o
o
ro

o
ro

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 5 Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

LENDER

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 348 of 358



a
i PROSPERITY BANK¥

651 1 AB 0.593

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

08/22/2024

XXXX2680

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

^ NOTICE SU/iAMARY
■3

XXXX2680Certificate #

5166,182.61

08/22/2024

5470.20

53,665.61

3.3500%

24 Months

03/22/2025

09/22/2024

50.00

50.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

NOTICE INFORMATIONo

o

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o
O'

o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 SMain St

Victoria, TX 77901

MEMBER FDIC NYSE Symbol "PB"

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 349 of 358



t PROSPERITY BANK®

503 1 AB 0.593

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

08/08/2024

XXXX2801

II

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2801Certificate “

S265,046.69

08/08/2024

5749.92

$5,165.41

3.3500%

24 Months

01/08/2026

09/08/2024

$0.00

50.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

NOTICE INFORMATIONO
NJ

O

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o

o
LO

o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our CustomerService
Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 SMain St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

LLNCJfli

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 350 of 358



a i PROSPERITY BANK*¥

503 1 AB 0.593

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

08/08/2024

XXXX2802

!|||,.|i|||il,||](|.||..||,l(}ln.|..|.||I|l.|ll||.<i]l|i|.i.ilII

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX2802Certificate

$265,046.69

08/08/2024

$749.92

$5,165.41

3.3500% —

24 Months

01/08/2026

09/08/2024

$0.00

$0.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

o

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
N)
O

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o
o
o
U1

o

o

if you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 5 Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

Ll NWKN

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 351 of 358



ti i PROSPERITY BANK®

40 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0518

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

Certificate # XXXX0518

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

$260,675.36

06/30/2024

$2,176.76

$4,312.20

3.3500:6

24 Months

03/30/2025'^
09/30/2024

$0.00

$0.00

NOTICE INFORMATION.o
Ul

o

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o

o
o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531 -1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 SMain St

Victoria, TX 77901

MEMBER FDIC NYSE Symbol '’PB"

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 352 of 358



^ PROSPERITY BANK"50

41 1 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDVMTER

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0519

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

;hoticb suamwry

XXXX0519Certificate "

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

5260,675.36

06/30/2024

$2,176.76

54,312.20

3.3500%

24 Months

03/30/2025'

09/30/2024

50.00

50.00

: NOnCEilNFORAAATlONo

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

O
O
o
o

o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 5 Main St

Victoria. TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB”/AEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 353 of 358



6'

PROSPERITY BANK

40 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0520

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

Kcrnicf§yMMARY.

Certificate // XXXX0520

S260,357.35«^
06/30/2024

52,115.52

54,185.67

3.25007.

12 Months

03/30/2025

09/30/2024

SO.OO

50.00

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Dote

Next Earnings Date

Federal W'Thheld

State Withheld

o

NCjnCE INFORWATIONO

o

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

o

o
o
o

o
o

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service
Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria. TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 354 of 358



i PROSPERITY BANK®¥

40 2 AV 0.507

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST STE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Notice Date:

Certificate:

06/28/2024

XXXX0521

Certificate of Deposit Earnings Notice

ERN

NOTICE SUMMARY

XXXX0521Certificate #

Current Balance

Earning on

Period Earnings

Earnings Paid YTD

Interest Rate

Maturity Term

Current Maturity Date

Next Earnings Date

Federal Withheld

State Withheld

$260,357.35

06/30/2024

$2,115.52

$4,185.67

3.2500^

12 Months

03/30/2025

09/30/2024

$0.00

$0.00

o

NOTICE INFORMATIONo
W

■A

O

The earnings will be added
to this Certificate.

O

o
o

g
s

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call our Customer Service

Center at 800-531-1401 or your local banking center.

Prosperity Bank
101 S Main St

Victoria, TX 77901

NYSE Symbol "PB"MEMBER FDIC

letuj «su>»4

LENDtlM

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 355 of 358



4'“-4

i PROSPERITY BANK^¥

Visit us online at ProsperityBankUSA.com 8/31/2024Statement Date

Account No
«***

38816995 1 AV 0.545

VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2805 N NAVARRO ST 5TE 210

VICTORIA TX 77901-3947

Page 1 of 5

l|.I|ll|„.IInI.l.l.lI,|,|!uli||.|,|lll|(|l,n|.||.II,|,.l|.nl

Fraudulent phone calls, text messages, and emails are on the rise.

Visit www.prospentybankusa.com/fraud-prevention for tips and information on how to protect yourself.

STATEMENT SUMMARY 3881Public Fund Contractual Ckg w Int Account No

08/01 /2024 Beginning Balance

7 Deposits/Other Credits

0 Checks/Other Debits

08/31 /2024 Ending Balance

Total Enclosures

$70,849.92

59,009.24

$0.00

$79,859.1631 Days in Statement Period

6

^)EPOSrrS/OTHER CREDITS

Date Description Amount

08/08/2024

08/27/2024

08/27/2024 Deposit

08/27/2024 Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Acer Earning Pymt Added to Account

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

Deposit

Deposit
o
o
o
o

08/27/2024

08/27/2024

08/31/2024 59.24

1
total OVERDRAFT FEES.

Total For This Period Total Year-to-Date

o

Total Overdraft Fees $0.00 $0.00

Total Return Item Fees $0.00 $0.00
o
o
o
\D

O
DAILY ENDING BALANCE

o

Date Balance Date Balance

08-01

08-08

$70,849.92

$71,849.92

$79,849.92

$79,859.16

08-27

08-31

EARNINGS SUMMARY

Below is an itemization of the Earnings paid this period. **

$9.24

$53.77

y
Interest Paid This Period

Interest Paid YTD

0.15%Annual Percentage Yield Earned

Days in Earnings Period 31

MEMBER FD!C NYSE Symbol "PB"

i.CI>iQCn VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 356 of 358



VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER Account No
**«*

3881

Page 2 of 5

!, !i: I8 eI
( Jfl.

II! si ®oI
aas.c53

I
i 3 1 Bi

i I
i3I ■ BI

QWWWtWTTBAm- QwwwronraiuwS I 0oo.“ ® I ooo.s
■ wMirrar*

ISl ituii2;6S5i: 151

a/8/2024 $1,000.00 8/27/2024 $1,000.00

IE 8S a1 f

I 1 1i ■:il i ?a a
1'

s 1 3
vs

i!! i
cC

r.i'i I B

afiBBBXS85?

o Q>*opn«»ni»«ycs I ODD,** S looo."'

●:5l3tiibS5i: 21781. }SB1<* IS) CU3I2 2S5SI: 2)781.388 )■> )S)

8/27/2024 8/27/2024$1,000.00 $2,000.00

I
f

V e aB ●0*104

I
§1 is ?[!i tart ^ * C_ 7^ f

^JS I

3d ] 2

I Io:
Ie B

wcioft>eecTriai*MPi OSSSrUAST
0

unm
0 »

‘lOOD.s CHWUiUTlf Wf $ IQOO.'
IQ ^,nr*w..

>:))3)22SS5>: 2)781.388 )●■ )S) >;))3)22S5Si: 2)?8>.3BB )!● )S)

8/27/2024 $2,000.00 8/27/2024 $2,000.00

o
o
o
o

VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 357 of 358



Pledge Security Listing
August 31, 2024

V i PROSPERITY BANK

EL CAMPO, IX

s

saTeKeeping

Receipt

Maturity

Coupon Date

call Current

Book Value

Safekeeping

Location Market Value Gain(Loss)Moody S&P Fitch ASC 320 Current ParFace AmountID CUSIP Description Date

gm
224,494.29

50,536.29

130,868.99

433,205.82

217,983.30

49,025.37

125,549.38

399,638.54

322,492,65

732,047.41

189,256.41

220,617.77

49,767.79

382,627.21

297,151.18

685,629.94

649,052.65

273,785.69

206,801.59

(6,511.00)

(1,510.92)

(5,319.60)

(33,567.27)

(25,386.75)

(40,332.81)

(12,659.08)

(14,003.53)

(1,327.81)

(12,987.08)

(5,646.04)

(103,068.03)

(83,062.22)

(47,681.86)

(23,236.75)

223,666.67

50,412.72

130,151.54

420,220.97

342,472.50

766,654.18

200,981.68

231,629.43

50,466.75

396,693.98

FHLB AA+ AAA HTM 4,788,704

400,000

1,000,000

2,200,000

2,000,000

3,800,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

300,000

948,992

3,000,000

1,200,000

1,100,000

400,000

300,000

3337 31417CWCS FNMA #AB6042 2,50 08/01/2027

07/01/2030

11/01/2030

09/01/2035

10/01/2031

12/01/2031

AAA

FHLB4259 3138WFAL0 2.50 AAA AA+ AAA HTMFNMA #AS5410

HTMFHLB 2.50 AAA AA+ AAA4304 3128MMT86 FHLMC #G18574

FHLB 3.00 AAA AA+ AAA HTM4869 313234HD4 FHLMC #G30927

347,879.40

772,380.22

FHLB AA+ AAA HTM4882 3138W3Aa FNMA <fAS8102 2.50 AAA

4885 3128MMVQ3 FHLMC #GI8622 FHLB 2.50 AAA AA+ AAA HTM

201,915.49

234,621.30

FHLB AA+ AAA HTM4886 3138WJN53 FNMA #AS8S11 2.50 12/01/2031

11/01/2032

02/01/2033

04/01/2033

AAA

FHLB 3.00 AAA AA+ AAA HTM4956 31307U2S6 FHLMC #337985

51,095.60

395,614.29

FHLB4968 3128MFKH0 FHLMC #G16396 3.50 AAA AA+ AAA HTM

FHLB 3,00 AAA AA+ AAA HTM4983 3140Q8281 FNMA CRA #CA1666

302,797,22

788,697.97

732,114.87

321,467.55

230,038.34

297,329.58

773,019.83

714,139.31

321,866.04

228,924.89

4992 3128MMX57 FHLB 4.00 06/01/2033

03/01/2036

05/01/2036

10/01/2041

03/01/2037

AAA AA+ AAA HTMFHLMC #G18699

AAA HTMFHLB 1.50 AAA AA+5538 31418DXG2 FNMA #MA4278

FHLB 2.00 AAA AA+ AAA HTM5558 3132D6AC4 FR #588103

FHLB AAA AA+ AAA HTM5620 31418D5FS FNMA «MA444S 1.50

FHLB AAA HTM5658 31418ECD0 2,00 AAA AA+FNMA #MA4567

y
4,801,426.885,217,727.64 (416,300.75)Total for VICTORIA COUNTY GROUNDWATER 23,437,696 5,148,630.07

AtitiDugri the information H this report has beer obtained from souross believed to be reliable, its accuracy cannot be guaranteed,

Page 1 of 1 8/30/2024 4:17:4Inventory [ Pledge Security Listing [ vl.2
VCGCD - Meeting Packet for October 18, 2024 - Supplemental Documents | Page 358 of 358


	3.2.1
	3.2.2
	3.3.1
	VCGCD - Enforcement Order - ECV-20231105-03 - Signed
	VCGCD - Testimony - Enforcement Hearing - ECV-20231105-03
	VCGCD - Enforcement Order - ECV-20231105-03 - Exhibit 1

	3.3.2
	VCGCD - Enforcement Order - ECV-20231105-06 - Signed
	VCGCD - Testimony - Enforcement Hearing - ECV-20231105-06
	VCGCD - Enforcement Order - ECV-20231105-06 - Exhibit 1

	3.3.3
	3.3.4
	8.2.1
	8.2.2
	8.4.1
	8.4.2
	9.2.1
	9.2.2
	9.2.3
	9.3.1
	9.3.2
	9.3.3
	9.3.4
	9.3.5
	9.3.6
	9.5.1
	9.5.2
	9.5.3



